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Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”). Forward-looking statements relate to expectations concerning matters that are not historical facts. Words such as “projects,”
“believes,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “expects,” “intends,” “strategy,” “continue,” “will,” “estimate,” “forecast” and similar words and
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forwardlooking statements contained herein are reasonable, these expectations or any of the forward-looking statements could prove to be
incorrect, and actual results could differ materially from those projected or assumed in the forward-looking statements. Our future
financial condition and results of operations, as well as any forward-looking statements, are subject to risks and uncertainties, including,
but not limited to, the factors set forth under Item 1A. “Risk Factors.” All forward-looking statements and reasons why results may
differ included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are made as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update any such
forward-looking statements or reasons why actual results may differ.

PART I
ITEM 1.

BUSINESS

Overview
TIBCO Software Inc. ("TIBCO," the "Company," "we" or "us"), a Delaware corporation, is a leading independent provider of
middleware and infrastructure software. Our standards-based software platform enables customers to create flexible, event-driven
applications from infrastructure and deliver real-time, actionable insights. We do this by:
•
•
•
•
•

Integrating and orchestrating software components known as "services," stand alone applications, and various other streams
of information;
Automating and optimizing business processes that span customers’ and partners’ operations;
Analyzing data, especially through visual models, to better understand business behaviors;
Detecting and interpreting significant patterns among streams of relevant business and system events; and
Enabling collaboration among and between people and systems in the enterprise.

We provide these capabilities across a range of environments including physical and virtualized hardware, standards-based and
proprietary, computing grids and public or private clouds.
Using our software, customers have the ability to capture the right information, at the right time and act on it preemptively for a
competitive advantage—what we call "the two-second advantage™". As the backbone of real-time data movement and business process
execution across the enterprise, TIBCO’s software is uniquely capable of correlating, in real-time, information about an organization’s
operations and performance with information about expected behavior and business rules. This correlation of real-time events with
expected behaviors allows a company to anticipate customer needs, capitalize on new opportunities, and avoid potential problems in a
faster and more beneficial way than through more traditional, transaction-oriented applications. Our solutions help customers operate
their business more efficiently, better capitalize on opportunities to increase revenue and market share and extend the life of past
investments made.
We are the successor to a portion of the business of Teknekron Software Systems, Inc. ("Teknekron"). Teknekron developed
software, known as The Information Bus® ("TIB") technology, for the integration and delivery of market data, such as stock quotes,
news and other financial information, in trading rooms of large banks and financial services institutions. In 1992, Teknekron expanded
its development efforts to include solutions designed to enable complex and disparate manufacturing equipment and software
applications, primarily in the semiconductor fabrication market, to communicate within the factory environment. Teknekron was
acquired by Reuters Group PLC ("Reuters"), the global information company, in 1994. Following the acquisition, continued
development of the TIB® technology was undertaken to expand its use in the financial services markets.
In January 1997, TIBCO was established as an entity separate from Teknekron. We were formed to create and market software
solutions for use in the integration of business information, processes and applications. In connection with our establishment as a
separate entity, Reuters transferred to us certain assets and liabilities related to our business and granted to us a royalty-free license to
the intellectual property from which some of our messaging software products originated.
Trademarks
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Proginet, OpenSpirit, Loyalty Lab and LogLogic are the trademarks or registered trademarks of TIBCO Software Inc. in the United
States and other countries. This Annual Report on Form 10-K also refers to the trademarks of other companies.
Products
We offer a wide range of software products that can be sold individually to solve specific technical challenges, but the emphasis of
our product development and sales efforts is to create products that interoperate and can be sold together as a suite to enable businesses
to be more cost-effective, agile and efficient. We divide our products into three major groups: service-oriented architecture ("SOA") and
core infrastructure; business optimization; and process automation and collaboration.
•

SOA and core infrastructure: Our software helps organizations integrate their disparate systems and move towards a
more flexible infrastructure comprised of services or discrete data components that can be assembled, orchestrated and
reused. Such services can be invoked from across the business and aggregated with other such services to create
"infrastructure applications" that span technological, organizational and geographic boundaries and are often more flexible,
efficient and effective than traditional packaged applications. Our software enables the creation, management and
virtualization of heterogeneous services and provides a unified environment for policy and service management. Our
software gives companies the flexibility to do these things using the standards or technologies that best meet their needs in
specific situations without replacing existing technologies or committing to any one technology across the enterprise. We
provide data governance software that ensures such services and underlying data can be trusted, in order to make the
enterprise more efficient and mitigate risks.

•

Business optimization: Our software tracks large volumes of real-time events as they occur and applies sophisticated rules
in order to identify patterns that signify problems, threats and opportunities, and can automatically initiate appropriate
notifications or adaptations of processes. Our software also makes it easy for anyone in an organization to instantly
visualize, interact with, and share data analyses. Our flexible and easy-to-use platform utilizes in-memory technology and a
direct query access approach to speed the analysis of big data, while also leveraging real-time event monitoring and
predictive models. This helps line-level employees perform their jobs, helps managers identify and analyze problems and
aberrations, and gives executives the power to spot opportunities and risks faster than the competition.

•

Process automation and collaboration: Our software helps organizations better coordinate both the manual and automated
process flows that span their business and enables employees to collaborate in real-time using social media. This software
can coordinate the human and electronic resources inside a business and its network of customers and partners (this use of
our products is often referred to as BPM, or business process management, software). Our products aid in the entire process
lifecycle, from process discovery to process design, deployment, and automation and include important capabilities in
process governance and operational support. Our products not only automate routine tasks and exception handling, but
orchestrate long-lived activities and transactions that cut across organizational and geographical boundaries. Our software
enables organizations to provide a higher level of customer satisfaction, retain customers, maximize partnerships with other
businesses and out-execute their competitors.

Our products are currently licensed by companies worldwide in diverse industries such as financial services, telecommunications,
government, energy, life sciences, insurance, logistics, manufacturing, retail and transportation. We sell our products through a direct
sales force and through alliances with other software vendors, resellers and systems integrators.
Services
Professional Services
Our professional services offerings include a wide range of consulting services such as systems planning and design, installation
and systems integration for the rapid deployment of TIBCO products. We offer our professional services with the initial deployment of
our products as well as on an ongoing basis to address the continuing needs of our customers. Our professional services staff is located
throughout the Americas; Europe, the Middle East and Africa ("EMEA"); and Asia Pacific and Japan ("APJ"), enabling us to perform
installations and respond to customer demands rapidly across our global customer base. Many of our professional services employees
have advanced degrees, substantial TIBCO experience and industry expertise in systems architecture and design; additionally, many also
have domain expertise in energy, financial services, logistics, life sciences, manufacturing, telecommunications and other industries.
We also have relationships with system integrators, resellers, professional service organizations and business partners including
Accenture, Atos Origin, Deloitte Consulting, HP Enterprise Services, HCL Technologies, Huawei, Infosys Technologies and Tata
Consultancy Services, who participate in the deployment of our products to customers. These relationships help promote TIBCO
products and provide additional technical expertise to enable us to provide the full range of
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professional services our customers require to deploy our products.
Maintenance and Support
We offer a suite of software support and maintenance options that are designed to meet the needs of our diverse customer base.
These support options include 24 hour coverage that is available seven days a week, 365 days a year, to meet the needs of our global
customers. To accomplish this level of support we have established a worldwide support organization with major support centers in Palo
Alto, California; Chapel Hill, North Carolina; London and Swindon, England; Woy Woy, Australia; Beijing, China; and Pune, India.
These centers, working in conjunction with several smaller support offices located throughout the Americas, EMEA and APJ, provide
seamless support across the globe on a 24/7 basis.
In addition to support teams around the globe, we have a customer support website that provides our customers with the ability to
submit service requests, receive confirmations on opened service requests and obtain current status on these requests. Additionally, the
customer support website provides access to our support procedures, escalation numbers and late breaking news ("LBN"). LBN is used
to provide updates and new information about our products. It also provides customers with information on generally known problems
and suggested solutions or workarounds that may be available.
Training
We provide a comprehensive and global training program for customers and partners through regional technical learning centers,
customer dedicated training, live online training, and self-paced eLearning. Training is available at our main office in Palo Alto,
California and at major training centers in Atlanta, Georgia; Maidenhead, England; Munich, Germany; Sydney, Australia; Pune, India
and Singapore. Additionally, we offer a variety of flexible programs designed to meet the training needs of individuals and companies.
Our Educational Services group has the capability to develop efficient and effective training solutions to address the specific needs of
individual customers and partners. Our curriculum leads to an industry recognized technical certification in core TIBCO technologies.
Hosted Services
We have several hosted service offerings, including our tibbr and Loyalty Lab subscription services. We offer these services in a
cloud deployment model where our software runs on third party infrastructure components such as servers, storage and network devices.
The fees we receive for these services include subscription and maintenance and support fees.
Sales
We currently market our software and services primarily through a direct sales organization complemented by indirect sales
channels. Our direct sales force is located throughout the Americas, EMEA and APJ and operates globally through our foreign
subsidiaries.
Our revenue consists of license and service and maintenance fees from our customers and distributors. License fees represented
approximately 40%, 41% and 40% of our total revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Revenue from service and
maintenance represented approximately 60%, 59% and 60% of our total revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Sales to customers outside the United States totaled $526.6 million, representing 51% of our total revenue in fiscal year 2012. For
a geographic breakdown of our revenue and property and equipment, see Note 21 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Marketing
We use a mix of market research, analyst updates, seminars, direct mail, print advertising, trade shows, speaking engagements,
public relations, customer newsletters and web marketing in order to achieve our marketing goals. Our marketing department also
produces collateral material for distribution to potential customers including presentation materials, white papers, brochures, magazines
and fact sheets. We also host user events for our customers and provide support to our channel partners with a variety of programs,
training and product marketing support materials.
Seasonality and Quarterly Order Flow
Our business is subject to variations throughout the year due to seasonal factors in the United States and worldwide. These factors
include fewer selling days during the summer vacation season, the impact of the December holidays and a slowdown in capital
expenditures by our customers after calendar year-end (during our first fiscal quarter). These factors typically constrain sales activity in
our first and third fiscal quarters compared to the rest of the year, and they make quarter-toCopyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

3

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Table of Contents

quarter comparisons of our operating results less meaningful.
Additionally, a substantial portion of our product license orders are usually received in the last month of each fiscal quarter, with a
concentration of such orders in the final two weeks of the quarter. We typically ship product licenses shortly after the receipt of an order
and may have license orders that have not shipped at the end of any given quarter. Because the amount of such product license orders
may vary, the amount, if any, of such orders at the end of a particular quarter is not a reliable predictor of our future performance.
Competition
The market for our products and services is extremely competitive and subject to rapid change. While we offer a comprehensive
suite of integration solutions and believe we are a market leader among infrastructure software companies, we compete with various
providers of infrastructure software including IBM, Oracle, Progress Software, SAP and Software AG, as well as certain point-solution
providers such as Pegasystems and Qlik Technologies. We offer a complete suite of infrastructure software products, but IBM, Oracle
and SAP offer products outside our segment and routinely bundle their broader set of products with their infrastructure software
products. We expect additional competition from other established and emerging companies. In addition, we may face pricing pressures
from our current competitors and new market entrants in the future. We believe that the competitive factors affecting the market for our
products and services include product functionality and features, quality of professional services offerings, performance and price, ease
of product implementation, quality of customer support services, customer training and documentation, and vendor and product
reputation. The relative importance of each of these factors depends upon the specific customer environment. We believe that our
products and services currently compete favorably with respect to such factors. However, we may not be able to maintain our
competitive position against current and potential competitors.
Research and Development
Our success is heavily dependent upon our ability to develop new products and technologies and to enhance our existing products.
We expect that a majority of our research and development activities will focus on enhancing and extending our TIBCO products and
that such enhancements and new products will be developed internally. However, as part of our development strategy, we may also
license or acquire externally developed technologies for inclusion in our product solutions. We expect that we will continue to commit
significant resources to product development in the future. Product development costs are recorded as research and development
expenses. Our research and development expenses, including stock-based compensation expense, were $154.5 million, $143.2 million
and $124.7 million in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. To date, product development costs have been expensed as
incurred, with the exception of immaterial costs related to hosted services, because the time period between achieving technological
feasibility for a product and the general availability of such product has typically been very short.
Proprietary Technology
Our success is dependent upon our proprietary software technology. We believe that factors such as the technological and creative
skills of our personnel, product enhancements and new product developments are all essential to establishing and maintaining a
technology leadership position. We hold numerous United States and foreign patents and have several pending patent applications. We
additionally license some patents from Reuters on a royalty-free basis. These patent rights notwithstanding, we currently rely primarily
on trade secret rights, copyright and trademark laws, and nondisclosure and other contractual agreements to protect our technology. We
enter into confidentiality and/or license agreements with our employees, distributors and customers, and limit access to and distribution
of our software, documentation and other proprietary information. Despite these protective measures, third parties could still copy and
use our products or otherwise misappropriate our technology.
Furthermore, third parties might independently develop competing technologies that include the same functionality or features, or
otherwise are substantially equivalent or superior to our technologies. In addition, effective patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret
protection may be unavailable or limited in certain foreign countries where we operate. Our business could suffer serious harm if we fail
to protect our proprietary technology.
Employees
As of November 30, 2012, we employed 3,646 persons, including 978 in sales and marketing, 838 in research and development,
349 in general and administrative and 1,481 in professional services and technical support. Of our 3,646 employees, 1,794 were located
in the Americas, 825 in EMEA and 1,027 in APJ. Our success is highly dependent on our ability to attract and retain qualified
employees. Competition for employees is intense in the software industry. To date, we believe we have been successful in our efforts to
recruit qualified employees, but there is no assurance that we will continue to be as
4
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successful in the future.
Available Information
Our principal internet address is www.tibco.com. Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current
Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to reports filed pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, are filed electronically with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). Such reports and other
information filed by us with the SEC are available, free of charge, on the Investor Information page of our website at
http://www.tibco.com/company/investor_info as soon as reasonable practicable after we file such reports on the SEC website. The public
may read and copy any materials we have filed with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC
20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The
SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy, and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC at http://www.sec.gov. The contents of these websites are not incorporated into this filing. Further, the
references to the URLs for these websites are intended to be inactive textual references only.

ITEM 1A.

RISK FACTORS

In addition to the factors discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-K, the following risk factors, as well as other factors of which we
may be unaware or do not currently view as significant, could materially and adversely affect our future operating results and could
cause actual events to differ materially from those predicted in the forward-looking statements we make about our business.
Our future revenue is unpredictable, and we expect our quarterly operating results to fluctuate, which may cause our stock
price to decline.
As a result of the evolving nature of the markets in which we compete and the size of our customer agreements, we have difficulty
accurately forecasting our revenue in any given period. In addition to the factors discussed elsewhere in this section, a number of factors
may cause our revenue to fall short of our expectations, or those of stock market analysts and investors, or cause fluctuations in our
operating results, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

the relatively long sales cycles for many of our products;
the timing of our new products or product enhancements or any delays in such introductions;
the delay or deferral of customer implementation of our products;
changes in customer budgets and decision making processes that could affect both the timing and size of any transaction;
reduced spending in the industries that license our products;
our dependence on large deals, which, if such deals do not close, can greatly impact revenues for a particular quarter;
the timing, size and mix of orders from customers;
the deferral of license revenue to future periods due to the timing of the execution of an agreement or our ability to deliver the
products;
the impact of our provision of services and customer-required contractual terms on our recognition of license revenue;
any unanticipated difficulty we encounter in integrating acquired businesses, products or technologies;
the tendency of some of our customers to wait until the end of a fiscal quarter or our fiscal year before placing an order in the
hope of obtaining more favorable terms;
adverse economic or market conditions;
the amount and timing of operating costs and capital expenditures relating to the expansion of our operations and the
evaluation of strategic transactions; and
changes in accounting rules, such as recording expenses for employee stock option grants and tax accounting, including
accounting for uncertain tax positions.

A substantial portion of our product license orders are usually received in the last month of each fiscal quarter, with a concentration
of such orders in the final two weeks of the quarter. While we typically ship product licenses shortly after the receipt of an order, we
may have license orders that have not shipped at the end of any given quarter. Because the amount of such product license orders may
vary, the amount, if any, of such orders at the end of a particular quarter is not a reliable predictor of our future performance.
5
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Because it is difficult for us to predict our quarterly operating results, period-to-period comparisons of our operating results may not
be a good indication of our future performance. If, as a result of these difficulties, our revenues and operating results do not meet the
expectations of our investors or securities analysts or fall below guidance we may provide to the market, the price of our common stock
may decline.
Uneven growth and periods of contraction in the infrastructure software market have caused our revenue to decline in the past
and could cause our revenue or results of operations to fall below expectations in the future.
We earn a substantial portion of our revenue from licenses of our infrastructure software, including application integration software
and sales of related services. We expect to earn substantially all of our revenue in the foreseeable future from sales of this software and
the related services. Our future financial performance will depend on continued growth in the number of organizations demanding
software and services for application integration and information delivery and companies seeking outside vendors to develop, manage
and maintain this software for their critical applications. Lower spending by corporate and governmental customers around the world,
which has had a disproportionate impact on information technology spending, has led to a reduction in sales in the past and may
continue to do so in the future. Many of our potential customers have made significant investments in internally developed systems and
would incur significant costs in switching to third-party products, which may substantially inhibit the growth of the market for
infrastructure software. If the market fails to grow, or grows more slowly than we expect, our sales will be adversely affected. Also,
even if corporate and governmental spending increases and companies make greater investments in information technology and
infrastructure software, our revenue may not grow at the same pace.
Economic and market conditions have in the past adversely affected, and may in the future adversely affect, our operating
results.
We are subject to risks arising from adverse changes and uncertainty in domestic and global economies. For example, past domestic
and global economic downturns resulted in reduced demand for information technology, including enterprise software and services. The
direction and relative strength of the global economy continues to be uncertain and volatile, and could be adversely affected by, among
other things, concerns regarding Europe's potential sovereign-debt crisis and other potential financial issues affecting the European
economy, unrest in the Middle East, tightening in the credit markets, downturns in the financial industry, issues related to the United
States' debt, budget and tax rates, and other geopolitical factors, and makes it difficult for us to forecast operating results and to make
decisions about future investments. We cannot predict the duration of these economic conditions or the impact they may have on our
customers or business. Information technology spending has historically declined or been postponed as general economic and market
conditions have worsened. During challenging and uncertain economic times and in tight credit markets, many customers delay or
reduce technology purchases. Contract negotiations may become more protracted or difficult if customers institute additional internal
approvals for technology purchases or require more negotiation of contract terms and conditions. These economic conditions, and
uncertainty as to the general direction of the macroeconomic environment, are beyond our control and could result in reductions in sales
of our products, longer sales cycles, difficulties in collection of accounts receivable or delayed payments, slower adoption of new
technologies, increased price competition and reductions in the rate at which our customers renew their maintenance agreements and
procure consulting services.
Our success depends on our ability to overcome significant competition.
The market for our products and services is extremely competitive and subject to rapid change. We compete with a variety of large
and small providers of infrastructure software, SOA, business optimization and process automation and collaboration, including
companies such as IBM, Oracle,Progress Software, SAP and Software AG, as well as certain point-solution providers such as
Pegasystems and Qlik Technologies. We also face competition for certain aspects of our product and service offerings from major
systems integrators, and our customers have alternatives to our proprietary software from open source software providers that provide
software and intellectual property, typically without charging license fees, or from other competitors offering products through
alternative business models, such as software as a service. Many of our current and potential competitors have longer operating
histories, significantly greater financial, technical, product development and marketing resources, greater name recognition, and larger
customer bases than we do. This may allow our present or future competitors to develop products comparable or superior to those we
offer; adapt more quickly than we do to new technologies, evolving industry trends or customer requirements; and devote greater
resources to the development, promotion and sale of their products than we do. For example, some of our competitors offer products
outside our segment and routinely bundle these products with their infrastructure software products. Also, some of our competitors are
expanding their competitive product offerings and strengthening their market position through increases in capital expenditures for
internal research and development. Accordingly, we may not be able to compete effectively in our markets or against existing and future
competitors, which could adversely affect our business and operating results.
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Additionally, consolidation in the software industry has been a trend in recent years and is continuing at a rapid pace. Our current
and potential competitors could make additional strategic acquisitions, consolidate their operations, or establish cooperative
relationships among themselves or with other solution providers, allowing them to broaden their offerings of products and solutions and
more effectively address the needs of our prospective customers, including acting as sole-source vendors for our customers. If any of
this were to occur, it could adversely affect our business and operating results.
Our strategy contemplates future acquisitions, which may present risks including our incurring unanticipated expenses or
additional debt, difficulty in integrating our operations, competition from other potential acquirors, financing challenges and
dilution to our stockholders and may harm our operating results.
Our success depends in part on our ability to continually enhance and broaden our product offerings in response to changing
technologies, customer demands and competitive pressures. We have acquired and expect to continue to acquire complementary
businesses, products and technologies as part of our corporate strategy. In this regard, we have made a number of strategic acquisitions
in recent years. We do not know if we will be able to complete any future acquisitions or whether we will be able to successfully
integrate any acquired business, operate it profitably or retain its key employees or customers. Acquiring any new business, product or
technology could be expensive and time-consuming, disrupt our ongoing business and financial performance, distract our management,
increase our debt to finance such acquisition, increase our capital expenditures to support such new business and require us to manage
larger and more complex operations. Therefore, we may not be able, either immediately post-acquisition or ever, to replicate the preacquisition revenues achieved by companies that we acquire or achieve the benefits of the acquisition we anticipated in valuing the
businesses, products or technologies we acquire. Furthermore, the costs of integrating acquired companies in international transactions
can be particularly high, due to, among other things, local laws and regulations. If we are unable to integrate any newly acquired entity,
products or technology effectively, our business, financial condition and operating results could suffer. In addition, any amortization or
impairment of acquired intangible assets, stock-based compensation or other charges resulting from the costs of acquisitions could harm
our operating results.
In addition, we may face competition for acquisition targets from larger and more established companies with greater financial
resources. Therefore, we may engage in discussions for, and incur expenses and fees for, acquisitions that do not ultimately occur. This
could result in a diversion of our management's time and increased expenses.
Also, in order to finance any acquisition, we may need to raise additional funds through public or private financings or use our cash
reserves. In that event, we may not be able to raise additional funds or we could be forced to obtain equity or debt financing on terms
that are not favorable to us or that result in dilution to our stockholders. Use of our cash reserves for acquisitions could limit our
financial flexibility in the future. The terms of existing or future loan agreements may place limits on our ability to incur additional debt
to finance acquisitions. Further, if we finance an acquisition by issuing shares of stock or other rights with respect to our capital stock,
our existing stockholders would be diluted and earnings per share may decrease. If we are not able to acquire strategically attractive
businesses, products or technologies, we may not be able to remain competitive in our industry or achieve our overall growth plans.
We may not be able to achieve our key initiatives and grow our business as anticipated.
While we currently intend to grow our business by pursuing key initiatives to: broaden our product platform through internal
development and acquisitions; increase our sales capacity by expanding our direct sales organization and developing our channel
partnerships; expand our product offerings to new vertical markets; and employ marketing programs to increase awareness of our
company and our products among existing and prospective customers, we cannot assure you that we will be able to achieve these key
initiatives. Our success depends on our ability to: appropriately manage our expenses as we grow our organization; identify or acquire
companies or assets at attractive valuations; enter into beneficial channel relationships; develop new products; and successfully execute
our marketing and sales strategies. If we are not able to execute on these actions, our business may not grow as we anticipated, and our
operating results could be adversely affected.
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Our intellectual property or proprietary rights could be misappropriated, which could force us to become involved in expensive
and time-consuming litigation and could harm our business and results of operations.
We regard our intellectual property as critical to our success. Accordingly, we rely upon a combination of copyrights, service
marks, trademarks, trade secret rights, patents, confidentiality agreements and licensing agreements to protect our intellectual property.
Despite these protections, a third party could misappropriate our intellectual property. Any misappropriation of our proprietary
information by third parties could harm our business, financial condition and operating results.
In addition, the laws of some countries do not provide the same level of protection of our proprietary information as do the laws of
the United States. If our proprietary information or material were misappropriated or challenged, we might have to engage in litigation
to protect it. We might not succeed in protecting our proprietary information if we initiate intellectual property litigation, and, in any
event, such litigation would be expensive and time-consuming, could divert our management's attention away from running our business
and could seriously harm our business.
Claims by others that our products may infringe their intellectual property rights may cause us to incur unexpected costs or
prevent us from selling our products.
Third parties may claim that certain of our products infringe their patents or other intellectual property rights. In addition, our use of
open source software components in our products may make us vulnerable to claims that our products infringe third-party intellectual
property rights, in particular because many of the open source software components we may incorporate with our products may be
developed by numerous independent parties over whom we exercise no supervision or control. "Open source software" is software that
is covered by a license agreement which permits the user to liberally copy, modify and distribute the software, typically free of charge.
Further, because patent applications in the United States and many other countries are not publicly disclosed at the time of filing,
applications covering technology used in our software products may have been filed without our knowledge. We may be subject to legal
proceedings and claims from time to time, including claims of alleged infringement of the patents, trademarks and other intellectual
property rights of third parties by us or our licensees in connection with their use of our products. Our software license agreements
typically provide for indemnification of our customers for intellectual property infringement claims. Intellectual property litigation, with
or without merit, is expensive and time consuming, could cause product shipment delays and could divert our management's attention
away from running our business and seriously harm our business. If we were to discover that our products violated the intellectual
property rights of others, we would have to obtain licenses from these parties, which could require the payment of royalty or licensing
fees, in order to continue marketing our products without substantial reengineering. We might not be able to obtain the necessary
licenses on acceptable terms or at all, and if we could not obtain such licenses, we might not be able to reengineer our products
successfully or in a timely fashion. If we fail to address any infringement issues successfully, we would be forced to incur significant
costs, including damages and potentially satisfying indemnification obligations that we have to our customers, and we could be
prevented from selling certain of our products.
We operate internationally and face risks attendant to those operations.
We earn a significant portion of our total revenues from international sales generated through our foreign direct and indirect
operations. As a result of these sales operations, we face a variety of risks, including:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

local political and economic instability;
tariffs, quotas and trade barriers and other varying regulatory or contractual requirements or limitations;
the engagement of activities by our employees, contractors, partners and agents, especially in countries with developing
economies, that are prohibited by international and local trade and labor laws and other laws prohibiting corrupt payments to
government officials, including the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the UK Bribery Act of 2010 and export control laws, in
spite of our policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with these laws;
restrictions on the transfer of funds, including with respect to restrictions on our ability to repatriate foreign cash to the United
States at favorable tax rates;
currency exchange rate fluctuations;
overlapping tax regimes;
increased expense of developing, testing and making localized versions of our products;
managing our international operations; and
longer payment cycles and credit and collectibility risk on our trade receivables.

Any of these factors, either individually or in combination, could materially impact our international operations and adversely affect
our business as a whole.
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Increases in consulting services revenue may decrease overall margins.
We have historically realized, and may continue in the future to realize, an increasingly high percentage of our revenue from
services, which has a lower profit margin than license or maintenance revenue. As a result, if consulting and training services revenue
increases as a percentage of total revenue, our overall profit margin may decrease, which could impact our stock price.
Changes in foreign currency exchange rates could negatively affect our operating results.
In addition to receiving revenue and incurring expenses in U.S. dollars, we also receive revenue and incur expenses in
approximately twenty-five foreign currencies. As a result of these international sales and operations, our revenue, expenses and net
income are impacted by foreign exchange rate fluctuations against the U.S. dollar. For example, any strengthening of the U.S. dollar
against foreign currencies would result in lower revenues from our international sales when sales are calculated into U.S. dollars,
although these decreases may be partially offset by lower operating expenses. Additionally, customers in foreign countries that incur
higher costs due to the strengthening of the U.S. dollar may elect to delay payments or default on credit extended to them. Any material
delay or default in our collection of significant accounts could have a negative effect on our results of operations. Additionally, any
strengthening of the U.S. dollar could require us to offer discounts, reduce pricing or offer other incentives to mitigate any negative
effects on demand from such rise in the U.S. dollar. Further, in the event that the U.S. dollar weakens compared to foreign currencies,
we may incur higher operating expenses in those locations and, therefore, our business, financial condition and operating results could
suffer. As our international operations continue to grow, or if large fluctuations in foreign exchange rates continue, our revenue,
operating expenses and income may be adversely affected.
We enter into foreign currency forward contracts, the majority of which mature within approximately one month, in an effort to
manage our exposure from changes in value of certain foreign currency denominated net assets and liabilities. Our foreign currency
forward contracts are intended to reduce, but do not eliminate, the impact of currency exchange rate movements. For example, we do
not execute forward contracts in all currencies in which we conduct business. In addition, our hedging program may not reduce the
impact of short-term or long-term volatility in foreign exchange rates. Accordingly, amounts denominated in such foreign currencies
may fluctuate in value and produce significant earnings and cash flow volatility.
We may not be able to successfully offer products and enhancements that respond to emerging technological trends and
customers' needs.
If we are not successful in developing enhancements to existing products and new products in a timely manner, achieving customer
acceptance for our existing and new product offerings or generating higher average selling prices, our gross margins may decline, and
our business and operating results may suffer. Furthermore, any of our new product offerings or significant enhancements to current
product offerings could cause some customers to delay making new or additional purchases while they fully evaluate any new offerings
we might have introduced to the market, which in turn may slow sales and adversely affect operating results for an indeterminate period
of time. Also, we may not execute successfully on our product plans because of errors in product planning or timing or acceptance by
the marketplace, technical hurdles that we fail to overcome in a timely fashion or a lack of appropriate resources. This could result in
competitors providing those solutions before we do and loss of market share, net sales and earnings.
If we cannot successfully recruit, retain and integrate highly skilled employees, we may not be able to execute our business
strategy effectively.
If we fail to retain and recruit key management, sales and other skilled employees, our business and our ability to obtain new
customers, develop new products and provide acceptable levels of customer service could suffer. As we grow, we must invest
significantly in building our sales, marketing and engineering groups. Competition for these people in the software industry is intense,
and we may not be able to successfully recruit, train or retain qualified personnel. We are competing against companies with greater
financial resources and name recognition for these employees, and as such, there is no assurance that we will be able to meet our hiring
needs or hire the most qualified candidates. The success of our business is also heavily dependent on the leadership of our key
management personnel, including Vivek Ranadivé, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. The loss of one or more key employees
could adversely affect our continued operations.
In addition, we must successfully integrate new employees into our operations and generate sufficient revenues to justify the costs
associated with these employees. If we fail to successfully integrate employees or to generate the revenue necessary to justify employeerelated expenses, we may be forced to reduce our headcount, which could force us to incur significant expenses and could harm our
business and operating results.
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The inability to upsell to our current customers or the loss of any significant customer could harm our business and cause our
stock price to decline.
We do not have long-term sales contracts with any of our customers. Our customers may choose not to purchase our products or not
to use our services in the future. As a result, a customer that generates substantial revenue for us in one period may not be a source of
revenue in subsequent periods. Any inability on our part to upsell to and generate revenues from our existing customers or the loss of a
significant customer could adversely affect our business and operating results.
The use of open source software in our products may expose us to additional risks.
Certain open source software is licensed pursuant to license agreements that require a user who distributes the open source software
as a component of the user's software to disclose publicly part or all of the source code to the user's software. This effectively renders
what was previously proprietary software open source software. As competition in our markets increases, we must strive to be costeffective in our product development activities. Many features we may wish to add to our products in the future may be available as
open source software and our development team may wish to make use of this software to reduce development costs and speed up the
development process. While we carefully monitor the use of all open source software and try to ensure that no open source software is
used in such a way as to require us to disclose the source code to the related product, such use could inadvertently occur. Additionally, if
a third party has incorporated certain types of open source software into its software but has failed to disclose the presence of such open
source software and we embed that third party software into one or more of our products, we could, under certain circumstances, be
required to disclose the source code to our product. This could have a material adverse effect on our business.
Market acceptance of new platforms, standards and technologies may require us to undergo the expense of developing and
maintaining compatible product solutions.
Our software products can be licensed for use with a variety of platforms, standards and technologies, and we are constantly
evaluating the feasibility of adding new platforms, standards and technologies. There may be future or existing platforms, standards and
technologies that achieve popularity in the marketplace which may not be architecturally compatible with our software products. In
addition, the effort and expense of developing, testing and maintaining software products will increase as more platforms, standards and
technologies achieve market acceptance within our target markets. If we are unable to achieve market acceptance of our software
products or adapt to new platforms, standards and technologies, our sales and revenues will be adversely affected.
Developing and maintaining different software products could place a significant strain on our resources and software product
release schedules, which could harm our revenue and financial condition. If we are not able to develop software for accepted platforms,
standards and technologies, our license and service revenues and our gross margins could be adversely affected. In addition, if the
platforms, standards and technologies we have developed software for are not accepted, our license and service revenues and our gross
margins could be adversely affected.
Any unauthorized, and potentially improper, actions of our personnel could adversely affect our business, operating results and
financial condition.
The recognition of our revenue depends on, among other things, the terms negotiated in our contracts with our customers. Our
personnel may act outside of their authority and negotiate additional terms without our knowledge. We have implemented policies to
help prevent and discourage such conduct, but there can be no assurance that such policies will be followed. For instance, in the event
that our sales personnel negotiate terms that do not appear in the contract and of which we are unaware, whether such additional terms
are written or verbal, we could be prevented from recognizing revenue in accordance with our plans. Furthermore, depending on when
we learn of unauthorized actions and the size of the transactions involved, we may have to restate revenue for a previously reported
period, which would seriously harm our business, operating results and financial condition.
Our stock price may be volatile, which could cause investors to incur significant losses.
The stock market in general and the stock prices of technology companies in particular, have experienced volatility which has often
been unrelated to the operating performance of any particular company or companies. Some of the factors that may affect our common
stock price other than our operating results include:
•
•
•

uncertainty about global economic or political conditions;
general volatility in the capital markets;
business developments by us or our competitors, including material acquisitions or dispositions and strategic investments;
10
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•
•
•
•

industry developments and announcements by us or our competitors;
changes in estimates and recommendations by securities analysts;
speculation in the press or investment community; and
changes in the accounting rules.

During our fiscal year 2012, our stock price fluctuated between a low of $20.04 and a high of $34.67. If market or industry-based
fluctuations continue, our stock price could decline in the future regardless of our actual operating performance and investors could
incur significant losses.
We may incur impairments to goodwill, intangible or long-lived assets.
We review our goodwill, intangible and long-lived assets for impairment annually in the fourth quarter or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable.
Significant negative industry or economic trends, a decline in the market price of our common stock, reduced estimates of future
cash flows or disruptions to our business could indicate that goodwill, intangible or long-lived assets might be impaired. If, in any
period, our stock price decreases to the point where our market capitalization is less than our book value, this too could indicate a
potential impairment and we may be required to record an impairment charge in that period.
Our valuation methodology for assessing impairment requires management to make judgments and assumptions based on historical
experience and to rely on projections of future operating performance. We operate in highly competitive environments and projections
of future operating results and cash flows may vary significantly from actual results. Additionally, if our analysis results in an
impairment to our goodwill, we would be required to record a non-cash charge to earnings in our financial statements during a period in
which such impairment is determined to exist.
Any of these factors could have a negative impact on our operating results.
Our debt agreements contain certain restrictions that may limit our ability to operate our business.
The agreements governing some of our debt contain, and any other future debt agreement we enter into may contain, restrictive
covenants that limit our ability to operate our business, including, in each case subject to certain exceptions, restrictions on our ability
to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

incur indebtedness;
incur indebtedness at the subsidiary level;
grant liens;
enter into certain mergers or sell all or substantially all of our assets;
make certain payments on our equity, including paying dividends;
make dispositions;
make investments;
change our business;
enter into transactions with our affiliates; and
enter into certain restrictive agreements.

In addition, our debt agreements contain financial covenants and additional affirmative and negative covenants. Our ability to
comply with these covenants is dependent on our future performance, which will be subject to many factors, some of which are beyond
our control, including prevailing economic conditions. If we are not able to comply with all of these covenants for any reason and we
have debt outstanding at the time of such failure, some or all of our outstanding debt could become immediately due and payable and
the incurrence of additional debt under the credit facilities would not be allowed. If our cash is utilized to repay any outstanding debt,
depending on the amount of debt outstanding, we could experience an immediate and significant reduction in working capital available
to operate our business. In the event of an acceleration of our debt obligations, we may also not have, and may not be able to obtain,
sufficient funds to make any accelerated payments, including under our convertible senior notes.
As a result of these covenants, our ability to respond to changes in business and economic conditions and to obtain additional
financing, if needed, may be significantly restricted, and we may be prevented from engaging in transactions that might otherwise be
beneficial to us, such as strategic acquisitions or joint ventures.
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The conversion provisions of our convertible senior notes require us to deliver cash and, in certain circumstances, common
stock upon conversion and could dilute the ownership interests of stockholders. In addition, the increase in our debt level from
the issuance of the convertible senior notes could adversely affect our liquidity and impede our ability to raise additional capital
which may also be affected by the tightening of the capital markets.
In April 2012, we issued $600.0 million aggregate principal amount of convertible senior notes due 2032 (the "Notes"). All of the
Notes were outstanding as of November 30, 2012. The Note holders can convert the Notes, under certain circumstances, into cash in an
amount generally equal to the lesser of the conversion value and the principal amount of each Note and, for any conversion value
greater than the principal amount, into shares of common stock at any time before the Notes mature or we redeem or repurchase them.
Upon certain dates (May 5, 2017, May 1, 2022, and May 1, 2027) or the occurrence of certain events including a change in control, the
Note holders can require us to repurchase some or all of the Notes.
Upon any conversion of the Notes, we would be required to make cash payments up to the principal amount of any converted
Notes. Additionally, our basic earnings per share would be expected to decrease to the extent we are required to issue shares upon
conversion because such underlying shares would be included in the basic earnings per share calculation and the conversion would
result in dilution to our stockholders. Any new issuance of equity securities, including the issuance of shares upon the conversion of the
Notes, could dilute the interests of our then-existing stockholders, including holders who receive shares upon conversion of their Notes,
and could decrease the trading price of our common stock and the Notes.
Given that events constituting a "change in control" can trigger repurchase obligations, the existence of such repurchase obligations
may delay or discourage a merger, acquisition, or other consolidation.
Our ability to service our debt obligations, make cash payments upon conversion and meet our repurchase or repayment obligations
of the Notes will depend upon our future performance, which is subject to economic, competitive, financial, and other factors affecting
our industry and operations, some of which are beyond our control. Further, we may not be able to generate sufficient cash flows to
enable us to meet our expenses and service our debt, as well as to meet any cash conversion, repurchase or repayment obligations of the
Notes. This could limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the markets in which we operate. If we
are unable to meet the obligations out of cash flows from operations or other available funds, we may need to raise additional funds
through public or private debt or equity financings. We may not be able to borrow money or sell more of our equity securities to meet
our cash needs for various reasons, including the tightening of the capital markets. Even if we are able to do so, it may not be on terms
that are favorable or reasonable to us. Any of these events could reduce the availability of cash flow to us to fund working capital,
capital expenditures, acquisitions and investments and other general corporate purposes, which could have an adverse effect on our
business, operating results and financial condition.
Any losses we incur as a result of our exposure to the credit risk of our customers and partners could harm our results of
operations.
We monitor individual customer payment capability in granting credit arrangements, seek to limit credit to amounts we believe the
customers can pay, and maintain reserves we believe are adequate to cover exposure for doubtful accounts. As we have grown our
revenue and customer base, our exposure to credit risk has increased. Any material losses we incur as a result of customer defaults could
have an adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition.
We may have exposure to additional tax liabilities.
As a multinational corporation, we are subject to income taxes in the United States and various foreign jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining our global provision for income taxes and other tax liabilities. Any change in the geographical
allocation of our business could adversely affect our tax rates to the extent the shift is weighted towards jurisdictions with higher tax
rates.
In the ordinary course of a global business, there are many intercompany transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Our income tax returns are routinely subject to audits by tax authorities and those authorities often disagree
with positions taken by us on our tax returns. Although we regularly assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these
examinations to determine our estimates of uncertain tax positions, a final determination of tax audits or tax disputes could have an
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.
We are also subject to non-income taxes, such as payroll, sales, use, value-added, net worth, property and goods and services taxes
in the United States and various foreign jurisdictions. We are regularly under audit by tax authorities with respect to these non-income
taxes and may have exposure to additional non-income tax liabilities which could have an adverse effect on our results of operations and
financial condition.
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In addition, our future effective tax rates could be unfavorably affected by changes in tax rates, changes in the valuation of our
deferred tax assets or liabilities, or changes in tax laws or their interpretation. Such changes could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations and financial condition.
We may be subject to increased income taxes, and other restrictions and limitations, if we were to decide to repatriate any of our
foreign cash balances to the United States.
As of November 30, 2012, we held approximately $302.8 million, or 42%, of our cash and cash equivalents, outside of the United
States. We use our foreign cash by reinvesting it into our foreign operations. Our current intention is to continue to reinvest the majority
of our earnings from foreign operations. Our current plans do not anticipate a need to repatriate cash to fund our domestic operations. In
the event cash from foreign operations is needed to fund operations in the U.S. or our foreign cash balance continues to grow such that
we are unable to reinvest such cash outside of the United States, it may become increasingly likely that we would repatriate some of our
foreign cash balances to the United States. In such event, we would be subject to additional income taxes in the United States.
Additionally, if we were to repatriate foreign cash to the United States, we would use a portion of our domestic net operating loss
carryforward which could result in us being subject to cash income taxes on the earnings of our domestic business sooner than would
otherwise have been the case.
Any of these scenarios may subject us to costs, restrictions and/or limitations that result in us being unable to use our cash in the
manner we desire, which may have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.
Changes in existing financial accounting standards or practices, or taxation rules or practices may adversely affect our results of
operations.
Changes in existing accounting or taxation rules or practices, new accounting pronouncements or taxation rules, or varying
interpretations of current accounting pronouncements or taxation practice could have a significant adverse effect on our results of
operations or the manner in which we conduct our business. Further, such changes could potentially affect our reporting of transactions
completed before such changes are effective. A change in existing financial accounting standards or practices may even retroactively
adversely affect previously reported transactions.
In addition, the Financial Accounting Standards Board is currently working with the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") to converge certain accounting principles and to facilitate more comparable financial reporting between companies that are
required to follow GAAP and those that are required to follow International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"). These projects
may result in different accounting principles under GAAP, which may have a material impact on the way in which we report financial
results in areas including, but not limited to, principles for recognizing revenue, lease accounting, and financial statement presentation.
A change in accounting principles from GAAP to IFRS may have a material impact on our financial statements should IFRS be
incorporated into the financial reporting system for U.S. companies.
The outcome of litigation pending against us could require us to expend significant resources and could harm our business and
financial resources.
Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K describes the litigation pending
against us and our directors and officers. The uncertainty associated with substantial unresolved lawsuits or future lawsuits could harm
our business, financial condition and reputation. The defense of the lawsuits could result in the diversion of our management's time and
attention away from business operations, which could harm our business. Negative developments with respect to the lawsuits could
cause our stock price to decline. In addition, although we are unable to determine the amount, if any, that we may be required to pay in
connection with the resolution of the current lawsuits or any future lawsuit by settlement or otherwise, any such payment could
seriously harm our financial condition and liquidity.
Aspects of our business are subject to privacy concerns and a variety of U.S. and international laws regarding data protection.
Aspects of our business are subject to federal, state and international laws regarding privacy and protection of user data. For
example, in the United States regulations such as the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (as amended or supplemented), which protects
and restricts the use of consumer credit and financial information, and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996
(as amended or supplemented), which regulates the use and disclosure of personal health information, impose significant requirements
and obligations on businesses that may affect the use and adoption of our service. The European Union has also adopted a data privacy
directive that requires member states to impose restrictions on the collection and use of personal data that, in some respects, are far more
stringent, and impose more significant burdens on
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subject businesses, than current privacy standards in the United States. We post, on our website, our privacy policies and practices
concerning the use and disclosure of user data. Any failure by us to comply with our posted privacy policies or other federal, state or
international privacy-related or data protection laws and regulations could result in proceedings against us by governmental entities or
others which could harm our business, operating results and financial condition.
It is possible that these laws may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistent with our data practices. If so, in
addition to the possibility of fines and penalties, a governmental order requiring that we change our data practices could result, which in
turn could harm our business, operating results and financial condition. Compliance with these regulations may involve significant costs
or require changes in business practices that result in reduced revenue. Noncompliance could result in penalties being imposed on us or
orders that we cease conducting the noncompliant activity.
We face a variety of risks in doing business with the U.S. and foreign governments, various state and local governments, and
agencies, including risks related to the procurement process, budget constraints and cycles, termination of contracts and audits.
Our customers include the U.S. government and a number of state and local governments or agencies. There are a variety of risks in
doing business with government entities, including:
Procurement. Contracting with public sector customers is highly competitive and can be time-consuming and expensive, requiring
that we incur significant up-front time and expense without any assurance that we will win a contract.
Budgetary Constraints and Cycles. Demand and payment for our products and services are impacted by public sector budgetary
cycles and funding availability, with funding reductions or delays adversely impacting public sector demand for our products and
services.
Termination of Contracts. Public sector customers often have contractual or other legal rights to terminate current contracts for
convenience or due to a default. If a contract is terminated for convenience, which can occur if the customer's needs change, we
may only be able to collect payment for products or services delivered prior to termination and settlement expenses. If a contract
is terminated because of default, we may not recover even those amounts, and we may be liable for excess costs incurred by the
customer for procuring alternative products or services.
Audits. The U.S. government and state and local governments and agencies routinely investigate and audit government contractors
for compliance with a variety of complex laws, regulations, and contract provisions relating to the formation, administration or
performance of government contracts, including provisions governing reports of and remittances of fees based on sales under
government contracts, price protection, compliance with socio-economic policies, and other terms that are particular to
government contracts. If, as a result of an audit or review, it is determined that we have failed to comply with such laws,
regulations or contract provisions, we may be subject to civil and criminal penalties and administrative sanctions, including
termination of contracts, forfeiture of profits, refunds of a portion of fees received, suspension of payments, cost associated with
the triggering of price reduction clauses, fines and suspensions or debarment from future government business, and we may suffer
harm to our reputation if we are found to have violated terms of our government contracts.
Our customers also include a number of foreign governments and agencies. Similar procurement, budgetary, contract and audit
risks also apply to our doing business with these foreign entities. In addition, compliance with complex regulations and contracting
provisions in a variety of jurisdictions can be expensive and consume significant management resources. In certain jurisdictions our
ability to win business may be constrained by political and other factors unrelated to our competitive position in the market. Each of
these difficulties could adversely affect our business and results of operations.
Our software may have defects or errors that could lead to a loss of revenues or product liability claims.
Our products and platforms use complex technologies and, despite extensive testing and quality control procedures, may contain
defects or errors, especially when first introduced or when new versions or enhancements are released. If defects or errors are
discovered after commercial release of either new versions or enhancements of our products and platforms:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

potential customers may delay purchases;
customers may react negatively, which could reduce future sales;
our reputation in the marketplace may be damaged;
we may have to defend against product liability claims;
we may be required to indemnify our customers, distributors, original equipment manufacturers or other resellers;
we may incur additional service and warranty costs; and
we may have to divert additional development resources to correct the defects and errors, which may result in the delay of new
product releases or upgrades.
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If any or all of the foregoing occur, we may lose revenues, incur higher operating expenses and lose market share, any of which
could severely harm our financial condition and operating results.
Any failure by us to meet the requirements of current or newly-targeted customers may have a detrimental impact on our
business or operating results.
We may wish to expand our customer base into markets in which we have limited experience. In some cases, customers in different
markets, such as financial services or government, have specific regulatory or other requirements which we must meet. For example, in
order to maintain contracts with the United States government, we must comply with specific rules and regulations relating to and that
govern such contracts. Government contracts are generally subject to audits and investigations which could result in various civil and
criminal penalties and administrative sanctions, including termination of contracts, refund of a portion of fees received, forfeiture of
profits, suspension of payments, fines and suspensions or debarment from future government business. If we fail to meet such
requirements in the future, we could be subject to civil or criminal liability or a reduction of revenue which could harm our business,
operating results and financial condition.
Compliance with changing regulations of corporate governance and public disclosure may result in additional expenses.
Because we are a publicly-traded company, we are subject to certain federal, state and other rules and regulations, including those
required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, new regulations
promulgated by the SEC and the rules of the Nasdaq Marketplace. These and other laws relating to corporate governance and public
disclosure have increased our general and administrative expenses. These new or changed laws, regulations and standards are subject to
varying interpretations in many cases, and as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is provided by
regulatory and governing bodies, which could result in higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance
practices. We are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance and public disclosure. As a result, we intend to
invest resources to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards, and this investment may result in increased general and
administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from revenue-generating activities to compliance activities.
If our efforts to comply with new or changed laws, regulations and standards result in different outcomes from those intended by
regulatory or governing bodies, our business may be harmed.
If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately report our financial results or
prevent fraud.
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires that management report annually on the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting and identify any material weaknesses in our internal control and financial reporting environment. If management
identifies any material weaknesses, their correction could require remedial measures which could be costly and time-consuming. In
addition, the presence of material weaknesses could result in financial statement errors which in turn could require us to restate our
financial statements. Any identification by us or our independent registered public accounting firm of material weaknesses, even if
quickly remedied, could damage investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, which could affect our
stock price and potentially subject us to litigation.
The continuous process of maintaining and adapting our internal controls and complying with Section 404 is expensive and timeconsuming, and requires significant management attention. We cannot be sure that our internal control measures will continue to
provide adequate control over our financial processes and reporting and ensure compliance with Section 404. Any failure by us to
comply with Section 404 could subject us to a variety of administrative sanctions and harm our reputation, which could reduce our
stock price.
Natural or other disasters could disrupt our business and result in loss of revenue or in higher expenses.
Natural disasters, terrorist activities and other business disruptions could seriously harm our revenue and financial condition and
increase our costs and expenses. Our corporate headquarters and many of our operations are located in California, a seismically active
region. In addition, many of our current and potential customers are concentrated in a few geographic areas. A natural disaster in one of
these regions could have a material adverse impact on our U.S. and foreign operations, operating results and financial condition.
Further, any unanticipated business disruption caused by Internet security threats, damage to global communication networks or
otherwise could have a material adverse impact on our operating results.
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We have a stockholder rights plan providing for one right for each outstanding share of our common stock. Each right, when
exercisable, entitles the registered holder to purchase certain securities at a specified purchase price. The rights plan may have the antitakeover effect of causing substantial dilution to a person or group that attempts to acquire TIBCO on terms not approved by our Board
of Directors. The existence of the rights plan could limit the price that certain investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares
of our common stock and could discourage, delay or prevent a merger or acquisition that stockholders may consider favorable. In
addition, provisions of our current certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as Delaware corporate law, could make it more
difficult for a third party to acquire us without the support of our Board of Directors, even if doing so would be beneficial to our
stockholders.
ITEM 1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2.

PROPERTIES

Our principal administrative, sales, marketing, service and research and development facilities are located in a four building
campus totaling approximately 292,000 square feet in Palo Alto, California, which we purchased in June 2003. In connection with the
purchase, we entered into a 51-year lease of the land upon which the buildings are located. Further information on the terms of the
building acquisition can be found in "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation" and
Note 7 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
In addition to our Palo Alto campus and other facilities in the United States, we lease facilities in Maidenhead and London,
England, to serve as our EMEA headquarters; as well as Rotterdam, Netherlands; Pune, India; Munich, Germany; Paris, France;
Gothenburg, Sweden; and Sydney, Australia; which are primarily used for sales, field support or research and development. We also
lease facilities in approximately 60 other cities throughout the world. Lease terms range from month-to-month on certain offices to ten
years on certain direct leases. We are continuously evaluating the adequacy of existing facilities and additional facilities in new cities,
and we believe that suitable additional space will be available in the future on commercially reasonable terms as needed.

ITEM 3.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

See Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for information responsive to
this item.

ITEM 4.

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
Our common stock is quoted on the NASDAQ Global Select Market ("NASDAQ") under the symbol "TIBX." The following
table presents the high and low intra-day sale prices of our common stock on NASDAQ during the fiscal quarters indicated:
High

Fiscal Year 2012

First quarter ended March 4, 2012
Second quarter ended June 3, 2012
Third quarter ended September 2, 2012
Fourth quarter ended November 30, 2012

Low

$
$
$
$

29.95
34.67
30.78
32.95

$
$
$
$

20.04
25.26
25.00
23.58

$
$
$
$

25.94
30.75
31.45
31.15

$
$
$
$

19.15
22.87
18.43
19.52

Fiscal Year 2011

First quarter ended February 27, 2011
Second quarter ended May 29, 2011
Third quarter ended August 28, 2011
Fourth quarter ended November 30, 2011
Holders of Record

As of January 21, 2013, there were approximately 1,810 stockholders of record of our common stock.
Dividends
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in
the foreseeable future. In addition, our revolving credit facility restricts our ability to pay cash dividends, unless there is no default
under the facility and our consolidated leverage ratio is less than 3.00:1.0 after giving effect to such dividend. This consolidated
leverage ratio decreases to 2.75:1.00 and then to 2.50:1.00 with respect to the second fiscal quarter of our fiscal years 2013 and 2014,
respectively.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
For equity compensation plan information, please refer to Item 12 in Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Performance Graph
The following graph compares the five-year cumulative total return to stockholders on our common stock for the period ending
November 30, 2012, with the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Composite Index and the S&P Information Technology Index.
The graph assumes that $100.00 was invested on November 30, 2007 in each of our common stock, the NASDAQ Composite Index and
the S&P Information Technology Index, and that all dividends were reinvested. No cash dividends have been declared or paid on our
common stock. The comparisons in the table are required by the SEC and are not intended to forecast or be indicative of possible future
performance of our common stock.

As of November 30,
2007

TIBCO Software Inc.
NASDAQ Composite Index
S&P Information Technology Index

$
$
$

100.00
100.00
100.00

2008

$
$
$

2009

61.81
56.52
56.72

$
$
$

109.83
78.65
88.39

2010

$
$
$

250.83
92.09
97.72

2011

$
$
$

2012

349.94
98.00
106.27

$
$
$

319.92
110.32
120.98

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers
On March 29, 2012, we announced that our Board of Directors approved a new stock repurchase program pursuant to which we
may repurchase up to $300.0 million of our outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market or through privately
negotiated transactions. In connection with the approval of this program, our Board of Directors also terminated our previous $300.0
million stock repurchase program from December 2010, and the remaining authorized amount of approximately $38.4 million under the
December 2010 stock repurchase program was canceled. As of November 30, 2012, the remaining authorized amount for stock
repurchases under the March 2012 stock repurchase program was approximately $147.3 million.
We did not repurchase any of our common stock during the three months ended November 30, 2012.

Period

September 1 – September 30
October 1 – October 31
November 1 – November 30
Total

Total Number of
Shares Purchased

Average Price
Paid per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans or
Programs

—
—
—

$
$

—
—

$

—

—
—
—

—

$

—

—
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Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares that
May Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans or
Programs

$
$

147,260,336
147,260,336

$

147,260,336
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ITEM 6.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected consolidated financial data below have been derived from our audited financial statements. The following table
should be read in conjunction with "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation" and our
Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The historical results
presented below are not indicative of any future results.
All amounts presented in the table below are stated in thousands, except for per share data.
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Selected Consolidated Statements of Operations
Data:
Revenue:
License
Service and maintenance

$

Total revenue

2011

410,306
614,307

$

2010

377,618
542,628

$

2009

301,532
452,475

$

2008

247,237
374,151

$

273,415
371,056

1,024,613

920,246

754,007

621,388

644,471

41,363
241,452

35,309
212,066

35,325
162,468

28,252
130,800

30,276
147,622

Cost of revenue:
License
Service and maintenance
Total cost of revenue

282,815

247,375

197,793

159,052

177,898

Gross profit

741,798

672,871

556,214

462,336

466,573

Operating expenses:
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Amortization of acquired intangible assets
Acquisition related and other
Restructuring charges

154,535
317,001
70,868
19,654
2,672
(648)

143,173
285,366
59,990
19,149
1,840
8,926

124,654
240,357
49,260
16,414
3,421
6,953

108,691
204,212
46,666
14,165
—
—

106,594
224,641
53,046
16,557
—
—

Total operating expenses

564,082

518,444

441,059

373,734

400,838

177,716
994
(23,396)

154,427
(472)
(4,020)

115,155
(160)
(4,123)

88,602
3,983
(2,968)

65,735
8,333
(3,238)

Provision for income taxes

155,314
33,200

149,935
37,300

110,872
32,401

89,617
27,097

70,830
18,314

Net Income

122,114

112,635

78,471

62,520

52,516

107

229

383

218

105

Income from operations
Interest and other income (expense), net
Interest expense
Income before income taxes

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling
interest
Net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc. $
Net income per share attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted
Shares used in computing net income per share
attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted

$
$

122,007

$

112,406

$

78,088

$

62,302

$

52,411

0.76
0.72

$
$

0.70
0.65

$
$

0.49
0.46

$
$

0.37
0.36

$
$

0.29
0.29

160,330
169,698

161,469
173,272
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168,970
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As of November 30,
2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

Selected Consolidated Balance Sheets Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments
$
Working capital
Total assets
Total long-term debt
Total TIBCO Software Inc. stockholders’
equity

761,720
600,509
1,946,908
524,466

$

905,174

308,373
192,263
1,332,938
65,711
848,066

$

245,493
168,853
1,204,999
38,108
808,568
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292,836
218,055
1,166,339
42,525
796,749

$

267,473
195,822
1,088,568
44,558
741,643
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ITEM 7.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the
Exchange Act. Forward-looking statements relate to expectations concerning future events or matters that are not historical facts.
Words such as "projects," "believes," "anticipates," "plans," "expects," "intends," "strategy," "continue," "will," "estimate," "forecast"
and similar words and expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, although these words are not the only means of
identifying these statements. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements contained herein are
reasonable, these expectations or any of the forward-looking statements could prove to be incorrect, and actual results could differ
materially from those projected or assumed in the forward-looking statements. Our future financial condition and results of operations,
as well as any forward-looking statements, are subject to risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the factors set forth under
Item 1A. "Risk Factors." This discussion should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying
notes which appear elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. All forward-looking statements and reasons why results may differ
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are made as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update any such forwardlooking statements or reasons why actual results may differ.
Executive Overview
Our products are currently licensed by companies worldwide in diverse industries such as financial services, telecommunications,
government, energy, life sciences, insurance, logistics, manufacturing, retail and transportation. We sell our products through a direct
sales force and through alliances with leading software vendors and system integrators.
Our revenue consists primarily of license and maintenance fees from our customers, distributors and partners (including system
integrators, resellers, professional service organizations and business partners) who embed our software in their products. In addition,
we receive fees from our customers for providing consulting services.
Our revenue is generally derived from a diverse customer base. No single customer represented greater than 10% of total revenue
in fiscal years 2012, 2011 or 2010. As of November 30, 2012 and 2011, no single customer had a balance in excess of 10% of our net
accounts receivable. We establish allowances for doubtful accounts based on our evaluation of collectability and an allowance for
returns and discounts based on specifically identified credits and historical experience.
For the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012, we recorded total revenue of $1,024.6 million, an increase of 11% over fiscal year
2011. License revenue was $410.3 million, an increase of 9% over the previous year. In addition, we generated cash flow from
operations of $237.4 million, for an increase of 14% year-over-year. Diluted earnings per share under generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America ("GAAP") was $0.72 in fiscal year 2012 as compared to $0.65 for fiscal year 2011 for an
increase of 11%. We ended fiscal year 2012 with $761.7 million in cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments, while also having
spent approximately $220.3 million to repurchase shares of our common stock during fiscal year 2012.
We have an active acquisition program. In fiscal year 2012, we acquired LogLogic, Inc ("LogLogic"), a provider of scalable log
and security management platforms. In fiscal years 2011 and 2010, we acquired a total of seven businesses.
We currently intend to grow our business by pursuing key initiatives to: broaden our product platform through internal
development and acquisitions; increase our sales capacity by expanding our direct sales organization and developing our channel
partnerships; expand our product offerings to new vertical markets; and employ marketing programs to increase awareness of us and our
products among existing and prospective customers. Whether or not we are successful depends on our ability to: appropriately manage
our expenses as we grow our organization; identify or acquire companies or assets at attractive valuations; enter into beneficial channel
relationships; develop new products; and successfully execute our marketing and sales strategies.
Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments and Estimates
The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our Consolidated Financial
Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make
estimates, assumptions and judgments that can have a significant impact on the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and
expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of our financial statements. We base our estimates,
assumptions and judgments on historical experience and various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. On a regular basis we evaluate our estimates,
assumptions and judgments and make changes accordingly. We also discuss our critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee
of our Board of Directors. We believe that the estimates,
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assumptions and judgments involved in revenue recognition, allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and discounts, stock-based
compensation, business combination, impairment of goodwill, intangible and long-lived assets and accounting for income taxes have the
greatest potential impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements, so we consider these to be our critical accounting policies.
We discuss below the critical accounting estimates associated with these policies. Historically, our estimates, assumptions and
judgments relative to our critical accounting policies have not differed materially from actual results. For further information on our
significant accounting policies, see Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Revenue Recognition. License revenue consists principally of revenue earned under software license agreements. License
revenue is generally recognized when a signed contract or other persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the software has been
shipped or electronically delivered, the license fee is fixed or determinable and collection of the resulting receivable is probable. When
contracts contain multiple software and software-related elements (for example, software license, maintenance and professional
services) wherein Vendor-Specific Objective Evidence ("VSOE") exists for all undelivered elements, we account for the delivered
elements in accordance with the "Residual Method." VSOE of fair value for maintenance and support is established by a stated renewal
rate, if substantive, included in the license arrangement or rates charged in stand-alone sales of maintenance and support. VSOE of fair
value of consulting and training services is based upon stand-alone sales of those services.
Provided all other revenue criteria are met, the upfront, minimum, non-refundable license fees from original equipment
manufacturer ("OEM") customers are recognized upon delivery, and on-going royalty fees are recognized upon reports of units shipped.
Revenue on shipments to resellers is recognized when all revenue criteria are met, including evidence of sell-through to the end-user,
and is recorded net of related costs to the resellers. Revenue from subscription license agreements, which include software, rights to
unspecified future products and maintenance, is recognized ratably over the term of the subscription period.
Maintenance revenue consists of fees for providing software updates on a when-and-if available basis and technical support for
software products ("post-contract customer support" or "PCS"). Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the
agreement. Payments received in advance of services performed are deferred.
Professional services revenue consists primarily of revenue received for assisting with the implementation of our software, on-site
support, training and other consulting services. Many customers who license our software also enter into separate professional services
arrangements with us. In determining whether professional services revenue should be accounted for separately from license revenue,
we evaluate whether the professional services are considered essential to the functionality of the software using factors such as the
nature of our software products; whether they are ready for use by the customer upon receipt; the nature of our implementation services,
which typically do not involve significant customization to or development of the underlying software code; the availability of services
from other vendors; whether the timing of payments for license revenue is coincident with performance of services; and whether
milestones or acceptance criteria exist that affect the realizability of the software license fee. Substantially all of our professional
services arrangements are billed on a time and materials basis and, accordingly, are recognized as the services are performed. Contracts
with fixed or not-to-exceed fees are recognized on a proportional performance model based on actual services performed. If there is
significant uncertainty about the project completion or receipt of payment for professional services, revenue is deferred until the
uncertainty is sufficiently resolved. Training revenue is recognized as training services are delivered. Payments received in advance of
consulting or training services performed are deferred and recognized when the related services are performed. Work performed and
expenses incurred in advance of invoicing are recorded as unbilled receivables. These amounts are billed in the subsequent month.
Allowances for estimated future returns and discounts are provided for upon recognition of revenue.
For arrangements that do not qualify for separate accounting for the license and professional services revenues, including
arrangements that involve significant modification or customization of the software, that include milestones or customer specific
acceptance criteria that may affect collection of the software license fees or where payment for the software license is tied to the
performance of professional services, software license revenue is generally recognized together with the professional services revenue
using either the percentage-of-completion or completed-contract method. The completed contract method is used for contracts where
there is a risk over final acceptance by the customer or for contracts that are short term in nature. Under the percentage-of-completion
method, revenue recognized is equal to the ratio of costs expended to date to the anticipated total contract costs, based on current
estimates of costs to complete the project. If there are milestones or acceptance provisions associated with the contract, the revenue
recognized will not exceed the most recent milestone achieved or acceptance obtained. If the total estimated costs to complete a project
exceed the total contract amount, indicating a loss, the entire anticipated loss would be recognized in the current period.
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In the first quarter of fiscal year 2011 we adopted the amended accounting guidance for certain multiple deliverable revenue
arrangements that:
▪
▪
▪

provides updated guidance on whether multiple deliverables exist, how the deliverables in an arrangement should be separated,
and how the consideration should be allocated;
requires an entity to allocate revenue in an arrangement using the estimated selling price ("ESP") of deliverables if a vendor
does not have VSOE of selling price or third-party evidence ("TPE") of selling price; and
eliminates the use of the residual method and requires an entity to allocate revenue using the relative selling price method.

We enter into multiple element revenue arrangements in which a customer may purchase a combination of software licenses,
hosting services, maintenance, professional services and hardware. If a tangible hardware product includes software, we determine if the
tangible hardware and the software work together to deliver the product's essential functionality. If so, the entire product is accounted
for as a non-software deliverable; otherwise the hardware product and the software are accounted for separately. For multiple element
arrangements that contain non-software related elements, for example our hosting services, we allocate revenue to each non-software
element based upon the relative selling price of each, and if software and software-related elements are also included in the
arrangement, to those elements as a group based on our ESP for the group. When applying the relative selling price method, we
determine the selling price for each deliverable using VSOE of selling price, if it exists, then TPE of selling price. If neither VSOE nor
TPE of selling price exist for a deliverable, we use our ESP for multiple element arrangements that include non-software components.
The objective of ESP is to determine the price at which we would transact a sale if the product or service were sold on a stand-alone
basis. We determine ESP by considering multiple factors, including, but not limited to, geographies, market conditions, competitive
landscape, internal costs, gross margin objectives and pricing practices. ESP is generally used for offerings that are not typically sold on
a stand-alone basis or for new or highly customized offerings. Revenue allocated to each element is then recognized when the basic
revenue recognition criteria are met for each element. The manner in which we account for multiple element arrangements that contain
only software and software-related elements remains unchanged.
We show revenue from sales of software licenses and hardware as license revenue, and revenue from maintenance, professional
services and hosting as services and maintenance revenue in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Revenue recognized from
hardware sales represents less than 5% of total revenue.
Allowances for Doubtful Accounts, Returns and Discounts. We establish allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and discounts
based on our review of credit profiles of our customers, contractual terms and conditions, current economic trends and historical
payment, return and discount experience. We reassess the allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and discounts each period.
Historically, our actual uncollectible accounts, returns, discounts and credits have been consistent with these provisions. However,
unexpected events or significant future changes in trends could result in a material impact to our future statements of operations and of
cash flows. If we made different judgments or utilized different estimates for any period, material differences in the amount and timing
of revenue or bad debt expense recognized could result. Our allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and discounts as a percentage of
net revenues were approximately 1% in each of fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010. See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for a summary of activities during the years reported.
Stock-Based Compensation. We utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing model for determining the estimated fair value of our
share-based awards. The Black-Scholes model requires the use of highly subjective and complex assumptions which determine the fair
value of share-based awards, including the option’s expected term and the price volatility of the underlying stock. We determined that a
blend of implied volatility and historical volatility is more reflective of the market conditions and a better indicator of expected
volatility than historical volatility alone. The fair value of the awards that are ultimately expected to vest is recognized over the requisite
service periods typically on a straight-line basis in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of
grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.
Since fiscal year 2010, we have granted performance-based restricted stock units ("PRSUs") to our section 16 officers and certain
other employees. We recognize the stock-based compensation expense for our PRSUs based on the probability of achieving certain
performance criteria, as defined in the PRSU agreements. We then estimate the most probable period in which the performance criteria
will be met, if at all, and recognize the expense using the graded vesting attribution method over the remaining recognition period. Due
to the long-term nature of the performance goals, assessing the probability of achieving these goals is a highly subjective process that
requires judgment. To the extent we revise this estimate in the future, our share-based compensation cost could be materially impacted
in the quarter of revision, as well as in the following quarters. Refer to Note 2 and Note 16 to our Consolidated Financial Statements
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further details.
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A deferred tax asset is recorded over the vesting period as stock compensation cost is recorded. Our ability to realize the deferred
tax asset is ultimately based on the actual value of the stock-based awards upon release of the restricted stock unit. If the actual value is
lower than the fair value determined on the date of grant, it would result in an increase to our income tax expense for the portion of the
deferred tax asset that cannot be realized.
Business Combinations. We allocate the purchase price of acquired companies to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, as well as to in-process research and development, based upon their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The
purchase price allocation process requires our management to make significant estimates and assumptions, especially at the acquisition
date with respect to intangible assets, support obligations assumed, estimated restructuring liabilities and pre-acquisition contingencies.
Although we believe the assumptions and estimates we have made in the past have been reasonable and appropriate, they are
based in part on historical experience and information obtained from the management of the acquired companies and are inherently
uncertain. The purchase price allocation process requires us to use significant estimates and assumptions, including fair value estimates,
as of the business combination date, including:
•
•
•
•
•

estimated fair values of intangible assets acquired from the acquiree;
estimated fair values of software license updates and product support obligations assumed from the acquiree;
estimated income tax assets and liabilities assumed from the acquiree;
estimated fair values of stock awards assumed from the acquiree that are included in the purchase price; and
estimated fair value of pre-acquisition contingencies assumed from the acquiree.

Impairment of Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Long-Lived Assets. Our goodwill and intangible assets result from our corporate
acquisition transactions. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are instead tested for
impairment at least annually or as circumstances indicate their value may no longer be recoverable. We do not carry any intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives other than goodwill. We perform our annual impairment test at the end of the fiscal year. As we
operate our business in one reporting unit, our goodwill is tested for impairment at the enterprise level. To assess if goodwill is
impaired, we first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether further impairment testing is necessary. If, as a result of the
qualitative assessment, we consider it more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, we
perform a quantitative impairment test in a two-step process. For the first step, we screen for impairment, and if any possible
impairment exists, we undertake a second step of measuring such impairment by performing adiscounted cash flow analyses. These
analyses are based on cash flow assumptions that are consistent with the plans and estimates being used to manage our business. In the
first step, we review the carrying amount of our reporting unit at enterprise level compared to the "fair value" of the enterprise based on
quoted market prices of our common stock. An excess carrying value to fair value would indicate that goodwill may be impaired. If we
determined that goodwill may be impaired, then we would compare the "implied fair value" of the goodwill. We periodically re-evaluate
our business and have determined that we continue to operate in one segment, which we consider our sole reporting unit. If our
assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record impairment charges to reduce the carrying value of our goodwill.
Changes in the valuation of goodwill could materially impact our operating results and financial position.
We evaluate the recoverability of our long-lived assets including amortizable intangible and tangible assets in accordance with
authoritative guidance. When events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived assets may not be
recoverable, we recognize such impairment in the event the net book value of such assets exceeds the future undiscounted cash flows
attributable to such assets. Our acquired intangible assets with definite useful lives are amortized on a straight line basis over their
useful lives, and periodically tested for impairment. As of November 30, 2012, we had $532.3 million of goodwill, $98.5 million of
property and equipment and $123.3 million of acquired intangible assets. If our estimates or the related assumptions change in the
future, we may be required to record impairment charges to reduce the carrying value of these assets. Changes in the valuation of longlived assets could materially impact our operating results and financial position.
To date, there have been no impairments of goodwill, intangibles and long-lived assets.
Accounting for Income Taxes. We make certain estimates and judgments in determining income tax expense for financial
statement purposes. These estimates and judgments occur in the calculation of certain tax assets and liabilities, which arise from
differences in the timing of recognition of revenue and expense for tax and financial statement purposes.
As part of the process of preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of
the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves us estimating our current tax exposures, if any, under the most recent tax
laws and assessing temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. These differences,
including uncertain tax positions, result in current taxes payable and deferred tax assets and
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liabilities, which are included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
We account for uncertain tax issues pursuant to authoritative guidance based on a two-step approach to recognize and measure
uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The first step is to determine if the weight of available evidence
indicates that it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon audit, whether or not under audit, including
contemplated resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes. If the first step is met, the second step is to measure the tax
benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely to be sustained upon ultimate settlement. We adjust reserves for our uncertain
tax positions due to changing facts and circumstances, such as the closing of a tax audit, or refinement of estimates due to new
information. To the extent that the final outcome of these matters is different than the amounts recorded, such differences will impact
our tax provision in our Consolidated Statements of Operations in the period in which such determination is made.
We assess the likelihood that we will be able to recover our deferred tax assets. We consider all available evidence, both positive
and negative, including historical levels of income, expectations and risks associated with estimates of future taxable income and
ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for a valuation allowance. If it is not more likely than not that
we expect to recover our deferred tax assets, we will increase our provision for taxes by recording a valuation allowance against the
deferred tax assets that we estimate will not ultimately be recoverable. The available positive evidence at November 30, 2012 included
historical operating profits and a projection of future income. The valuation allowance decreased by $5.6 million due to the statute of
limitations having lapsed on certain capital loss carryforward deferred tax assets. As of November 30, 2012, it was considered more
likely than not that our deferred tax assets would be realized within their respective carryforward periods.
As of November 30, 2012, we believed that the amount of deferred tax assets recorded on our balance sheet would ultimately be
recovered on a more-likely-than-not basis. However, should there be a change in our ability to recover our deferred tax assets, our tax
provision would increase in the period in which we determine that it is more likely than not that we cannot recover our deferred tax
assets.
U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes have not been provided for on a cumulative total of $256.4 million of
undistributed earnings for certain non-U.S. subsidiaries. With the exception of our subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and Japan, net
undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries are considered to be indefinitely reinvested, and accordingly, no provision for U.S.
income taxes has been provided thereon. We have sufficient cash reserves in the U.S. and do not intend to repatriate of our foreign
earnings. We intend to use the undistributed foreign earnings for acquisitions, local operations expansion and to meet local operating
working capital needs. Upon distribution of these earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, we will be subject to U.S. income
taxes net of available foreign tax credits associated with these earnings. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax
liability related to these earnings is not practicable at this time.
See Note 19 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Results of Operations
The following table presents certain Consolidated Statements of Operations data as percentages of total revenue for the periods
indicated:
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Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

2010

Revenue:
License
Service and maintenance

40 %
60

Total revenue

41 %
59

40 %
60

100

100

100

License
Service and maintenance

4
24

4
23

5
22

Total cost of revenue

28

27

27

72

73

73

15
31
7
2
—
—

16
31
6
2
—
1

17
32
6
2
—
1

55

56

58

17
—
(2)
—

17
—
(1)
—

15
—
(1)
—

15
3

16
4

14
4

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

12
—

12
—

10
—

Net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.

12 %

12 %

10 %

Cost of revenue:

Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Amortization of acquired intangible assets
Acquisition related and other
Restructuring charges
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income

Our Consolidated Results of Operations have included incremental revenue and expenses related to the acquisitions of LogLogic
in fiscal year 2012, Nimbus and Loyalty Lab in fiscal year 2011 and Foresight, Netrics, Kabira, Proginet and OpenSpirit in fiscal year
2010. In connection with these acquisitions, we have incurred additional expenses, including amortization of intangible assets and
acquired technology, stock-based compensation, personnel and related costs, facility and infrastructure costs, and other charges.
All amounts presented in the tables in the Results of Operations are stated in thousands of dollars, except percentages and unless
otherwise stated.
Total Revenue
Our total revenue consisted primarily of license, service and maintenance fees from our customers, distributors and partners.
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Total revenue

$ 1,024,613

2011

$

920,246

Percentage Change
2010

$

754,007

2011
to 2012

11%

2010
to 2011

22%

Total revenue in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011 increased by $104.4 million or 11%. The increase was primarily
due to a $71.7 million or 13% increase in service and maintenance revenue and $32.7 million or 9% increase in license revenue.
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Geographically, we experienced growth in total revenue from all regions in fiscal year 2012. Our total revenue increased by $46.1
million or 9% in Americas, $43.5 million or 13% in EMEA and $14.7 million or 17% in APJ in fiscal year 2012.
Total revenue in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010 increased by $166.2 million or 22%. The increase was
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primarily due to a $90.2 million or 20% increase in service and maintenance revenue and a $76.1 million or 25% increase in license
revenue. Geographically, we experienced growth in total revenue from all regions in fiscal year 2011. Our total revenue increased by
$96.7 million or 24% in Americas, $52.0 million or 19% in EMEA and $17.6 million or 25% in APJ in fiscal year 2011.
We had no single customer that accounted for more than 10% of total revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 or 2010. Our products are
licensed by companies worldwide in diverse industries, including financial services, telecommunications, government, energy, life
sciences, insurance, logistics, manufacturing, retail and transportation sectors.
See Note 21 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further details on total
revenue by region.
License Revenue
Year Ended November 30,
2012

License revenue

$

Percentage of total revenue

Percentage Change

2011

410,306
$
40%

2011
to 2012

2010

377,618
$
41%

301,532
40%

2010
to 2011

9%

25%

We license a wide range of products to customers in various industries and geographic regions. License revenue increased by
$32.7 million or 9% in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011. The increase consisted of a $33.6 million increase in business
optimization and an $5.1 million increase in process automation and collaboration, partially offset by a $6.0 million decrease in SOA
and core infrastructure. License revenue increased by $76.1 million or 25% in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010. The
increase consisted of a $25.4 million increase in SOA and core infrastructure, a $42.1 million increase in business optimization and an
$8.5 million increase in process automation and collaboration.
Our license revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 was derived as follows:
Year Ended November 30,
2012

SOA and core infrastructure
Business optimization
Process automation and collaboration
Total license revenue

2011

2010

50%
39
11

56%
33
11

62%
27
11

100%

100%

100%

Our license revenue in a particular period is dependent upon the timing, number and size of license deals. Selected data about our
license deals recognized for the respective periods is summarized as follows:
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Number of license deals of $1.0 million or more
Number of license deals of $0.1 million or more
Average size of license deals of $0.1 million or more (in millions)

$

2011

81
568
0.7

$

2010

84
534
0.7

60
458
0.6

$

Cost of License Revenue
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Cost of license revenue

$

41,363

2011

$

35,309

Percentage Change
2010

$
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35,325

2011
to 2012

17%

2010
to 2011

—%

Percentage of total revenue
Percentage of license revenue

4%
10%

4%
9%

5%
12%

Cost of license revenue mainly consisted of royalty costs and amortization of developed technologies acquired through
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acquisitions. The $6.1 million or 17% increase in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011 resulted primarily from a $3.9 million
increase in royalty costs and a $1.0 million increase in cost of goods sold. Cost of license revenue remained unchanged in fiscal year
2011 compared to fiscal year 2010 primarily because a $1.7 million increase in royalty costs was offset by a $1.4 million decrease in
cost of goods sold.
Service and Maintenance Revenue and Costs
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Service and maintenance revenue

$

Percentage of total revenue
Cost of service and maintenance revenue
Percentage of total revenue
Percentage of service and maintenance revenue

$

2011

614,307
$
60%
241,452
$
24%
39%

542,628
$
59%
212,066
$
23%
39%

Percentage Change
2010

452,475
60%
162,468
22%
36%

2011
to 2012

2010
to 2011

13%

20%

14%

31%

Service and maintenance revenue increased by $71.7 million or 13% in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011. The
increase in fiscal year 2012 was the result of a $37.4 million increase in maintenance revenue and a $34.3 million increase in consulting
and training services revenue. Service and maintenance revenue increased by $90.2 million or 20% in fiscal year 2011 compared to
fiscal year 2010. The increase in fiscal year 2011 was the result of a $43.2 million increase in maintenance revenue and a $46.9 million
increase in consulting and training services revenue. Maintenance revenue increased primarily due to continued growth in our installed
software base in fiscal years 2012 and 2011. In both fiscal year 2012 and 2011, consulting revenue increased due to an increase in both
the number and size of engagements, reflecting our increased focus on providing more services to our customers.
Cost of service and maintenance revenue consisted primarily of compensation and other related expenses for consultants,
customer support personnel and third-party contractors associated with providing consulting services and stock-based compensation
expense. The $29.4 million or 14% increase in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011 resulted primarily from an increase of
$25.7 million in employee-related expenses, an increase of $2.5 million in travel expenses and an increase of $1.7 million in facilities
expenses, which were partially offset by a decrease of $3.4 million in subcontractors costs. Increased employee-related expenses were
primarily due to an increase in professional services and customer support staff.
The $49.6 million or 31% increase in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010 resulted primarily from an increase of $28.7
million in employee-related expenses, an increase of $11.3 million in subcontractors costs, an increase of $3.8 million in travel
expenses, an increase of $3.7 million in facilities expenses and an increase of $1.5 million in cost of services. Increased employeerelated expenses were primarily due to an increase in professional services and customer support staff. Increased subcontractors costs
were also directly related to increased service revenue in fiscal year 2011.
Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses consisted primarily of employee-related expenses, including salary, bonus, benefits, stockbased compensation expenses, recruiting expense and office support, third-party contractor fees and related costs associated with the
development and enhancement of our products.
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Research and development expenses
Percentage of total revenue

$

154,535
$
15%

2011

143,173
$
16%

Percentage Change
2010

124,654
17%

2011
to 2012

2010
to 2011

8%

15%

Total research and development expenses increased by $11.4 million or 8% in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011,
primarily due to a $5.6 million increase in employee-related expenses and a $4.7 million increase in subcontractor costs. The increase in
employee-related expenses was primarily due to an increase in headcount. The increase in subcontractor costs was due to the expansion
of our research and development operations.
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Total research and development expenses increased by $18.5 million or 15% in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010,
primarily due to a $17.0 million increase in employee-related expenses and a $1.4 million increase in facilities expenses. The increase in
employee-related expenses was primarily due to an increase in headcount and variable compensation. The
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increase in subcontractor costs was due to the expansion of our research and development operations.
Sales and Marketing Expenses
Sales and marketing expenses consisted primarily of employee-related expenses, including sales commissions, salary, bonus,
benefits, stock-based compensation expenses, recruiting expense and office support, related costs of our direct sales force and marketing
staff, and the cost of marketing programs, including customer conferences, promotional materials, trade shows, advertising and related
travel expenses.
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Sales and marketing expenses

$

Percentage of total revenue

2011

317,001
$
31%

285,366
$
31%

Percentage Change
2010

240,357
32%

2011
to 2012

2010
to 2011

11%

19%

Total sales and marketing expenses increased by $31.6 million or 11% in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011, primarily
due to a $21.7 million increase in employee-related expenses, a $5.4 million increase in travel expenses, a $2.6 million increase in
marketing programs. The increase in employee-related expenses was primarily due to an increase in headcount. The increase in travel
and marketing expenses was due to increased sales and marketing activities.
Total sales and marketing expenses increased by $45.0 million or 19% in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010, primarily
due to a $35.7 million increase in employee-related expenses, a $5.3 million increase in travel expenses, a $3.4 million increase in
consulting expenses and a $2.3 million increase in facilities expenses. The increase in employee-related expenses was primarily due to
an increase in headcount and variable compensation. The increase in travel and consulting expenses was due to increased sales and
marketing activities.
General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses consisted primarily of employee-related expenses, including salary, stock-based
compensation expenses, bonus, benefits, recruiting expense and office support, and related costs for general corporate functions such as
executive, legal, finance, accounting and human resources.
Year Ended November 30,

General and administrative expenses

$

Percentage of total revenue

Percentage Change

2012

2011

2010

70,868
$
7%

59,990
$
6%

49,260
6%

2011
to 2012

18%

2010
to 2011

22%

Total general and administrative expenses increased by $10.9 million or 18% in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011,
primarily due to a $6.4 million increase in employee-related expenses and a $2.8 million increase in third party services.
Total general and administrative expenses increased by $10.7 million or 22% in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010,
primarily due to a $7.1 million increase in employee-related expenses and a $3.7 million increase in third party services.
Amortization of Acquired Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired through corporate acquisitions are comprised of the estimated value of developed technologies, patents,
trademarks, established customer bases and non-compete agreements, as well as maintenance and OEM customer royalty agreements.
Amortization of developed technologies is recorded as a cost of revenue, and amortization of other acquired intangibles is included in
operating expenses.
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Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

Percentage Change
2011
to 2012

2010

2010
to 2011

Amortization of acquired intangible assets:
In cost of revenue
In operating expenses
Total amortization expenses

$

15,899
19,654

$

15,512
19,149

$

16,080
16,414

$

35,553

$

34,661

$

32,494

Percentage of total revenue

3%

4%

3%

7%

4%

Amortization expenses increased by $0.9 million or 3% in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011. The increases in
amortization expenses in fiscal year 2012 were primarily due to intangible assets acquired through our acquisition in fiscal year 2012 of
LogLogic. Amortization expenses increased by $2.2 million or 7% in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010. The increases in
amortization expenses in fiscal year 2011 were primarily due to intangible assets acquired through our acquisitions in fiscal year 2011.
See Note 8 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further details on acquired
intangible assets.
Acquisition Related and Other Expenses
Acquisition related and other expenses consisted of costs incurred after the issuance of a definitive term sheet for a particular
transaction (whether or not such transaction is ultimately completed, remains in-process or is not completed) and included legal, banker,
accounting and other advisory fees of third parties and severance costs for employees of the acquired company that are terminated
within 90 days of the acquisition date.
As of the beginning of fiscal year 2010, acquisition related and other expenses are recorded as expenses in our statements of
operations. These amounts were historically capitalized as part of the acquisition pursuant to previous accounting rules. These costs are
primarily direct transaction costs such as professional services fees with the exception of employee severance, which is an indirect cost.
Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

Percentage Change
2011
to 2012

2010

2010
to 2011

Acquisition related and other expenses
Transitional and other employee related costs
Professional services fees and Other

$

1,116
1,556

$

37
1,803

$

349
3,072

Total acquisition related and other expenses $

2,672

$

1,840

$

3,421

Percentage of total revenue

—%

—%

45%

(46)%

—%

Restructuring Charges
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Restructuring charges
Percentage of total revenue

$

(648) $
—%

2011

8,926
$
1%

Percentage Change
2010

6,953
—%

2011
to 2012

(107)%

2010
to 2011

28%

During fiscal year 2012, we recorded a $0.6 million adjustment in restructuring charges related to our 2011 restructuring plan due
to changes in estimates. During fiscal year 2011, we recorded $8.9 million in restructuring charges related to our 2011 restructuring plan
and our 2010 restructuring plan. The restructuring charges were primarily related to excess facilities and other corporate actions aimed
to increase efficiencies and reduce redundancies, including those arising from recent acquisitions. Also see Note 9 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion on restructuring charges.
Stock-Based Compensation
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The stock-based compensation expenses included in our statements of operations corresponding to the same functional lines as
cash compensation paid to the same employees in the respective departments are as follows:
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Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

Percentage Change
2011
to 2012

2010

2010
to 2011

Stock-based compensation expenses:
Cost of revenue
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Total

$

5,142
15,131
21,211
19,662

$

4,715
11,441
17,206
15,505

$

2,909
8,065
11,390
9,884

$

61,146

$

48,867

$

32,248

Percentage of total revenue

6%

5%

25%

52%

4%

Total stock-based compensation expenses increased by $12.3 million or 25% in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011. The
increase is primarily due to a $7.7 million increase in stock-based compensation expenses related to PRSUs and a $4.9 million increase
in stock-based compensation expenses related to service-based stock awards.
Total stock-based compensation expenses increased by $16.6 million or 52% in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010. The
increase is primarily due to a $9.2 million increase in stock-based compensation expenses related to PRSUs and a $5.9 million increase
in stock-based compensation expenses related to service-based stock awards.
Interest Income
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Interest income

$

Percentage of total revenue

2011

1,109
$
—%

1,374
$
—%

Percentage Change
2010

1,349
—%

2011
to 2012

2010
to 2011

(19)%

2%

Interest income decreased 19% in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011 and increased by 2% in fiscal year 2011
compared to fiscal year 2010. The decreases in interest income in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011 were primarily due to
significantly lower returns from investments.
Interest Expense
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Interest expense
Percentage of total revenue

$

(23,396)
$
(2)%

Percentage Change

2011

2010

(4,020)
$
(1)%

(4,123)
(1)%

2011
to 2012

482%

2010
to 2011

(2)%

Interest expense is primarily related to the outstanding borrowings under our convertible senior notes, mortgage note and credit
facility. See Note 10 and 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further detail on
the credit facility, mortgage note and the convertible senior notes.
Interest expense increased by $19.4 million in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011. Interest expense decreased 2% in
fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010. The increase in fiscal year 2012 was primarily due to interest expense of $18.9 million
related to the $600.0 million convertible senior notes we issued in April 2012.
Other Income (Expense), net
Other income (expense), net, included realized gains and losses on investments, foreign exchange gain (loss) and other
miscellaneous income and expense items.
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Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

Percentage Change
2011
to 2012

2010

2010
to 2011

Other income (expense):
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Realized gain (loss) on investments
Other income (expense), net
Total other income (expense), net

$

(685)
485
85

$

(1,916)
31
39

$

(1,914)
444
(39)

$

(115)

$

(1,846)

$

(1,509)

Percentage of total revenue

—%

—%

(94)%

22%

—%

The increase in other income (expense) of $1.7 million in fiscal year 2012 compared to fiscal year 2011 was primarily due to a
$1.2 million decrease in foreign exchange losses.
The decrease in other income (expense) of $0.3 million in fiscal year 2011 compared to fiscal year 2010 was primarily due to a
$0.4 million decrease in realized gain (loss) on investments.
Income Taxes
Year Ended November 30,

Provision for (benefit from) income tax
Effective tax rate

$

Percentage Change

2012

2011

2010

33,200
$
21%

37,300
$
25%

32,401
29%

2011
to 2012

(11)%

2010
to 2011

15%

The effective tax rate was 21%, 25% and 29% in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The effective tax rate in fiscal
years 2012, 2011 and 2010 differed from the statutory rate of 35% primarily due to the benefits resulting from the reorganization of
certain foreign entities and the geographic allocation of the business, foreign income taxed at rates lower than the U.S. statutory rate,
release of valuation allowance, domestic manufacturing incentives and research and development credits which was partially offset by
state income tax expense and, in certain years, the tax impact of certain stock-based compensation charges.
In fiscal year 2012, a discrete tax provision of $2.7 million was accrued to adjust taxes provided for the prior years' reserve for
uncertain tax positions and withholding taxes in jurisdictions where we do not expect to benefit from a foreign tax credit.
A $3.2 million tax benefit primarily related to lapses of statutes of limitations and reinstatement of federal research and
development credit was recorded in the first quarter of fiscal year 2011.
The expiration of a statute of limitations in the United Kingdom resulted in a favorable tax effect of $2.5 million of which $2.3
million was recorded as a discrete item in the second quarter of fiscal year 2010.
Effective December 1, 2010, TIBCO changed its organizational operating structure which results in the centralization of the
majority of our international operations in The Netherlands. As a result of the change, a portion of our consolidated pre-tax income is
subject to foreign tax at comparatively lower tax rates than the United States federal statutory tax rate. Recent statements from the
Internal Revenue Service have indicated their intent to seek greater disclosure by companies of their reserves for uncertain tax positions.
Our future effective income tax rates could be adversely affected if tax authorities challenge our international tax structure or if the
relative mix of United States and international income changes for any reason.
On January 2, 2013, the American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012 (H.R. 8 as amended) was signed into law which extends the
federal research and development credit through December 31, 2013. The federal research and development credit was reinstated
retroactively to January 1, 2012. The retroactive tax benefit of the federal research and development credit for the eleven months ended
November 30, 2012 will be analyzed as a discrete item in the first quarter of fiscal year 2013, the period in which the reinstatement was
enacted into law. In addition, there have been several international tax provisions enacted which could impact our effective tax rate and
we continue to evaluate the potential impact.
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On December 17, 2010, the Tax Relief, Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization, and Job Creation Act of 2010 (H.R. 4853) was
signed into law which extended the federal research and development credit through December 31, 2011. The federal research and
development credit was reinstated retroactively to January 1, 2010. The fiscal year 2010 credit was $2.5
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million, of which $0.2 million was recognized as research and development credit in fiscal year 2010 because the research and
development credit was only available for the month of December 2009. We recognized the retroactive benefit for the eleven months of
the federal research and development credit of $2.3 million as a discrete item in the first quarter of fiscal year 2011, the period in which
the reinstatement was enacted into law.
In February 2009, the California 2009-2010 budget legislation was signed into law allowing companies to elect the single sales
factor apportionment for fiscal years 2012 and 2013. The passage of California Proposition 39 in November 2012 makes this
apportionment method mandatory for fiscal years after 2013. For fiscal years 2012 and 2013, we contemplate electing the single sales
factor apportionment for California state taxation. The application of the single sales factor is expected to lower our future California
taxable income. This reduction in taxable income may affect the extent to which we can benefit from $13.5 million in deferred tax assets
from research and development credit carryforwards. If we determine that it is more likely than not that we will not be able to fully
utilize these credits, we will be required to recognize a valuation allowance against these deferred tax assets.
See Note 19 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Current Cash Flows
As of November 30, 2012, we had cash and cash equivalents totaling $727.3 million, representing an increase of $419.2 million
from November 30, 2011. As of November 30, 2012, $302.8 million of our cash and cash equivalents were held by our foreign
subsidiaries. Our current intention is to reinvest the majority of our earnings from foreign operations. Our current plans do not anticipate
a need to repatriate cash to fund our domestic operations. In the event cash from foreign operations is needed to fund operations in the
U.S., we would be subject to additional income taxes in the U.S. reduced by any foreign taxes paid on these earnings.
Net cash provided by operating activities in fiscal year 2012 was $237.4 million, resulting from net income of $122.1 million,
adjusted for $98.5 million in non-cash charges and a $16.8 million net change in assets and liabilities. The non-cash charges included
depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation, tax benefits related to stock benefit plans, deferred income tax and other noncash adjustments, less excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation recorded in financing activities. Net change in assets and
liabilities included an increase in accounts receivable due to increased total revenue in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012, an increase
in prepaid expenses and other assets, a decrease in accounts payable, a decrease in accrued liabilities and restructuring costs and an
increase in deferred revenue.
To the extent that non-cash items increase or decrease our future operating results, there will be no corresponding impact on our
cash flows. After excluding the effects of these non-cash charges, the primary changes in cash flows relating to operating activities
result from changes in working capital. Our primary source of operating cash flows is the collection of accounts receivable from our
customers, including maintenance which is typically invoiced annually in advance. Our operating cash flows are also impacted by the
timing of payments to our vendors for accounts payable and other liabilities. We generally pay our vendors and service providers in
accordance with the invoice terms and conditions. The timing of cash payments in future periods will be impacted by the terms of
accounts payable arrangements.
Net cash used in investing activities was $191.0 million in fiscal year 2012, resulting primarily from cash used, net of cash
acquired, of $131.6 million for the LogLogic acquisition, net cash used for purchases of short-term investments in marketable securities
of $34.2 million, $23.7 million in capital expenditures and $1.2 million in restricted cash pledged as security.
Net cash provided by financing activities was $374.0 million in fiscal year 2012, resulting primarily from $584.5 million in net
cash received from the issuance of the convertible senior notes, $33.4 million cash received from the exercise of stock options and the
sale of stock under our Employee Stock Purchase Program and $30.3 million in excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation,
which were partially offset by the repurchase of our shares of common stock in an amount totaling $220.3 million, $35.7 million in net
payments on debt and $18.2 million in withholding taxes related to restricted stock net share settlement.
In April 2012, we issued convertible senior notes (the "Notes") with an aggregate principal amount of $600.0 million due in 2032.
We used approximately $121.0 million of the net proceeds from the offering to fund the purchase of approximately 3.6 million shares of
our common stock concurrently with the offering of the Notes and approximately $150 million of the net proceeds to repay indebtedness
outstanding under the 2011 Credit Facility, which was originally incurred to fund repurchases of our common stock and our acquisition
of LogLogic.
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On March 29, 2012, we announced that our Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program pursuant to which we may
repurchase up to $300.0 million of our outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated
transactions. The repurchase of shares of our common stock concurrent with the issuance of the Notes during the second quarter of
fiscal year 2012 was made pursuant to this stock repurchase program. In connection with the approval of this program, our Board of
Directors also terminated our previous $300.0 million stock repurchase program from December 2010, and the remaining authorized
amount of $38.4 million under the December 2010 stock repurchase program available for repurchasing common stock was canceled.
In fiscal year 2012, we repurchased 7.6 million shares of our outstanding common stock at an average price of $28.96 per share
pursuant to the stock repurchase programs, for an aggregate purchase price of $220.3 million. As of November 30, 2012, the remaining
authorized amount for stock repurchases under the March 2012 stock repurchase program was approximately $147.3 million.
We currently anticipate that our operating expenses will grow in absolute dollars for the foreseeable future, and we intend to fund
our operating expenses primarily through cash flows from operations. We believe that our current cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments and amounts available under our line of credit together with expected cash flows from operations will be sufficient to meet
our anticipated cash requirements for working capital, capital expenditures, and currently approved stock repurchases for at least the
next twelve months. Should demand for our products and services significantly decline over the next twelve months, the available cash
provided by operations could be adversely impacted.
Convertible Senior Notes
In April 2012, we issued convertible senior notes in an aggregate principal amount of $600.0 million due May 1, 2032 (the
"Notes"). The Notes bear interest at a rate of 2.25% per annum. The Notes do not contain any financial covenants or any restrictions on
the payment of dividends, the incurrence of senior debt or other indebtedness, or the issuance or repurchase of securities by us. Each
$1,000 principal amount of Notes is initially convertible, at the option of the holders, at a rate of 19.7750 shares of our common stock,
which represents an initial conversion price of approximately $50.57 per share, which is subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of
certain events specified in the indenture. On conversion of a Note, we will deliver cash in an amount generally equal to the lesser of the
conversion value and the principal amount of each Note and, for any conversion value greater than the principal amount, we will deliver
shares of common stock. Holders may convert Notes prior to February 1, 2032, and other than during the period from February 1, 2017
to May 5, 2017, under the following circumstances: (1) if the Notes are called for redemption, at any time prior to the redemption date;
(2) during any fiscal quarter commencing after the fiscal quarter ending on September 2, 2012, if our last reported sale price of a share
of common stock for at least 20 trading days during a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the
immediately preceding fiscal quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the conversion price on each applicable trading day; (3) during
any five consecutive trading day period when the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of Notes is less than 98% of the product of
the last reported sale price of a share of Common Stock and the conversion rate; and (4) upon the occurrence of certain distributions or
corporate events as specified in the indenture governing the Notes. From February 1, 2017 to May 5, 2017, and from February 1, 2032
until the maturity date, holders may convert Notes at any time, regardless of the foregoing circumstances.
After May 5, 2017, we may redeem for cash all or part of the Notes. The redemption price will be equal to the principal amount of
the Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest. Holders may require us to repurchase all or a portion of their Notes on
May 5, 2017, May 1, 2022 and May 1, 2027 in cash at a price equal to the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest.
Upon the occurrence of a fundamental change under the indenture for the Notes, such as in the event of a change in control, the
holders may require us to repurchase all or a portion of their Notes at the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued and unpaid interest.
Following certain corporate transactions that constitute a change of control, the conversion rate may increase for a holder who elects to
convert the Notes. Upon conversion, we will deliver an amount of cash and a number of shares of common stock, if any, equal to the
sum of the daily settlement amounts for each daily volume weighted average price in the 35 day observation period for such Note as
determined pursuant to the indenture for the Notes.
Credit Facility
In December 2011, we and one of our subsidiaries entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the "2011 Credit
Facility"). The 2011 Credit Facility matures on December 19, 2016 and provides for borrowings of up to $250.0 million with a sublimit
for swing line loans of up to $10.0 million and standby letters of credit in a face amount of up to $50.0 million.
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We have an option to request that the lenders increase the available commitments by up to an additional $100.0 million for total
borrowings of up to $350.0 million. In May 2012, we amended certain covenants and other terms of the 2011 Credit Facility.
Revolving loans accrue interest at a per annum rate based on, at our option, either (i) the base rate plus a margin ranging from
0.25% to 1.25%, depending on TIBCO's consolidated leverage ratio or (ii) the LIBOR rate plus a margin ranging from 1.25% to 2.25%,
depending on TIBCO's consolidated leverage ratio, for various interest periods. The base rate is defined as the highest of (i) the
administrative agent's prime rate, (ii) the federal funds rate plus a margin equal to 0.50%, and (iii) the LIBOR rate for a one month
interest period plus a margin of 1.00%. We are also obligated to pay commitment fees for the unused amount of the 2011 Credit Facility,
letter of credit fees and other customary fees. Loan origination fees and issuance costs of approximately $3.4 million were incurred
since consummation of the 2011 Credit Facility which will be amortized through interest expense over a period of five years. Under
certain circumstances, a default interest rate of 2.00% above the applicable interest rate will apply on all obligations during the existence
of an event of default under the 2011 Credit Facility.
We must maintain a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio of 3.5:1.0 and a maximum consolidated leverage ratio of
3.25:1.00 in addition to other customary affirmative and negative covenants. The maximum consolidated leverage ratio decreases to
3.00:1.00 and then to 2.75:1.00 with respect to the second fiscal quarter of our fiscal years 2013 and 2014, respectively.
As of November 30, 2012, we were in compliance with all covenants under this facility.
Line of Credit
We also have a $20.0 million revolving line of credit that matures in June 2013 (the "Line of Credit"). The revolving Line of Credit
is available for cash borrowings and for the issuance of letters of credit up to $20.0 million. The Line of Credit, as amended, contains
financial covenants substantially identical to those of the 2011 Credit Facility, as well as other customary affirmative and negative
covenants.
As of November 30, 2012, we were in compliance with all covenants under the Line of Credit.
In connection with the mortgage note payable, we entered into an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of $13.0 million
collateralized under the Line of Credit which renews for successive one-year periods until the mortgage note payable has been satisfied
in full. In addition, as of November 30, 2012 we had a total of $1.0 million outstanding with respect to letters of credit in connection
with sales and lease transactions.
Guarantee Credit Line
We have a revolving guarantee credit line of approximately $13.0 million available for issuance of bank guarantees denominated
in foreign currency. Issued bank guarantees were approximately $12.5 million and $11.4 million in fiscal years 2012 and 2011,
respectively, and were collateralized by pledging the equivalent amount under restricted cash as required under our guarantee credit line.
Other various contractual commitments also require us to pledge cash as security under restricted cash. As of November 30, 2012 and
2011, we had restricted cash of $14.6 million and $13.8 million, respectively, which is included in Other Assets on our Consolidated
Balance Sheets.
Commitments
In June 2003, we purchased our corporate headquarters with a $54.0 million mortgage note to lower our operating costs. The
mortgage note payable carries a 20-year amortization and a fixed annual interest rate of 5.50%. The principal balance of $34.4 million
that will be remaining at the end of the 10-year term will be due as a final lump sum payment on July 1, 2013. Under the applicable
terms of the mortgage note agreements, we are prohibited from acquiring another company without prior consent from the lender unless
we maintain at least $50.0 million of cash or cash equivalents and meet other non-financial terms as defined in the agreements. In
addition, we are subject to certain non-financial covenants as defined in the agreements. We were in compliance with all covenants as of
November 30, 2012.
In conjunction with the purchase of our corporate headquarters, we entered into a 51-year lease of the land upon which the
property is located. The lease was paid in advance for a total of $28.0 million, but is subject to adjustments every ten years based upon
changes in fair market value of the land. Should it become necessary, we have the option to prepay any rent increases due as a result of a
change in fair market value.
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Total

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter

Operating commitments:
Debt principal
Debt interest
Operating leases(1)

$

635,711
62,033
41,455

$

35,711
14,783
11,753

$

—
13,500
9,598

$

—
13,500
6,623

$

—
13,500
5,420

$

600,000
6,750
3,746

$

—
—
4,315

Total commitments

$

739,199

$

62,247

$

23,098

$

20,123

$

18,920

$

610,496

$

4,315

(1) Operating leases include future minimum rent payments, net of estimated sublease income, for facilities that we have vacated
pursuant to our restructuring activities.
The obligations disclosed above do not include contractual obligations recorded on our balance sheet as current liabilities except
for the current portion of long-term debt. The expected timing of payment amounts of the obligations discussed above is estimated
based on current information. Timing and actual amounts paid may differ depending on the timing of receipt of goods or services,
market prices or changes to agreed-upon amounts for some obligations.
Future minimum lease payments under restructured non-cancelable operating leases as of November 30, 2012 are included in
Accrued Restructuring Costs on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. See also Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K for further details on accrued restructuring costs.
The above commitment table does not include approximately $26.3 million of long-term income tax liabilities recorded in
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes due to the fact that we are unable to reasonably estimate the timing of these potential future
payments.
Indemnification
Our software license agreements typically provide for indemnification of customers for intellectual property infringement claims.
To date, no such claims have been filed against us. We also warrant to customers that our software products operate substantially in
accordance with the software product’s specifications. Historically, minimal costs have been incurred related to product warranties, and,
as such, no accruals for warranty costs have been made. In addition, we indemnify our officers and directors under the terms of
indemnity agreements entered into with them, as well as pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and applicable provisions of
Delaware law.
To date, we have incurred costs for the payment of legal fees in connection with the legal proceedings detailed in Note 14 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of November 30, 2012, we had no off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Recent accounting pronouncements are detailed in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 7A.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to the impact of foreign currency fluctuations and interest rate changes.
Foreign Currency Risk
We conduct business in the Americas, EMEA and APJ. As a result, our financial results could be affected by factors such as
changes in foreign currency exchange rates or changes in economic conditions in foreign markets. While the majority of our
transactions are currently made in U.S. dollars, we transact business in approximately 25 foreign currencies worldwide, of which the
most significant to our operations in fiscal year 2012 was the Euro. We enter into forward contracts with financial institutions to manage
our currency exposure related to certain net assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, and these forward contracts are
generally settled monthly. We do not enter into derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
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subsidiaries into U.S. dollars in consolidation. If there is a change in foreign currency exchange rates, the conversion of the foreign
subsidiaries’ financial statements into U.S. dollars will lead to translation gains or losses, which are recorded net as a component of
other comprehensive income.
As of November 30, 2012, we had the following forward contracts outstanding (in thousands):
Notional
Value
Local Currency

Notional
Value
USD

Fair Value
Gain (Loss)
USD

Forward contracts sold:
Australian dollar
Brazilian real
British pound
Canadian dollar
Euro
Indian rupee

9,000
2,500
2,700
4,980
33,500
64,000

$

9,357
1,170
4,326
5,004
43,560
1,177

$

(1)
56
1
5
5
6

Japanese yen
Singapore dollar
New Taiwan dollar
Forward contracts bought:
British pound
Canadian dollar
Hong Kong dollar

345,000
1,400
31,000

4,188
1,147
1,066

(5)
—
(5)

12,400
480

19,867
483

6,900

890

(118)
4
—
$

Notional
Value
Local Currency

Notional
Value
Euro

(52)
Fair Value
Gain (Loss)
USD

Forward contracts sold:
Canadian dollar
Forward contracts bought:
British pound
Swedish krona
United States dollar

1,200

€

928

6,000
31,500

7,394
3,636

48,300

37,145

$

1
5
5
12

$

23

Interest Rate Risk
Our investment policy is designed to protect and preserve invested funds by limiting default, market and investment risk. Our
exposure to market rate risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to our investments and interest paid on our credit facility.
Currently, we maintain our cash in current accounts or money market funds or short-term investments in marketable securities. In
general, money market funds are not considered to be subject to interest rate risk because the interest paid on such funds fluctuates with
the prevailing interest rate. Our short-term investments are predominately held in marketable securities with maturities of less than one
year with limited exposure to changes in market interest rates. As of November 30, 2012, our cash and cash equivalents totaled $727.3
million, of which $376.5 million was in money market funds. As of November 30, 2012, a hypothetical 100 basis point increase in
interest rates would not have a significant impact on the fair value of our short-term investments.
Interest on borrowings under the 2011 Credit Facility is based at specified margins above either LIBOR or the base rate defined in
the 2011 Credit Facility, whereas the interest rate on our Notes is fixed over its term. Our exposure to interest rate risk under the 2011
Credit Facility will depend on the extent to which we utilize such facility. As of November 30, 2012, the 2011 Credit Facility had a
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borrowing capacity of $250.0 million and had no outstanding borrowings. A hypothetical 100 basis point increase in the LIBOR or
Prime Rate-based interest rate on the 2011 Credit Facility would result in an increase in our interest expense by $1.0 million per year for
every $100.0 million borrowed on our revolving credit line. For a discussion of
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our 2011 Credit Facility and Notes, see Notes 10 and 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 8.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Reference is made to the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements that appears on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form
10-K. The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm from PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements, which appear
beginning on page F-2 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, are incorporated by reference into this Item 8.

ITEM 9.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our "disclosure controls and procedures," as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange
Act, as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable
assurance level to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives as specified
above. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that disclosure controls and
procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the
disclosure controls and procedures are met. Additionally, the design of a control system must reflect that there are resource constraints,
thus, in designing disclosure controls and procedures, our management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the
cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure controls and procedures. The design of any disclosure controls and procedures also is
based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed
in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Our
internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States. Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:
(i)

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of our assets;

(ii)

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and

(iii)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of controls,
internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements and can provide only reasonable assurance with respect
to financial statement preparation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
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controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
We assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2012. In making this
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assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework. Based on the results of our assessment using those criteria, management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of November 30, 2012.
The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2012, has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report that appears on page F-2 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B.

OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III
ITEM 10.

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except as set forth below, the information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the sections entitled "Board of
Directors," "Election of Directors," and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in our Proxy Statement for the
2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended November 30,
2012 (the "2013 Proxy Statement").
Executive Officers
The name of and certain information regarding each of our current executive officers as of November 30, 2012 are set forth below.
Vivek Y. Ranadivé, age 55, has served as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer since our inception. Mr. Ranadivé founded
Teknekron Software Systems, Inc., our predecessor company, in 1985.
Sydney L. Carey, age 48, has served as our Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer since January 2009 and has served
in various capacities with us since January 2004. From February 2002 to January 2004, Ms. Carey was Chief Financial Officer of
Vernier Networks.
William R. Hughes, age 52, has served as our Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since July 2004 and has
served in various capacities with us since September 1999. Between 1989 and his joining TIBCO in 1999, Mr. Hughes held several inhouse legal positions in the technology industry in Europe and the United States. Prior to 1989, Mr. Hughes worked in private practice
in the areas of corporate, finance and intellectual property law.
Thomas Laffey, age 57, has served as our Executive Vice President, Products and Technology since June 2005 and has served in
various capacities with us since April 2002. Prior to joining TIBCO, Mr. Laffey was a co-founder of Talarian Corporation, a provider of
middleware, where he was responsible for engineering and product direction.
Ram Menon, age 47, has served as our Executive Vice President, President of Social Computing since January 2012 and has
served in various capacities with us since July 1999. Prior to joining TIBCO, Mr. Menon was with Accenture, a global consulting firm,
where he specialized in supply chain and e-commerce strategy consulting with Global 1000 companies.
Murray D. Rode, age 48, has served as our Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer since January 2009 and has served
in various capacities with us since February 1995. Prior to joining TIBCO, Mr. Rode was a management consultant with a major
international consulting firm, where he specialized in the areas of technology strategy and planning, business process re-engineering and
project management.
Murat Sonmez, age 49, has served as our Executive Vice President, Global Field Operations since April 2007 and has served in
various capacities with us since October 2003 and from January 1994 to July 2002. From August 2002 to September 2003, Mr. Sonmez
served as Executive Vice President, Operations at Centrata, a utility computing software firm.
Brent Hogenson, age 51, has served as our Vice President, Corporate Controller since April 2012 and prior to that was our
Interim Corporate Controller since November 2011. From 2009 to 2010, Mr. Hogenson was Chief Financial Officer of Americas for
Autonomy, Inc., a software company. From 2003 to 2009, Mr. Hogenson was Vice President of Finance, Corporate Controller of
Interwoven, Inc., a software company.
Code of Ethics
We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Chief Executive and Senior Financial Officers that applies to our Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Accounting Officer, Corporate Controller and all others performing similar functions. The Code of Ethics
is available on our website at http://www.tibco.com/company/investor_info/corporate_governance/code_ethics. If we make any
substantive amendments to the Code of Ethics or grant any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from a provision of the code to our
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Accounting Officer, Corporate Controller or others providing similar functions,
we will disclose the nature of such amendment or waiver on our website or in a current report on Form 8-K.

ITEM 11.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
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The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the sections entitled "Compensation Discussion and
Analysis," "Election of Directors—Fiscal Year 2012 Director Compensation," "Board of Directors—Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation" and "Compensation Committee Report" in our 2013 Proxy Statement.
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ITEM 12.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated
by reference to the section entitled "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management" in our 2013 Proxy Statement.
The information required by this item regarding equity compensation plans is incorporated by reference to the section entitled
"Executive Compensation—Equity Compensation Plan Information" in our 2013 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions
The information required by this item regarding certain relationships and related party transactions is incorporated by reference to
the section entitled "Board of Directors Related Party Transactions Policy and Procedures" in our 2013 Proxy Statement.
Director Independence
The information required by this item regarding director independence is incorporated by reference to the section entitled "Board
of Directors Director Independence and Presiding Director" in our 2013 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 14.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the section entitled "Ratification of Appointment of
Independent Auditors—Fees Paid to the Independent Auditors" and "Ratification of Appointment of Independent Auditors—Audit
Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services of the Independent Auditor" in our 2013 Proxy Statement.
41

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Table of Contents

PART IV
ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
1.

Financial Statements. Please see the accompanying Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which appears
on page F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements listed in the Index to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, which appear beginning on page F-2 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, are
incorporated by reference into Item 8 above.

2.

Financial Statement Schedules. Financial Statement Schedules have been omitted because the information required
to be set forth therein is either not applicable or is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

3.

Exhibits. See Item 15(b) below. Each management contract and compensatory plan or arrangement required to be
filed has been identified.

(b) Exhibits. The exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibit Index immediately following the signature page are filed as part
of, or are incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
(c) Financial Statement Schedules.

Reference is made to Item 15(a)(2) above.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
TIBCO Software Inc.:
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index, present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of TIBCO Software Inc. and its subsidiaries at November 30, 2012 and November 30, 2011, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended November 30, 2012 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of November 30, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management
is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
/s/

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

San Jose, California
January 28, 2013
F-2
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TIBCO SOFTWARE INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except par value)
November 30,
2012

2011

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $5,606 and $5,868
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

$

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Acquired intangible assets, net
Long-term deferred income tax assets
Other assets
Total assets

727,309
34,411
234,100
61,174

$

308,148
225
196,419
61,864

1,056,994
98,474

566,656
89,871

532,290
123,261
64,549
71,340

451,821
97,258
78,656
48,676

$

1,946,908

$

1,332,938

$

22,809
133,596
893
263,476
35,711

$

25,802
129,168
6,792
210,234
2,397

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued restructuring costs
Deferred revenue
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Accrued restructuring costs, less current portion
Long-term deferred revenue
Long-term deferred income tax liabilities
Long-term income tax liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion
Convertible senior notes, net
Total liabilities

456,485
643
25,543
3,208
26,263
4,015
—
524,466

374,393
1,050
14,876
4,540
20,772
2,445
65,711
—

1,040,623

483,787

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 1,200,000 shares authorized; 163,698 shares and 166,287
shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Total TIBCO Software Inc. stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interest
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164
873,337
(17,411)
49,084

166
856,190
(21,032)
12,742

905,174

848,066

1,111

1,085

Total equity

906,285

Total liabilities and equity

$
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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1,946,908

849,151
$

1,332,938
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TIBCO SOFTWARE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)
Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

2010

Revenue:
License
Service and maintenance

$

Total revenue

410,306
614,307

$

377,618
542,628

$

301,532
452,475

1,024,613

920,246

754,007

License
Service and maintenance

41,363
241,452

35,309
212,066

35,325
162,468

Total cost of revenue

282,815

247,375

197,793

Gross profit

741,798

672,871

556,214

Operating expenses:
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Amortization of acquired intangible assets
Acquisition related and other
Restructuring charges

154,535
317,001
70,868
19,654
2,672
(648)

143,173
285,366
59,990
19,149
1,840
8,926

124,654
240,357
49,260
16,414
3,421
6,953

564,082

518,444

441,059

177,716
1,109
(23,396)
(115)

154,427
1,374
(4,020)
(1,846)

115,155
1,349
(4,123)
(1,509)

155,314
33,200

149,935
37,300

110,872
32,401

122,114
107

112,635
229

78,471
383

Cost of revenue:

Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest
Net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.

$

122,007

$

112,406

$

78,088

Basic

$

0.76

$

0.70

$

0.49

Diluted

$

0.72

$

0.65

$

0.46

Net income per share attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.:

Shares used in computing net income per share attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted

160,330

161,469

160,959

169,698

173,272

170,953

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TIBCO SOFTWARE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(In thousands)
Common
Stock
Shares
Balances, November 30, 2009

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
(Loss)

168

$ 774,474

$

Amount

167,738

$

(16,413)

Retained
Earnings
$

38,520

Total TIBCO
Software, Inc.
Stockholders’
Equity

Noncontrolling
Interest

$

$

796,749

Total
Equity

732

$ 797,481

78,088

383

78,471

(5,680)

48

(5,632)

Components of comprehensive income:
Net income

—

—

—

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of $2,772 tax
effects

—

—

—

Unrealized loss on investments, no
tax

—

—

—

—

78,088

(5,680)

—

17

—

Comprehensive income
Common stock repurchased and retired

—

17

72,425

431

72,856

(15,084)

(15)

(87,657)

—

(204,280)

—

(204,280)

9,850

10

83,892

—

—

83,902

—

83,902

Common stock issued for employee stock
purchase program

388

—

3,038

—

—

3,038

—

3,038

Tax benefits from employee stock options
plans

—

—

30,626

—

—

30,626

—

30,626

Stock-based compensation

—

—

32,248

—

—

32,248

—

32,248

(536)

(6,140)

—

(6,140)

Common stock options exercised

Restricted stock withholding taxes netsettlement

(116,608)

17

—

(6,140)

—

—

2,166

2

(2)

—

—

—

—

—

164,522

165

830,479

—

808,568

1,163

809,731

Net income

—

—

—

—

112,406

112,406

229

112,635

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of $(217) tax
effects

—

—

—

1,009

—

1,009

Unrealized gain on investments, no
tax

—

—

—

35

—

35

Restricted stock awards
Balances, November 30, 2010

(22,076)

Components of comprehensive income:

Comprehensive income
Common stock repurchased and retired

702

—

35

113,450

(78)

113,372

(7,310)

(7)

(94,388)

—

(194,059)

—

(194,059)

8,018

8

76,575

—

—

76,583

—

76,583

Common stock issued for employee stock
purchase program

256

—

4,026

—

—

4,026

—

4,026

Tax benefits from employee stock options
plans

—

—

8,552

—

—

8,552

—

8,552

Stock-based compensation

—

—

48,867

—

—

48,867

—

48,867

(672)

(1)

(17,920)

—

—

(17,921)

—

(17,921)

Common stock options exercised

Restricted stock withholding taxes netsettlement
Restricted stock awards

1,473

1

166,287

166

856,190

Net income

—

—

—

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of $(1,270) tax
effects

—

—

—

Balances, November 30, 2011

(1)

(99,664)

(307)

—

—

—

—

—

12,742

848,066

1,085

849,151

—

122,007

122,007

107

122,114

3,621

—

3,621

(21,032)

Components of comprehensive income:
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(81)

3,540

Comprehensive income
Convertible bond issuance

125,654

50,833

—

50,833

50,833

—

(7,606)

(8)

(134,592)

—

(220,265)

—

(220,265)

3,560

4

28,227

—

—

28,231

—

28,231

Common stock issued for employee stock
purchase program

229

—

5,186

—

—

5,186

—

5,186

Tax benefits from employee stock options
plans

—

—

24,561

—

—

24,561

—

24,561

Stock-based compensation

—

—

61,146

—

—

61,146

—

61,146

(610)

—

(18,212)

—

—

(18,212)

—

(18,212)

Common stock options exercised

Restricted stock withholding taxes netsettlement
Restricted stock awards
Balances, November 30, 2012

1,838
163,698

2
$

164

(2)
$ 873,337

—

26

—

Common stock repurchased and retired

—

125,628

(85,665)

—
$

(17,411)

—
$

49,084

—
$

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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905,174

$

—

—

1,111

$ 906,285
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TIBCO SOFTWARE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of acquired intangible assets
Amortization of debt discount and transaction costs
Stock-based compensation
Deferred income tax
Tax benefits related to employee stock option plans
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
Other non-cash adjustments, net
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities and restructuring costs
Deferred revenue

$

122,114

2011

$

112,635

2010

$

78,471

14,931
35,553
11,465
61,146

13,145
34,661
772
48,867

13,414
32,494
658
32,248

(20,351)
24,561
(30,311)
1,486

1,266
8,552
(41,950)
476

(8,478)
30,626
(21,510)
225

(37,171)
(1,880)
(3,036)
(1,542)
60,395

(3,312)
4,859
501
7,015
20,563

(25,909)
13,860
3,829
(12,553)
11,382

237,360

208,050

148,757

(41,409)
7,229
(132,209)
(23,723)
(1,169)
326

(76)
1,451
(63,610)
(13,971)
(3,234)
—

(1,313)
183
(78,573)
(6,399)
(5,498)
485

(190,955)

(79,440)

(91,115)

584,450
116,648
(152,397)
33,417
(220,265)
(18,212)
30,311

—
30,000
(2,269)
80,610
(194,059)
(17,922)
41,950

—
—
(3,492)
86,940
(204,280)
(6,140)
21,510

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

373,952

(61,690)

(105,462)

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(1,196)
419,161
308,148

(2,761)
64,159
243,989

(720)
(48,540)
292,529

Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Purchases of short-term investments
Maturities and sales of short-term investments
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Purchases of property and equipment
Restricted cash pledged as security
Other investing activities, net
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of convertible debt, net
Proceeds from revolving credit facility
Principal payments on debt
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Repurchases of the Company’s common stock
Withholding taxes related to restricted stock net share settlement
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
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$

727,309

$

308,148

$

243,989

Interest paid

$

10,536

$

2,994

$

3,023

Income taxes paid

$

12,967

$

12,883

$

22,770

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental disclosures:

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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TIBCO SOFTWARE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.

Business

TIBCO Software Inc. ("TIBCO," the "Company," "we" or "us"), a Delaware corporation, is a leading independent provider of
middleware and infrastructure software. Our standards-based software platform enables customers to create flexible, event-driven
applications from infrastructure and deliver real-time, actionable insights. Our solutions help customers operate their business more
efficiently, better capitalize on opportunities to increase revenue and market share and extend the life of past investments made. Using
our software, customers have the ability to capture the right information, at the right time and act on it preemptively for a competitive
advantage—what we call "the two-second advantage™ ".
2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of TIBCO and our wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries.
Noncontrolling interest is reported as a separate component of Consolidated Statements of Equity from the equity attributable to
TIBCO's stockholders for all periods presented. The noncontrolling interests in our Net Income have been excluded from Net Income
Attributable to TIBCO Software Inc in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. All intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.
Fiscal Years
Our fiscal year is a twelve month period ending on November 30 of a stated year. For the purpose of presentation, we refer to the
fiscal years ended November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, as our fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the
United States of America ("GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. We believe that the estimates, assumptions
and judgments involved in revenue recognition, allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and discounts, product development costs,
stock-based compensation, business combinations, legal contingencies, realizability of goodwill, intangible assets and long-lived assets,
and accounting for income taxes have the greatest potential impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.
Revenue Recognition
License revenue consists principally of revenue earned under software license agreements. License revenue is generally
recognized when a signed contract or other persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the software has been shipped or
electronically delivered, the license fee is fixed or determinable and collection of the resulting receivable is probable. When contracts
contain multiple software and software-related elements (for example, software license, maintenance and professional services) wherein
Vendor-Specific Objective Evidence ("VSOE") exists for all undelivered elements, we account for the delivered elements in accordance
with the "Residual Method." VSOE of fair value for maintenance and support is established by a stated renewal rate, if substantive,
included in the license arrangement or rates charged in stand-alone sales of maintenance and support. VSOE of fair value of consulting
and training services is based upon stand-alone sales of those services.
Provided all other revenue criteria are met, the upfront, minimum, non-refundable license fees from original equipment
manufacturer ("OEM") customers are recognized upon delivery, and on-going royalty fees are recognized upon reports of units shipped.
Revenue on shipments to resellers is recognized when all revenue criteria are met, including evidence of sell-through to the end-user,
and is recorded net of related costs to the resellers. Revenue from subscription license agreements, which include software, rights to
unspecified future products and maintenance, is recognized ratably over the term of the subscription period.
Maintenance revenue consists of fees for providing software updates on a when-and-if available basis and technical support for
software products ("post-contract customer support" or "PCS"). Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the
agreement. Payments received in advance of services performed are deferred.
Professional services revenue consists primarily of revenue received for assisting with the implementation of our software, on-site
support, training and other consulting services. Many customers who license our software also enter into separate professional services
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we evaluate whether the professional services are considered essential to the functionality
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TIBCO SOFTWARE INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

of the software using factors such as the nature of our software products; whether they are ready for use by the customer upon receipt;
the nature of our implementation services, which typically do not involve significant customization to or development of the underlying
software code; the availability of services from other vendors; whether the timing of payments for license revenue is coincident with
performance of services; and whether milestones or acceptance criteria exist that affect the realizability of the software license fee.
Substantially all of our professional services arrangements are billed on a time and materials basis and, accordingly, are recognized as
the services are performed. Contracts with fixed or not-to-exceed fees are recognized on a proportional performance model based on
actual services performed. If there is significant uncertainty about the project completion or receipt of payment for professional services,
revenue is deferred until the uncertainty is sufficiently resolved. Training revenue is recognized as training services are delivered.
Payments received in advance of consulting or training services performed are deferred and recognized when the related services are
performed. Work performed and expenses incurred in advance of invoicing are recorded as unbilled receivables. These amounts are
billed in the subsequent month. Allowances for estimated future returns and discounts are provided for upon recognition of revenue.
For arrangements that do not qualify for separate accounting for the license and professional services revenues, including
arrangements that involve significant modification or customization of the software, that include milestones or customer specific
acceptance criteria that may affect collection of the software license fees or where payment for the software license is tied to the
performance of professional services, software license revenue is generally recognized together with the professional services revenue
using either the percentage-of-completion or completed-contract method. The completed contract method is used for contracts where
there is a risk over final acceptance by the customer or for contracts that are short term in nature. Under the percentage-of-completion
method, revenue recognized is equal to the ratio of costs expended to date to the anticipated total contract costs, based on current
estimates of costs to complete the project. If there are milestones or acceptance provisions associated with the contract, the revenue
recognized will not exceed the most recent milestone achieved or acceptance obtained. If the total estimated costs to complete a project
exceed the total contract amount, indicating a loss, the entire anticipated loss would be recognized in the current period.
In the first quarter of fiscal year 2011 we adopted the amended accounting guidance for certain multiple deliverable revenue
arrangements that:
• provides updated guidance on whether multiple deliverables exist, how the deliverables in an arrangement should be
separated, and how the consideration should be allocated;
• requires an entity to allocate revenue in an arrangement using the estimated selling price ("ESP") of deliverables if a vendor
does not have VSOE of selling price or third-party evidence ("TPE") of selling price; and
• eliminates the use of the residual method and requires an entity to allocate revenue using the relative selling price method.
We enter into multiple element revenue arrangements in which a customer may purchase a combination of software licenses,
hosting services, maintenance, professional services and hardware. If a tangible hardware product includes software, we determine if the
tangible hardware and the software work together to deliver the product's essential functionality. If so, the entire product is accounted
for as a non-software deliverable; otherwise the hardware product and the software are accounted for separately. For multiple element
arrangements that contain non-software related elements, for example our hosting services, we allocate revenue to each non-software
element based upon the relative selling price of each, and if software and software-related elements are also included in the
arrangement, to those elements as a group based on our ESP for the group. When applying the relative selling price method, we
determine the selling price for each deliverable using VSOE of selling price, if it exists, then TPE of selling price. If neither VSOE nor
TPE of selling price exist for a deliverable, we use our ESP for multiple element arrangements that include non-software components.
The objective of ESP is to determine the price at which we would transact a sale if the product or service were sold on a stand-alone
basis. We determine ESP by considering multiple factors, including, but not limited to, geographies, market conditions, competitive
landscape, internal costs, gross margin objectives and pricing practices. ESP is generally used for offerings that are not typically sold on
a stand-alone basis or for new or highly customized offerings. Revenue allocated to each element is then recognized when the basic
revenue recognition criteria are met for each element. The manner in which we account for multiple element arrangements that contain
only software and software-related elements remains unchanged.
We show revenue from sales of software licenses and hardware as license revenue, and revenue from maintenance, professional
services and hosting as services and maintenance revenue in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Revenue recognized from
hardware sales represents less than 5% of total revenue.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
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The fair values of our financial instruments including accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, mortgage note
payable and revolving credit facility do not materially differ from their carrying amounts due to their short maturities and, in the case of
the revolving credit facility, their variable, market-based interest rates. The fair values of our cash equivalents, short-term investments
and derivative instruments are detailed further in Note 5.
Concentration of Credit Risk
Our cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and accounts receivable are potentially subject to concentration of credit risk.
Cash, cash equivalents and investments are deposited with financial institutions or invested in security issuers that management believes
are creditworthy. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and, generally, require no collateral from
our customers. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts receivable based on various factors, including our review of credit
profiles of our customers, contractual terms and conditions, current economic trends and historical payment experience; see Note 6 for
further details.
No customer accounted for more than 10% of total revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 or 2010. As of November 30, 2012 and
2011, no single customer had a balance in excess of 10% of our net accounts receivable.
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments
We consider all highly liquid investment securities with remaining maturities at the date of purchase of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. We determine the appropriate classification of marketable securities at the time of purchase and evaluate such
designation as of each balance sheet date. To date, all marketable securities have been classified as available-for-sale and are carried at
fair value with unrealized gains and losses, if any, included as a component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) in
Stockholders’ Equity. These available-for-sale investments are presented as Current Assets as they are available for current operations.
Interest, dividends, realized gains and losses and impairment losses are included in Interest Income and Other Income (Expense).
Realized gains and losses and impairment losses are recognized based on the specific identification method.
Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. These assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Buildings
Equipment and software
Furniture and fixtures
Facilities improvements

25 years
2-5 years
5 years
Shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life

Depreciation expense for property and equipment was $14.9 million, $13.1 million and $13.4 million in fiscal years 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively.
Goodwill and In-Process Research and Development
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment at least annually or as
circumstances indicate that their value may no longer be recoverable. We do not have intangible assets with indefinite useful lives other
than goodwill. To assess if goodwill is impaired we first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether further impairment
testing is necessary. If, as a result of the qualitative assessment, we consider it more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit
is less than its carrying amount, we perform a quantitative impairment test. This includes a screening for an impairment and, in a second
step, the measuring of such impairment. We perform our goodwill impairment test annually in our fourth fiscal quarter, and the last
impairment test was completed for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012 when it was determined that the fair value was
significantly in excess of the carrying value. The guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets requires impairment testing based on
reporting units. We periodically re-evaluate our business and have determined that we continue to operate in one segment, which we
consider our sole reporting unit. Therefore, goodwill was tested and will continue to be tested for impairment at the enterprise level. To
date, we have determined that there has been no impairment of goodwill.
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We evaluate the recoverability of our long-lived assets which includes amortizable intangible and tangible assets in accordance
with authoritative guidance on accounting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. Acquired intangible assets with definite
useful lives are amortized over their useful lives. We evaluate long-lived assets, other than goodwill, for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable. We recognize such impairment in the
event the net book value of such assets exceeds their fair value. If the fair value of a long-lived asset exceeds its carrying value of the
net asset assigned, then the asset is not impaired and no further testing is performed. If the carrying value of the net asset assigned
exceeds the fair value of the asset, then we must perform the second step of the impairment test in order to determine the implied fair
value. No long-lived assets impairment losses were incurred in the fiscal years presented.
Business Combinations
Under the accounting guidance for business combinations we recognize separately from goodwill the assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed, at their fair values as of the date of the acquisition. Goodwill as of the acquisition date is measured as the excess of
consideration transferred and the net of the acquisition date fair values of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
While we use our best estimates and assumptions as a part of the purchase price allocation process to accurately value assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the business combination date, our estimates and assumptions are inherently uncertain and subject to
refinement. As a result, during the preliminary purchase price allocation period, which may be up to one year from the business
combination date, we record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with the corresponding offset to goodwill. After
the preliminary purchase price allocation period, we record adjustments to assets acquired or liabilities assumed subsequent to the
purchase price allocation period in our operating results in the period in which the adjustments were determined.
The total purchase price allocated to the tangible assets acquired is assigned based on the fair values as of the acquisition date. The
fair value assigned to identifiable intangible assets acquired is determined using the income approach which discounts expected future
cash flows to present value using estimations and assumptions determined by management. We believe that these identified intangible
assets will have no residual value after their estimated economic useful lives. The identifiable intangible assets are subject to
amortization on a straight-line basis as this best approximates the benefit period related to these assets.
The excess of the purchase price over the identified tangible and intangible assets, less liabilities assumed, is recorded as goodwill
and primarily reflects the value of the synergies expected to be generated from combining our and the acquired entities’ technology and
operations. Generally, none of the goodwill recorded in connection with the acquisitions is deductible for income tax purposes.
Acquisition Related and Other
Acquisition related and other expenses consist of costs incurred after the issuance of a definitive term sheet for a particular
transaction (whether or not such transaction is ultimately completed, remains in-process or is not completed) and include legal, banker,
accounting and other advisory fees of third parties and severance costs for employees of the acquired company that are terminated
within 90 days of the acquisition date. These costs include professional services fees and employee severance.
Restructuring and Integration Costs
Our restructuring charges are comprised primarily of employee termination costs related to headcount reductions, costs related to
properties abandoned in connection with facilities consolidation and related write-downs of leasehold improvements. A liability for
costs associated with an exit or disposal activity is recognized and measured initially at fair value only when the liability is incurred.
Our restructuring charges include accruals for estimated losses related to our excess facilities, based on our contractual obligations, net
of estimated sublease income. We reassess the liability periodically based on market conditions.
Stock-Based Compensation
We utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing model for determining the estimated fair value of our share-based awards. The BlackScholes model requires the use of highly subjective and complex assumptions which determine the fair value of share-based awards,
including the option’s expected term and the price volatility of the underlying stock. We determined that a blend of implied volatility
and historical volatility is more reflective of the market conditions and a better indicator of expected volatility than historical volatility
alone. The fair value of the awards that are ultimately expected to vest is recognized over the
F-10
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requisite service periods typically on a straight-line basis in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Forfeitures are estimated at the
time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.
Since fiscal year 2010, we have granted performance-based restricted stock units ("PRSUs") to our section 16 officers and certain
other employees. We recognize the stock-based compensation expense for our PRSUs based on the probability of achieving certain
performance criteria, as defined in the PRSU agreements. We then estimate the most probable period in which the performance criteria
will be met, if at all, and recognize the expense using the graded vesting attribution method over the remaining recognition period. Due
to the long-term nature of the performance goals, assessing the probability of achieving these goals is a highly subjective process that
requires judgment. A deferred tax asset is recorded over the vesting period as stock compensation cost is recorded. Our ability to realize
the deferred tax asset is ultimately based on the actual value of the stock-based awards upon release of the restricted stock unit. If the
actual value is lower than the fair value determined on the date of grant, it would result in the reversal of such deferred tax asset with an
increase to our income tax expense for the portion of the deferred tax asset that cannot be realized in that future period.
We utilize the "long form" method of calculating the tax effects of share-based compensation. Under the "long form" method, we
determined the beginning balance of the additional paid-in capital pool ("APIC pool") related to the tax effects of the employee sharebased compensation "as if" we had adopted the recognition provisions of share-based payment since its effective date of January 1,
1995. We also determined the subsequent impact on the APIC pool and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of the tax effect of
employee share–based compensation awards that were issued after the adoption of the share-based payment guidance and outstanding at
the adoption date.
Consistent with prior years, we use the "with and without" approach in determining the order in which our tax attributes in
connection with excess stock option tax benefits are utilized. The "with and without" approach results in the recognition of the windfall
stock option tax benefits only after all other tax attributes, except for pre-acquisition tax attributes of acquired entities, have been
considered in the annual tax accrual computation. Also consistent with prior years, we consider the indirect effects of the windfall
deduction on the computation of other tax attributes, such as the R&D credit deduction, as an additional component of equity. This
incremental tax benefit is credited to additional paid in capital when realized.
Income Taxes
We make certain estimates and judgments in determining income tax expense for financial statement purposes. These estimates
and judgments occur in the calculation of certain tax assets and liabilities, which arise from differences in the timing of recognition of
revenue and expense for tax and financial statement purposes.
We assess the likelihood that we will be able to recover our deferred tax assets on a more-likely-than-not basis. We consider all
available evidence, both positive and negative, including historical levels of income, expectations and risks associated with estimates of
future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance. If it is
not more likely than not that we expect to recover our deferred tax assets, we will increase our provision for taxes by recording a
valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets that we estimate will not ultimately be recoverable.
Foreign Currencies
Most of our foreign subsidiaries use the local currency of their respective countries as their functional currency. Assets and
liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates as of the balance sheet date. Income and expense items
are translated at average exchange rates for the period. Cumulative translation adjustments are included as a component of Accumulated
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) in Stockholders’ Equity. Foreign currency exchange gains and losses, derived from monetary
assets and liabilities stated in a currency other than the functional currency, are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
We recorded foreign currency exchange losses of $(0.7) million, $(1.9) million and $(1.9) million in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, in Other Income (Expense) in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts
To manage currency exposure related to net assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, we enter into forward
contracts. The gains and losses on these derivative instruments are intended to offset the impact of foreign exchange rate changes on the
underlying foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities subject to remeasurement and transaction exposures, and therefore, these
forward contracts do not subject us to material balance sheet risk. We do not enter into derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes. These derivative instruments are not designed for hedge accounting
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and are adjusted to fair value through Other Income (Expense) under the Consolidated Statements of Operations and recorded as assets
or liabilities in the Consolidated Balances Sheets.
Capitalized Software Development Costs
Capitalization of material software development costs begins when a product’s technological feasibility has been established. We
define technological feasibility as the establishment of a working model, which typically occurs when beta testing commences. To date,
the period between achieving technological feasibility and the general availability of our software products has been very short.
Accordingly, our software development costs have been expensed as incurred, with the exception of immaterial costs related to hosted
services.
Costs related to software acquired, developed or modified solely for internal use, with no substantive plans to market such
software at the time of development, are capitalized. Costs incurred during the preliminary planning and evaluation stage of the project
and during post implementation operational stage are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred during the application development stage of
the project are capitalized. These costs are included in Property and Equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are depreciated
on a straight line basis over the useful life of the software.
Advertising Expense
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled approximately $3.0 million, $2.4 million and $2.5 million in fiscal years
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued an update to Presentation of Comprehensive Income
that requires an entity to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other
comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements.
The guidance eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of equity. The
guidance is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal year 2013. We do not expect the adoption of this update to have a material impact
on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.
3.

Business Combinations

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2012
On April 10, 2012, we acquired LogLogic, Inc. ("LogLogic"), a private company based in San Jose, California and incorporated in
Delaware. LogLogic is a provider of scalable log and security management platforms. We paid $131.6 million, net of cash acquired, to
acquire all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of LogLogic. We have also incurred $0.7 million of transaction costs associated
with the acquisition. As a result of the acquisition, we assumed facility leases, certain liabilities and commitments of LogLogic. We are
currently evaluating the purchase price allocation for this transaction.
The preliminary allocation of the purchase price for the LogLogic acquisition is as follows (in thousands):

Cash
Accounts receivable (approximate contractual value)
Other assets
Deferred income tax asset, net
Identifiable intangible assets
Goodwill
Liabilities

$

5,018
5,359
1,524
4,371
61,200
73,460
(7,006)
(7,297)

Deferred revenue
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Gross Amount at
Acquisition Date

Existing technology

$

Customer base
Maintenance agreements
Trademarks
$

Weighted Average
Amortization
Period

32,800
3,200
22,300
2,900

6.0 years
6.0 years
7.0 years

61,200

6.4 years

7.0 years

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2011
Nimbus Partners Limited
On August 30, 2011, TIBCO International Holdings B.V., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of us, acquired Nimbus Partners
Limited ("Nimbus"), a private company organized under the laws of England and Wales and a provider of business process discovery
and analysis applications that help companies drive adoption of business process initiatives. We paid $42.0 million of cash to acquire the
outstanding equity of Nimbus. We have also incurred $1.0 million of acquisition related and other expenses associated with the
acquisition. As a result of the acquisition, we assumed facility leases, certain liabilities and commitments of Nimbus.
LoyaltyLab, Inc.
On December 7, 2010, we acquired LoyaltyLab, Inc. ("Loyalty Lab"), a private company incorporated in Delaware. Loyalty Lab
is a provider of loyalty management solutions allowing marketers to manage loyalty programs from their desktop. This acquisition
provides us international presence in the customer loyalty market. We paid $23.5 million in cash to acquire all of the outstanding shares
of capital stock of Loyalty Lab. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011, we recorded a decrease in goodwill of $0.4 million as a result
of the adjustment of deferred income tax assets. We have also incurred $0.4 million of acquisition related and other expenses associated
with the acquisition. As a result of the acquisition, we assumed facility leases and certain liabilities and commitments of Loyalty Lab.
Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2010
OpenSpirit Corporation
On September 22, 2010, we acquired OpenSpirit Corporation ("OpenSpirit"), a private company incorporated in Delaware.
OpenSpirit is a provider of data and application integration solutions for the exploration and production segment of the global oil and
gas market. OpenSpirit’s vendor-neutral approach is designed to enable companies to pursue an architectural model to both better
leverage legacy investments and exploit new technologies which reduce the time and risk associated with decision making. We paid
$18.4 million in cash to acquire all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of OpenSpirit. In the first quarter of fiscal year 2011, we
recorded a decrease in goodwill of $0.2 million net of tax as a result of the adjustment of certain accrued liabilities. In the third quarter
of fiscal year 2011, we recorded a decrease in goodwill of $0.5 million as a result of the adjustment of deferred income tax assets. We
have also incurred $0.5 million of acquisition related and other expenses associated with the acquisition.
Proginet Corporation
On September 15, 2010, we acquired Proginet Corporation ("Proginet"), a public company incorporated in Delaware. Proginet is a
provider of managed file transfer solutions. This acquisition augments our broader software infrastructure offerings and we believe it
will help customers across industries more efficiently manage the information and processes that run their business. We paid $22.0
million in cash to acquire all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of Proginet. In the third quarter of fiscal year 2011, we recorded
an increase in goodwill of $0.2 million as a result of the adjustment of deferred income tax assets. We have also incurred $0.6 million of
acquisition related and other expenses associated with the acquisition.
Kabira Technologies, Inc.
On April 20, 2010, we acquired Kabira Technologies, Inc. ("Kabira"), a private company incorporated in Delaware and a provider
of high performance transaction processing software solutions for communications service providers globally. Kabira’s products and
solutions support key infrastructure capabilities such as subscriber provisioning, value-based charging, and mobile payments. Its inmemory approach to supporting transactions complements our abilities in handling events and adds to our broader suite of in-memory
infrastructure software products. We paid $3.9 million of cash to acquire all of the outstanding equity of Kabira. In the first quarter of
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associated with the acquisition.
The excess of the purchase price over the identified tangible and intangible assets, less liabilities assumed, was recorded as
goodwill. We anticipate that $1.3 million of the goodwill recorded in connection with the Kabira acquisition will be deductible for
income tax purposes.
Netrics.com, Inc.
On March 8, 2010, we acquired Netrics.com, Inc. ("Netrics"), a private company incorporated in Delaware and a provider of data
quality software and services. Netrics’ in-memory-based approach to pattern matching and detection complements our core integration
and business optimization offerings and adds to our broader suite of in-memory infrastructure software products. We paid $10.5 million
of cash to acquire all of the outstanding equity of Netrics. We have also incurred $0.4 million of acquisition related and other expenses
associated with the acquisition.
Foresight Corporation
On December 31, 2009, we acquired Foresight Corporation ("Foresight"), a private company incorporated in Delaware and a
provider of Electronic Data Interchange ("EDI") productivity tools and transaction automation solutions. Foresight’s products connect
partners and validate transactions, reducing administrative inefficiencies and addressing mandates. Foresight also expands our expertise
in the healthcare and EDI markets, where its ability to support and validate transactions across a range of standards complements our
core business-to-business abilities. We paid $30.0 million of cash to acquire all of the outstanding equity of Foresight. In the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2010, we recorded a decrease in goodwill of $1.1 million net of tax as a result of the adjustment of certain accrued
liabilities. We have also incurred $0.8 million of acquisition related and other expenses associated with the acquisition.
Pro Forma Adjusted Summary (unaudited)
The results of LogLogic, Nimbus, Loyalty Lab, OpenSpirit, Proginet, Kabira, Netrics and Foresight’s operations have been
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements since their respective acquisition dates. The following unaudited pro forma adjusted
summary reflects TIBCO’s condensed results of operations for the periods ended November 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The
summary assumes that the businesses had been acquired at the beginning of fiscal year 2011 and include pro forma adjustments for
amortization charges for acquired intangible assets, stock-based compensation charges, if any, and related tax effects.
The unaudited pro forma financial information for fiscal year 2012 combines the historical results of TIBCO for the year ended
November 30, 2012 and the historical results of LogLogic for the four months ended April 10, 2012. The unaudited pro forma financial
information for fiscal year 2011 combines the historical results of TIBCO for fiscal year 2011, the twelve months historical results of
LogLogic and the historical results of Nimbus and Loyalty Lab based upon their respective previous reporting periods and the dates
these companies were acquired by us.
The following unaudited pro forma adjusted summary is for informational purposes only and is not intended to be indicative of
future results of operations or whether similar results would have been achieved if the acquisitions had taken place at the beginning of
fiscal year 2011 (in thousands, except per share amounts):
Year Ended
November 30,
2012

2011
(Unaudited)

Pro forma adjusted total revenue

$

1,037,418

$

970,467

Pro forma adjusted net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.

$

116,867

$

103,262

Basic

$

0.73

$

0.64

Diluted

$

0.69

$

0.60

Pro forma adjusted net income per share attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.:
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4.

Investments

Short-term investments, which are classified as available-for-sale, are summarized below as of November 30, 2012 and 2011 (in
thousands):
Purchased/
Amortized Cost

Gross Unrealized
Gains

Gross Unrealized
Losses

Aggregate Fair
Value

As of November 30, 2012
Money market funds
Corporate bonds and commercial paper
U.S Government debt and agency securities
Term deposits
Mortgage-backed securities
As of November 30, 2011
Money market funds
Term deposits
Mortgage-backed securities

$

376,480
24,558
9,646
595
182

$

—
9
—
—
78

$

— $
(9)
(1)
—
(52)

376,480
24,558
9,645
595
208

$

411,461

$

87

$

(62) $

411,486

$

16,664
560
200

$

—
—
51

$

— $
—
(26)

16,664
560
225

$

17,424

$

51

$

(26) $

17,449

Fixed income securities included in short-term investments above are summarized by their contractual maturities as follows (in
thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

Contractual maturities:
Less than one year
One to three years

$

22,733
11,678

$

—
225

$

34,411

$

225

The maturities of mortgage-backed securities were primarily based upon payment forecasts utilizing interest rate scenarios and
mortgage loan characteristics. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on our investments were primarily due to changes in interest
rates and market and credit conditions of the underlying securities and were insignificant for any period presented.
5.

Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments

Fair Value Measurements
FASB guidance for fair value measurements clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a
market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or
liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, the guidance establishes a three-tier value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs
used in measuring fair value as follows: (Level 1) observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; (Level 2) inputs other than
the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly; and (Level 3) unobservable inputs in which there is
little or no market data, which require us to develop our own assumptions. This hierarchy requires us to use observable market data,
when available, and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs when determining fair value. On a recurring basis, we measure certain
financial assets and liabilities at fair value, including our marketable securities and foreign currency contracts.
Our cash equivalents and investment instruments are classified within Level 1 or Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy because they
are valued using quoted market prices, broker or dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price
transparency. The types of instruments valued based on quoted market prices in active markets include money
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market securities. Such instruments are generally classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
The types of instruments valued based on other observable inputs include U.S. government and agency securities, sovereign
government obligations, investment-grade corporate bonds, mortgage-backed and asset-backed products, term deposits and state,
municipal and provincial obligations. Such instruments are generally classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
We execute our foreign currency contracts primarily in the retail market in an over-the-counter environment with a relatively high
level of price transparency. The market participants usually are large multi-national and regional banks. Our foreign currency contracts
valuation inputs are based on quoted prices and quoted pricing intervals from public data sources and do not involve management
judgment. These contracts are typically classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. There is no transfer between Level 1, Level
2 and Level 3 in our fiscal years 2012 and 2011.
Fair value hierarchy of our cash equivalents, short-term investments and foreign currency contracts at fair value (in thousands):
Fair Value Measurements
at Reporting Date using
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Total Fair Value

Description

As of November 30, 2012
Assets:
Money market fund
Corporate bonds and commercial paper
U.S. government and agency debt securities
Term deposits
Mortgage-backed securities
Foreign currency forward contracts
Liabilities:
Foreign currency forward contracts
As of November 30, 2011
Assets:
Money market fund
Term deposits
Mortgage-backed securities
Foreign currency forward contracts
Liabilities:
Foreign currency forward contracts

Significant other
Observable Inputs
(Level 2)

$

376,480
24,558
9,645
595
208
101

$

376,480
—
—
—
—
—

$

—
24,558
9,645
595
208
101

$

130

$

—

$

130

$

16,664
560
225
142

$

16,664
—
—
—

$

—
560
225
142

$

142

$

—

$

142

Derivative Instruments
We conduct business in the Americas; Europe, the Middle East and Africa ("EMEA"); and Asia Pacific and Japan ("APJ"). As a
result, our financial results could be affected by factors such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates or changes in economic
conditions in foreign markets. The U.S. dollar is our major transaction currency; we also transact business in approximately 25 foreign
currencies worldwide, of which the most significant to our operations in fiscal years 2012 and 2011 was the Euro. We enter into forward
contracts with financial institutions to manage our currency exposure related to net assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, and these forward contracts are generally settled monthly. Our forward contracts reduce, but do not eliminate, the impact of
currency exchange rate movements. Gains and losses on forward contracts are included in Other Income (Expense) in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
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Notional
Value Local
Currency

Fair Value
Gain (Loss) USD

Notional Value USD

Forward contracts sold:
Australian dollar
Brazilian real
British pound
Canadian dollar
Euro
Indian rupee
Japanese yen
Singapore dollar

9,000
2,500
2,700
4,980
33,500
64,000
345,000
1,400

$

9,357
1,170
4,326
5,004
43,560
1,177
4,188
1,147

$

(1)
56
1
5
5
6
(5)
—

New Taiwan dollar
Forward contracts bought:
British pound
Canadian dollar
Hong Kong dollar

31,000

1,066

(5)

12,400
480

19,867
483

6,900

890

(118)
4
—
$

Notional
Value Local
Currency

Notional Value
Euro

(52)

Fair Value
Gain (Loss) USD

Forward contracts sold:
Canadian dollar
Forward contracts bought:
British pound
Swedish krona
United States dollar

1,200

€

928

6,000
31,500

7,394
3,636

48,300

37,145

$

1
5
5
12

$

23

Derivatives not Designated
as Hedging Instruments
2012

2011

Foreign currency forward contracts, fair value included in:
Other Current Assets
Accrued Liabilities

$

101
130

$

142
142

Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized In
Income on Derivative Year Ended
November 30,
Derivatives not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Foreign Currency Contracts

Location

Other income/
(expense) $
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2012

2,961

2011

$

8,426

Currently, we do not have master netting agreements with our counterparties for our forward contracts. We mitigate the credit risk
of these derivatives by transacting with highly rated counterparties. As of November 30, 2012, we have evaluated the credit and nonperformance risks associated with our derivative counterparties, and we believe that the impact of the credit risk associated with our
outstanding derivatives was insignificant.
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6.

Accounts Receivable and Allowances for Doubtful Accounts, Returns and Discounts
Accounts receivable, net, by category is as follows (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

Accounts receivable

$

2011

Unbilled fees for professional services

220,286
19,420

Less: Allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and discounts

239,706
(5,606)

Net accounts receivable

$

234,100

$

182,788
19,499
202,287
(5,868)

$

196,419

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at invoiced or to be invoiced amounts and do not bear interest. We perform ongoing credit
evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and, generally, require no collateral from our customers. Allowances for doubtful
accounts, returns and discounts were established based on various factors including credit profiles of our customers, contractual terms
and conditions, historical payments, returns and discounts experience and current economic trends. We review our allowances monthly
by assessing individual accounts receivable over a specific aging and amount, and all other balances on a pooled basis based on
historical collection experience. Accounts receivable are written off on a case-by-case basis, net of any amounts that may be collected.
On occasion, we enter into arrangements with customers where payment terms are considered to be extended. In these instances, we do
not consider the fees related to the arrangement to be fixed or determinable until they become due and payable and are therefore
recorded as accounts receivable and deferred revenue.
Unbilled receivables of $19.4 million and $19.5 million mainly consist of professional services performed during the last quarter
of fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively, for which billings have not been issued.
The following is a summary of activities in allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and discounts for the fiscal years indicated
(in thousands):

Year Ended November 30,

2012
2011
2010
7.

Allowances
Beginning Balance

$

5,868
5,729
4,224

Charged Against
Revenue

$

1,343
650
200

Charged to
Expenses

$

559
100
—

Write-offs,
Adjustments, Net of
Recovery

$

Allowances Ending
Balance

(2,164) $
(611)
1,305

5,606
5,868
5,729

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment by category is as follows (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

Buildings

$

Equipment and software
Furniture and fixtures
Facility improvements

77,938
64,956
8,475
58,118

2011

$

209,487
(111,013)

Less: Accumulated depreciation
$
Building Acquisition
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98,474

77,938
58,021
6,923
51,016
193,898
(104,027)

$

89,871

In June 2003, we purchased the four buildings comprising our corporate headquarters in Palo Alto, California. In connection with
the purchase we entered into a 51 year lease of the land upon which the buildings are located. The lease was paid in advance in the
amount of $28.0 million. The total consideration paid for the land lease and the buildings was $108.0
F-17
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million, which was comprised of $54.0 million in cash and a $54.0 million mortgage note payable; see Note 10 and Note 12 for further
details.
The net purchase price of the buildings of $77.9 million is stated at cost and is included as a component of Property and
Equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life
of 25 years.
8.

Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets

Goodwill
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows (in
thousands):
Goodwill

Balance as of November 30, 2010

$

409,545
27,117
11,966
(689)
205
464
3,213

$

451,821
73,460
1,077
801
5,131

$

532,290

Goodwill recorded for the Nimbus acquisition
Goodwill recorded for the Loyalty Lab acquisition
Goodwill adjustment for the OpenSpirit acquisition(1)
Goodwill adjustment for the Proginet acquisition(1)
Goodwill adjustment for the Kabira acquisition(1)
Foreign currency translation
Balance as of November 30, 2011
Goodwill recorded for the LogLogic acquisition
Goodwill adjustment for the Nimbus acquisition(1)
Goodwill recorded for other business combination
Foreign currency translation
Balance as of November 30, 2012
(1)

Pursuant to the business combinations accounting guidance, we record goodwill adjustments for the effect on goodwill changes to net assets acquired during the
measurement period (up to one year from the date of an acquisition). Goodwill adjustments were not significant to our previously reported operating results or
financial position.

Acquired Intangible Assets
Our acquired intangible assets are subject to amortization on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated Life

Developed technologies

4 to 9 years
4 to 9 years
5 to 7 years
4 to 8 years
4 to 9 years

Customer base
Patents/core technologies
Trademarks
Maintenance agreements
The carrying values of our amortized acquired intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):
F-18
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Weighted Average
Remaining Life

4.3 years
3.5 years
2.9 years
5.1 years
5.0 years
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November 30, 2012
Gross Carrying
Amount

Developed technologies
Customer base
Patents/core technologies
Trademarks
Non-compete agreements
Maintenance agreements
In-process research and
development
Total intangible assets

$

182,152
59,525
28,295
12,777
580
83,762

$

—
$

367,091

November 30, 2011

Accumulated
Amortization

(118,992)
(43,328)
(24,198)
(8,251)
(580)
(48,481)

$
$
$
$
$
$

63,160
16,197
4,097
4,526
—
35,281

$

—

(243,830) $

123,261

—
$

Net Carrying
Amount

Gross Carrying
Amount

$

146,289
56,165
27,922
9,771
580
61,677

Accumulated
Amortization

$

1,700
$

304,104

Net Carrying
Amount

(102,034) $
(37,376)
(21,542)
(7,077)
(580)
(38,237)
—

$

44,255
18,789
6,380
2,694
—
23,440

$

1,700

(206,846) $

97,258

In fiscal year 2012, in-process research and development was reclassified into developed technologies as the development of the
technology was completed and the related product released.
The estimated future amortization of acquired intangible assets as of November 30, 2012 is as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended November 30,

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter
Total intangible assets, net
9.

$

34,942
28,317
23,316
17,660
11,772
7,254

$

123,261

Accrued Restructuring and Acquisition Integration Costs

Accrued Restructuring Costs
2011 Restructuring Plan. In order to achieve cost efficiencies and realign our resources and operations, our Board of Directors
approved a restructuring plan initiated by management during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011. The restructuring charges were
primarily related to excess facilities and other corporate actions aimed to increase efficiencies and reduce redundancies, including those
arising from recent acquisitions. As of November 30, 2012, the total restructuring costs associated with the 2011 restructuring plan were
$8.2 million and are presented as restructuring charges in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. We recognized $8.8 million of
restructuring charges during fiscal year 2011 and released $0.6 million in fiscal year 2012 due to changes in estimates. Changes in
estimates, if any, will be reflected in our future results of operations. We expect to fulfill our remaining cash obligations associated with
this restructuring no later than 2014.
2010 Restructuring Plan. In order to achieve cost efficiencies and realign our resources and operations, our Board of Directors
approved a restructuring plan initiated by management during the second quarter of fiscal year 2010. The restructuring charges were
primarily related to excess facilities and other corporate actions arising from the recent acquisition of Kabira. As of November 30, 2010,
the total estimated restructuring costs associated with the 2010 restructuring plan were $7.1 million, and consisted of costs associated
with employee terminations and exit of excess facilities. These costs are recognized in accordance with the current guidance on
accounting for exit activities and are presented as restructuring charges in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. We recognized
$0.1 million and $7.0 million of restructuring charges during fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. Changes in estimates, if any, will
be reflected in our future results of operations as required by the current accounting guidance. We expected to fulfill our remaining cash
obligations associated with this restructuring no later than 2013.
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The following is a summary of activities in accrued restructuring and integration costs for each of the three fiscal years ended
November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):
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Accrued Excess Facilities
Headquarter
Facilities
As of November 30, 2009 $
Acquisition
integration costs
Adjustment
Cash utilized
As of November 30, 2010 $

5,811

Acquisition
Integration
$

400

Accrued Severance and Other

Restructuring
$

—

Subtotal
$

6,211

Acquisition
Integration
$

720

Restructuring
$

—

Subtotal
$

720

Total
$

6,931

—

—

—

—

159

—

159

159

(250)

—

1,748

1,498

—

5,455

5,455

6,953

(6,591)

(868)

(3,357)

(4,225)

(10,816)

(5,423)
138

(344)
$

56

(824)
$

924

$

1,118

$

11

$

2,098

$

2,109

$

3,227

Acquisition
integration costs

—

—

—

—

—

Restructuring
charges

—

—

2,405

2,405

—

6,521

6,521

8,926

Cash utilized

(138)

(15)

(11)

(3,358)

(3,369)

(4,069)

As of November 30, 2011 $

—

Restructuring
charges

—

Cash utilized

—

As of November 30, 2012 $

—

$

41

(547)
$

(41)

—

$

(312)

—
$

2,782

(700)

1,331

$

(353)

(1,139)
$

2,823

1,331

$

—

(1,139)
$

—

(242)

—

$

(295)

—
$

5,019

(242)

205

$

(295)

(4,519)
$

5,019

(242)

(648)

(4,519)
$

205

7,842

(5,658)
$

1,536

As of November 30, 2012, $0.6 million of the $1.5 million accrued restructuring were classified as long-term liabilities based on
our current expectation that the lease payments will be paid over the remaining term of the related leases.
10.

Debt and Credit Facilities

Mortgage Note Payable
In connection with the purchase of our corporate headquarters in June 2003, we recorded a $54.0 million mortgage note payable
to a financial institution collateralized by the commercial real property acquired. The balance on the mortgage note payable was $35.7
million and $38.1 million as of November 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The mortgage note payable carries a 20-year amortization, and in the second quarter of fiscal year 2007, we amended the
mortgage note payable such that it now carries a fixed annual interest rate of 5.50%. The $34.4 million principal balance that will be
remaining at the end of the 10-year term will be due as a final lump sum payment on July 1, 2013. Under the currently applicable terms
of the mortgage note agreements, we are prohibited from acquiring another company without prior consent from the lender unless we
maintain at least $50.0 million of cash or cash equivalents and meet other non-financial terms as defined in the agreements. In addition,
we are subject to certain non-financial covenants pursuant to the terms of the mortgage note agreements. As of November 30, 2012, we
were in compliance with all covenants.
Credit Facility
In December 2011, we and one of our subsidiaries entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the "2011 Credit
Facility"). In May 2012, we amended certain covenants and terms of the 2011 Credit Facility. The 2011 Credit Facility matures on
December 19, 2016 and provides for cash borrowings up to $250.0 million, with a sublimit for swing line loans up to $10.0 million and
standby letters of credit in a face amount of up to $50.0 million. We have an option to request that the lenders increase the available
commitments by up to an additional $100.0 million for total borrowings of up to $350.0 million.
Revolving loans accrue interest at a per annum rate based on, at our option, either (i) the base rate plus a margin ranging from
0.25% to 1.25%, depending on TIBCO’s consolidated leverage ratio or (ii) the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") rate plus a
margin ranging from 1.25% to 2.25%, depending on TIBCO’s consolidated leverage ratio, for various interest periods. The base rate is
defined as the highest of (i) the administrative agent’s prime rate, (ii) the federal funds rate plus a margin equal to 0.50%, and (iii) the
LIBOR rate for a one month interest period plus a margin equal to 1.00%. We are also obligated to pay commitment fees for the unused
amount of the 2011 Credit Facility, letter of credit fees and other customary fees. Loan origination fees and issuance costs of $3.4
million were incurred since consummation of the 2011 Credit Facility which will be amortized through interest expense over a period of
Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
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five years. Under certain circumstances, a default interest rate of 2.00% above the applicable interest rate will apply on all obligations
during the existence of an event of default under the 2011 Credit Facility.
We must maintain a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio of 3.5:1.0 and a maximum consolidated leverage ratio of
3.25:1.0 in addition to other customary affirmative and negative covenants. The maximum consolidated leverage ratio decreases to
3.00:1.00 and then to 2.75:1.00 with respect to the second fiscal quarter of our fiscal years 2013 and 2014, respectively. As of
November 30, 2012, we were in compliance with all covenants under the 2011 Credit Facility.
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As of November 30, 2012, we had no outstanding borrowings under the 2011 Credit Facility.
Line of Credit
We have a $20.0 million revolving line of credit that matures in June 2013 (the "Line of Credit"). The revolving line of credit is
available for cash borrowings and for the issuance of letters of credit up to $20.0 million. The Line of Credit contains financial
covenants substantially identical to those of the 2011 Credit Facility, as well as other customary affirmative and negative covenants. As
of November 30, 2012, we were in compliance with all covenants under the line of credit.
In connection with the mortgage note, we entered into an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of $13.0 million collateralized
under the Line of Credit which renews for successive one-year periods, until the mortgage note payable has been satisfied in full. In
addition, as of November 30, 2012 we had a total of $1.0 million outstanding with respect to letters of credit in connection with sales
and lease transactions.
Guarantee Credit Line and Restricted Cash
We have a revolving guarantee credit line of approximately $13.0 million (the "Guarantee Credit Line") available for issuance of
bank guarantees denominated in foreign currency. Issued bank guarantees were approximately $12.5 million and $11.4 million in fiscal
years 2012 and 2011, respectively, and were collateralized by pledging the equivalent amount under restricted cash as required under
our Guarantee Credit Line. Additionally, other contractual commitments also require us to pledge cash as security under restricted cash.
As of November 30, 2012 and 2011, we had restricted cash of $14.6 million and $13.8 million, respectively, which is included in Other
Assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
11.

Convertible Senior Notes
Description of Convertible Senior Notes

In April 2012, we issued convertible senior notes (the "Notes") in an aggregate principal amount of $600.0 million due May 1,
2032. The Notes bear interest at a rate of 2.25% per annum. The Notes do not contain any financial covenants or any restrictions on the
payment of dividends, the incurrence of senior debt or other indebtedness, or the issuance or repurchase of securities by us. Each $1,000
principal amount of Notes is initially convertible, at the option of the holders, at a rate of 19.7750 shares of our common stock,
representing an initial conversion price of approximately $50.57 per share, which is subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain
events specified in the indenture. On conversion of a Note, we will deliver cash in an amount generally equal to the lesser of the
conversion value and the principal amount of each Note and, for any conversion value greater than the principal amount, we will deliver
shares of common stock. Holders may convert Notes prior to February 1, 2032, and other than during the period from February 1, 2017
to May 5, 2017, under the following circumstances: (1) if the Notes are called for redemption, at any time prior to the redemption date;
(2) during any fiscal quarter commencing after the fiscal quarter ending on September 2, 2012, if our last reported sale price of a share
of common stock for at least 20 trading days during a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading day of the
immediately preceding fiscal quarter is greater than or equal to 130% of the conversion price on each applicable trading day; (3) during
any five consecutive trading day period when the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of Notes is less than 98% of the product of
the last reported sale price of a share of common stock and the conversion rate; and (4) upon the occurrence of certain distributions or
corporate events as specified in the indenture governing the Notes. From February 1, 2017 to May 5, 2017, and from February 1, 2032
until the maturity date, holders may convert Notes at any time, regardless of the foregoing circumstances.
After May 5, 2017, we may redeem for cash all or part of the Notes. The redemption price will be equal to the principal amount of
the Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest. Holders may require us to repurchase all or a portion of their Notes on
May 5, 2017, May 1, 2022 and May 1, 2027 in cash at a price equal to the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest.
Upon the occurrence of a fundamental change under the indenture for the Notes, such as in the event of a change in control, the
holders may require us to repurchase all or a portion of their Notes at the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued and unpaid interest.
Following certain corporate transactions that constitute a change of control, the conversion rate may increase for a holder who elects to
convert the Notes. Upon conversion, we will deliver an amount of cash and a number of shares of common stock, if any, equal to the
sum of the daily settlement amounts for each daily volume weighted average price in the 35 day observation period for such Note as
determined pursuant to the indenture for the Notes.
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We used approximately $121.0 million of the net proceeds from the offering to repurchase 3.6 million shares of our common stock
concurrently with the offering of the Notes.
Accounting of Convertible Senior Notes
Accounting guidance requires that convertible debt that can be settled for cash, such as the Notes, be separated into the liability and
equity component at issuance and each be assigned a value. The value assigned to the liability component is the estimated fair value, as
of the issuance date, of a similar debt without the conversion feature. The difference between the cash proceeds and estimated fair value
of the liability component, representing the value of the conversion premium assigned to the equity component, is recorded as a debt
discount on the issuance date. This debt discount is amortized to interest expense using the effective interest method over the period
from the issuance date through the first stated repurchase date on May 5, 2017. We estimated the straight debt borrowing rates at debt
origination to be 5.50% for the Notes and determined the debt discount to be $84.6 million. As a result, a conversion premium after tax
of $52.6 million was recorded in additional paid-in capital.
As of November 30, 2012, the carrying value of the Notes was $524.5 million, which consisted of $600.0 million outstanding
principal amount net of $75.5 million unamortized debt discount.
In connection with the issuance of the Notes, we incurred $15.6 million of issuance costs, which primarily consisted of investment
banking fees and legal and other professional service fees. Deferred issuance costs of $13.4 million attributable to the liability
component are being amortized to interest expense through May 5, 2017 and $2.2 million ($1.4 million net of tax) of transaction costs
attributable to the equity component were netted with the equity component in additional paid-in capital at the issuance date. The
deferred debt issuance costs are recorded within other assets in accordance with short- and long-term classification. If the holders
require conversion of some or all of the Notes when the conversion requirements are met, we would accelerate amortization of the pro
rata share of the unamortized balance of the issuance cost to additional paid-in capital on such date.
During fiscal year 2012, we recognized interest expense of $18.8 million related to the Notes, comprised of $8.2 million for the
contractual coupon interest, $9.0 million related to the amortization of debt discount and $1.6 million related to the amortization of
deferred debt issuance costs.
The Notes are carried at face value less any unamortized debt discount and also require disclosure of an estimate of fair value
(Level 2 of the three-tier value hierarchy). The fair value of the Notes at each balance sheet date is determined based on recent quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for the Notes, if available. Otherwise, the fair value is determined using cash-flow models of the
scheduled payments discounted at market interest rates for comparable debt without the conversion feature. As of November 30, 2012,
the estimated fair value of the Notes approximated $583.0 million.
12.

Other Balance Sheet Components
Certain other balance sheet components are summarized below (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

Accrued liabilities:
Compensation and benefits
Taxes
Current deferred tax liability
Other
Total accrued liabilities

$

65,963
25,275
3,196
39,162

$

76,979
18,503
5,743
27,943

$

133,596

$

129,168

$

25,221
238,255

$

6,820
203,414

Deferred revenue:
License
Service and maintenance
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Total deferred revenue, current

13.

$

Commitments and Contingencies
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$
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Letters of Credit
In connection with the mortgage note payable, we entered into an irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of $13.0 million. In
addition, as of November 30, 2012 we had a total of $1.0 million outstanding with respect to letters of credit in connection with sales
and lease transactions. The letters of credit are collateralized by the $20.0 million revolving line of credit described above in Note 10.
As of November 30, 2012, we were in compliance with all covenants under the revolving line of credit.
Prepaid Land Lease
In June 2003, we entered into a 51-year lease of the land upon which our corporate headquarters is located. The lease was paid in
advance for a total of $28.0 million, but is subject to adjustments every ten years based upon changes in market condition. Should it
become necessary, we have the option to prepay any rent increases due as a result of a change in fair market value. This prepaid land
lease is being amortized using the straight-line method over the life of the lease; the portion to be amortized over the next twelve months
is included in Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets, and the remainder is included in Other Assets on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets.
Operating Commitments
At various locations worldwide, we lease office space and equipment under non-cancelable operating leases with various
expiration dates through September 2019. Rental expense was $14.7 million, $14.2 million and $11.0 million in fiscal years 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively.
As of November 30, 2012, contractual commitments associated with indebtedness, lease obligations and restructuring are as
follows (in thousands):
Total

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter

Commitments:

(1)

Debt principal
Debt interest
Operating leases(1)

$

635,711
62,033
41,455

$

35,711
14,783
11,753

$

—
13,500
9,598

$

—
13,500
6,623

$

—
13,500
5,420

$

600,000
6,750
3,746

$

—
—
4,315

Total commitments

$

739,199

$

62,247

$

23,098

$

20,123

$

18,920

$

610,496

$

4,315

Operating leases include future minimum rent payments, net of estimated sublease income, for facilities that we have vacated pursuant to our restructuring
activities, as discussed in Note 9.

Future minimum lease payments under restructured non-cancelable operating leases as of November 30, 2012, are included in
Accrued Restructuring Costs on our Consolidated Balance Sheets; see Note 9 for further details.
The above commitment table does not include $26.3 million of long-term income tax liabilities recorded in accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes due to the fact that we are unable to reasonably estimate the timing of these potential future payments.
Indemnifications
Our software license agreements typically provide for indemnification of customers for intellectual property infringement claims.
To date, no such claims have been filed against us. We also warrant to customers that software products operate substantially in
accordance with the software product’s specifications. Historically, we have incurred minimal costs related to product warranties, and,
as such, no accruals for warranty costs have been made. In addition, we indemnify our officers and directors under the terms of
indemnity agreements entered into with them, as well as pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and applicable Delaware
law.
14.

Legal Proceedings
JuxtaComm v. TIBCO, et al.
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On January 21, 2010, JuxtaComm-Texas Software, LLC ("JuxtaComm") filed a complaint for patent infringement against us and
other defendants in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Case No. 6:10-CV-00011-LED. On April 22, 2010,
JuxtaComm filed an amended complaint in which it alleges that certain TIBCO offerings, including TIBCO
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ActiveMatrix Business Works™, TIBCO iProcess™ Suite, TIBCO Business Studio™ and TIBCO ActiveMatrix® Service Bus infringe
U.S. Patent No. 6,195,662 ("'662 patent"). JuxtaComm seeks injunctive relief and unspecified damages. On May 6, 2010, we filed an
answer and counterclaims in which we denied JuxtaComm's claims and asserted counterclaims for declaratory relief that the asserted
patent is invalid and not infringed.
On May 12, 2011, the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office ("PTO") issued a Final Office Action rejecting all asserted claims of the '662
patent in a separate re-examination proceeding before the PTO. On September 9, 2011, JuxtaComm filed a Notice of Appeal to the
Board of Patent Appeals and Interferences ("BPAI"), challenging the Final Office Action. JuxtaComm's Appeal before the BPAI is
currently pending.
On May 15, 2012, the Court in the Eastern District of Texas granted the defendants' motion for summary judgment on invalidity of
the asserted claims. On May 16, 2012, the Court issued an order staying all deadlines and vacating the trial date in light of the Court's
grant of summary judgment of invalidity. On July 5, 2012, the Court issued an order containing its opinion supporting the Court's grant
of summary judgment. On September 19, 2012, the Court issued an order of final judgment against JuxtaComm and taxed the
defendants' costs of court against JuxtaComm. JuxtaComm filed a notice of appeal on September 28, 2012, and JuxtaComm's appeal is
currently pending with the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit, JustaComm-Texas Software, LLC v. TIBCO Software
Inc., et al., No. 2013-1004, -1025.
We will continue to defend the action vigorously. While we believe that we have valid defenses to JuxtaComm's claims, and the
District Court entered judgment in our favor, litigation is inherently unpredictable and we cannot make any predictions as to the
outcome of this litigation. It is possible that our business, financial position, or results of operations could be negatively affected by an
unfavorable resolution of this action, however, we are unable to estimate a range of potential loss at this time.
InvestPic, LLC v. TIBCO, et al.
On November 24, 2010, InvestPic, LLC ("InvestPic") filed a complaint for patent infringement against us and fourteen other
defendants in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware, Case No. 1:10cv1028-SLR. The complaint alleges that
TIBCO Spotfire® S+® "and other similar products" infringe U.S. Patent No. 6,349,291 (the "’291 patent"). On March 29, 2011,
defendant SAS Institute Inc. ("SAS") filed a motion to dismiss the complaint for failure to state a claim for relief on the basis that all the
asserted claims of the ’291 patent are invalid as being directed to unpatentable subject matter. On May 13, 2011, TIBCO, along with
other defendants, filed a motion to dismiss the complaint on the same grounds as SAS’ motion. On September 30, 2011, the Court
denied this motion to dismiss. However, the Court declined to address the merits of defendants’ arguments that the claims of the ’291
patent are directed to unpatentable subject matter, in the absence of discovery or claim construction. On May 3, 2012, defendants SAS,
Algorithmics (U.S.), Inc. and International Business Machines Corp. filed a motion to stay the litigation pending the reexamination of
the ’291 patent. On July 10, 2012, the Court entered an order to stay the litigation and administratively close the case during the
pendency of the reexamination of the '291 patent.
InvestPic seeks injunctive relief and unspecified damages. We intend to defend the action vigorously. While we believe that we
have valid defenses to InvestPic's claims, litigation is inherently unpredictable and we cannot make any predictions as to the outcome
of this litigation. It is possible that our business, financial position, or results of operations could be negatively affected by an
unfavorable resolution of this action. As InvestPic has made no specific demand for damages in this matter other than injunctive relief,
we cannot currently estimate a reasonably possible range of loss for this action.
Vasudevan Software, Inc. v. TIBCO, et al.
On December 23, 2011, Vasudevan Software, Inc. ("Vasudevan") filed a complaint for patent infringement against us and Spotfire
Inc. in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California, Case No. 3:11-cv-06638-RS. The complaint alleges that
TIBCO directly, indirectly, and willfully infringes U.S. Patent No. 7,167,864 B1 based on "Spotfire Analytics and other products."
Vasudevan further alleges in its infringement contentions that the accused products "include at least the TIBCO Spotfire Platform (e.g.,
TIBCO Spotfire Professional, TIBCO Spotfire Server, TIBCO Spotfire Web Player, TIBCO Spotfire Enterprise Player, TIBCO Spotfire
for the Apple iPad, TIBCO Spotfire Application Data Services, TIBCO Spotfire Developer, TIBCO Spotfire Metrics, TIBCO Spotfire
Network Analytics, TIBCO Spotfire Operations Analytics Bundle, and TIBCO Silver Spotfire) at least versions 4.0 to 2.1, as well as
any TIBCO products and services that utilize the TIBCO Spotfire Platform." Vasudevan amended its complaint on March 6, 2012, but
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continues to accuse the same products of infringement. Vasudevan seeks injunctive relief and unspecified damages. On May 18, 2012,
the Court dismissed Vasudevan's indirect and willful infringement claims.
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The Court issued a claim construction order on September 19, 2012. The Court issued a case management scheduling order on
April 27, 2012, including a fact discovery deadline of February 15, 2013, and an expert discovery deadline of May 3, 2013. The trial
date set by the Court is January 27, 2014. We intend to defend the action vigorously. While we believe that we have valid defenses to
Vasudevan's claims, litigation is inherently unpredictable and we cannot make any predictions as to the outcome of this litigation. It
is possible that our business, financial position, or results of operations could be negatively affected by an unfavorable resolution of this
action. As Vasudevan has made no specific demand for relief in this matter other than injunctive relief, we cannot currently estimate a
reasonably possible range of loss for this action.
YYZ, LLC v. TIBCO Software Inc.
On February 10, 2012, YYZ, LLC ("YYZ") filed a complaint for patent infringement against us in the United States District Court
for the District of Delaware, Case No. 1:12-cv-00170-SLR. On April 18, 2012, YYZ filed a first amended complaint for patent
infringement. YYZ alleged that certain TIBCO offerings, including at least TIBCO Business Studio, infringe U.S. Patent No. 8,046,747
(the "'747 patent"). On May 7, 2012, we filed an answer and counterclaims to YYZ's first amended complaint in which we denied
YYZ's claims and asserted counterclaims for declaratory relief that the '747 patent is invalid and not infringed.
We reached a settlement agreement with YYZ in December 2012. The parties filed a stipulation of dismissal with prejudice with the
Court on December 21, 2012, and the Court entered its order of dismissal with prejudice on January 2, 2013.

15.

TIBCO Software Inc. Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock
Our certificate of incorporation, as amended and restated, authorizes us to issue 75.0 million shares of $0.001 par value preferred
stock. As of November 30, 2012, no preferred stock was issued or outstanding.
Common Stock
Our certificate of incorporation, as amended and restated, authorizes us to issue 1.2 billion shares of $0.001 par value common
stock. As of November 30, 2012, approximately 163,698,000 shares of common stock were issued and outstanding. The outstanding
shares of common stock include approximately 3,127,000 shares of restricted stock which remain unvested as of November 30, 2012.
The balance of unvested restricted stock will be forfeited and automatically transferred back to us at no cost upon the recipient’s
discontinuing employment for any reason.
Stockholder Rights Plan
In February 2004, our Board of Directors adopted a stockholder rights plan designed to guard against partial tender offers and
other coercive tactics to gain control of us without offering a fair and adequate price and terms to all of our stockholders.
In connection with the plan, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of one right (a "Right") to purchase one one-thousandth
share of our Series A Participating Preferred Stock ("Series A Preferred") for each share of our common stock outstanding on March 5,
2004 (the "Record Date"). Of the 75.0 million shares of preferred stock authorized under our certificate of incorporation, as amended
and restated, 25.0 million have been designated as Series A Preferred. The Board of Directors further directed the issuance of one such
right with respect to each share of our common stock that is issued after the Record Date, except in certain circumstances. The rights
will expire on March 5, 2014.
The Rights are initially attached to our common stock and will not be traded separately. If a person or a group (an "Acquiring
Person") acquires 15% or more of our common stock, or announces an intention to make a tender offer for 15% or more of our common
stock, the Rights will be distributed and will thereafter be traded separately from the common stock. Each Right will be exercisable for
1/1000th of a share of Series A Preferred at an exercise price of $70 (the "Purchase Price"). The Series A Preferred has been structured
so that the value of 1/1000th of a share of such preferred stock will approximate the value of one share of common stock. Upon a person
becoming an Acquiring Person, holders of the Rights (other than the Acquiring Person) will have the right to receive, upon exercise,
shares of our common stock having a value equal to two times the Purchase Price.

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

If a person becomes an Acquiring Person and we are acquired in a merger or other business combination, or 50% or more of our
assets are sold to an Acquiring Person, the holder of Rights (other than the Acquiring Person) will have the right to
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receive shares of common stock of the acquiring corporation having a value equal to two times the Purchase Price. After a person has
become an Acquiring Person, our Board of Directors may, at its option, require the exchange of outstanding Rights (other than those
held by the Acquiring Person) for common stock at an exchange ratio of one share of our common stock per Right.
The Board may redeem outstanding rights at any time prior to a person becoming an Acquiring Person at a price of $0.001 per
Right. Prior to such time, the terms of the Rights may be amended by the Board of Directors.
Stock Repurchase Programs
On March 29, 2012, we announced that our Board of Directors approved a new stock repurchase program pursuant to which we
may repurchase up to $300.0 million of our outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market or through privately
negotiated transactions. In connection with the approval of this program, our Board of Directors also terminated our previous $300.0
million stock repurchase program from December 2010, and the remaining authorized amount of $38.4 million under the December
2010 stock repurchase program was canceled. The remaining authorized amount for stock repurchases under the March 2012 stock
repurchase program was $147.3 million as of the end of fiscal year 2012.
All repurchased shares of common stock have been retired. The following table summarizes the activities under the stock
repurchase programs for the periods indicated (in thousands, except per share data):
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Cash used for repurchases

$

Shares repurchased

220,265

2011

$

7,606

Average price per share

$

28.96

2010

194,059

$

7,310
$

26.55

204,280
15,084

$

13.54

Between December 1, 2012 and January 21, 2013, we repurchased 1.0 million shares of our outstanding common stock at an
average price of $21.87 per share pursuant to the March 2012 stock repurchase program.
In connection with the stock repurchase activities during fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 we classified $85.7 million, $99.7
million and $116.6 million, respectively, of the excess purchase price over the par value of our common stock to retained earnings.
16.

Stock Benefit Plans and Stock-Based Compensation

Stock Benefit Plans
2008 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2008 Plan") and 1996 Stock Option Plan (the "1996 Plan"). On August 1, 2008, the 2008 Plan
replaced the 1996 Stock Option Plan. As of November 30, 2012, there were 5.9 million shares available for grant under the 2008 Plan
and 9.7 million shares underlying stock options and awards outstanding under the 2008 Plan and no shares available for grant and 7.9
million underlying stock options and awards outstanding under the 1996 Plan.
Stock options granted under the 2008 Plan may be either incentive stock options or nonqualified stock options. Incentive stock
options may be granted only to employees (including officers and directors who are employees). Nonqualified stock options may be
granted to our employees and consultants. Stock options are generally granted at fair market value on the date of grant and generally
vest over four years. Stock options granted from the 1996 Plan prior to December 1, 2005 generally have a contractual term of ten years
from the date of grant, and stock options granted from the 1996 Plan on or after December 1, 2005 and stock options granted from the
2008 Plan, have a contractual term of seven years from the date of grant.
In addition to stock options, we issue restricted stock or restricted stock units to our employees (including officers and directors
who are employees). Shares of restricted stock are issued at the time of grant, but held in escrow until they are vested. The recipient of
restricted stock becomes the owner of record of the stock immediately upon grant, subject to certain restrictions. The balance of
unvested restricted stock will be forfeited and automatically transferred back to us at no cost upon the termination of the recipient’s
employment. Upon vesting of restricted stock, the recipient has the option to settle minimum withholding taxes by electing to have us
withhold otherwise deliverable shares having a fair market value equal to the required tax obligations ("net-settlement"). The netsettlement shares are then immediately cancelled and retired. As vesting of restricted stock units occur, common stock is issued. The
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recipient of restricted stock units does not acquire any rights as a stockholder until the restricted stock units are settled upon vesting and
the recipient actually receives shares of our common stock.
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Since fiscal year 2010, certain of our employees, received performance-based restricted stock units ("PRSUs"). These PRSUs are
subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the PRSU Agreements and granted under our 2008 Plan as recently amended and
restated. As of November 30, 2012, approximately 4.8 million PRSUs were outstanding.
Under the terms of the PRSUs granted in fiscal year 2010, these PRSUs are eligible to start vesting as of the end of our fiscal year
2012 because we achieved the performance goal of non-GAAP EPS of $1.00 or greater for our fiscal year 2012 and a cumulative nonGAAP EPS of $2.40 or greater over the three fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012. Half of the PRSUs vested in December 2012 and the
other half will vest in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, subject to the award recipient’s continued employment.
In fiscal years 2012 and 2011, we granted 0.7 million and 0.3 million PRSUs, respectively, which are subject to performance
criteria based on non-GAAP EPS goals for fiscal year 2011 and a three year period ending with fiscal year 2014.
1998 Director Option Plan (the "Director Plan"). In February 1998, we adopted the Director Plan. On August 1, 2008, the
Director Plan was retired and replaced by the 2008 Plan. As of November 30, 2012, no shares were available for grant and
approximately 0.9 million shares underlying stock options were outstanding under the Director Plan.
2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "2008 ESPP"). On August 1, 2008, we adopted the 2008 ESPP replacing the previous
Employee Stock Purchase Program (the "ESPP") pursuant to the 1996 Plan. As of November 30, 2012, approximately 8.6 million shares
were reserved for future issuance under the 2008 ESPP and we had issued approximately 0.2 million shares under the 2008 ESPP.
Under the 2008 ESPP, participants are entitled to purchase shares at 85% of the lesser of the fair market value of our common
stock on either the first or last trading day of each six-month offering period. Participants may contribute a maximum amount of $2,500
per offering period and no contribution percentage changes are allowed during an offering period.
2009 Deferred Compensation Plan (the "2009 DCP"). On February 20, 2009, we adopted the 2009 DCP. Pursuant to the 2009
DCP, eligible participants may elect to defer certain cash compensation into restricted stock units in accordance with the terms of the
2009 DCP. The restricted stock units will be settled in shares of our common stock at the end of the elected deferral period except in
certain situations as provided in the 2009 DCP. As of November 30, 2012, approximately 981,000 shares of our common stock
remained available for issuance under the 2009 DCP.
Stock Option Activity
The summary of stock option activity in fiscal year 2012 is presented below (in thousands, except per share data):

Number of Shares
Underlying Options

Stock Options

Outstanding at November 30, 2011

Weighted- Average
Exercise Price

Weighted- Average
Remaining
Contractual
Term (year)

Aggregate Intrinsic
Value

15,964 $
193
(3,560)
(398)

10.16
24.21
9.00
18.63

Outstanding at November 30, 2012
Vested and expected to vest at November 30, 2012

12,199

$

10.45

2.51 $

180,399

11,973

$

10.48

2.46 $

179,799

Exercisable at November 30, 2012

10,488

$

7.78

2.08 $

172,886

Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or expired

The intrinsic value of exercised stock options is calculated based on the difference between the exercise price and the quoted
market price of our common stock as of the close of the exercise date. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised in fiscal years
2012, 2011 and 2010 was $73.7 million, $136.8 million and $67.3 million, respectively. Upon the exercise of stock options, we issue
common stock from our authorized shares. Total fair value of stock options vested and expensed in fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010 was
$40.7 million, $32.2 million and $21.5 million, respectively, net of taxes.
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The total realized tax benefits attributable to stock options exercised and vesting of stock awards were $24.6 million, $8.6 million
and $30.6 million in fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010 respectively. The gross excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation were
$30.3 million, $42.0 million and $21.5 million in the fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, as reported on the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows in financing activities. The excess tax benefits represent the reduction
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in income taxes otherwise payable during the period which are attributable to the actual gross tax benefits in excess of the expected tax
benefits for stock options exercised in current and prior periods.
Stock Awards Activities
Our nonvested stock awards are comprised of restricted stock, restricted stock units and PRSUs. A summary of the status for
nonvested stock awards as of November 30, 2012, and activities during fiscal year 2012 is presented as follows (in thousands, except
per share data):

Restricted Stock

Restricted Stock
Units

Granted

3,443
1,387

1,423
692

Vested
Forfeited

(1,431)
(272)

Nonvested Stock Awards

Nonvested at November 30, 2011

Nonvested at November 30, 2012

3,127

(491)
(101)
1,523

Performance-based
Restricted Stock
Units

4,346
685
(106)
(155)
4,770

Total Number of
Shares Underlying
Stock Awards

9,212
2,764

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair
Value

$

12.71
25.77

(2,028)
(528)

13.06

9,420

16.51

11.81

We granted nonvested stock awards at no cost to recipients during fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010. The total fair value of shares
vested pursuant to stock awards during fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $24.3 million, $18.9 million and $2.1 million, respectively.
Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-based compensation cost in fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $61.1 million, $48.9 million and $32.2 million,
respectively. The deferred tax benefit on employee stock-based compensation expenses in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $20.5
million, $16.5 million and $10.7 million, respectively. We did not capitalize any stock-based compensation in any of the fiscal periods
reported. As of November 30, 2012, total unamortized stock-based compensation cost was $105.6 million, with a weighted-average
remaining recognition period of 1.90 years.
We recognize the fair value of service-based stock awards and options generally on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
period of generally three to four years, net of estimated forfeitures.
We recognize the stock-based compensation costs for PRSUs when we believe it is probable that we will achieve the performance
criteria as defined in the PRSU agreements. We then estimate the most probable period in which the performance criteria will be met, if
at all, and the number of awards ultimately expected to vest and recognize the expense using the graded vesting attribution method over
the remaining recognition period. On a quarterly basis we determine, based on these estimates, the appropriate compensation expense to
be recognized over the requisite service period and adjust compensation cost in that reporting period. Changes in our estimates could
significantly affect the stock-based compensation expense and thus, our earnings, in that quarterly period.
As of November 30, 2012, the performance goals for the PRSUs granted in fiscal year 2010 were met and we estimated that it is
not probable that 20% of the PRSUs will be forfeited prior to vesting. For the PRSUs granted in fiscal year 2011, the performance
criteria for fiscal year 2011 were met and for the PRSUs granted in fiscal year 2012, we estimate that performance criteria over the three
year performance period will be met.
We recognized stock-based compensation cost associated with our employee stock purchase programs on a straight-line basis over
each six-month offering period.
Assumptions for Estimating Fair Value of Stock-Based Awards
We selected the Black-Scholes option pricing model as the most appropriate model for determining the estimated fair value for
stock-based awards including stock options and employee stock purchase plans. The use of the Black-Scholes model requires the use of
extensive actual employee exercise behavior data and the use of a number of complex assumptions including expected volatility, riskfree interest rate and expected dividends. The following table summarizes the assumptions used to value options granted in the
respective periods:
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Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

2010

Stock Option grants:
Expected term of stock options (years)
Risk-free interest rate
Volatility
Weighted-average grant-date fair value (per share)
Employee stock purchase plans:
Expected term of ESPP (years)
Risk-free interest rate
Volatility
Weighted-average grant-date fair value (per share)

4.8
0.7 - 1.5%
42 – 47%
9.91

$

$

0.5
0.1%
43 – 52%
$

7.62

4.8 – 5.1
0.9 - 2.1%
42 – 47%
10.70

$

0.5
0.2%
38 – 39%
$

6.56

4.8 – 5.1
1.3 – 2.4%
42 – 44%
4.99
0.5
0.2%
35 – 39%

$

2.87

We estimated the volatility of our stock using historical volatility, as well as the implied volatility in market-traded options on our
common stock. We determined that a blend of implied volatility and historical volatility is more reflective of market conditions and a
better indicator of expected volatility than using purely historical volatility. We will continue to monitor these and other relevant factors
used to measure expected volatility for future stock option grants.
The expected term of employee stock options represents the weighted-average period that the stock options are expected to remain
outstanding. We derived the expected term assumption based on our historical settlement experience, while giving consideration to
stock options that have life cycles less than the contractual terms and vesting schedules.
The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon observed interest rates appropriate for the expected term of our employee
stock options. The dividend yield assumption is based on our history and expectation of dividend payouts. We have never declared or
paid any cash dividends on our common stock, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
As stock-based compensation expense recognized in our Consolidated Statement of Operations is based on awards ultimately
expected to vest, the amount has been reduced for estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Forfeitures were estimated based on our historical
experience.
The fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock units is the grant date closing price of our common stock. We expense the
cost of the restricted stock and restricted stock units ratably over the period during which the restrictions lapse, and adjust for estimated
forfeitures.
17.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Our comprehensive income (loss) includes net income and other comprehensive income (loss), which consists of unrealized gains
and losses on available-for-sale securities and cumulative translation adjustments.
Total comprehensive income (loss) in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 are presented in the Consolidated Statements of Equity
and Comprehensive Income (Loss). Total Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) is displayed as a separate component of
Stockholder’s Equity in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The balances of each component of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of taxes, consist of the following (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

Cumulative translation adjustment, net of tax

2010

$

(17,436) $
25

(21,057) $
25

(22,066)
(10)

$

(17,411) $

(21,032) $

(22,076)

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss

2011
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As of November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, cumulative translation adjustment included total accumulated tax effects of $8.9
million, $10.1 million and $10.4 million, respectively.
18.

Noncontrolling Interest
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In the first quarter of fiscal year 2007, we established a joint venture in South Africa, TS Innovations Limited ("Innovations"),
with a local South Africa corporation, to assist with our sales efforts as well as to provide consulting services and training to our
customers in the Sub-Saharan Africa region. As of November 30, 2012 and 2011, Innovations had total assets of $6.1 million and $5.0
million, respectively. For the years ended November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, Innovations had total revenues of $10.5 million, $13.1
million and $13.2 million, respectively. As of November 30, 2012, we owned a 74.9% interest in the joint venture. Because of this
majority interest, our Consolidated Financial Statements include the balance sheets, results of operations and cash flows of Innovations,
net of intercompany charges. We accordingly eliminated 25.1% of financial results that pertain to the noncontrolling interest; the
eliminated amount was reported as a separate line on our Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated Balance Sheets.
19.

Income Taxes
Income before provision for income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):
Year Ended November 30,
2012

United States

2011

2010

$

33,056
122,258

$

51,159
98,776

$

84,671
26,201

$

155,314

$

149,935

$

110,872

International

Significant components of the provision for (benefit from) income taxes are as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

2010

Federal:
Current
Deferred

$

29,554 $
(12,231)

14,619
2,364

$

25,140
(1,353)

17,323

16,983

23,787

1,078
(2,345)

1,925
1,341

3,425
(1,155)

(1,267)

3,266

2,270

22,919
(5,775)

19,490
(2,439)

12,314
(5,970)

17,144

17,051

6,344

State:
Current
Deferred
Foreign:
Current
Deferred
Provision for income taxes

$

33,200

$

37,300

$

32,401

The provision for income taxes was at rates other than the United States Federal statutory tax rate for the following reasons:
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Year Ended November 30,
2012

U.S. Federal statutory rate
State taxes
Research and development credits
Stock option compensation
Foreign income taxed at different rate
Change in valuation allowance
Domestic manufacturing incentives
Other
Effective tax rate

2011

2010

35.0 %
(2.2)
(1.3)
(2.1)
(7.5)
—
(1.4)
0.9

35.0 %
1.8
(2.7)
1.6
(5.9)
(2.5)
(1.1)
(1.3)

35.0 %
2.1
(0.3)
0.5
(7.9)
—
—
(0.2)

21.4 %

24.9 %

29.2 %

U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes have not been provided for on a cumulative total of $256.4 million of
undistributed earnings for certain non-U.S. subsidiaries. With the exception of our subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and Japan, net
undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaries are generally considered to be indefinitely reinvested, and accordingly, no provision
for U.S. income taxes has been provided thereon. We have sufficient cash reserves in the U.S. and do not intend to repatriate any of our
foreign earnings. We intend to use the undistributed foreign earnings for acquisitions, local operations expansion and to meet local
working capital needs. Upon distribution of these earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise, we will be subject to U.S. income
taxes net of available foreign tax credits associated with these earnings. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax
liability related to these earnings is not practicable at this time.
The components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards
Reserves, accruals and foreign related items
Credit carryforwards
Depreciation and amortization
Unrealized losses on investments
Deferred revenue
Translation gains/losses
Stock compensation expense
Other
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets
Convertible debt
Unbilled receivable
Other
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance
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$

62,616
13,204
18,534
10,073
—
8,746
5,673
28,690
94

$

46,375
19,409
14,930
12,760
5,043
6,231
6,772
19,727
1,374

147,630

132,621

(37,590)
(26,573)
—
(884)

(28,390)
—
(4,407)
(2,453)

(65,047)

(35,250)

82,583

97,371

Valuation allowance

—

Net deferred tax assets

$

82,583

(5,592)
$

91,779

We assess the likelihood that we will be able to recover our deferred tax assets. We consider all available evidence, both positive
and negative, including historical levels of income, expectations and risks associated with estimates of future taxable income and
ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance. If it is not more likely than not
that we expect to recover our deferred tax assets, we will increase our provision for taxes by recording a
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valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets that we estimate will not ultimately be recoverable. The available positive evidence
at November 30, 2012 included historical operating profits and a projection of future income. The valuation allowance decreased by
$5.6 million due to the statute of limitations having lapsed with respect to certain capital loss carryforward deferred tax assets. As of
November 30, 2012, it was considered more likely than not that our deferred tax assets would be realized with their respective
carryforward periods.
As of November 30, 2012, we believed that the amount of the deferred tax assets recorded on our balance sheet would ultimately
be recovered. However, should there be a change in our ability to recover our deferred tax assets, our tax provision would increase in the
period in which we determine that it is more likely than not that we cannot recover our deferred tax assets.
We have elected to track the portion of our federal and state net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards attributable to excess
stock option benefits in a separate memo account. Therefore, these amounts are no longer included in our gross or net deferred tax
assets. As of November 30, 2012, our federal and state net operating loss carryforwards for tax return purposes were $332.0 million and
$168.0 million, respectively, which expire through 2032. Of these federal and state net operating losses, $152.5 million and $124.7
million, respectively, will be credited directly to additional paid-in capital when our net operating losses attributable to excess stock
option deductions are utilized and reduce taxes payable. As of November 30, 2012, our federal and state tax credit carryforwards for tax
return purposes were $82.4 million and $38.7 million, respectively. The federal tax credit carryforwards expire in 2032 and the state tax
credit can be carried forward indefinitely. Of these federal and state tax credits, $77.3 million and $25.1 million, respectively, will be
credited directly to additional paid-in capital when our credits attributable to excess stock option deductions reduce taxes payable.
Our income taxes payable for federal purposes have been reduced by the tax benefits associated with the exercise of employee
stock options during the fiscal year and utilization of net operating loss carryover and credits applicable to both stock options and
acquired entities. The benefits applicable to stock options were credited directly to stockholders’ equity when realized and amounted to
$24.6 million and $8.6 million for fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively.
In the event of a change in ownership, as defined under federal and state tax laws, our net operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards may be subject to annual limitations. The annual limitations may result in the expiration of the net operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards before utilization.
A reconciliation of the unrecognized tax benefits for the fiscal years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows (in
thousands):
November 30,
2012

Gross unrecognized tax benefits balance at beginning of year

$

Increases for tax positions of current fiscal year
Increases for tax positions of prior fiscal years
Lapse of statutes of limitation
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at end of year
Interest and penalties
Total unrecognized tax benefits balance at end of year

$

2011

43,619 $
8,136
4,031
(1,270)

35,782
8,449
962
(1,574)

54,516
881

43,619
761

55,397

$

44,380

We account for uncertain tax issues pursuant to authoritative guidance based on a two-step approach to recognize and measure
uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The first step is to determine if the weight of available evidence
indicates that it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon audit, whether or not under audit, including
contemplated resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes. If the first step is met, then the second step is to measure the tax
benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely to be sustained upon ultimate settlement. We adjust reserves for our uncertain
tax positions due to changing facts and circumstances, such as the closing of a tax audit, or refinement of estimates due to new
information. To the extent that the final outcome of these matters is different than the amounts recorded, such differences will impact
our tax provision in our Consolidated Statements of Operations in the period in which such determination is made.
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During fiscal year 2012, the amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits increased by approximately $10.9 million. We have
elected to include interest expense and penalties accrued on unrecognized tax benefits as a component of our income tax expense. The
total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits was $55.4 million as of November 30, 2012, of which $37.9
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million would affect the effective tax rate if realized. We do not expect any significant changes to the amount of unrecognized tax
benefit within the next 12 months.
We are subject to routine corporate income tax audits in the United States and foreign jurisdictions. The statute of limitations for
our fiscal years 1994 through 2012 remains open for U.S. purposes. Most foreign jurisdictions have statute of limitations that range
from three to six years.
20.

Net Income Per Share

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing the net income available to common stockholders for the period by the
weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period less shares of common stock subject to repurchase
and nonvested stock awards. Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing the net income for the period by the weighted
average number of shares of common stock and potential shares of common stock outstanding during the period if their effect is dilutive
under the treasury stock method.
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share for the periods indicated (in thousands,
except per share data):
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.

$

Weighted-average shares of common stock used in computing basic net
income per share (excluding unvested restricted stock)
Effect of dilutive common stock equivalents:
Stock options
Stock awards
ESPP
Weighted-average shares of common stock used in computing diluted net
income per share
Net Income per share attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.:

2011

122,007

$

2010

112,406

$

78,088

160,330

161,469

160,959

6,677
2,683
8

9,549
2,245
9

7,949
2,042
3

169,698

173,272

170,953

Basic net income per share

$

0.76

$

0.70

$

0.49

Diluted net income per share

$

0.72

$

0.65

$

0.46

The following potential weighted-average common stock equivalents are not included in the diluted net income per share
calculation above, because their effect was anti-dilutive for the periods indicated (in thousands):
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Stock options
Stock awards
Convertible senior notes
Total anti-dilutive common stock equivalents

2011

2010

1,738
291
7,542

1,264
404
—

4,487
76
—

9,571

1,668

4,563

Anti-dilutive potential common stock equivalents for fiscal year 2012 include the weighted effect of the 11.9 million shares that
could be issued under the Notes if we experience a substantial increase in our common stock price. Under the treasury stock method, the
Notes will generally have a dilutive impact on net income per share if our average stock price for the period exceeds the conversion
price for the Notes. On conversion of a Note, however, we will deliver cash in an amount generally equal to the lesser of the conversion
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value and the principal amount of each Note and, only for any conversion value greater than the principal amount, we will deliver shares
of common stock.
21.

Segment Information

We operate our business in one operating segment: the development and marketing of a suite of infrastructure software. Our chief
operating decision maker is our Chief Executive Officer, who reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis for
purposes of making operating decisions and assessing financial performance.
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Our total revenue by geographic region, based on the location at which each sale originated, is summarized as follows
(in thousands):
Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

2010

Americas:
United States
Other Americas

$

Total Americas

498,059
52,816

$

456,862
47,870

$

368,391
39,633

550,875

504,732

408,024

93,697

80,645

69,935

276,323

245,854

204,613

370,020

326,499

274,548

103,718

89,015

71,435

EMEA:
United Kingdom
Other EMEA
Total EMEA
APJ
$

1,024,613

$

920,246

$

754,007

Our license revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 was derived from the following three product solutions: SOA and core
infrastructure, business optimization and process automation and collaboration.
Year Ended November 30,
2012

SOA and core infrastructure
Business optimization
Process automation and collaboration
Total license revenue

2011

2010

50%
39
11

56%
33
11

62%
27
11

100%

100%

100%

Our property and equipment by major country are summarized as follows (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

Property and equipment, net:
United States
United Kingdom
Other

22.

Selected Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share data)
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$

83,516
1,191
13,767

$

83,500
1,386
4,985

$

98,474

$

89,871
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Three Months Ended
November 30,
2012

August 31,
2012

May 31,
2012

February 28,
2012

Total revenue

$

$

255,021
182,772
139,620
43,152
7,400
26,086

$

247,363
178,476
141,117
37,359
7,200
26,492

$

Gross profit
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Provision for income taxes
Net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.
Net income per share attributable to TIBCO Software
Inc.:
Basic

296,527
220,938
147,886
73,052
15,300
48,788

225,702
159,612
135,459
24,153
3,300
20,641

$

0.30

$

0.16

$

0.17

$

0.13

$

0.29

$

0.15

$

0.16

$

0.12

Diluted
Shares used in computing net income per share
attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted

160,115
169,284

159,308
169,165

160,437
169,477

161,460
170,866

Three Months Ended
November 30,
2011

Total revenue
Gross profit
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Provision for income taxes
Net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.
Net income per share attributable to TIBCO Software
Inc.:
Basic
Diluted
Shares used in computing net income per share
attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted

August 31,
2011

May 31,
2011

February 28,
2011

$

289,511
220,164
149,919
70,245
17,504
51,878

$

228,973
165,619
129,031
36,588
11,800
23,529

$

216,421
154,694
125,965
28,729
6,000
21,046

$

185,341
132,394
113,529
18,865
1,996
15,953

$
$

0.32
0.30

$
$

0.15
0.14

$
$

0.13
0.12

$
$

0.10
0.09

161,586
171,978

161,876
172,957

161,911
174,666

160,503
173,486

Our operating results reflect seasonal trends experienced by us and many software companies and are subject to fluctuations due
to other factors. Our business, financial condition and results of operations may be affected by such factors in the future. Therefore, we
believe that period-to-period comparisons of our consolidated financial results should not be relied upon as an indication of future
performance.
23.

Related Party Transactions

Since August 2012, Vivek Ranadivé, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, has served as a non-executive director of Nielsen
Holdings N.V. and on the Supervisory Board of The Nielsen Company B.V. (collectively, “Nielsen”). Nielsen is one of our customers.
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Total revenue recognized for products and services delivered to Nielsen and its affiliated entities in fiscal year 2012 was $9.2 million.
Total accounts receivable as of November 30, 2012 were $0.1 million.
We and the Golden State Warriors, LLC (the “Warriors”) entered into a demonstration license agreement (the "Demonstration
License Agreement") and a separate agreement pursuant to which we provide the Warriors with certain services (the “Services
Agreement”). Mr. Ranadivé owns equity in and is the Vice Chairman of the Warriors and serves as both our Chief Executive Officer and
as a member of our Board of Directors. For fiscal year 2012, pursuant to the Services Agreement, we provided software development
services with a value of approximately $0.2 million to the Warriors for which no payment is required by the Warriors.
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Peter J. Job, a member of our Board of Directors, served on the boards of two companies through May 2010 and May 2011,
respectively, which are customers of ours. Total revenue recognized for products and services delivered to these companies in fiscal
years 2011 and 2010 was $12.9 million and $13.9 million, respectively. Total accounts receivable for these two companies as of
November 30, 2011 were $1.1 million.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on this 28th day of January 2013.

TIBCO Software Inc.
By:

/S/ SYDNEY L. CAREY
Sydney L. Carey
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL THESE PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints Vivek Y. Ranadivé and Sydney L. Carey, and each of them, his attorneys-in-fact, each with full power of substitution, for him
in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto
and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that
each said attorneys-in-fact or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

/s/ VIVEK Y. RANADIVÉ
Vivek Y. Ranadivé

/s/ SYDNEY L. CAREY
Sydney L. Carey

/s/ BRENT P. HOGENSON
Brent P. Hogenson

/s/ NANCI E. CALDWELL
Nanci E. Caldwell

/s/ ERIC C. W. DUNN
Eric C. W. Dunn

/s/ NAREN K. GUPTA
Naren K. Gupta

/s/ PETER J. JOB
Peter J. Job

/s/ PHILIP K. WOOD
Philip K. Wood

Title

Date

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer)

January 28, 2013

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer)

January 28, 2013

Vice President, Corporate Controller (Principal Accounting
Officer)

January 28, 2013

Director

January 28, 2013

Director

January 24, 2013

Director

January 28, 2013

Director

January 28, 2013

Director

January 25, 2013
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit No.

3.1(1)
3.2(2)
3.3(1)
4.1(1)

4.2(3)
4.3(3)
10.1(4)
10.2(5)#
10.3(4)#
10.4(6)#
10.5(4)#
10.6(7)#
10.7(6)#
10.8(8)#
10.9#
10.10#
10.11#
10.12(9)#
10.13(10)#
10.14(11)#
10.15(12)
10.16(13)
10.17(13)
10.18(13)
10.19(14)
10.20(15)#
10.21(15)#
10.22(16)

10.23(16)
10.24(16)
10.25(17)

Exhibits

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant.
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant, as amended and restated.
Certificate of Designation of Rights, Preferences and Privileges of Series A Participating Preferred Stock of the
Registrant.
Preferred Stock Rights Agreement, dated as of February 14, 2004, between the Registrant and EquiServe Trust
Company, N.A., including the Certificate of Designation, the Form of Rights Certificate and the Summary of Rights
attached thereto as Exhibits A, B and C, respectively.
Indenture between the Registrant and U.S. Bank National Association, dated as of April 23, 2012.
Form of 2.25% Convertible Senior Note due May 1, 2032 (included in Exhibit 4.2 hereto).
Form of Registrant’s Indemnification Agreement.
1996 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated.
Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to the 1996 Stock Option Plan.
Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant to the 1996 Stock Option Plan.
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement pursuant to the 1996 Stock Option Plan.
1998 Director Option Plan, as amended and restated.
Form of Director Option Agreement pursuant to the 1998 Director Option Plan.
TIBCO Software Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (March 7, 2012 Restatement).
Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan.
Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant to the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan.
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement pursuant to the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan.
2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
Executive Change in Control and Severance Plan (Amended and Restated March 2, 2011).
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of February 28, 2012, by and between Vivek Ranadivé and
Registrant.
Lease Agreement dated January 21, 2000 between Spieker Properties, L.P. and the Registrant.
Agreement to Lease and Sell Assets, dated as of June 2, 2003, by and between the Board of Trustees of the Leland
Stanford Junior University and 3301 Hillview Holdings, Inc.
Ground Lease, dated as of June 25, 2003, by and between the Board of Trustees of the Leland Stanford Junior
University and 3301 Hillview Holdings, Inc.
Promissory Note issued on June 25, 2003 to SunAmerica Life Insurance Company by 3301 Hillview Holdings, Inc.
First Amendment, dated May 31, 2007, to Promissory Note issued on June 25, 2003 to SunAmerica Life Insurance
Company by 3301 Hillview Holdings, Inc.
TIBCO Software Inc. 2009 Deferred Compensation Plan.
Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement pursuant to the TIBCO Software Inc. 2009 Deferred Compensation Plan.
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of December 19, 2011, by and among the Registrant, TIBCO
International Holdings, B.V., as Designated Borrower, each of the lenders party thereto from time to time, Bank of
America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer, Citibank, N.A., as Syndication Agent,
and Union Bank, N.A. and U.S. Bank National Association, as Co-Documentation Agents.
Company Guaranty, dated as of December 19, 2011, made by the Registrant, in favor of Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent.
Subsidiary Guaranty (Netherlands), dated as of December 19, 2011, made by TIBCO Software B.V., in favor of Bank
of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent.
Waiver, dated as of April 16, 2012, by and between the Registrant and Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative
Agent, and the lenders party thereto.
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First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated ass of May 31, 2012, by and among the Registrant, TIBCO
International Holdings B.V., as Designated Borrower, each of the lenders party thereto, and Bank of America, N.A.,
as Administrative Agent.
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10.27(19)#
10.28(20)#
21
23
24
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2
101

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)

Exhibits

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Agreement - 2010.
Summary of FY 2012 TIBCO Executive Incentive Compensation Plan.
List of subsidiaries.
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Power of Attorney (included on signature page).
Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.
Certification by Chief Financial Officer Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.
Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 USC § 1350.
Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 USC § 1350.
Interactive data files (XBRL) pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T: (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
November 30, 2012 and November 30, 2011, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended
November 30, 2012, November 30, 2011 and November 30, 2010, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Equity and
Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (iv) the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended November 30, 2012, November 30, 2011 and November 30, 2010 and
(v) the Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.*

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed with the SEC on
February 23, 2004.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on
July 9, 2009.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on April 27,
2012.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on January
25, 2008.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on
February 9, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on January
28, 2009.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on April
14, 2006.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on June
13, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form s-8 (File No. 333-152245),
filed with the SEC on July 10, 2008.
Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on July 8,
2011.
Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on April
13, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to exhibits filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on April
17, 2000.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on January
20, 2004.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on
July 13, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on April
9, 2009.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
December 21, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on April 18,
2012.

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

(18)

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on June 6,
2012.
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(19)
(20)

Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on March 4,
2010.
Incorporated by reference to an exhibit filed with the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on
March 1, 2012.

# Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
* XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed herewith, is not a part of a registration
statement or prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.
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Exhibit 10.9
TIBCO SOFTWARE INC.
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
A.

Grant of Option.

Unless otherwise defined herein, the terms defined in the TIBCO Software Inc. 2008 Equity Incentive Plan
(the “Plan”) and the Notice of Grant shall have the same defined meanings in this Stock Option Agreement (the
“Stock Option Agreement”). The Committee has granted to the Optionee named in the Notice of Grant an option
(the “Option”) to purchase a total number Shares set forth in the Notice of Grant, at the exercise price per Share
set forth in the Notice of Grant (the “Exercise Price”), subject to the terms, definitions and conditions of the Plan,
which is incorporated herein by reference, and this Stock Option Agreement. Subject to Section 11.1 of the Plan,
in the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of the Plan and the terms and conditions of the Notice
of Grant and this Stock Option Agreement, the terms and conditions of the Plan shall prevail.
If designated in the Notice of Grant as an Incentive Stock Option (“ISO”), the Option is intended to qualify
as an ISO under Section 422 of the Code. However, if the Option is intended to be an ISO, to the extent that
it exceeds the $100,000 rule of Section 422(d) of the Code it shall be treated as a Nonqualified Stock Option
(“NQSO”).
B. Exercise and Vesting Schedule.
Subject to accelerated vesting as set forth below, the Option may be exercised, in whole or in part, in
accordance with the vesting schedule set forth in the Optionee’s Notice of Grant (the “Vesting Schedule”). Shares
scheduled to vest on a certain date or upon the occurrence of a certain condition will not vest in the Optionee in
accordance with any provisions of this Stock Option Agreement if the Optionee ceases to be a Service Provider
prior to the date such vesting is scheduled to occur. For purposes of this Stock Option Agreement, a “Service
Provider” means an Employee, Non-Employee Director or Consultant who has an outstanding Award.
If the Optionee is an Employe and the Optionee ceases to be an Employee on account of his or her death,
those Shares subject to the Option that would (solely by reason of continued employment) have vested and become
exercisable had the Employee remained employed for an additional twelve (12) months will be deemed to have
vested as of the date of termination of employment.
In the event of a Change of Control, the Vesting Schedule shall be replaced in its entirety by the following
vesting schedule, to be applied both retroactively and prospectively:
1/36th of the Shares subject to the Option shall vest each month after the vesting commencement
date, as set forth in the Notice of Grant, on the same day of the month as the vesting commencement
date, so that 100% of the Shares subject to the Option shall be vested three (3)
Stock Option Agreement (U.S.)
11/12

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Exhibit 10.9
years from the vesting commencement date, subject to you remaining a Service Provider as of such
vesting dates.
C. Post Termination Exercise Period.
The Option (to the extent vested) may be exercised for three (3) months after the recipient thereof (the
“Optionee”) ceases to be a Service Provider, which shall be measured from the last day of active service and
not extended by any notice period required under local law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the
Optionee ceases to be a Service Provider as
a result of a violation by the Optionee of the Company’s policies (including, the Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics and other policies set forth in the Employee Handbook), the Option shall terminate immediately on the date
that the Optionee ceases to be a Service Provider and shall no longer be vested or exercisable in any respect. Upon
the death or Disability of the Service Provider, the Option (to the extent vested) may be exercised for twelve (12)
months after the Optionee ceases to be a Service Provider. In no event shall the Option be exercised later than the
expiration date of the Option.
D. Committee Discretion.
The Committee, in its discretion, may accelerate the vesting of the balance, or some lesser portion of the
balance, of the unvested Option at any time, subject to the terms of the Plan. If so accelerated, such Option will be
considered as having vested as of the date specified by the Committee.
E. Exercise of Option.
(1) Right to Exercise. The Option is exercisable during its term in accordance with the Vesting Schedule
set out in the Notice of Grant and the applicable provisions of the Plan and this Stock Option Agreement.
(2) Method of Exercise. Unless otherwise noted in Section E(3) below, the Option is exercisable by
delivery of an exercise notice or in a manner and pursuant to such procedures as the Committee may determine,
which shall state the election to exercise the Option, the number of Shares in respect of which the Option is being
exercised (the “Exercised Shares”), and such other representations and agreements as may be required by the
Company pursuant to the provisions of the Plan. Such exercise notice shall be properly completed by the Optionee
and delivered to Shareholder Services at the Company (or in such other manner as the Committee may determine,
including electronically). The exercise notice shall be accompanied by payment of the aggregate Exercise Price as
to all Exercised Shares. The Option shall be deemed to be exercised upon receipt by the Company of such fully
executed exercise notice accompanied by such aggregate Exercise Price.
No Shares shall be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Option unless such issuance and exercise
complies with applicable laws. Assuming such compliance, for income tax purposes the Exercised Shares shall be
considered transferred to the Optionee on the date the Option is exercised with respect to such Exercised Shares.
This Option may not be exercised for a fraction of a share.
(3) Method of Payment.
Unless stated otherwise in this Stock Option Agreement, payment of the aggregate Exercise Price shall be
by any of the following, or a combination thereof, at the election of the Optionee and to the extent permitted by
the Committee:
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i. cash; or
ii.check; or
iii.for U.S. employees, surrender of other Shares which (i) in the case of Shares acquired
upon exercise of an option, have been owned by the Optionee for more than six (6)
months on the date of surrender, and (ii) have a Fair Market Value on the date of
surrender equal to the aggregate Exercise Price of the Exercised Shares; or
iv.delivery of a properly executed exercise notice together with such other documentation
as the Committee and the broker, if applicable, shall require to effect a same day sale
(i.e., a cashless-sell all exercise). Pursuant to a same day sale exercise, Optionee will
authorize the broker to sell all the Shares that he or she is entitled to at exercise and
remit the sale proceeds less the aggregate Exercise Price for the Shares, broker’s fees
and any applicable taxes to the Optionee in cash.
F.

Non-Transferability of Option.

The Option may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or hypothecated other
than by will, by the laws of descent or distribution, or to a Service Provider’s spouse, former spouse or dependent
pursuant to a court-approved domestic relations order which relates to the provision of child support, alimony
payments or marital property rights. The Option may be exercised during the lifetime of the Optionee only by the
Optionee. The terms of the Plan, this Stock Option Agreement and the Notice of Grant shall be binding upon the
executors, administrators, heirs, successors and assigns of the Optionee.
G.

Term of Option.

The Option may be exercised only within the term set out in the Notice of Grant, and may be exercised
during such term only in accordance with the Plan and the terms of this Stock Option Agreement.
H.

Responsibility for Taxes.

(1) Withholding Taxes. Regardless of any action the Company or Optionee’s employer (the “Employer”)
takes with respect to any or all Tax Obligations, Optionee acknowledges that the ultimate liability for all Tax
Obligations legally due by him or her is and remains Optionee’s responsibility and that the Company and/
or the Employer (1) make no representations or undertakings regarding the treatment of any Tax Obligations
in connection with any aspect of the Option grant, including the grant, vesting or exercise of the Option, the
subsequent sale of Shares acquired pursuant to such exercise and the receipt of any dividends; and (2) do not
commit to structure the terms of the grant or any aspect of the Option to reduce or eliminate Optionee’s liability
for Tax Obligations. Prior to the exercise of the Option, Optionee shall pay or make adequate arrangements
satisfactory to the Company and/or the Employer to satisfy all withholding and payment on account obligations
of the Company and/or the Employer. In this regard, Optionee authorizes the Company and/or the Employer
to withhold all applicable Tax Obligations legally payable by Optionee from his or her wages or other cash
compensation paid to Optionee by the Company and/or the Employer or from proceeds of the sale of the Shares.
Alternatively, or in addition, if permissible under local law, the Company may (1) sell or arrange for the sale
of Shares that Optionee acquires to meet the withholding obligation for Tax Obligations, and/or (2) withhold
in Shares, provided that the Company only withholds the amount of shares necessary to satisfy the minimum
withholding amount. Finally, Optionee shall pay to the Company or the Employer any amount of Tax Obligations
that the Company or the Employer may be required to withhold as a result of Optionee’s participation in the Plan
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or Optionee’s purchase of Shares that cannot be satisfied by the means previously described. The Company may
refuse to honor the exercise and refuse to deliver the Shares if Optionee fails to comply with his or her obligations
in connection with the Tax Obligations as described in this section.
(2) Notice of Disqualifying Disposition of ISO Shares. If the Option granted to the Optionee herein is an
ISO, and if the Optionee sells or otherwise disposes of any of the Shares acquired pursuant to the ISO on or before
the later of (i) the date two (2) years after the grant date, or (ii) the date one (1) year after the date of exercise,
the Optionee will immediately notify the Company in writing of such disposition. The Optionee agrees that he or
she may be subject to income tax withholding by the Company on the compensation income recognized by the
Optionee from such early disposition of ISO Shares.
I. Rights as Stockholder. Neither the Optionee nor any person claiming under or through the Optionee
will have any of the rights or privileges of a stockholder of the Company in respect of any Shares deliverable
hereunder unless and until certificates representing such Shares will have been issued, recorded on the records of
the Company or its transfer agents or registrars, and delivered to the Optionee. After such issuance, recordation
and delivery, the Optionee will have all the rights of a stockholder of the Company with respect to voting such
Shares and receipt of dividends and distributions on such Shares.
J. Address for Notices. Any notice to be given to the Company under the terms of this Stock Option
Agreement will be addressed to the Company, in care of Shareholder Services, TIBCO Software Inc., 3303
Hillview Avenue, Palo Alto, CA 94304, or at such other address as the Company may hereafter designate in
writing.
K. Binding Agreement. Subject to the limitation on the transferability of this grant contained herein, this
Stock Option Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, legatees, legal representatives,
successors and assigns of the parties hereto.
L. Additional Conditions to Issuance of Stock. If at any time the Company, in its discretion, determines
that the listing, registration or qualification of the Shares upon any securities exchange or under any state or
federal law, or the consent or approval of any governmental regulatory authority is necessary or desirable as a
condition to the issuance of Shares to the Optionee (or his or her estate), such issuance will not occur unless and
until such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval will have been effected or obtained free of any
conditions not acceptable to the Company. The Company will make all reasonable efforts to meet the requirements
of any such state or federal law or securities exchange and to obtain any such consent or approval of any such
governmental authority.
M. Committee Authority. The Committee will have the power to interpret the Plan and this Stock Option
Agreement and to adopt such rules for the administration, interpretation and application of the Plan as are
consistent therewith and to interpret or revoke any such rules (including, but not limited to, the determination
of whether or not any Shares subject to the Option have vested). All actions taken and all interpretations
and determinations made by the Committee in good faith will be final and binding upon the Optionee, the
Company and all other interested persons. No member of the Committee will be personally liable for any action,
determination or interpretation made in good faith with respect to the Plan or this Stock Option Agreement.
N. Nature of Grant. In accepting the grant, Optionee acknowledges that: (i) the Plan is established
voluntarily by the Company, it is discretionary in nature and it may be modified, amended, suspended or
terminated by the Company at any time, unless otherwise provided in the Plan and this Stock Option Agreement;
(ii) the grant of the Option is voluntary and occasional and does not create any contractual or other right to
receive future grants of options, or benefits in lieu of options, even if options have been granted repeatedly in the
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past; (iii) all decisions with respect to future option grants, if any, will be at the sole discretion of the Company;
(iv) Optionee’s participation in the Plan shall not create a right to further employment with the Employer and
shall not interfere with the ability of the Employer to terminate Optionee’s employment relationship at any time
with or without cause; (v) Optionee is voluntarily participating in the Plan; (vi) the Option is an extraordinary
item that does not constitute compensation of any kind for services of any kind rendered to the Company or the
Employer, and which is outside the scope of Optionee’s employment contract, if any; (vii) the Option is not part
of normal or expected compensation or salary for any purposes, including, but not limited to, calculating any
severance, resignation, termination, redundancy, end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension
or retirement benefits or similar payments; (viii) in the event that Optionee is not an employee of the Company,
the Option grant will not be interpreted to form an employment contract or relationship with the Company; and
furthermore, the Option grant will not be interpreted to form an employment contract with the Employer or any
Subsidiary or affiliate of the Company; (ix) the future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and cannot be
predicted with certainty; (x) if the underlying Shares do not increase in value, the Option will have no value;
(xi) if Optionee exercises his or her Option(s) and acquires Shares, the value of those Shares acquired may
increase or decrease in value, even below the Exercise Price; (xii) in consideration of the grant of the Option,
no claim or entitlement to compensation or damages shall arise from termination of the Option or diminution in
value of the Option or Shares purchased through exercise of the Option resulting from termination of Optionee’s
employment by the Company or the Employer (for any reason whatsoever and whether or not in breach of local
labor laws) and Optionee irrevocably releases the Company and the Employer from any such claim that may arise;
if, notwithstanding the foregoing, any such claim is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to have arisen, then,
by signing the Notice of Grant, Optionee shall be deemed irrevocably to have waived his or her entitlement to
pursue such claim; and (xiii) notwithstanding any terms or conditions of the Plan to the contrary, in the event of
involuntary termination of Optionee’s employment (whether or not in breach of local labor laws), Optionee’s right
to receive options and vest in options under the Plan, if any, will terminate effective as of the date that Optionee is
no longer actively employed and will not be extended by any notice period mandated under local law (e.g., active
employment would not include a period of “garden leave” or similar period pursuant to local law); furthermore, in
the event of involuntary termination of employment (whether or not in breach of local labor laws), Optionee’s right
to exercise the Option after termination of employment, if any, will be measured by the date of termination of his
or her active employment and will not be extended by any notice period mandated under local law; the Company
shall have the exclusive discretion to determine when Optionee is no longer actively employed for purposes of his
or her Option grant.
O. Data Privacy. Optionee hereby explicitly and unambiguously consents to the collection, use and
transfer, in electronic or other form, of his or her personal data as described in this Stock Option Agreement
by and among, as applicable, the Employer, and the Company and its Subsidiaries and affiliates for the
exclusive purpose of implementing, administering and managing Optionee’s participation in the Plan. Optionee
understands that the Company and the Employer hold certain personal information about him or her,
including, but not limited to, Optionee’s name, home address and telephone number, date of birth, social
insurance number or other identification number, salary, nationality, job title, any shares of stock or
directorships held in the Company, details of all options or any other entitlement to Shares of stock awarded,
canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in Optionee’s favor, for the purpose of implementing,
administering and managing the Plan (“Data”). Optionee understands that Data may be transferred to any
third parties assisting in the implementation, administration and management of the Plan, that these recipients
may be located in Optionee’s country or elsewhere, and that the recipient’s country may have different data
privacy laws and protections than Optionee’s country. Optionee understands that he or she may request a list
with the names and addresses of any potential recipients of the Data by contacting his or her local human
resources representative. Optionee authorizes the recipients to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the
Data, in electronic or other form, for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing his or her
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participation in the Plan, including any requisite transfer of such Data as may be required to a broker or other
third party with whom Optionee may elect to deposit any Shares of stock acquired upon exercise of the Option.
Optionee understands that Data will be held only as long as is necessary to implement, administer and manage
Optionee’s participation in the Plan. Optionee understands that he or she may, at any time, view Data, request
additional information about the storage and processing of Data, require any necessary amendments to Data or
refuse or withdraw the consents herein, in any case without cost, by contacting in writing his or her local human
resources representative. Optionee understands, however, that refusing or withdrawing his or her consent may
affect Optionee’s ability to participate in the Plan. For more information on the consequences of refusal to
consent or withdrawal of consent, Optionee understands that he or she may contact his or her local human
resources representative.
P. Language. If Optionee has received this Stock Option Agreement or any other document related to
the Plan translated into a language other than English and if the translated version is different than the English
version, the English version will control.
Q. Electronic Delivery. The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents related
to the Option granted under the Plan, participation in the Plan, or future options that may be granted under the
Plan by electronic means or to request Optionee’s consent to participate in the Plan by electronic means. Optionee
hereby consents to receive such documents by electronic delivery and, if requested, to agree to participate in the
Plan through an on-line or electronic system established and maintained by the Company or another third party
designated by the Company.
R. Severability. The provisions of this Stock Option Agreement are severable and if any one or more
provisions are determined to be illegal or otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, the remaining provisions
shall nevertheless be binding and enforceable.
S. Entire Agreement; Governing Law. The Plan and the applicable Notice of Grant are incorporated
herein by reference. The Plan, this Stock Option Agreement and the Notice of Grant constitute the entire agreement
of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede in their entirety all prior undertakings and
agreements of the Company and Optionee with respect to the subject matter hereof, and may not be modified
adversely to the Optionee's interest except by means of a writing signed by the Company and Optionee. This Stock
Option Agreement is governed by, and subject to, the internal substantive laws, but not the choice of law rules, of
the State of Delaware. For purposes of litigating any dispute that arises directly or indirectly from the relationship
of the parties evidenced by this grant or this Stock Option Agreement, the parties hereby submit to and consent
to the exclusive jurisdiction of the State of California and agree that such litigation shall be conducted only in the
courts of Santa Clara County, California, or the federal courts for the United States for the Northern District of
California, and no other courts, where this grant is made and/or to be performed.
T.

NO GUARANTEE OF CONTINUED SERVICE.

BY SIGNING THE APPLICABLE NOTICE OF GRANT, THE OPTIONEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND
AGREES THAT THE VESTING OF SHARES PURSUANT TO THE VESTING SCHEDULE THEREIN IS
EARNED ONLY BY CONTINUING AS A SERVICE PROVIDER AT THE WILL OF THE EMPLOYER
(AND NOT THROUGH THE ACT OF BEING HIRED, BEING GRANTED AN OPTION OR PURCHASING
SHARES HEREUNDER). OPTIONEE FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THIS
AGREEMENT, THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREUNDER AND THE VESTING SCHEDULE
SET FORTH IN THE NOTICE OF GRANT AND HEREIN DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED PROMISE OF CONTINUED ENGAGEMENT AS A SERVICE PROVIDER FOR THE VESTING
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PERIOD, FOR ANY PERIOD, OR AT ALL, AND SHALL NOT INTERFERE WITH OPTIONEE’S RIGHT OR
THE EMPLOYER’S RIGHT TO TERMINATE OPTIONEE’S RELATIONSHIP AS A SERVICE PROVIDER
AT ANY TIME, WITH OR WITHOUT CAUSE.
U. Captions. Captions provided herein are for convenience only and are not to serve as a basis for
interpretation or construction of this Agreement.
*****
By signing the Notice of Grant, Optionee acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan, this Stock Option
Agreement and certain information related thereto and represents that he or she is familiar with the terms and
provisions thereof, and hereby accepts this Option subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Plan, this Stock
Option Agreement and the Notice of Grant. Optionee has reviewed the Plan, this Stock Option Agreement and
the Notice of Grant in their entirety, has had an opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing
the Notice of Grant and fully understands all provisions of the Plan, this Stock Option Agreement and the Notice
of Grant. Optionee hereby agrees to accept as binding, conclusive and final all decisions or interpretations of the
Committee upon any questions relating to the Plan, this Stock Option Agreement and the Notice of Grant. The
Optionee understands that the Plan is discretionary in nature and may be amended, suspended or terminated by the
Company at any time.
Stock Option Agreement (U.S.)
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Exhibit 10.10

TIBCO SOFTWARE INC.
RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT
Unless otherwise defined herein, the terms defined in the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) will have
the same defined meanings in this Restricted Stock Agreement (the “Agreement”).
Name: [insert name] (the “Employee”)
You have been granted the right to receive an award of Restricted Stock under the Plan. Subject to the
provisions of Appendix A (attached hereto) and of the Plan, the principal features of this award are as follows:
Award Number
Date of Award

_________________________
_________________________

Vesting Commencement Date

_________________________

Number of Shares of Restricted Stock
Purchase Price per Share

_________________________

$0.001

Scheduled Vesting/Period of Restriction:
[Vesting to be inserted].
Except as otherwise provided in Appendix A, the Employee will not vest in any Shares unless he or
she remains a Service Provider through the applicable vesting date. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Service
Provider” means an Employee, Non-Employee Director or Consultant.
RS Agreement (U.S.)
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Exhibit 10.10
Your signature below indicates your acknowledgement of the purchase of the Shares covered by this
Agreement and your understanding that this award is subject to all of the terms and conditions contained in
Appendix A and the Plan. For example, important additional information on vesting and forfeiture of the Shares
covered by this award is contained in paragraphs 3 through 6 of Appendix A. PLEASE BE SURE TO READ
ALL OF APPENDIX A, WHICH CONTAINS THE SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS
AGREEMENT.
EMPLOYEE:
________________________________
Signature
________________________________
Print Name

RS Agreement (U.S.)
11/12
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Exhibit 10.10
APPENDIX A
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF RESTRICTED STOCK AWARD
1. Award. The Company hereby grants to the Employee under the Plan an award of Shares for $0.001
per Share, commencing on the Date of Award, subject to all of the terms and conditions in this Agreement and
the Plan. By accepting this award of Restricted Stock, the par value purchase price for each Share of Restricted
Stock (a) will be deemed paid by the Employee by past services rendered by the Employee, if the Employee is
an existing employee of the Company or one of its Subsidiaries or (b) shall be paid to the Company by cash or
check by the Employee, if the Employee is a newly-hired employee of the Company or one of its Subsidiaries.
Only whole shares shall be issued.
2. Shares Held in Escrow. Unless and until the Shares will have vested in the manner set forth in
paragraphs 3 through 6, such Shares will be issued in the name of the Employee and held by the Shareholder
Services Department of the Company (or its designee) as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”), and will not be
sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of, and will not be pledged or otherwise hypothecated. The Company may
determine to issue the Shares in book entry form and/or may instruct the transfer agent for its Shares to place a
legend on the certificates representing the Restricted Stock or otherwise note its records as to the restrictions on
transfer set forth in this Agreement and the Plan. The certificate or certificates representing such Shares will not
be delivered by the Escrow Agent to the Employee unless and until the Shares have vested and all other terms and
conditions in this Agreement have been satisfied.
3. Vesting Schedule/Period of Restriction. Except as provided in paragraphs 4 and 5, and subject to
paragraph 6, the Shares awarded by this Agreement shall vest in accordance with the vesting provisions set forth on
the first page of this Agreement. Shares shall not vest in the Employee in accordance with any of the provisions of
this Agreement unless the Employee remains a Service Provider through the date(s) vesting otherwise is scheduled
to occur.
4. Acceleration Upon Death. If the Employee ceases to be such by reason of his or her death, then those
Shares awarded by this Agreement that would have vested (solely by reason of continued employment) had the
Employee remained employed for an additional twelve (12) months will be deemed to have vested as of the
date of termination of employment. For purposes of applying the preceding sentence, any applicable performance
objectives during the twelve (12) month period will be deemed to have been achieved at target level during such
period.
5. Committee Discretion. The Committee, in its discretion, may accelerate the vesting of the balance,
or some lesser portion of the balance, of the unvested Shares at any time, subject to the terms of the Plan. If so
accelerated, such Shares will be considered as having vested as of the date specified by the Committee.
6. Forfeiture. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Agreement, the balance of the Shares that
have not vested at the time that Employee ceases to be a Service Provider will be forfeited and automatically
transferred to and reacquired by the Company at no cost to the Company upon the date the Employee ceases to be
a Service Provider. The Employee shall not be entitled to a refund of
RS Agreement (U.S.)
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Exhibit 10.10
the price paid for the Shares returned to the Company pursuant to this paragraph 6. The Employee hereby
appoints the Escrow Agent with full power of substitution, as the Employee’s true and lawful attorney-in-fact with
irrevocable power and authority in the name and on behalf of the Employee to take any action and execute all
documents and instruments, including, without limitation, stock powers which may be necessary to transfer the
certificate or certificates evidencing such forfeited Shares to the Company.
7. Withholding of Taxes. The Company (or the employing Affiliate) will withhold a portion of the Shares
that have an aggregate market value sufficient to pay all Tax Obligations required to be withheld by the Company
or the employing Affiliate with respect to the Shares, unless the Committee, in its sole discretion, requires
or permits the Employee to make alternate arrangements satisfactory to the Company for such withholdings
in advance of the arising of any withholding obligations. The Committee, in its sole discretion and pursuant
to such procedures as it may specify from time to time, may permit the Employee to satisfy his or her Tax
Obligations, in whole or in part by one or more of the following (without limitation): (a) paying cash, (b) electing
to have the Company withhold otherwise deliverable Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the minimum
statutory amount required to be withheld, or (c) selling a sufficient number of such Shares otherwise deliverable to
Employee through such means as the Company may determine in its sole discretion (whether through a broker or
otherwise) equal to the amount required to be withheld. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Agreement,
no Restricted Stock will be granted unless and until satisfactory arrangements (as determined by the Company)
will have been made by the Employee with respect to the payment of any income and other taxes which the
Company determines must be withheld or collected with respect to such Shares. In addition and to the maximum
extent permitted by law, the Company (or the employing Affiliate) has the right to retain without notice from salary
or other amounts payable to the Employee, cash having a sufficient value to satisfy any tax withholding obligations
that the Company determines cannot be satisfied through the withholding of otherwise deliverable Shares. All
Tax Obligations related to the Restricted Stock award and any Shares delivered in payment thereof are the sole
responsibility of the Employee. By accepting this award, the Employee expressly consents to the withholding of
Shares and to any additional cash withholding as provided for in this paragraph 7. Only whole Shares will be
withheld or sold to satisfy any tax withholding obligations pursuant to this paragraph 7. The number of Shares
withheld will be rounded up to the nearest whole Share, with a cash refund to the Employee for any value of the
Shares withheld in excess of the tax obligation (pursuant to such procedures as the Company may specify from
time to time). To the extent that the cash refund described in the preceding sentence is not administratively feasible,
as determined by the Company in its sole discretion, the number of Shares withheld will be rounded down to the
nearest whole Share and, in accordance with this paragraph 7 and to the maximum extent permitted by law, the
Company will retain from salary or other amounts payable to the Employee cash having a sufficient value to satisfy
any additional tax withholding.
8. Rights as Stockholder. Neither the Employee nor any person claiming under or through the Employee
will have any of the rights or privileges of a stockholder of the Company in respect of any Shares deliverable
hereunder unless and until certificates representing such Shares will have been issued, recorded on the records of
the Company or its transfer agents or registrars, and delivered to the Employee or the Escrow Agent. Except as
provided in paragraph 10, after such issuance, recordation
RS Agreement (U.S.)
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Exhibit 10.10
and delivery, the Employee will have all the rights of a stockholder of the Company with respect to voting such
Shares.
9. No Effect on Employment. Subject to any employment contract with the Employee, the terms of such
employment will be determined from time to time by the Company, or the Affiliate employing the Employee, as
the case may be, and the Company, or the Affiliate employing the Employee, as the case may be, will have the
right, which is hereby expressly reserved, to terminate or change the terms of the employment of the Employee at
any time for any reason whatsoever, with or without good cause. The transactions contemplated hereunder and the
vesting schedule set forth on the first page of this Agreement do not constitute an express or implied promise of
continued employment for any period of time.
10. Changes in Shares. In the event that as a result of a stock or extraordinary cash dividend, stock
split, distribution, reclassification, recapitalization, combination of shares or the adjustment in capital stock of the
Company or otherwise, or as a result of a merger, consolidation, spin-off or other corporate transaction or event,
the Shares will be increased, reduced or otherwise affected, and by virtue of any such event the Employee will
in his or her capacity as owner of unvested Shares which have been awarded to him or her (the “Prior Shares”)
be entitled to new or additional or different shares of stock, cash or other securities or property (other than rights
or warrants to purchase securities); such new or additional or different shares, cash or securities or property will
thereupon be considered to be unvested Restricted Stock and will be subject to all of the conditions and restrictions
that were applicable to the Prior Shares pursuant to this Agreement and the Plan. If the Employee receives rights
or warrants with respect to any Prior Shares, such rights or warrants may be held or exercised by the Employee,
provided that until such exercise any such rights or warrants and after such exercise any shares or other securities
acquired by the exercise of such rights or warrants will be considered to be unvested Restricted Stock and will
be subject to all of the conditions and restrictions which were applicable to the Prior Shares pursuant to the Plan
and this Agreement. The Committee in its absolute discretion at any time may accelerate the vesting of all or any
portion of such new or additional shares of Restricted Stock, cash or securities, rights or warrants to purchase
securities or shares or other securities acquired by the exercise of such rights or warrants.
11. Address for Notices. Any notice to be given to the Company under the terms of this Agreement will
be addressed to the Company, in care of Shareholder Services, TIBCO Software Inc., 3303 Hillview Avenue, Palo
Alto, CA 94304, or at such other address as the Company may hereafter designate in writing.
12. Award is Not Transferable. The unvested Shares may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or
otherwise alienated or hypothecated other than by will, by the laws of descent or distribution, or to a Service
Provider’s spouse, former spouse or dependent pursuant to a court-approved domestic relations order which relates
to the provision of child, support, alimony payments or marital property rights. Upon any attempt to transfer,
assign, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of any unvested Shares subject to this award, or any right or
privilege conferred hereby, or upon any attempted sale under any execution, attachment or similar process, this
award and the rights and privileges conferred hereby immediately will become null and void.
RS Agreement (U.S.)
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13. Restrictions on Sale of Securities. The Shares issued under this Agreement will be registered under
U. S. federal securities laws and will be freely tradable upon vesting. However, an Employee’s subsequent sale of
the Shares may be subject to any market blackout-period that may be imposed by the Company and must comply
with the Company’s insider trading policies, and any other applicable securities laws.
14. Binding Agreement. Subject to the limitation on the transferability of this award contained herein,
this Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, legatees, legal representatives, successors
and assigns of the parties hereto.
15. Additional Conditions to Release from Escrow. The Company shall not be required to issue any
certificate or certificates for Shares hereunder or release such Shares from the escrow established pursuant to
paragraph 2 prior to fulfillment of all the following conditions: (a) the admission of such Shares to listing on
all stock exchanges on which such class of stock is then listed; (b) the completion of any registration or other
qualification of such Shares under any U. S. state or federal law or under the rulings or regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission or any other governmental regulatory body, which the Committee shall, in its absolute
discretion, deem necessary or advisable; (c) the obtaining of any approval or other clearance from any U. S. state
or federal governmental agency, which the Committee shall, in its absolute discretion, determine to be necessary
or advisable; and (d) the lapse of such reasonable period of time following the Date of Award of the Restricted
Stock as the Committee may establish from time to time for reasons of administrative convenience.
16. Plan Governs. This Agreement is subject to all the terms and provisions of the Plan. In the event of a
conflict between one or more provisions of this Agreement and one or more provisions of the Plan, the provisions
of the Plan will govern.
17. Committee Authority. The Committee will have the power to interpret the Plan and this Agreement
and to adopt such rules for the administration, interpretation and application of the Plan as are consistent therewith
and to interpret or revoke any such rules (including, but not limited to, the determination of whether or not any
Shares have vested). All actions taken and all interpretations and determinations made by the Committee in good
faith will be final and binding upon the Employee, the Company and all other interested persons. No member of
the Committee will be personally liable for any action, determination or interpretation made in good faith with
respect to the Plan or this Agreement.
18. Captions. Captions provided herein are for convenience only and are not to serve as a basis for
interpretation or construction of this Agreement.
19. Agreement Severable. In the event that any provision in this Agreement will be held invalid or
unenforceable, such provision will be severable from, and such invalidity or unenforceability will not be construed
to have any effect on, the remaining provisions of this Agreement.
20. Modifications to the Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties
on the subjects covered. The Employee expressly warrants that he or she is not accepting this Agreement in
reliance on any promises, representations, or inducements other than those contained
RS Agreement (U.S.)
11/12

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Exhibit 10.10
herein. Modifications to this Agreement or the Plan can be made only in an express written contract executed by a
duly authorized officer of the Company.
21. Amendment, Suspension or Termination of the Plan. By accepting this Restricted Stock award, the
Employee expressly warrants that he or she has received a Restricted Stock award under the Plan, and has received,
read and understood a description of the Plan. The Employee understands that the Plan is discretionary in nature
and may be amended, suspended or terminated by the Company at any time.
22. Labor Law. By accepting this Restricted Stock award, the Employee acknowledges that: (a) the award
of this Restricted Stock is a one-time benefit which does not create any contractual or other right to receive
future awards of Restricted Stock, or benefits in lieu of Restricted Stock; (b) all determinations with respect
to any future awards, including, but not limited to, the times when the Restricted Stock shall be granted, the
number of Shares subject to each Restricted Stock award, the Purchase Price per Share, and the time or times
when Restricted Stock shall vest, will be at the sole discretion of the Company; (c) the Employee’s participation
in the Plan is voluntary; (d) the value of this Restricted Stock is an extraordinary item of compensation which
is outside the scope of the Employee’s employment contract, if any; (e) this Restricted Stock is not part of the
Employee’s normal or expected compensation for purposes of calculating any severance, resignation, redundancy,
end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retirement benefits or similar payments; (f) the
vesting of this Restricted Stock ceases upon termination of employment for any reason except as may otherwise
be explicitly provided in the Plan or this Agreement; (g) the future value of the underlying Shares is unknown and
cannot be predicted with certainty; (h) this Restricted Stock has been granted to the Employee in the Employee’s
status as an employee of the Company or its Subsidiaries; (i) any claims resulting from this Restricted Stock shall
be enforceable, if at all, against the Company; and (j) there shall be no additional obligations for any Affiliate
employing the Employee as a result of this Restricted Stock.
23. Disclosure of Employee Information. By accepting this Restricted Stock award, the Employee
consents to the collection, use and transfer of personal data as described in this paragraph. The Employee
understands that the Company and its Subsidiaries hold certain personal information about him or her, including
his or her name, home address and telephone number, date of birth, social security or identity number, salary,
nationality, job title, any shares of stock or directorships held in the Company, details of all awards of Restricted
Stock or any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding
in his or her favor, for the purpose of managing and administering the Plan (“Data”). The Employee further
understands that the Company and/or its Subsidiaries will transfer Data among themselves as necessary for the
purpose of implementation, administration and management of his or her participation in the Plan, and that
the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries may each further transfer Data to any third parties assisting the
Company in the implementation, administration and management of the Plan. The Employee understands that
these recipients may be located in the European Economic Area, or elsewhere, such as in the U.S. or Asia. The
Employee authorizes the Company to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data in electronic or other form,
for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing his or her participation in the Plan, including any
requisite transfer to a broker or other third party with whom he or she may
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elect to deposit any Shares of stock acquired from this award of Restricted Stock of such Data as may be required
for the administration of the Plan and/or the subsequent holding of Shares of stock on his or her behalf. The
Employee understands that he or she may, at any time, view the Data, require any necessary amendments to the
Data or withdraw the consent herein in writing by contacting the Human Resources Department for his or her
employer.
24. Electronic Delivery. The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents related
to Restricted Stock awarded under the Plan or future Restricted Stock that may be awarded under the Plan by
electronic means or request the Employee’s consent to participate in the Plan by electronic means. The Employee
hereby consents to receive such documents by electronic delivery and agrees to participate in the Plan through an
on-line or electronic system established and maintained by the Company or another third party designated by the
Company.
25. Notice of Governing Law. This award of Restricted Stock shall be governed by, and construed in
accordance with, the laws of the State of Delaware, U.S.A., without regard to its principles of conflict of laws. For
purposes of litigating any dispute that arises under this award of Restricted Stock or this Agreement, the parties
hereby submit to and consent to the jurisdiction of the State of California, and agree that such litigation shall
be conducted in the courts of Santa Clara County, California, or the federal courts of the United States for the
Northern District of California, and no other courts where this award of Restricted Stock is made and/or to be
performed.
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TIBCO SOFTWARE INC.
NOTICE OF AWARD OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS (U.S.)
Unless otherwise defined herein, the terms defined in the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) will have
the same defined meanings in this Notice of Award and in the Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock Units (the
“Agreement”), attached hereto as Appendix A.
Name: [insert name] (the “Employee”)
You have been granted the right to receive Restricted Stock Units, subject to the terms and conditions of
the Plan, the Agreement and this Notice of Award as follows:
Award Number
Date of Award

_________________________
_________________________

Vesting Commencement Date
Total Number of Restricted Stock
Units

_________________________
_________________________

Vesting Schedule:
[Vesting to be inserted].
In the event the Employee ceases to be a Service Provider for any or no reason (including death or
Disability) before the Employee vests in the right to acquire the Shares to be issued pursuant to the Restricted
Stock Unit, the Restricted Stock Unit and the Employee’s right to acquire any Shares hereunder will immediately
terminate. For purposes of this Notice of Award and the Agreement, a “Service Provider” means an Employee,
Non-Employee Director or Consultant.
By signing below, you acknowledge that this award of Restricted Stock Units is granted under and
governed by the terms and conditions of the Plan and the Agreement, both of which are made a part of this
document. By signing this Notice of Award, the Employee represents that he or she has reviewed the Plan,
the Agreement and this Notice of Award in their entirety and fully understands all provisions of the Plan, the
Agreement and this Notice of Award.

EMPLOYEE:
________________________________
Signature
________________________________
Print Name
1
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APPENDIX A
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS
1. Award. The Company hereby grants to the Employee under the Plan an award of Restricted Stock
Units, subject to all of the terms and conditions in this Agreement, the attached Notice of Award and the Plan. If
and when any Restricted Stock Units are paid to the Employee, par value for the Shares issued will be deemed
paid by the Employee by past services rendered by the Employee.
2. Company’s Obligation to Pay. Each Restricted Stock Unit has a value equal to the Fair Market Value
of a Share on the date it becomes vested. Unless and until the Restricted Stock Units will have vested in the manner
set forth in paragraphs 3 through 5, the Employee will have no right to payment of any such Restricted Stock
Units. Prior to actual payment of any vested Restricted Stock Units, such Restricted Stock Unit will represent an
unsecured obligation of the Company, payable (if at all) only from the general assets of the Company. Payment of
any vested Restricted Stock Units will be made in whole Shares only.
3. Vesting Schedule. Subject to paragraphs 4 through 6, the Restricted Stock Units awarded by this
Agreement and the attached Notice of Award will vest in the Employee according to the vesting schedule set forth
on the attached Notice of Award. Restricted Stock Units shall not vest in the Employee in accordance with any of
the provisions of this Agreement unless the Employee remains a Service Provider through the applicable vesting
dates, except as otherwise provided in paragraph 5.
4. Acceleration Upon Death. If the Employee ceases to be such on account of his or her death, then
those Restricted Stock Units awarded by this Agreement that would have vested (solely by reason of continued
employment) had the Employee remained employed for an additional twelve (12) months will vest as of the
date of termination of employment. For purposes of applying the preceding sentence, any applicable performance
objectives during the twelve (12) month period will be deemed to have been achieved at target level during such
period.
5. Committee Discretion. The Committee, in its discretion, may accelerate the vesting of the balance, or
some lesser portion of the balance, of the Restricted Stock Units at any time, subject to the terms of the Plan.
If so accelerated, such Restricted Stock Units will be considered as having vested as of the date specified by
the Committee. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan or this Agreement to the contrary, if the vesting of the
balance, or some lesser portion of the balance, of the Restricted Stock Units is accelerated in connection with the
Employee ceasing to be a Service Provider (provided that such cessation is a “separation from service” within the
meaning of Section 409A, as determined by the Company), other than due to death, and if (x) the Employee is
a “specified employee” within the meaning of Section 409A at the time of such cessation and (y) the payment
of such accelerated Restricted Stock Units will result in the imposition of additional tax under Section 409A
if paid to the Employee on or within the six (6) month period following the date the Employee ceases to be a
Service Provider, then the payment of such accelerated Restricted Stock Units will not be made until the date
six (6) months and one (1) day following the date of such cessation, unless the Employee dies during such six
(6) month period, in which case, the Restricted Stock Units will be paid to the Employee’s estate as soon as
practicable following his or her death, subject to paragraph 9. It is the intent of this Agreement to comply with the
requirements of Section
2
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409A so that none of the Restricted Stock Units provided under this Agreement or Shares issuable thereunder will
be subject to the additional tax imposed under Section 409A, and any ambiguities herein will be interpreted to so
comply. For purposes of this Agreement, “Section 409A” means Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the “Code”), and any proposed, temporary or final Treasury Regulations and Internal Revenue
Service guidance thereunder, as each may be amended from time to time.
6. Forfeiture upon Termination of Service. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Agreement or
the attached Notice of Award, if the Employee ceases to be a Service Provider for any or no reason, the thenunvested Restricted Stock Units awarded by this Agreement and the attached Notice of Award will thereupon be
forfeited at no cost to the Company and the Employee will have no further rights thereunder.
7.

Payment after Vesting.

(a) Subject to paragraph 7(b), any Restricted Stock Units that vest in accordance with paragraph 3
or paragraph 4 will be paid to the Employee (or in the event of the Employee’s death, to his or her estate) in whole
Shares as soon as administratively practicable after vesting, subject to paragraph 9 and the other provisions of this
Agreement, but in no event later than the date that is two-and-one-half months from the end of the Company’s tax
year that includes the vesting date. Any Restricted Stock Units that vest in accordance with paragraph 5 will be
paid to the Employee at the time(s) provided in paragraph 5, subject to paragraph 9 and the other provisions of this
Agreement.
(b) If the Committee permits the Employee to elect to defer the settlement of vested Restricted
Stock Units and the Employee makes such an election in accordance with the terms of the Plan and the rules and
procedures determined by the Committee, in its sole discretion, payment of vested Restricted Stock Units (and any
Dividend Restricted Stock Units) will be made in accordance with the terms of such election. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, if a Change of Control occurs during the twelve (12) month period following the Date of Award
and the Change of Control qualifies as a change in control under Treasury regulation section 1.409A-3(i)(5)), any
Restricted Stock Units that vest in accordance with the Change of Control Vesting Schedule will be paid to the
Employee (or in the event of the Employee’s death, to his or her estate) in whole Shares as soon as administratively
practicable after vesting, subject to paragraph 9, but in no event later than the end of the calendar year that includes
the date of vesting or, if later, the fifteenth (15th) day of the third (3rd) calendar month following the date of
vesting (provided that the Employee will not be permitted, directly or indirectly, to designate the taxable year of
the payment). If a Change of Control occurs during the twelve (12) month period following the Date of Award and
the Change of Control does not qualify as a change in control under Treasury regulation section 1.409A-3(i)(5)),
any Restricted Stock Units that vest in accordance with the Change of Control Vesting Schedule will be paid to the
Employee (or in the event of the Employee’s death, to his or her estate) in whole Shares at the same time or times
as if such Restricted Stock Units had vested in accordance with the Original Vesting Schedule (whether or not the
Employee remains a Service Provider through such date(s)), subject to paragraph 9; provided, however, that such
Restricted Stock Units will be paid no later than the end of the calendar year that includes the date of vesting under
the Original Vesting Schedule or, if later, the fifteenth (15th) day of the third (3rd) calendar month following the
date of vesting under the Original Vesting Schedule (provided that the Employee will not be permitted, directly or
indirectly, to designate the taxable year of the payment).
3
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8. Payments after Death. Any distribution or delivery to be made to the Employee under this Agreement
will, if the Employee is then deceased, be made to the administrator or executor of the Employee’s estate. Any
such administrator or executor must furnish the Company with (a) written notice of his or her status as transferee,
and (b) evidence satisfactory to the Company to establish the validity of the transfer and compliance with any laws
or regulations pertaining to said transfer.
9. Withholding of Taxes. The Company or the Employer will withhold a portion of the Shares that have
an aggregate market value sufficient to pay all Tax Obligations required to be withheld by the Company or the
Employer with respect to the Shares, unless the Committee, in its sole discretion, requires or permits the Employee
to make alternate arrangements satisfactory to the Company for such withholdings in advance of the arising of
any withholding obligations. The Committee, in its sole discretion and pursuant to such procedures as it may
specify from time to time, may permit the Employee to satisfy his or her Tax Obligations, in whole or in part by
one or more of the following (without limitation): (a) paying cash, (b) electing to have the Company withhold
otherwise deliverable Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the minimum statutory amount required to be
withheld, or (c) selling a sufficient number of such Shares otherwise deliverable to Employee through such means
as the Company may determine in its sole discretion (whether through a broker or otherwise) equal to the amount
required to be withheld. Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Agreement, no Restricted Stock Units will
be granted unless and until satisfactory arrangements (as determined by the Company) will have been made by
the Employee with respect to the payment of any income and other taxes which the Company determines must
be withheld or collected with respect to such Shares. In addition and to the maximum extent permitted by law,
the Company or the Employer has the right to retain without notice from salary or other amounts payable to the
Employee, cash having a sufficient value to satisfy any tax withholding obligations that the Company determines
cannot be satisfied through the withholding of otherwise deliverable Shares. All Tax Obligations related to the
award of Restricted Stock Units and any Shares delivered in payment thereof are the sole responsibility of the
Employee. By accepting this award, the Employee expressly consents to the withholding of Shares and to any
additional cash withholding as provided for in this paragraph 9. Only whole Shares will be withheld or sold
to satisfy any tax withholding obligations pursuant to this paragraph 9. The number of Shares withheld will be
rounded up to the nearest whole Share, with a cash refund to the Employee for any value of the Shares withheld in
excess of the tax obligation (pursuant to such procedures as the Company may specify from time to time). To the
extent that the cash refund described in the preceding sentence is not administratively feasible, as determined by
the Company in its sole discretion, the number of Shares withheld will be rounded down to the nearest whole Share
and, in accordance with this paragraph 9 and to the maximum extent permitted by law, the Company will retain
from salary or other amounts payable to the Employee cash having a sufficient value to satisfy any additional tax
withholding.
10. Rights as Stockholder. Subject to paragraph 11, neither the Employee nor any person claiming under
or through the Employee will have any of the rights or privileges of a stockholder of the Company in respect of any
Shares deliverable hereunder unless and until certificates representing such Shares will have been issued, recorded
on the records of the Company or its transfer agents or registrars, and delivered to the Employee (including through
electronic delivery to a brokerage account). After such issuance, recordation and delivery, the Employee will have
all the rights of a stockholder of the Company with respect to voting such Shares and receipt of dividends and
distributions on such Shares.
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11. Dividend Equivalents. If the Committee permits the Employee to elect to defer the settlement of
vested Restricted Stock Units and the Employee makes such an election in accordance with the terms of the Plan
and the rules and procedures determined by the Committee, in its sole discretion, the Employee shall be entitled to
receive dividends and distributions paid on the Shares underlying vested Restricted Stock Units unless a Change
of Control occurs during the twelve (12) month period following the Date of Award and the Change of Control
qualifies as a change in control under Treasury regulation section 1.409A-3(i)(5)). Any such dividends or other
distributions automatically shall be deemed reinvested in Restricted Stock Units on the date of payment of any
such dividends or distributions (the “Dividend Restricted Stock Units”). The number of Dividend Restricted Stock
Units shall be determined as follows: (a) if the Company declares and pays a cash dividend on the Shares, the
number of Dividend Restricted Stock Units shall be equal to the quotient obtained by dividing the cash dividend
paid on the Shares underlying vested Restricted Stock Units by the Fair Market Value (as defined in the Plan)
of the Shares on the date the dividend is paid; or (b) if the Company distributes Shares, the number of Dividend
Restricted Stock Units shall be equal to the number of Shares distributed with respect to the Shares underlying
vested Restricted Stock Units. Dividend Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to the same terms and conditions
as the Restricted Stock Units, including the Employee’s deferral election.
12. No Effect on Employment. The terms of the Employee’s employment with his or her Employer are
governed by applicable local law and any relevant employment agreement. This Agreement and the attached
Notice of Award do not constitute an express or implied promise of continued employment for any period of time.
The Employee may terminate his or her employment and the Employer may terminate the Employee’s employment
in accordance with applicable local law and any relevant employment agreement.
13. Labor Law. By accepting this award of Restricted Stock Units, the Employee acknowledges that: (a)
the award of Restricted Stock Units is a one-time benefit which does not create any contractual or other right to
receive future awards of Restricted Stock Units, or benefits in lieu of Restricted Stock Units; (b) all determinations
with respect to any future awards, including, but not limited to, the times when the Restricted Stock Units shall
be granted, the number of Shares subject to each award of Restricted Stock Units and the time or times when
Restricted Stock Units shall vest, will be at the sole discretion of the Company; (c) the Employee’s participation
in the Plan is voluntary; (d) the value of this Restricted Stock Units is an extraordinary item of compensation
which is outside the scope of the Employee’s employment contract, if any; (e) these Restricted Stock Units are not
part of the Employee’s normal or expected compensation for purposes of calculating any severance, resignation,
redundancy, end of service payments, bonuses, long-service awards, pension or retirement benefits or similar
payments; (f) the vesting of this Restricted Stock Units ceases upon termination of employment for any reason
except as may otherwise be explicitly provided in the Plan or this Agreement; (g) the future value of the underlying
Shares is unknown and cannot be predicted with certainty; (h) these Restricted Stock Units have been granted to
the Employee in the Employee’s status as an employee of the Company or the Employer; (i) any claims resulting
from these Restricted Stock Units shall be enforceable, if at all, against the Company; and (j) there shall be no
additional obligations for any subsidiary or affiliate employing the Employee as a result of these Restricted Stock
Units.
14. Address for Notices. Any notice to be given to the Company under the terms of this Agreement and
the attached Notice of Award will be addressed to the Company, in care of
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Shareholder Services, TIBCO Software Inc., 3303 Hillview Avenue, Palo Alto, California, 94304, or at such other
address as the Company may hereafter designate in writing.
15. Award is Not Transferable. Restricted Stock Units may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned,
or otherwise alienated or hypothecated other than by will, by the laws of descent or distribution, or to a Service
Provider’s spouse, former spouse or dependent pursuant to a court-approved domestic relations order which relates
to the provision of child, support, alimony payments or marital property rights. Upon any attempt to transfer,
assign, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of Restricted Stock Units, or any right or privilege conferred
hereby, or upon any attempted sale under any execution, attachment or similar process, Restricted Stock Units
granted herein and the rights and privileges conferred hereby immediately will become null and void.
16. Binding Agreement. Subject to the limitation on the transferability of Restricted Stock Units
contained herein, this Agreement and the attached Notice of Award will be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the heirs, legatees, legal representatives, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.
17. Additional Conditions to Issuance of Stock. If at any time the Company will determine, in its
discretion, that the listing, registration or qualification of the Shares upon any securities exchange or under any
foreign, state or federal law, or the consent or approval of any governmental regulatory authority is necessary or
desirable as a condition to the issuance of Shares to the Employee (or his or her estate), such issuance will not occur
unless and until such listing, registration, qualification, consent or approval will have been effected or obtained
free of any conditions not acceptable to the Company. The Company will make all reasonable efforts to meet the
requirements of any such state or federal law or securities exchange and to obtain any such consent or approval of
any such governmental authority.
18. Plan Governs. This Agreement and the attached Notice of Award are subject to all terms and
provisions of the Plan. In the event of a conflict between one or more provisions of this Agreement and one or
more provisions of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will govern. In the event of a conflict between one or more
provisions of the attached Notice of Award and one or more provisions of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan will
govern.
19. Committee Authority. The Committee will have the power to interpret the Plan, this Agreement
and the attached Notice of Award and to adopt such rules for the administration, interpretation and application of
the Plan as are consistent therewith and to interpret or revoke any such rules (including, but not limited to, the
determination of whether or not any Restricted Stock Units have vested). All actions taken and all interpretations
and determinations made by the Committee in good faith will be final and binding upon the Employee, the
Company and all other interested persons. No member of the Committee will be personally liable for any action,
determination or interpretation made in good faith with respect to the Plan, this Agreement and the attached Notice
of Award.
20. Captions. Captions provided herein are for convenience only and are not to serve as a basis for
interpretation or construction of this Agreement.
21. Agreement Severable. In the event that any provision in this Agreement or the attached Notice of
Award will be held invalid or unenforceable, such provision will be severable
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from, and such invalidity or unenforceability will not be construed to have any effect on, the remaining provisions
of this Agreement or the attached Notice of Award.
22. Modifications to the Agreement. This Agreement and the attached Notice of Award constitute the
entire understanding of the parties on the subjects covered. The Employee expressly warrants that he or she is
not accepting this Agreement or the attached Notice of Award in reliance on any promises, representations, or
inducements other than those contained herein and therein. Modifications to this Agreement, the attached Notice
of Award or the Plan can be made only in an express written contract executed by a duly authorized officer of the
Company. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Plan, this Agreement or the attached Notice of Award,
the Company reserves the right to revise this Agreement or the attached Notice of Award as it deems necessary
or advisable, in its sole discretion and without the consent of the Employee, to comply with Section 409A or to
otherwise avoid imposition of any additional tax or income recognition under Section 409A prior to the actual
payment of Shares pursuant to this award of Restricted Stock Units.
23. Amendment, Suspension or Termination of the Plan. By accepting this Restricted Stock Unit award,
the Employee expressly warrants that he or she has received a conditional right to receive Shares issued under the
Plan, and has received, read and understood a description of the Plan. The Employee understands that the Plan is
discretionary in nature and may be modified, suspended or terminated by the Company at any time.
24. Electronic Delivery. The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents related
to Restricted Stock Units awarded under the Plan or future Restricted Stock Units that may be awarded under
the Plan by electronic means or request the Employee’s consent to participate in the Plan by electronic means.
The Employee hereby consents to receive such documents by electronic delivery and agrees to participate in the
Plan through an on-line or electronic system established and maintained by the Company or another third party
designated by the Company.
25. Disclosure of Employee Information. By accepting this Restricted Stock award, the Employee consents
to the collection, use and transfer of personal data as described in this paragraph. The Employee understands
that the Company and its Subsidiaries hold certain personal information about him or her, including his or her
name, home address and telephone number, date of birth, social security or identity number, salary, nationality,
job title, any shares of stock or directorships held in the Company, details of all awards of Restricted Stock or
any other entitlement to shares of stock awarded, canceled, exercised, vested, unvested or outstanding in his or
her favor, for the purpose of managing and administering the Plan (“Data”). The Employee further understands
that the Company and/or its Subsidiaries will transfer Data among themselves as necessary for the purpose of
implementation, administration and management of his or her participation in the Plan, and that the Company
and/or any of its Subsidiaries may each further transfer Data to any third parties assisting the Company in the
implementation, administration and management of the Plan. The Employee understands that these recipients may
be located in the European Economic Area, or elsewhere, such as in the U.S. or Asia. The Employee authorizes
the Company to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data in electronic or other form, for the purposes
of implementing, administering and managing his or her participation in the Plan, including any requisite transfer
to a broker or other third party with whom he or she may elect to deposit any Shares of stock acquired from this
award of Restricted Stock of such Data as may be required for the administration of the Plan and/or the subsequent
holding of Shares of stock on his or her behalf. The Employee understands
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that he or she may, at any time, view the Data, require any necessary amendments to the Data or withdraw the
consent herein in writing by contacting the Human Resources Department for his or her employer.
26. Notice of Governing Law. This Agreement and the attached Notice of Award shall be governed by the
laws of the State of Delaware, U.S.A., without regard to its principles of conflict of laws. For purposes of litigating
any dispute that arises under this award of Restricted Stock Units, this Agreement or the attached Notice of Award,
the parties hereby submit to and consent to the jurisdiction of the State of California, and agree that such litigation
shall be conducted in the courts of Santa Clara County, California, or the federal courts of the United States for the
Northern District of California, and no other courts where this award of Restricted Stock Units is made and/or to
be performed.
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
NAME

JURISDICTION OF INCORPORATION

3301 Hillview Holdings Inc.

Delaware

DataSynapse Hispania SL

Spain

DataSynapse SARL

France

DataSynapse UK Ltd.

United Kingdom

Kabira Technologies (UK) Limited

United Kingdom

Kabira Technologies Deutschland GmbH

Germany

Loglogic GmbH

Germany

Loglogic Limited

United Kingdom

Loglogic SAS

France

Loyalty Lab LLC

Delaware

Netrics.com LLC

Delaware

Nimbus BPM Consulting Private Limited

India

Nimbus North America, Inc.

Delaware

Nimbus Partners China Limited

China

Nimbus Partners Hong Kong Limited

Hong Kong

Nimbus Partners Limited

United Kingdom

Proginet LLC

Delaware

Spotfire AB

Sweden

Staffware Business Process Management India Private Limited

India

TIBCO BPM

United Kingdom

TIBCO BPM Australia Pty Ltd.

Australia

TIBCO BPM Holdings Limited

United Kingdom

TIBCO DataSynapse LLC

Delaware

TIBCO International Holdings B.V.

Netherlands

TIBCO Kabira France SARL

France

TIBCO Kabira LLC

Delaware

TIBCO Loglogic LLC

Delaware

TIBCO OpenSpirit LLC

Delaware
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TIBCO Software (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

China

TIBCO Software (Ireland) Limited

Ireland

TIBCO Software (Schweiz) AG

Switzerland

TIBCO Software (South Africa) (Pty) Ltd

South Africa

TIBCO Software AB

Sweden
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NAME

JURISDICTION OF INCORPORATION

TIBCO Software AS

Norway

TIBCO Software Australia Pty Ltd.

Australia

TIBCO Software Austria GmbH

Austria

TIBCO Software B.V.

Netherlands

TIBCO Software Brasil LTDA

Brazil

TIBCO Software Canada Inc.

Canada

TIBCO Software Cayman Holdings Ltd.

Cayman Islands

TIBCO Software CTS B.V.

Netherlands

TIBCO Software Cyprus Limited

Cyprus

TIBCO Software Federal, Inc.

Delaware

TIBCO Software France SARL

France

TIBCO Software FZ-LLC

United Arab Emirates

TIBCO Software GmbH

Germany

TIBCO Software Holdings LLC

Delaware

TIBCO Software Holdings Ltd.

United Kingdom

TIBCO Software Hong Kong Limited

Hong Kong

TIBCO Software India Private Limited

India

TIBCO Software International Inc.

Delaware

TIBCO Software Japan Inc.

Japan

TIBCO Software Korea Ltd.

South Korea

TIBCO Software Limited

United Kingdom

TIBCO Software LLC

Russia

TIBCO Software N.V.

Belgium

TIBCO Software Portugal Sociedade Unipessoal, LDA

Portugal

TIBCO Software S.A. de C.V.

Mexico

TIBCO Software s.r.o.

Czech Republic

TIBCO Software Services Netherlands B.V.

Netherlands

TIBCO Software Singapore Pte Ltd.

Singapore

TIBCO Software SL

Spain

TIBCO Software Sp z.o.o.

Poland

TIBCO Software Srl

Italy
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TIBCO Software Taiwan Limited

Taiwan

TIBCO Sweden Holdings AB

Sweden

TIBCO Yazilim Sanayi Ve Ticaret Limited Sirketi

Turkey

TS Innovations (Pty) Ltd*

South Africa

TSI C.V.

Netherlands

* 74.9% owned by Registrant
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EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-158520, 333-156983,
333-153333, 333-152245, 333-142229, 333-124354, 333-102082, 333-88770, 333-88730, 333-30088, 333-88811, 333-48260,
333-52644, 333-75736, 333-111548, 333-168035 and 333-182663) of our report dated January 28, 2013 relating to the financial
statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.
/s/

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

San Jose, California
January 28, 2013
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Vivek Y. Ranadivé, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TIBCO Software Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

b.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting;
and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: January 28, 2013

/s/ Vivek Y. Ranadivé
Vivek Y. Ranadivé
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Sydney L. Carey, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of TIBCO Software Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

b.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting;
and

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: January 28, 2013

/s/ Sydney L. Carey
Sydney L. Carey
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1
TIBCO SOFTWARE INC.
CERTIFICATION
I, Vivek Y. Ranadivé, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of TIBCO Software Inc. (the “Company”), do hereby certify, pursuant
to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to my
knowledge:
(a)

the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Exchange Act; and

(b)

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: January 28, 2013
/s/ Vivek Y. Ranadivé
Vivek Y. Ranadivé
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2
TIBCO SOFTWARE INC.
CERTIFICATION
I, Sydney L. Carey, Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of TIBCO Software Inc. (the “Company”), do hereby certify,
pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that,
to my knowledge:
(a)

the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Exchange Act; and

(b)

the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

Dated: January 28, 2013
/s/ Sydney L. Carey
Sydney L. Carey
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
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Accrued Restructuring and
12 Months Ended
Acquisition Integration
Nov. 30, 2012
Costs (Tables)
Restructuring Costs
[Abstract]
Accrued Restructuring And
The following is a summary of activities in accrued restructuring and integration costs for each of the three
Integration Costs
fiscal years ended November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):
Accrued Excess Facilities

As of November 30,
2009

Acquisition
Integration

Restructuring

$

$

$

Acquisition
integration
costs

5,811

—

Adjustment

(250)

Cash utilized
As of November 30,
2010

(5,423)
$

138

Restructuring

Subtotal

—

$ 6,211

$

$

$

—

—

—

—

1,748

400

(344)

159

1,498

—

5,455

5,455

6,953

(6,591)

(868)

(3,357)

(4,225)

(10,816)

—

—

2,405

2,405

—

6,521

6,521

8,926

(138)

(15)

(11)

(3,358)

(3,369)

(4,069)

—

$

41

—

(41)

—

—

$

159

—

Cash utilized
As of November 30,
2012

$ 6,931

—

Restructuring
charges

—

$

—

$

—

720

—

Cash utilized

56

159

—

—

—

$

(824)

720

Total

$ 1,118

Restructuring
charges

$

Subtotal

Acquisition
Integration

924

Acquisition
integration
costs

As of November 30,
2011

Accrued Severance and Other

Headquarter
Facilities

(547)
$

$

2,782

$

(700)
$ 2,823

$

11

—

$

2,098

$ 2,109

(242)

$

5,019

(242)

$ 5,019

$ 3,227

(242)

$ 7,842

(312)

(353)

—

(295)

(295)

(648)

(1,139)

(1,139)

—

(4,519)

(4,519)

(5,658)

1,331

$ 1,331
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$

—

$

205

$

205

$ 1,536

Investments (Summary Of
Marketable Securities
Classified As Available-ForNov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
Sale) (Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Investments [Line Items]
Purchased/Amortized Cost
$ 411,461
$ 17,424
Gross Unrealized Gains
87
51
Gross Unrealized Losses
(62)
(26)
Aggregate Fair Value
411,486
17,449
Money market funds
Investments [Line Items]
Purchased/Amortized Cost
376,480
16,664
Aggregate Fair Value
376,480
16,664
Corporate bonds and Commercial paper
Investments [Line Items]
Purchased/Amortized Cost
24,558
Gross Unrealized Gains
9
Gross Unrealized Losses
(9)
Aggregate Fair Value
24,558
U.S Government debt and agency securities
Investments [Line Items]
Purchased/Amortized Cost
9,646
Gross Unrealized Gains
0
Gross Unrealized Losses
(1)
Aggregate Fair Value
9,645
Term deposits
Investments [Line Items]
Purchased/Amortized Cost
595
560
Aggregate Fair Value
595
560
Mortgage-backed securities
Investments [Line Items]
Purchased/Amortized Cost
182
200
Gross Unrealized Gains
78
51
Gross Unrealized Losses
(52)
(26)
Aggregate Fair Value
$ 208
$ 225
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Selected Quarterly Financial
Information (Unaudited)
(Tables)
Quarterly Financial Information
Disclosure [Abstract]
Schedule Of Selected Quarterly
Financial Information

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Three Months Ended
November 30,
2012

Total revenue
Gross profit
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Provision for income taxes
Net income attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.
Net income per share attributable
to TIBCO Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted
Shares used in computing net
income per share attributable to
TIBCO Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted

$

$
$

August 31,
2012

May 31,
2012

February 28,
2012

296,527
220,938
147,886
73,052
15,300

$ 255,021
182,772
139,620
43,152
7,400

$ 247,363
178,476
141,117
37,359
7,200

$ 225,702
159,612
135,459
24,153
3,300

48,788

26,086

26,492

20,641

0.30
0.29

$
$

0.16
0.15

$
$

0.17
0.16

$
$

160,437
169,477

0.13
0.12

160,115
169,284

159,308
169,165

161,460
170,866

November 30,
2011

August 31,
2011

May 31,
2011

February 28,
2011

289,511
220,164
149,919
70,245
17,504

$ 228,973
165,619
129,031
36,588
11,800

$ 216,421
154,694
125,965
28,729
6,000

$ 185,341
132,394
113,529
18,865
1,996

51,878

23,529

21,046

15,953

Three Months Ended

Total revenue
Gross profit
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Provision for income taxes
Net income attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.
Net income per share attributable
to TIBCO Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted
Shares used in computing net
income per share attributable to
TIBCO Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted

$

$
$

0.32
0.30

161,586
171,978
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$
$

0.15
0.14

161,876
172,957

$
$

0.13
0.12

161,911
174,666

$
$

0.10
0.09

160,503
173,486

Accrued Restructuring and
Acquisition Integration
Costs (Accrued
Restructuring And
Integration Costs) (Details)
(USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Restructuring Reserve [Roll Forward]
Restructuring reserve, beginning balance
Acquisition integration costs
Adjustment
Restructuring charges
Cash utilized
Restructuring reserve, ending balance
Accrued Excess Facilities
Restructuring Reserve [Roll Forward]
Restructuring reserve, beginning balance
Acquisition integration costs
Adjustment
Restructuring charges
Cash utilized
Restructuring reserve, ending balance
Accrued Excess Facilities | Headquarter Facilities
Restructuring Reserve [Roll Forward]
Restructuring reserve, beginning balance
Adjustment
Restructuring charges
Cash utilized
Restructuring reserve, ending balance
Accrued Excess Facilities | Acquisition Integration
Restructuring Reserve [Roll Forward]
Restructuring reserve, beginning balance
Acquisition integration costs
Restructuring charges
Cash utilized
Restructuring reserve, ending balance
Accrued Excess Facilities | Restructuring
Restructuring Reserve [Roll Forward]
Restructuring reserve, beginning balance
Adjustment
Restructuring charges
Cash utilized
Restructuring reserve, ending balance

12 Months Ended

Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011 Nov. 30, 2010

$ 7,842

$ 3,227
(242)

(648)
(5,658)
1,536

8,926
(4,069)
7,842

2,823

1,118
0

(353)
(1,139)
1,331

2,405
(700)
2,823

0

138

0
0

0
(138)
0

41

56

400
0

(41)
0
0

(15)
41

(344)
56

2,782

924

0
1,748

(312)
(1,139)
1,331

2,405
(547)
2,782
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$ 6,931
159
6,953
6,953
(10,816)
3,227

6,211
0
1,498
(6,591)
1,118

5,811
(250)
(5,423)
138

(824)
924

Accrued Severance and Other
Restructuring Reserve [Roll Forward]
Restructuring reserve, beginning balance
5,019
Acquisition integration costs
Adjustment
Restructuring charges
(295)
Cash utilized
(4,519)
Restructuring reserve, ending balance
205
Accrued Severance and Other | Acquisition Integration
Restructuring Reserve [Roll Forward]
Restructuring reserve, beginning balance
0
Acquisition integration costs
Adjustment
Cash utilized
0
Restructuring reserve, ending balance
0
Accrued Severance and Other | Restructuring
Restructuring Reserve [Roll Forward]
Restructuring reserve, beginning balance
5,019
Acquisition integration costs
Adjustment
Restructuring charges
(295)
Cash utilized
(4,519)
Restructuring reserve, ending balance
$ 205

2,109
(242)
6,521
(3,369)
5,019

11

(11)
0

2,098
(242)
6,521
(3,358)
$ 5,019
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720
159
5,455
(4,225)
2,109

720
159
0
(868)
11

0
0
5,455
(3,357)
$ 2,098

Investments (Summary Of
Contractual Maturities Of
Fixed Income Securities
Included In Short-Term
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
Investments) (Details) (USD
$)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Investments [Line Items]
Aggregate Fair Value
$ 411,486
$ 17,449
Short-Term Investments
Investments [Line Items]
Contractual maturities, Less than one year 22,733
0
Contractual maturities, One to three years 11,678
225
Aggregate Fair Value
$ 34,411
$ 225
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TIBCO Software Inc.
12 Months Ended
Stockholders' Equity
(Summary Activity Of Stock
Repurchase Programs)
(Details) (USD $)
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011 Nov. 30, 2010
In Thousands, except Per
Share data, unless otherwise
specified
Stockholders Equity Note [Line Items]
Cash used for repurchases
$ 220,265
$ 194,059
$ 204,280
Average price per share
$ 28.96
$ 26.55
$ 13.54
Common Stock
Stockholders Equity Note [Line Items]
Shares repurchased
7,606
7,310
15,084
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Net Income Per Share
(Tables)
Earnings Per Share [Abstract]
Computation Of Basic And Diluted
Net Income Per Share

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per
share for the periods indicated (in thousands, except per share data):
Year Ended November 30,

Net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.

2012

2011

$ 122,007

$ 112,406

160,330

161,469

160,959

6,677
2,683
8

9,549
2,245
9

7,949
2,042
3

169,698

173,272

170,953

Weighted-average shares of common stock used
in computing basic net income per share
(excluding unvested restricted stock)
Effect of dilutive common stock equivalents:
Stock options
Stock awards
ESPP
Weighted-average shares of common stock used
in computing diluted net income per share
Net Income per share attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.:
Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share

2010

$

78,088

$

0.76

$

0.70

$

0.49

$

0.72

$

0.65

$

0.46

The following potential weighted-average common stock equivalents are not
Anti-Dilutive Effect Of Shares Not
included
in the diluted net income per share calculation above, because their effect was
Included In Computation Of Diluted
anti-dilutive for the periods indicated (in thousands):
Net Income Per Share
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Stock options
Stock awards
Convertible senior notes
Total anti-dilutive common stock equivalents
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2011

2010

1,738
291
7,542

1,264
404
—

4,487
76
—

9,571

1,668

4,563

Business Combinations
(Tables)
Business Combinations
[Abstract]
Preliminary Purchase Price
Allocation Of The Business
Acquisitions

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

The preliminary allocation of the purchase price for the LogLogic acquisition is as follows
(in thousands):

Cash
Accounts receivable (approximate contractual value)
Other assets
Deferred income tax asset, net
Identifiable intangible assets
Goodwill
Liabilities

$

Deferred revenue
Total preliminary purchase price

Identifiable Intangible Assets
Subject To Amortization

$

136,629

Identifiable intangible assets (in thousands, except amortization period):
Gross Amount
at Acquisition
Date

Existing technology

$

Customer base
Maintenance agreements
Trademarks
$

Pro Forma Adjusted Summary

5,018
5,359
1,524
4,371
61,200
73,460
(7,006)
(7,297)

Weighted Average
Amortization
Period

32,800
3,200
22,300
2,900

6.0 years
6.0 years
7.0 years

61,200

6.4 years

7.0 years

The following unaudited pro forma adjusted summary is for informational purposes only
and is not intended to be indicative of future results of operations or whether similar results
would have been achieved if the acquisitions had taken place at the beginning of fiscal year 2011
(in thousands, except per share amounts):
Year Ended
November 30,
2012

2011
(Unaudited)

Pro forma adjusted total revenue

$ 1,037,418

$ 970,467

Pro forma adjusted net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.

$

116,867

$ 103,262

Pro forma adjusted net income per share attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.:
Basic

$

0.73

$

0.64

$

0.69

$

0.60

Diluted
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Stock Benefit Plans and
Stock-Based Compensation
(Narrative) (Details) (USD $)
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award [Line Items]
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award,
Equity Instruments Other than Options, Grants in Period
Number of shares underlying stock options outstanding
Number of shares underlying stock awards
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised
Fair value of stock options vested and expensed
Total tax benefits realized from exercise of stock options and vesting of
stock awards
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
Total fair value of shares vested pursuant to stock awards
Stock-based compensation
Deferred tax benefit on stock-based compensation expenses
2008 Equity Incentive Plan
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award [Line Items]
Number of shares available for grant or issuance
Number of shares underlying stock options outstanding
1996 Stock Option Plan
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award [Line Items]
Number of shares underlying stock options outstanding
Award vesting period
1998 Plan Prior To December 1, 2005
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award [Line Items]
Contractual term from date of grant
1998 Plan On Or After December 1, 2005
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award [Line Items]
Contractual term from date of grant
2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award [Line Items]
Number of shares underlying stock options outstanding
Shares reserved for future issuance
Minimum rate paid on fair market value of common stock
Maximum contribution paid by participants
2009 Deferred Compensation Plan
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, Nov. 30, Nov. 30,
2012
2011
2010

2,764,000
12,199,000 15,964,000
9,420,000 9,212,000
$
$
$
73,700,000 136,800,000 67,300,000
40,700,000 32,200,000 21,500,000
24,600,000 8,600,000

30,600,000

30,311,000 41,950,000
24,300,000 18,900,000
61,146,000 48,867,000
20,500,000 16,500,000

21,510,000
2,100,000
32,248,000
10,700,000

5,900,000
9,700,000

7,900,000
4 years

10 years

7 years

200,000
8,600,000
85.00%
$ 2,500

Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award [Line Items]
Number of shares available for grant or issuance
Service Based Stock Awards [Member] | Minimum
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award [Line Items]
Estimated vesting or requisite service period (in years) of the share awards
Service Based Stock Awards [Member] | Maximum
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award [Line Items]
Estimated vesting or requisite service period (in years) of the share awards
Performance Based Restricted Stock Units
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award [Line Items]
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award,
Equity Instruments Other than Options, Grants in Period
Number of shares underlying stock awards
Performance Based Restricted Stock Units | Condition For Fiscal Year 2012
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment
Award [Line Items]
Non-GAAP earnings per share minimum
Cumulative Non-GAAP earnings per share, minimum
Share based compensation performance period
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981,000

3 years

4 years

685,000

300,000

4,770,000 4,346,000

$ 1.00
$ 2.40
3 years

Other Balance Sheet
Components (Details) (USD
$)
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Accrued liabilities:
Compensation and benefits
$ 65,963
$ 76,979
Taxes
25,275
18,503
Current deferred tax liability 3,196
5,743
Other
39,162
27,943
Total accrued liabilities
133,596
129,168
Deferred revenue:
License
25,221
6,820
Service and maintenance
238,255
203,414
Total deferred revenue, current $ 263,476
$ 210,234
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Income Taxes (Components
Of Deferred Tax Assets
(Liabilities)) (Details) (USD
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
$)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract]
Net operating loss carryforwards
$ 62,616
$ 46,375
Reserves, accruals and foreign related items
13,204
19,409
Credit carryforwards
18,534
14,930
Depreciation and amortization
10,073
12,760
Unrealized losses on investments
0
5,043
Deferred revenue
8,746
6,231
Translation gains/losses
5,673
6,772
Stock compensation expense
28,690
19,727
Other
94
1,374
Deferred tax assets, gross
147,630
132,621
Intangible assets
(37,590)
(28,390)
Convertible debt
(26,573)
0
Unbilled receivable
0
(4,407)
Other
(884)
(2,453)
Deferred tax liabilities, gross
(65,047)
(35,250)
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 82,583
97,371
Valuation allowance
0
(5,592)
Net deferred tax assets
$ 82,583
$ 91,779
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12
Months
Ended
Fair Value Measurements
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012
and Derivative Instruments
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2012
Nov. 30, 2012
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
Nov. 30, 2012
EURO
EURO
EURO
EURO
EURO
EURO
EURO
EURO
EURO
EURO
EURO
(Foreign Currency Forward
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
USD
Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated
Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated
EURO
Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated
Contracts) (Details)
Nov. 30,
Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated Denominated
Denominated Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward Denominated Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
In Thousands, unless
2012
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Forward
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Forward
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
otherwise specified
currency
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts
Contracts Australian Australian
Brazilian
Brazilian
British
British
Canadian
Canadian
Singapore
Singapore New Taiwan New Taiwan Hong Kong Hong Kong Contracts
British
British
British
Canadian
Canadian
Canadian
Swedish
Swedish
Swedish United States United States
Euro
Euro
Indian rupee Indian rupee Japanese yen Japanese yen
USD ($)
dollar
dollar
real
real
pound
pound
dollar
dollar
dollar
dollar
dollar
dollar
dollar
dollar
USD ($)
pound
pound
pound
dollar
dollar
dollar
krona
krona
krona
dollar
dollar
USD ($)
EUR (€)
USD ($)
INR
USD ($)
JPY (¥)
USD ($)
AUD
USD ($)
BRL
USD ($)
GBP (£)
USD ($)
CAD
USD ($)
SGD
USD ($)
TWD
USD ($)
HKD
USD ($)
EUR (€)
GBP (£)
USD ($)
CAD
EUR (€)
USD ($)
EUR (€)
SEK
USD ($)
EUR (€)
Fair Value Measurements
and Derivative Instruments
[Line Items]
Number of foreign currencies 25
Notional Value, Forward
$ 9,357
9,000
$ 1,170
2,500
$ 4,326
£ 2,700
$ 5,004
4,980
$ 43,560
€ 33,500
$ 1,177
64,000
$ 4,188
¥ 345,000
$ 1,147
1,400
$ 1,066
31,000
1,200
€ 928
contracts sold
Notional Value, Forward
19,867
12,400
483
480
890
6,900
7,394
6,000
3,636
31,500
48,300
37,145
contracts bought
Fair Value Gain (Loss)
Fair Value Gain (Loss)
Fair Value Gain (Loss)

(1)

56

1
(118)

5
4

5

6

(5)

0

(5)

1
0

$ (52)

5
$ 23
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5

12

Legal Proceedings (Details)

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012
defendant

Legal Proceedings [Abstract]
Number of companies challenged in underwriting practices in initial public offerings 14
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Income Taxes (Income
12 Months Ended
Before Provision For Income
Taxes) (Details) (USD $)
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011 Nov. 30, 2010
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract]
United States
$ 33,056
$ 51,159
$ 84,671
International
122,258
98,776
26,201
Income before provision for income taxes $ 155,314
$ 149,935
$ 110,872
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Stock Benefit Plans and
12 Months
Stock-Based Compensation
Ended
(Summary Of Nonvested
Stock Awards) (Details)
Nov. Nov.
(USD $)
30,
30,
In Thousands, except Per
2012 2011
Share data, unless otherwise
specified
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity
Instruments Other than Options, Nonvested, Number of Shares [Roll Forward]
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Nonvested at November 30, 2011
9,212
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Granted
2,764
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Vested
(2,028)
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Forfeited
(528)
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Nonvested at November 30, 2012
9,420
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity
Instruments Other than Options, Nonvested, Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value [Roll
Forward]
Weighted-Average Grant Date Fair Value, Nonvested at November 30, 2011
12.71
Weighted-Average Grant Date Fair Value, Granted
25.77
Weighted-Average Grant Date Fair Value, Vested
13.06
Weighted-Average Grant Date Fair Value, Forfeited
11.81
Weighted-Average Grant Date Fair Value, Nonvested at November 30, 2012
16.51
Restricted Stock
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity
Instruments Other than Options, Nonvested, Number of Shares [Roll Forward]
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Nonvested at November 30, 2011
3,443
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Granted
1,387
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Vested
(1,431)
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Forfeited
(272)
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Nonvested at November 30, 2012
3,127
Restricted Stock Units
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity
Instruments Other than Options, Nonvested, Number of Shares [Roll Forward]
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Nonvested at November 30, 2011
1,423
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Granted
692
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Vested
(491)
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Forfeited
(101)
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Nonvested at November 30, 2012
1,523
Performance Based Restricted Stock Units
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Equity
Instruments Other than Options, Nonvested, Number of Shares [Roll Forward]
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Nonvested at November 30, 2011
4,346
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Granted
685
300
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Vested
(106)
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Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Forfeited
Total Number of Shares Underlying Stock Awards, Nonvested at November 30, 2012
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(155)
4,770 4,346

Income Taxes (Significant
3 Months Ended
12 Months Ended
Components Of Provision
For (Benefit From) Income Nov. Aug. May Feb. Nov. Aug. May Feb. Nov. Nov. Nov.
Taxes) (Details) (USD $)
30,
31,
31,
28,
30,
31,
31,
28,
30,
30,
30,
In Thousands, unless
2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011 2012 2011 2010
otherwise specified
Income Tax Disclosure
[Abstract]
Current, Federal
$
$
$
29,554 14,619 25,140
Deferred, Federal
(12,231) 2,364 (1,353)
Total Federal
17,323 16,983 23,787
Current, State
1,078 1,925 3,425
Deferred, State
(2,345) 1,341 (1,155)
Total State
(1,267) 3,266 2,270
Current, Foreign
22,919 19,490 12,314
Deferred, Foreign
(5,775) (2,439) (5,970)
Total Foreign
17,144 17,051 6,344
Provision for income taxes
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
15,300 7,400 7,200 3,300 17,504 11,800 6,000 1,996 33,200 37,300 32,401
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12 Months Ended
TIBCO Software Inc.
Stockholders' Equity
Nov. 30,
(Narrative) (Details) (USD $) Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
2010

0 Months 12 Months 1 Months 2 Months
Ended
Ended
Ended
Ended

12 Months Ended

Nov. 30,
Mar. 29,
Nov. 30,
Dec. 31, Jan. 20, Nov. 30, Nov. 30, Nov. 30, Nov. 30,
Nov. 30, Nov. 30,
2012
2012
2012
2010
2013
2012
2012
2011
2010
2012
2011
Series A
April 2012 April 2012 December December December Retained Retained Retained
Restricted Restricted
Preferred
Plan
Plan
2010 Plan 2010 Plan 2012 Plan Earnings Earnings Earnings
Stock
Stock
Stock

Stockholders Equity Note
[Line Items]
Preferred stock, shares
75,000,000
25,000,000
authorized
Preferred stock, par value (usd
$ 0.001
per share)
Preferred stock, shares issued 0
Preferred stock, shares
0
outstanding
Stock right exercise ratio
0.001
Common stock, shares
1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000
authorized
Common stock, par value (usd
$ 0.001
$ 0.001
per share)
Common stock, shares issued 163,698,000 166,287,000
Common stock, shares
163,698,000 166,287,000
outstanding
Restricted stock, shares
9,420,000
9,212,000
3,127,000 3,443,000
Preferred stock right,
March 5,
expiration date
2014
Percentage of outstanding
shares of common stock
15.00%
acquired
Preferred stock right, exercise
$ 70
price
Preferred stock right triggering
50.00%
threshold
Preferred stock right, common one share of
stock valuation equivalent
our common
stock per
Right
Preferred stock right,
$ 0.001
redemption price
Stock repurchase program,
$
$
authorized amount
300,000,000
300,000,000
Stock repurchase program
remaining authorized
38,400,000
repurchase amount, cancelled
Remaining repurchase amount
147,300,000
authorized from new program
Shares repurchased
1,000,000
Average price per share
$ 28.96
$ 26.55
$ 13.54
$ 21.87
Common stock repurchased
$
$
$
$
$ 220,265,000 $ 194,059,000
and retired
204,280,000
85,665,000 99,664,000 116,608,000
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1
12
Months Months
Ended Ended
Debt and Credit Facilities
(Details) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

12
0 Months 1 Months
Months
Ended
Ended
Ended

Jul. 01,
Dec. 31, Nov. Nov.
Nov. 30,
Nov. Nov.
2013
Nov. 30,
2011
30,
30,
Nov. 30, Nov. 30,
2012
Nov. 30,
Nov.
Jul. 01, Jun. 30, Nov. 30, Nov. 30, May 31, Jul. 01,
30,
30,
Repayment
Nov.
2012
Cash
2012 2012
2012
2011
Additional Nov. 30, Nov. 30,
2012
30,
2013
2003
2012
2011
2007
2013
2012 2012
of Debt
30,
Revolving Borrowing Letters Letters Guarantee Guarantee Borrowings 2012
2012 Minimum
2012
Mortgage Mortgage Mortgage Mortgage Mortgage
Cash
Letters Swing
July 1,
2011
Line Of
And
Of
Of
Credit
Credit For Letters Maximum Minimum Mortgage
Y
Note
Note
Note
Note
Note Borrowings Of
Line
2013
Credit Letter Of Credit Credit
Line
Line
Of Credit
Note
Credit Loans
Mortgage
Credit
One Two
Or Cash
Note

Jun.
30,
2003

Line of Credit Facility [Line
Items]
Mortgage note payable, face
$ 54.0
amount
Debt principal
Mortgage note payable
amortization period (years)
Mortgage note payable fixed
interest rate
Term on principal balance (in
years)
Debt maturity date
Minimum cash reserve for
acquiring another company
without consent of lender
Revolving credit facility,
maximum capacity
Line Of Credit Facility
Maximum Borrowing
Capacity Increase
Line Of Credit Facility
Potential Maximum
Borrowing Capacity
Basis spread on variable rate
Spread over LIBOR
Base rate spread over federal
fund rate
LIBOR interest period (in
months)
Base rate spread over LIBOR
Loan origination fee and
issuance costs
Interest expense amortization
period (in years)
Default applicable interest rate
on all obligations
Interest coverage ratio
Leverage ratio
Leverage ratio one year from
second quarter of current fiscal
year
Leverage ratio two years from
second quarter of current fiscal
year
Revolving credit facility
amount outstanding
Renewal period (in years)
Guarantee facility, maximum
capacity
Bank guarantees
Restricted cash

12
Months
Ended

$ 54.0
35.7

38.1

34.4

20 years
5.50%
10 years
Jul. 01,
2013
50.0
250.0

50.0

10.0 20.0

20.0
100.0

350.0
1.25%
2.25%

0.25%
1.25%

0.50%
1
month
1.00%
3.4
5
2.00%
3.5
3.25
3.00

2.75
13.0

1.0

1 year
13.0
12.5
$ 14.6

$
13.8
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11.4

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Noncontrolling Interest
Stockholders' Equity
Attributable to
Noncontrolling Interest
[Abstract]
Noncontrolling Interest

Noncontrolling Interest
In the first quarter of fiscal year 2007, we established a joint venture in South Africa, TS
Innovations Limited ("Innovations"), with a local South Africa corporation, to assist with our
sales efforts as well as to provide consulting services and training to our customers in the SubSaharan Africa region. As of November 30, 2012 and 2011, Innovations had total assets of $6.1
million and $5.0 million, respectively. For the years ended November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
Innovations had total revenues of $10.5 million, $13.1 million and $13.2 million, respectively. As
of November 30, 2012, we owned a 74.9% interest in the joint venture. Because of this majority
interest, our Consolidated Financial Statements include the balance sheets, results of operations
and cash flows of Innovations, net of intercompany charges. We accordingly eliminated 25.1% of
financial results that pertain to the noncontrolling interest; the eliminated amount was reported as
a separate line on our Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Summary of Significant
12 Months Ended
Accounting Policies
(Summary Of Estimated
Nov. 30, 2012
Useful Lives Of Property
And Equipment) (Details)
Buildings
Significant Accounting Policies [Line Items]
Property and equipment, useful life
25 years
Furniture and fixtures
Significant Accounting Policies [Line Items]
Property and equipment, useful life
5 years
Facilities improvements
Significant Accounting Policies [Line Items]
Property and equipment, estimated useful life Shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life
Minimum | Equipment and software
Significant Accounting Policies [Line Items]
Property and equipment, useful life
2 years
Maximum | Equipment and software
Significant Accounting Policies [Line Items]
Property and equipment, useful life
5 years
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TIBCO Software Inc.
Stockholders' Equity
(Tables)
Stockholders' Equity Note
[Abstract]
Summary Activity Of Stock
Repurchase Programs

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

All repurchased shares of common stock have been retired. The following table summarizes
the activities under the stock repurchase programs for the periods indicated (in thousands, except
per share data):
Year Ended November 30,

Cash used for repurchases

2012

2011

2010

$ 220,265

$ 194,059

$ 204,280

7,606

7,310

15,084

Shares repurchased
Average price per share
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$

28.96

$

26.55

$

13.54

Commitments and
Contingencies (Summary Of
Contractual Commitments)
(Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified

Nov. 30, 2012

Commitments:
Debt principal, Total

$ 635,711

[1]

Debt principal, 2013

35,711

[1]

Debt principal, 2014

0
0
0
600,000
0
62,033
14,783
13,500
13,500
13,500
6,750
0
41,455
11,753
9,598
6,623
5,420
3,746
4,315
739,199
62,247
23,098
20,123
18,920
610,496
$ 4,315

[1]

Debt principal, 2015
Debt principal, 2016
Debt principal, 2017
Debt principal, Thereafter
Debt interest, Total
Debt interest, 2013
Debt interest, 2014
Debt interest, 2015
Debt interest, 2016
Debt interest, 2017
Debt interest, Thereafter
Operating leases, Total
Operating leases, 2013
Operating leases, 2014
Operating leases, 2015
Operating leases, 2016
Operating leases, 2017
Operating leases, Thereafter
Total commitments
Total commitments, 2013
Total commitments, 2014
Total commitments, 2015
Total commitments, 2016
Total commitments, 2017
Total commitments, Thereafter

[1] Operating leases include future minimum rent payments, net of estimated sublease income, for facilities that
we have vacated pursuant to our restructuring activities, as discussed in Note 9.
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Related Party Transactions
(Details) (Affiliated Entity,
USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise
specified

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30,
2012

Affiliated Entity
Related Party Transaction [Line Items]
Revenues received from related party transactions
$ 9.2
Accounts receivable from related parties
0.1
Expenses from transactions with related party, for which no payment was
$ 0.2
received
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Nov. 30,
2011

$ 12.9
1.1

Nov. 30,
2010

$ 13.9

Property and Equipment
(Tables)
Property, Plant and Equipment [Abstract]
Schedule Of Property And Equipment

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012
Property and equipment by category is as follows (in thousands):
November 30,

Buildings
Equipment and software
Furniture and fixtures
Facility improvements
Less: Accumulated depreciation

2012

2011

$ 77,938
64,956
8,475
58,118

$ 77,938
58,021
6,923
51,016

209,487
(111,013)
$ 98,474
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193,898
(104,027)
$ 89,871

Business Combinations
12 Months Ended
(Acquisition Of LogLogic,
Inc.) (Details) (LogLogic,
Inc., USD $)
Nov. 30, 2012
Apr. 10, 2012
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Business Acquisition [Line Items]
Cash
$ 5,018
Accounts receivable (approximate contractual value)
5,359
Other assets
1,524
Deferred income tax asset, net
4,371
Identifiable intangible assets
61,200
Goodwill
73,460
Liabilities
(7,006)
Deferred revenue
(7,297)
Total preliminary purchase price
136,629
Weighted Average Amortization Period
6 years 4 months 18 days
Existing technology
Business Acquisition [Line Items]
Identifiable intangible assets
32,800
Weighted Average Amortization Period
6 years
Customer base
Business Acquisition [Line Items]
Identifiable intangible assets
3,200
Weighted Average Amortization Period
6 years
Maintenance agreements
Business Acquisition [Line Items]
Identifiable intangible assets
22,300
Weighted Average Amortization Period
7 years
Trademarks
Business Acquisition [Line Items]
Identifiable intangible assets
$ 2,900
Weighted Average Amortization Period
7 years
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Goodwill and Other
Acquired Intangible Assets
(Schedule Of Carrying
Values Of Amortized
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
Acquired Intangible Assets)
(Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Acquired Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Accumulated Amortization, intangible assets subject to amortization $ (243,830) $ (206,846)
Total intangible assets, Gross Carrying Amount
367,091
304,104
Total intangible assets, net
123,261
97,258
Developed technologies
Acquired Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Gross Carrying Amount, intangible assets subject to amortization 182,152
146,289
Accumulated Amortization, intangible assets subject to amortization (118,992)
(102,034)
Total intangible assets subject to amortization
63,160
44,255
Customer base
Acquired Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Gross Carrying Amount, intangible assets subject to amortization 59,525
56,165
Accumulated Amortization, intangible assets subject to amortization (43,328)
(37,376)
Total intangible assets subject to amortization
16,197
18,789
Patents/core technologies
Acquired Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Gross Carrying Amount, intangible assets subject to amortization 28,295
27,922
Accumulated Amortization, intangible assets subject to amortization (24,198)
(21,542)
Total intangible assets subject to amortization
4,097
6,380
Trademarks
Acquired Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Gross Carrying Amount, intangible assets subject to amortization 12,777
9,771
Accumulated Amortization, intangible assets subject to amortization (8,251)
(7,077)
Total intangible assets subject to amortization
4,526
2,694
Non-compete agreements
Acquired Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Gross Carrying Amount, intangible assets subject to amortization 580
580
Accumulated Amortization, intangible assets subject to amortization (580)
(580)
Total intangible assets subject to amortization
0
0
Maintenance agreements
Acquired Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Gross Carrying Amount, intangible assets subject to amortization 83,762
61,677
Accumulated Amortization, intangible assets subject to amortization (48,481)
(38,237)
Total intangible assets subject to amortization
35,281
23,440
In-process research and development
Acquired Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
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In-process research and development, Gross Carrying Amount
In-process research and development, Net Carrying Amount

0
$0
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1,700
$ 1,700

Accounts Receivable and
Allowances for Doubtful
Accounts, Returns and
Discounts (Schedule Of
Accounts Receivable)
(Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Accounts Receivable And Allowances For Doubtful Accounts,
Returns And Discounts [Abstract]
Accounts receivable
Unbilled fees for professional services
Gross accounts receivable
Less: Allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and discounts
Net accounts receivable

Nov. 30, Nov. 30, Nov. 30, Nov. 30,
2012
2011
2010
2009

$
220,286
19,420
239,706
(5,606)
$
234,100
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$
182,788
19,499
202,287
(5,868) (5,729)
$
196,419

(4,224)

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Segment Information
(Tables)
Segment Reporting
[Abstract]
Summary Of Revenue By
Geographic Region

Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

2010

$ 498,059
52,816

$ 456,862
47,870

$ 368,391
39,633

550,875

504,732

408,024

United Kingdom
Other EMEA

93,697
276,323

80,645
245,854

69,935
204,613

Total EMEA

370,020

326,499

274,548

103,718

89,015

71,435

$ 1,024,613

$ 920,246

$ 754,007

Americas:
United States
Other Americas
Total Americas
EMEA:

APJ

Our license revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 was derived from the following
Summary Of Percentage Of
three
product
solutions: SOA and core infrastructure, business optimization and process
License Revenue By Product
automation and collaboration.
Segment
Year Ended November 30,
2012

SOA and core infrastructure
Business optimization
Process automation and collaboration
Total license revenue

Summary Of Property And
Equipment By Major Country

2011

2010

50%
39
11

56%
33
11

62%
27
11

100%

100%

100%

Our property and equipment by major country are summarized as follows (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

Property and equipment, net:
United States
United Kingdom
Other
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$

83,516
1,191
13,767

$

83,500
1,386
4,985

$

98,474

$

89,871

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies
Accounting Policies
[Abstract]
Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of TIBCO and our whollyowned and majority-owned subsidiaries. Noncontrolling interest is reported as a separate
component of Consolidated Statements of Equity from the equity attributable to TIBCO's
stockholders for all periods presented. The noncontrolling interests in our Net Income have been
excluded from Net Income Attributable to TIBCO Software Inc in our Consolidated Statements
of Operations. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Fiscal Years
Our fiscal year is a twelve month period ending on November 30 of a stated year. For the
purpose of presentation, we refer to the fiscal years ended November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, as
our fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("GAAP") requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. We believe that the estimates, assumptions and judgments involved in
revenue recognition, allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and discounts, product
development costs, stock-based compensation, business combinations, legal contingencies,
realizability of goodwill, intangible assets and long-lived assets, and accounting for income taxes
have the greatest potential impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.
Revenue Recognition
License revenue consists principally of revenue earned under software license agreements.
License revenue is generally recognized when a signed contract or other persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exists, the software has been shipped or electronically delivered, the license fee is
fixed or determinable and collection of the resulting receivable is probable. When contracts
contain multiple software and software-related elements (for example, software license,
maintenance and professional services) wherein Vendor-Specific Objective Evidence ("VSOE")
exists for all undelivered elements, we account for the delivered elements in accordance with the
"Residual Method." VSOE of fair value for maintenance and support is established by a stated
renewal rate, if substantive, included in the license arrangement or rates charged in stand-alone
sales of maintenance and support. VSOE of fair value of consulting and training services is based
upon stand-alone sales of those services.
Provided all other revenue criteria are met, the upfront, minimum, non-refundable license
fees from original equipment manufacturer ("OEM") customers are recognized upon delivery, and
on-going royalty fees are recognized upon reports of units shipped. Revenue on shipments to
resellers is recognized when all revenue criteria are met, including evidence of sell-through to the
end-user, and is recorded net of related costs to the resellers. Revenue from subscription license
agreements, which include software, rights to unspecified future products and maintenance, is
recognized ratably over the term of the subscription period.
Maintenance revenue consists of fees for providing software updates on a when-and-if
available basis and technical support for software products ("post-contract customer support" or
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"PCS"). Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the agreement. Payments
received in advance of services performed are deferred.
Professional services revenue consists primarily of revenue received for assisting with the
implementation of our software, on-site support, training and other consulting services. Many
customers who license our software also enter into separate professional services arrangements
with us. In determining whether professional services revenue should be accounted for separately
from license revenue, we evaluate whether the professional services are considered essential to
the functionality of the software using factors such as the nature of our software products;
whether they are ready for use by the customer upon receipt; the nature of our implementation
services, which typically do not involve significant customization to or development of the
underlying software code; the availability of services from other vendors; whether the timing of
payments for license revenue is coincident with performance of services; and whether milestones
or acceptance criteria exist that affect the realizability of the software license fee. Substantially all
of our professional services arrangements are billed on a time and materials basis and,
accordingly, are recognized as the services are performed. Contracts with fixed or not-to-exceed
fees are recognized on a proportional performance model based on actual services performed. If
there is significant uncertainty about the project completion or receipt of payment for professional
services, revenue is deferred until the uncertainty is sufficiently resolved. Training revenue is
recognized as training services are delivered. Payments received in advance of consulting or
training services performed are deferred and recognized when the related services are performed.
Work performed and expenses incurred in advance of invoicing are recorded as unbilled
receivables. These amounts are billed in the subsequent month. Allowances for estimated future
returns and discounts are provided for upon recognition of revenue.
For arrangements that do not qualify for separate accounting for the license and professional
services revenues, including arrangements that involve significant modification or customization
of the software, that include milestones or customer specific acceptance criteria that may affect
collection of the software license fees or where payment for the software license is tied to the
performance of professional services, software license revenue is generally recognized together
with the professional services revenue using either the percentage-of-completion or completedcontract method. The completed contract method is used for contracts where there is a risk over
final acceptance by the customer or for contracts that are short term in nature. Under the
percentage-of-completion method, revenue recognized is equal to the ratio of costs expended to
date to the anticipated total contract costs, based on current estimates of costs to complete the
project. If there are milestones or acceptance provisions associated with the contract, the revenue
recognized will not exceed the most recent milestone achieved or acceptance obtained. If the total
estimated costs to complete a project exceed the total contract amount, indicating a loss, the entire
anticipated loss would be recognized in the current period.
In the first quarter of fiscal year 2011 we adopted the amended accounting guidance for
certain multiple deliverable revenue arrangements that:
• provides updated guidance on whether multiple deliverables exist, how the deliverables
in an arrangement should be separated, and how the consideration should be allocated;
• requires an entity to allocate revenue in an arrangement using the estimated selling
price ("ESP") of deliverables if a vendor does not have VSOE of selling price or third-party
evidence ("TPE") of selling price; and
• eliminates the use of the residual method and requires an entity to allocate revenue
using the relative selling price method.
We enter into multiple element revenue arrangements in which a customer may purchase a
combination of software licenses, hosting services, maintenance, professional services and
hardware. If a tangible hardware product includes software, we determine if the tangible
hardware and the software work together to deliver the product's essential functionality. If so, the
entire product is accounted for as a non-software deliverable; otherwise the hardware product and
the software are accounted for separately. For multiple element arrangements that contain nonsoftware related elements, for example our hosting services, we allocate revenue to each nonCopyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
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software element based upon the relative selling price of each, and if software and softwarerelated elements are also included in the arrangement, to those elements as a group based on our
ESP for the group. When applying the relative selling price method, we determine the selling
price for each deliverable using VSOE of selling price, if it exists, then TPE of selling price. If
neither VSOE nor TPE of selling price exist for a deliverable, we use our ESP for multiple
element arrangements that include non-software components. The objective of ESP is to
determine the price at which we would transact a sale if the product or service were sold on a
stand-alone basis. We determine ESP by considering multiple factors, including, but not limited
to, geographies, market conditions, competitive landscape, internal costs, gross margin objectives
and pricing practices. ESP is generally used for offerings that are not typically sold on a standalone basis or for new or highly customized offerings. Revenue allocated to each element is then
recognized when the basic revenue recognition criteria are met for each element. The manner in
which we account for multiple element arrangements that contain only software and softwarerelated elements remains unchanged.
We show revenue from sales of software licenses and hardware as license revenue, and
revenue from maintenance, professional services and hosting as services and maintenance
revenue in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Revenue recognized from hardware sales
represents less than 5% of total revenue.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The fair values of our financial instruments including accounts receivable, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities, mortgage note payable and revolving credit facility do not materially
differ from their carrying amounts due to their short maturities and, in the case of the revolving
credit facility, their variable, market-based interest rates. The fair values of our cash equivalents,
short-term investments and derivative instruments are detailed further in Note 5.
Concentration of Credit Risk
Our cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and accounts receivable are potentially
subject to concentration of credit risk. Cash, cash equivalents and investments are deposited with
financial institutions or invested in security issuers that management believes are creditworthy.
We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and, generally,
require no collateral from our customers. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts
receivable based on various factors, including our review of credit profiles of our customers,
contractual terms and conditions, current economic trends and historical payment experience; see
Note 6 for further details.
No customer accounted for more than 10% of total revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 or
2010. As of November 30, 2012 and 2011, no single customer had a balance in excess of 10% of
our net accounts receivable.
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments
We consider all highly liquid investment securities with remaining maturities at the date of
purchase of three months or less to be cash equivalents. We determine the appropriate
classification of marketable securities at the time of purchase and evaluate such designation as of
each balance sheet date. To date, all marketable securities have been classified as available-forsale and are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, if any, included as a component
of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) in Stockholders’ Equity. These availablefor-sale investments are presented as Current Assets as they are available for current operations.
Interest, dividends, realized gains and losses and impairment losses are included in Interest
Income and Other Income (Expense). Realized gains and losses and impairment losses are
recognized based on the specific identification method.
Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. These assets are
depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:
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Buildings
Equipment and software
Furniture and fixtures
Facilities improvements

25 years
2-5 years
5 years
Shorter of the lease term or the estimated
useful life

Depreciation expense for property and equipment was $14.9 million, $13.1 million and
$13.4 million in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Goodwill and In-Process Research and Development
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested
for impairment at least annually or as circumstances indicate that their value may no longer be
recoverable. We do not have intangible assets with indefinite useful lives other than goodwill. To
assess if goodwill is impaired we first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether
further impairment testing is necessary. If, as a result of the qualitative assessment, we consider it
more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, we
perform a quantitative impairment test. This includes a screening for an impairment and, in a
second step, the measuring of such impairment. We perform our goodwill impairment test
annually in our fourth fiscal quarter, and the last impairment test was completed for the fiscal
year ended November 30, 2012 when it was determined that the fair value was significantly in
excess of the carrying value. The guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets requires
impairment testing based on reporting units. We periodically re-evaluate our business and have
determined that we continue to operate in one segment, which we consider our sole reporting
unit. Therefore, goodwill was tested and will continue to be tested for impairment at the
enterprise level. To date, we have determined that there has been no impairment of goodwill.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
We evaluate the recoverability of our long-lived assets which includes amortizable
intangible and tangible assets in accordance with authoritative guidance on accounting for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. Acquired intangible assets with definite useful lives
are amortized over their useful lives. We evaluate long-lived assets, other than goodwill, for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these
assets may not be recoverable. We recognize such impairment in the event the net book value of
such assets exceeds their fair value. If the fair value of a long-lived asset exceeds its carrying
value of the net asset assigned, then the asset is not impaired and no further testing is performed.
If the carrying value of the net asset assigned exceeds the fair value of the asset, then we must
perform the second step of the impairment test in order to determine the implied fair value. No
long-lived assets impairment losses were incurred in the fiscal years presented.
Business Combinations
Under the accounting guidance for business combinations we recognize separately from
goodwill the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, at their fair values as of the date of the
acquisition. Goodwill as of the acquisition date is measured as the excess of consideration
transferred and the net of the acquisition date fair values of the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed.
While we use our best estimates and assumptions as a part of the purchase price allocation
process to accurately value assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the business combination
date, our estimates and assumptions are inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. As a
result, during the preliminary purchase price allocation period, which may be up to one year from
the business combination date, we record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, with the corresponding offset to goodwill. After the preliminary purchase price
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allocation period, we record adjustments to assets acquired or liabilities assumed subsequent to
the purchase price allocation period in our operating results in the period in which the
adjustments were determined.
The total purchase price allocated to the tangible assets acquired is assigned based on the
fair values as of the acquisition date. The fair value assigned to identifiable intangible assets
acquired is determined using the income approach which discounts expected future cash flows to
present value using estimations and assumptions determined by management. We believe that
these identified intangible assets will have no residual value after their estimated economic useful
lives. The identifiable intangible assets are subject to amortization on a straight-line basis as this
best approximates the benefit period related to these assets.
The excess of the purchase price over the identified tangible and intangible assets, less
liabilities assumed, is recorded as goodwill and primarily reflects the value of the synergies
expected to be generated from combining our and the acquired entities’ technology and
operations. Generally, none of the goodwill recorded in connection with the acquisitions is
deductible for income tax purposes.
Acquisition Related and Other
Acquisition related and other expenses consist of costs incurred after the issuance of a
definitive term sheet for a particular transaction (whether or not such transaction is ultimately
completed, remains in-process or is not completed) and include legal, banker, accounting and
other advisory fees of third parties and severance costs for employees of the acquired company
that are terminated within 90 days of the acquisition date. These costs include professional
services fees and employee severance.
Restructuring and Integration Costs
Our restructuring charges are comprised primarily of employee termination costs related to
headcount reductions, costs related to properties abandoned in connection with facilities
consolidation and related write-downs of leasehold improvements. A liability for costs associated
with an exit or disposal activity is recognized and measured initially at fair value only when the
liability is incurred. Our restructuring charges include accruals for estimated losses related to our
excess facilities, based on our contractual obligations, net of estimated sublease income. We
reassess the liability periodically based on market conditions.
Stock-Based Compensation
We utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing model for determining the estimated fair value
of our share-based awards. The Black-Scholes model requires the use of highly subjective and
complex assumptions which determine the fair value of share-based awards, including the
option’s expected term and the price volatility of the underlying stock. We determined that a
blend of implied volatility and historical volatility is more reflective of the market conditions and
a better indicator of expected volatility than historical volatility alone. The fair value of the
awards that are ultimately expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service periods
typically on a straight-line basis in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Forfeitures are
estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures
differ from those estimates.
Since fiscal year 2010, we have granted performance-based restricted stock units
("PRSUs") to our section 16 officers and certain other employees. We recognize the stock-based
compensation expense for our PRSUs based on the probability of achieving certain performance
criteria, as defined in the PRSU agreements. We then estimate the most probable period in which
the performance criteria will be met, if at all, and recognize the expense using the graded vesting
attribution method over the remaining recognition period. Due to the long-term nature of the
performance goals, assessing the probability of achieving these goals is a highly subjective
process that requires judgment. A deferred tax asset is recorded over the vesting period as stock
compensation cost is recorded. Our ability to realize the deferred tax asset is ultimately based on
the actual value of the stock-based awards upon release of the restricted stock unit. If the actual
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value is lower than the fair value determined on the date of grant, it would result in the reversal of
such deferred tax asset with an increase to our income tax expense for the portion of the deferred
tax asset that cannot be realized in that future period.
We utilize the "long form" method of calculating the tax effects of share-based
compensation. Under the "long form" method, we determined the beginning balance of the
additional paid-in capital pool ("APIC pool") related to the tax effects of the employee sharebased compensation "as if" we had adopted the recognition provisions of share-based payment
since its effective date of January 1, 1995. We also determined the subsequent impact on the
APIC pool and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of the tax effect of employee share–based
compensation awards that were issued after the adoption of the share-based payment guidance
and outstanding at the adoption date.
Consistent with prior years, we use the "with and without" approach in determining the
order in which our tax attributes in connection with excess stock option tax benefits are utilized.
The "with and without" approach results in the recognition of the windfall stock option tax
benefits only after all other tax attributes, except for pre-acquisition tax attributes of acquired
entities, have been considered in the annual tax accrual computation. Also consistent with prior
years, we consider the indirect effects of the windfall deduction on the computation of other tax
attributes, such as the R&D credit deduction, as an additional component of equity. This
incremental tax benefit is credited to additional paid in capital when realized.
Income Taxes
We make certain estimates and judgments in determining income tax expense for financial
statement purposes. These estimates and judgments occur in the calculation of certain tax assets
and liabilities, which arise from differences in the timing of recognition of revenue and expense
for tax and financial statement purposes.
We assess the likelihood that we will be able to recover our deferred tax assets on a morelikely-than-not basis. We consider all available evidence, both positive and negative, including
historical levels of income, expectations and risks associated with estimates of future taxable
income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the
valuation allowance. If it is not more likely than not that we expect to recover our deferred tax
assets, we will increase our provision for taxes by recording a valuation allowance against the
deferred tax assets that we estimate will not ultimately be recoverable.
Foreign Currencies
Most of our foreign subsidiaries use the local currency of their respective countries as their
functional currency. Assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at
exchange rates as of the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at average
exchange rates for the period. Cumulative translation adjustments are included as a component of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) in Stockholders’ Equity. Foreign currency
exchange gains and losses, derived from monetary assets and liabilities stated in a currency other
than the functional currency, are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. We
recorded foreign currency exchange losses of $(0.7) million, $(1.9) million and $(1.9) million in
fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, in Other Income (Expense) in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts
To manage currency exposure related to net assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, we enter into forward contracts. The gains and losses on these derivative instruments
are intended to offset the impact of foreign exchange rate changes on the underlying foreign
currency denominated assets and liabilities subject to remeasurement and transaction exposures,
and therefore, these forward contracts do not subject us to material balance sheet risk. We do not
enter into derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. These derivative instruments
are not designed for hedge accounting and are adjusted to fair value through Other Income
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(Expense) under the Consolidated Statements of Operations and recorded as assets or liabilities in
the Consolidated Balances Sheets.
Capitalized Software Development Costs
Capitalization of material software development costs begins when a product’s
technological feasibility has been established. We define technological feasibility as the
establishment of a working model, which typically occurs when beta testing commences. To date,
the period between achieving technological feasibility and the general availability of our software
products has been very short. Accordingly, our software development costs have been expensed
as incurred, with the exception of immaterial costs related to hosted services.
Costs related to software acquired, developed or modified solely for internal use, with no
substantive plans to market such software at the time of development, are capitalized. Costs
incurred during the preliminary planning and evaluation stage of the project and during post
implementation operational stage are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred during the application
development stage of the project are capitalized. These costs are included in Property and
Equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are depreciated on a straight line basis over
the useful life of the software.
Advertising Expense
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled approximately $3.0 million, $2.4
million and $2.5 million in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued an update to
Presentation of Comprehensive Income that requires an entity to present the total of
comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other
comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in
two separate but consecutive statements. The guidance eliminates the option to present the
components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of equity. The guidance is
effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal year 2013. We do not expect the adoption of this
update to have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.
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Accounts Receivable and
12 Months Ended
Allowances for Doubtful
Accounts, Returns and
Discounts (Summary Of
Activities In Allowances for
Doubtful Accounts, Returns
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011 Nov. 30, 2010
and Discounts) (Details)
(USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivable [Roll Forward]
Allowances Beginning Balance
$ 5,868
$ 5,729
$ 4,224
Charged Against Revenue
1,343
650
200
Charged to Expenses
559
100
0
Write-offs, Adjustments, Net of Recovery
(2,164)
(611)
1,305
Allowances Ending Balance
$ 5,606
$ 5,868
$ 5,729

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Stock Benefit Plans and
Stock-Based Compensation
(Tables)
Share-based Compensation
[Abstract]
Summary Of Stock Option Activity

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Number of
Shares
Underlying
Options

Stock Options

Outstanding at November 30, 2011
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or expired
Outstanding at November 30, 2012
Vested and expected to vest at
November 30, 2012
Exercisable at November 30, 2012

Summary Of Assumptions For
Estimating Fair Value Of StockBased Awards

Restricted
Stock

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

15,964 $
193
(3,560)
(398)

10.16
24.21
9.00
18.63

12,199

$

10.45

2.51 $ 180,399

11,973

$

10.48

2.46 $ 179,799

10,488

$

7.78

2.08 $ 172,886

Summary Of Nonvested Stock
Awards
Nonvested Stock Awards

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Term (year)

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

Restricted
Stock Units

Performancebased
Restricted
Stock Units

Total Number
of Shares
Underlying
Stock Awards

Nonvested at
November 30, 2011
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

3,443
1,387
(1,431)
(272)

1,423
692
(491)
(101)

4,346
685
(106)
(155)

Nonvested at
November 30, 2012

3,127

1,523

4,770

WeightedAverage
Grant Date
Fair Value

9,212 $
2,764
(2,028)
(528)
9,420

12.71
25.77
13.06
11.81
16.51

Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

2010

Stock Option grants:
Expected term of stock options (years)
Risk-free interest rate
Volatility
Weighted-average grant-date fair value
(per share)
Employee stock purchase plans:
Expected term of ESPP (years)
Risk-free interest rate
Volatility
Weighted-average grant-date fair value
(per share)
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4.8
0.7 1.5%
42 – 47%
$

9.91

0.5
0.1%
43 – 52%
$

7.62

4.8 – 5.1
0.9 2.1%
42 – 47%
$

10.70

4.8 – 5.1
1.3 – 2.4%
42 – 44%
$

0.5
0.2%
38 – 39%
$

6.56

4.99
0.5
0.2%
35 – 39%

$

2.87

12 Months Ended
Selected Quarterly Financial
Information (Unaudited)
Nov. 30, 2012
Quarterly Financial
Information Disclosure
[Abstract]
Selected Quarterly Financial Selected Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)
Information (Unaudited)
(in thousands, except per share data)
Three Months Ended
November 30,
2012

Total revenue
Gross profit
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Provision for income taxes
Net income attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.
Net income per share attributable to
TIBCO Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted
Shares used in computing net income
per share attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted

$

$
$

August 31,
2012

May 31,
2012

February 28,
2012

296,527
220,938
147,886
73,052
15,300

$ 255,021
182,772
139,620
43,152
7,400

$ 247,363
178,476
141,117
37,359
7,200

$ 225,702
159,612
135,459
24,153
3,300

48,788

26,086

26,492

20,641

0.30
0.29

$
$

160,115
169,284

0.16
0.15

$
$

159,308
169,165

0.17
0.16

$
$

160,437
169,477

0.13
0.12

161,460
170,866

Three Months Ended
November 30,
2011

Total revenue
Gross profit
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Provision for income taxes
Net income attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.
Net income per share attributable to
TIBCO Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted
Shares used in computing net income
per share attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.:
Basic
Diluted

$

$
$

August 31,
2011

May 31,
2011

February 28,
2011

289,511
220,164
149,919
70,245
17,504

$ 228,973
165,619
129,031
36,588
11,800

$ 216,421
154,694
125,965
28,729
6,000

$ 185,341
132,394
113,529
18,865
1,996

51,878

23,529

21,046

15,953

0.32
0.30

161,586
171,978
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$
$

0.15
0.14

161,876
172,957

$
$

0.13
0.12

161,911
174,666

$
$

0.10
0.09

160,503
173,486

Our operating results reflect seasonal trends experienced by us and many software
companies and are subject to fluctuations due to other factors. Our business, financial condition
and results of operations may be affected by such factors in the future. Therefore, we believe that
period-to-period comparisons of our consolidated financial results should not be relied upon as an
indication of future performance.
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Segment Information
Segment Reporting
[Abstract]
Segment Information

Segment Information
We operate our business in one operating segment: the development and marketing of a
suite of infrastructure software. Our chief operating decision maker is our Chief Executive
Officer, who reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis for purposes of
making operating decisions and assessing financial performance.
Our total revenue by geographic region, based on the location at which each sale originated,
is summarized as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

2010

$ 498,059
52,816

$ 456,862
47,870

$ 368,391
39,633

550,875

504,732

408,024

United Kingdom
Other EMEA

93,697
276,323

80,645
245,854

69,935
204,613

Total EMEA

370,020

326,499

274,548

103,718

89,015

71,435

$ 1,024,613

$ 920,246

$ 754,007

Americas:
United States
Other Americas
Total Americas
EMEA:

APJ

Our license revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 was derived from the following
three product solutions: SOA and core infrastructure, business optimization and process
automation and collaboration.
Year Ended November 30,
2012

SOA and core infrastructure
Business optimization
Process automation and collaboration
Total license revenue

2011

2010

50%
39
11

56%
33
11

62%
27
11

100%

100%

100%

Our property and equipment by major country are summarized as follows (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

Property and equipment, net:
United States
United Kingdom
Other
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$

83,516
1,191
13,767

$

83,500
1,386
4,985

$
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98,474

$

89,871

Fair Value Measurements
and Derivative Instruments
(Fair Value Of Cash
Equivalents, Marketable
Securities And Foreign
Currency Contracts)
(Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Total Fair Value
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Foreign currency forward contracts, Assets
Foreign currency forward contracts, Liabilities
Significant other Observable Inputs (Level 2)
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Foreign currency forward contracts, Assets
Foreign currency forward contracts, Liabilities
Money market funds | Total Fair Value
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Cash and cash equivalents
Money market funds | Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Cash and cash equivalents
Corporate bonds and Commercial paper | Total Fair Value
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Available-for-sale securities
Corporate bonds and Commercial paper | Significant other Observable Inputs (Level
2)
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Available-for-sale securities
U.S Government debt and agency securities | Total Fair Value
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Available-for-sale securities
U.S Government debt and agency securities | Significant other Observable Inputs
(Level 2)
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Available-for-sale securities
Term deposits | Total Fair Value
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Cash and cash equivalents
Term deposits | Significant other Observable Inputs (Level 2)
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Cash and cash equivalents
Mortgage-backed securities | Total Fair Value
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Nov. 30,
2012

Nov. 30,
2011

$ 101
130

$ 142
142

101
130

142
142

376,480

16,664

376,480

16,664

24,558

24,558

9,645

9,645

595

560

595

560

Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Available-for-sale securities
Mortgage-backed securities | Significant other Observable Inputs (Level 2)
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Available-for-sale securities
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208

225

$ 208

$ 225

Comprehensive Income
(Loss) (Tables)
Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of
Tax, Attributable to Parent [Abstract]
Components Of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

The balances of each component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income (Loss), net of taxes, consist of the following (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

Cumulative translation adjustment, net of
tax
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-forsale securities
Total accumulated other
comprehensive loss
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2011

2010

$ (17,436) $ (21,057) $ (22,066)
25

25

(10)

$ (17,411) $ (21,032) $ (22,076)

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Related Party Transactions
Related Party Transactions
[Abstract]
Related Party Transactions
Related Party Transactions

Since August 2012, Vivek Ranadivé, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, has served
as a non-executive director of Nielsen Holdings N.V. and on the Supervisory Board of The
Nielsen Company B.V. (collectively, “Nielsen”). Nielsen is one of our customers. Total revenue
recognized for products and services delivered to Nielsen and its affiliated entities in fiscal year
2012 was $9.2 million. Total accounts receivable as of November 30, 2012 were $0.1 million.
We and the Golden State Warriors, LLC (the “Warriors”) entered into a demonstration
license agreement (the "Demonstration License Agreement") and a separate agreement pursuant
to which we provide the Warriors with certain services (the “Services Agreement”). Mr. Ranadivé
owns equity in and is the Vice Chairman of the Warriors and serves as both our Chief Executive
Officer and as a member of our Board of Directors. For fiscal year 2012, pursuant to the Services
Agreement, we provided software development services with a value of approximately $0.2
million to the Warriors for which no payment is required by the Warriors.
Peter J. Job, a member of our Board of Directors, served on the boards of two companies
through May 2010 and May 2011, respectively, which are customers of ours. Total revenue
recognized for products and services delivered to these companies in fiscal years 2011 and 2010
was $12.9 million and $13.9 million, respectively. Total accounts receivable for these two
companies as of November 30, 2011 were $1.1 million.
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Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Policy)
Accounting Policies
[Abstract]
Principles of Consolidation
Principles of Consolidation

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of TIBCO and our whollyowned and majority-owned subsidiaries. Noncontrolling interest is reported as a separate
component of Consolidated Statements of Equity from the equity attributable to TIBCO's
stockholders for all periods presented. The noncontrolling interests in our Net Income have been
excluded from Net Income Attributable to TIBCO Software Inc in our Consolidated Statements
of Operations. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Years
Fiscal Years
Our fiscal year is a twelve month period ending on November 30 of a stated year. For the
purpose of presentation, we refer to the fiscal years ended November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, as
our fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Use of Estimates
Use of Estimates
The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("GAAP") requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. We believe that the estimates, assumptions and judgments involved in
revenue recognition, allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and discounts, product
development costs, stock-based compensation, business combinations, legal contingencies,
realizability of goodwill, intangible assets and long-lived assets, and accounting for income taxes
have the greatest potential impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue Recognition
License revenue consists principally of revenue earned under software license agreements.
License revenue is generally recognized when a signed contract or other persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exists, the software has been shipped or electronically delivered, the license fee is
fixed or determinable and collection of the resulting receivable is probable. When contracts
contain multiple software and software-related elements (for example, software license,
maintenance and professional services) wherein Vendor-Specific Objective Evidence ("VSOE")
exists for all undelivered elements, we account for the delivered elements in accordance with the
"Residual Method." VSOE of fair value for maintenance and support is established by a stated
renewal rate, if substantive, included in the license arrangement or rates charged in stand-alone
sales of maintenance and support. VSOE of fair value of consulting and training services is based
upon stand-alone sales of those services.
Provided all other revenue criteria are met, the upfront, minimum, non-refundable license
fees from original equipment manufacturer ("OEM") customers are recognized upon delivery, and
on-going royalty fees are recognized upon reports of units shipped. Revenue on shipments to
resellers is recognized when all revenue criteria are met, including evidence of sell-through to the
end-user, and is recorded net of related costs to the resellers. Revenue from subscription license
agreements, which include software, rights to unspecified future products and maintenance, is
recognized ratably over the term of the subscription period.
Maintenance revenue consists of fees for providing software updates on a when-and-if
available basis and technical support for software products ("post-contract customer support" or
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"PCS"). Maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the term of the agreement. Payments
received in advance of services performed are deferred.
Professional services revenue consists primarily of revenue received for assisting with the
implementation of our software, on-site support, training and other consulting services. Many
customers who license our software also enter into separate professional services arrangements
with us. In determining whether professional services revenue should be accounted for separately
from license revenue, we evaluate whether the professional services are considered essential to
the functionality of the software using factors such as the nature of our software products;
whether they are ready for use by the customer upon receipt; the nature of our implementation
services, which typically do not involve significant customization to or development of the
underlying software code; the availability of services from other vendors; whether the timing of
payments for license revenue is coincident with performance of services; and whether milestones
or acceptance criteria exist that affect the realizability of the software license fee. Substantially all
of our professional services arrangements are billed on a time and materials basis and,
accordingly, are recognized as the services are performed. Contracts with fixed or not-to-exceed
fees are recognized on a proportional performance model based on actual services performed. If
there is significant uncertainty about the project completion or receipt of payment for professional
services, revenue is deferred until the uncertainty is sufficiently resolved. Training revenue is
recognized as training services are delivered. Payments received in advance of consulting or
training services performed are deferred and recognized when the related services are performed.
Work performed and expenses incurred in advance of invoicing are recorded as unbilled
receivables. These amounts are billed in the subsequent month. Allowances for estimated future
returns and discounts are provided for upon recognition of revenue.
For arrangements that do not qualify for separate accounting for the license and professional
services revenues, including arrangements that involve significant modification or customization
of the software, that include milestones or customer specific acceptance criteria that may affect
collection of the software license fees or where payment for the software license is tied to the
performance of professional services, software license revenue is generally recognized together
with the professional services revenue using either the percentage-of-completion or completedcontract method. The completed contract method is used for contracts where there is a risk over
final acceptance by the customer or for contracts that are short term in nature. Under the
percentage-of-completion method, revenue recognized is equal to the ratio of costs expended to
date to the anticipated total contract costs, based on current estimates of costs to complete the
project. If there are milestones or acceptance provisions associated with the contract, the revenue
recognized will not exceed the most recent milestone achieved or acceptance obtained. If the total
estimated costs to complete a project exceed the total contract amount, indicating a loss, the entire
anticipated loss would be recognized in the current period.
In the first quarter of fiscal year 2011 we adopted the amended accounting guidance for
certain multiple deliverable revenue arrangements that:
• provides updated guidance on whether multiple deliverables exist, how the deliverables
in an arrangement should be separated, and how the consideration should be allocated;
• requires an entity to allocate revenue in an arrangement using the estimated selling
price ("ESP") of deliverables if a vendor does not have VSOE of selling price or third-party
evidence ("TPE") of selling price; and
• eliminates the use of the residual method and requires an entity to allocate revenue
using the relative selling price method.
We enter into multiple element revenue arrangements in which a customer may purchase a
combination of software licenses, hosting services, maintenance, professional services and
hardware. If a tangible hardware product includes software, we determine if the tangible
hardware and the software work together to deliver the product's essential functionality. If so, the
entire product is accounted for as a non-software deliverable; otherwise the hardware product and
the software are accounted for separately. For multiple element arrangements that contain nonsoftware related elements, for example our hosting services, we allocate revenue to each nonCopyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

software element based upon the relative selling price of each, and if software and softwarerelated elements are also included in the arrangement, to those elements as a group based on our
ESP for the group. When applying the relative selling price method, we determine the selling
price for each deliverable using VSOE of selling price, if it exists, then TPE of selling price. If
neither VSOE nor TPE of selling price exist for a deliverable, we use our ESP for multiple
element arrangements that include non-software components. The objective of ESP is to
determine the price at which we would transact a sale if the product or service were sold on a
stand-alone basis. We determine ESP by considering multiple factors, including, but not limited
to, geographies, market conditions, competitive landscape, internal costs, gross margin objectives
and pricing practices. ESP is generally used for offerings that are not typically sold on a standalone basis or for new or highly customized offerings. Revenue allocated to each element is then
recognized when the basic revenue recognition criteria are met for each element. The manner in
which we account for multiple element arrangements that contain only software and softwarerelated elements remains unchanged.
We show revenue from sales of software licenses and hardware as license revenue, and
revenue from maintenance, professional services and hosting as services and maintenance
revenue in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Revenue recognized from hardware sales
represents less than 5% of total revenue.

Fair Value of Financial
Instruments

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The fair values of our financial instruments including accounts receivable, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities, mortgage note payable and revolving credit facility do not materially
differ from their carrying amounts due to their short maturities and, in the case of the revolving
credit facility, their variable, market-based interest rates. The fair values of our cash equivalents,
short-term investments and derivative instruments are detailed further in Note 5.

Concentration of Credit Risk
Concentration of Credit Risk
Our cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and accounts receivable are potentially
subject to concentration of credit risk. Cash, cash equivalents and investments are deposited with
financial institutions or invested in security issuers that management believes are creditworthy.
We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and, generally,
require no collateral from our customers. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts
receivable based on various factors, including our review of credit profiles of our customers,
contractual terms and conditions, current economic trends and historical payment experience; see
Note 6 for further details.
No customer accounted for more than 10% of total revenue in fiscal years 2012, 2011 or
2010. As of November 30, 2012 and 2011, no single customer had a balance in excess of 10% of
our net accounts receivable.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and
Short-Term Investments

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments
We consider all highly liquid investment securities with remaining maturities at the date of
purchase of three months or less to be cash equivalents. We determine the appropriate
classification of marketable securities at the time of purchase and evaluate such designation as of
each balance sheet date. To date, all marketable securities have been classified as available-forsale and are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, if any, included as a component
of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) in Stockholders’ Equity. These availablefor-sale investments are presented as Current Assets as they are available for current operations.
Interest, dividends, realized gains and losses and impairment losses are included in Interest
Income and Other Income (Expense). Realized gains and losses and impairment losses are
recognized based on the specific identification method.

Property and Equipment, net
Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation.
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Goodwill and In-Process
Research and Development

Goodwill and In-Process Research and Development
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested
for impairment at least annually or as circumstances indicate that their value may no longer be
recoverable. We do not have intangible assets with indefinite useful lives other than goodwill. To
assess if goodwill is impaired we first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether
further impairment testing is necessary. If, as a result of the qualitative assessment, we consider it
more-likely-than-not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, we
perform a quantitative impairment test. This includes a screening for an impairment and, in a
second step, the measuring of such impairment. We perform our goodwill impairment test
annually in our fourth fiscal quarter, and the last impairment test was completed for the fiscal
year ended November 30, 2012 when it was determined that the fair value was significantly in
excess of the carrying value. The guidance for goodwill and other intangible assets requires
impairment testing based on reporting units. We periodically re-evaluate our business and have
determined that we continue to operate in one segment, which we consider our sole reporting
unit. Therefore, goodwill was tested and will continue to be tested for impairment at the
enterprise level. To date, we have determined that there has been no impairment of goodwill.

Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
We evaluate the recoverability of our long-lived assets which includes amortizable
intangible and tangible assets in accordance with authoritative guidance on accounting for the
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. Acquired intangible assets with definite useful lives
are amortized over their useful lives. We evaluate long-lived assets, other than goodwill, for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of these
assets may not be recoverable. We recognize such impairment in the event the net book value of
such assets exceeds their fair value. If the fair value of a long-lived asset exceeds its carrying
value of the net asset assigned, then the asset is not impaired and no further testing is performed.
If the carrying value of the net asset assigned exceeds the fair value of the asset, then we must
perform the second step of the impairment test in order to determine the implied fair value. No
long-lived assets impairment losses were incurred in the fiscal years presented.

Business Combinations
Business Combinations
Under the accounting guidance for business combinations we recognize separately from
goodwill the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, at their fair values as of the date of the
acquisition. Goodwill as of the acquisition date is measured as the excess of consideration
transferred and the net of the acquisition date fair values of the assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed.
While we use our best estimates and assumptions as a part of the purchase price allocation
process to accurately value assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the business combination
date, our estimates and assumptions are inherently uncertain and subject to refinement. As a
result, during the preliminary purchase price allocation period, which may be up to one year from
the business combination date, we record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, with the corresponding offset to goodwill. After the preliminary purchase price
allocation period, we record adjustments to assets acquired or liabilities assumed subsequent to
the purchase price allocation period in our operating results in the period in which the
adjustments were determined.

Acquisition Related and Other
Acquisition Related and Other
Acquisition related and other expenses consist of costs incurred after the issuance of a
definitive term sheet for a particular transaction (whether or not such transaction is ultimately
completed, remains in-process or is not completed) and include legal, banker, accounting and
other advisory fees of third parties and severance costs for employees of the acquired company
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that are terminated within 90 days of the acquisition date. These costs include professional
services fees and employee severance.

Restructuring and Integration
Restructuring and Integration Costs
Costs
Our restructuring charges are comprised primarily of employee termination costs related to
headcount reductions, costs related to properties abandoned in connection with facilities
consolidation and related write-downs of leasehold improvements. A liability for costs associated
with an exit or disposal activity is recognized and measured initially at fair value only when the
liability is incurred. Our restructuring charges include accruals for estimated losses related to our
excess facilities, based on our contractual obligations, net of estimated sublease income. We
reassess the liability periodically based on market conditions.

Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-Based Compensation
We utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing model for determining the estimated fair value
of our share-based awards. The Black-Scholes model requires the use of highly subjective and
complex assumptions which determine the fair value of share-based awards, including the
option’s expected term and the price volatility of the underlying stock. We determined that a
blend of implied volatility and historical volatility is more reflective of the market conditions and
a better indicator of expected volatility than historical volatility alone. The fair value of the
awards that are ultimately expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service periods
typically on a straight-line basis in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. Forfeitures are
estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures
differ from those estimates.
Since fiscal year 2010, we have granted performance-based restricted stock units
("PRSUs") to our section 16 officers and certain other employees. We recognize the stock-based
compensation expense for our PRSUs based on the probability of achieving certain performance
criteria, as defined in the PRSU agreements. We then estimate the most probable period in which
the performance criteria will be met, if at all, and recognize the expense using the graded vesting
attribution method over the remaining recognition period. Due to the long-term nature of the
performance goals, assessing the probability of achieving these goals is a highly subjective
process that requires judgment. A deferred tax asset is recorded over the vesting period as stock
compensation cost is recorded. Our ability to realize the deferred tax asset is ultimately based on
the actual value of the stock-based awards upon release of the restricted stock unit. If the actual
value is lower than the fair value determined on the date of grant, it would result in the reversal of
such deferred tax asset with an increase to our income tax expense for the portion of the deferred
tax asset that cannot be realized in that future period.
We utilize the "long form" method of calculating the tax effects of share-based
compensation. Under the "long form" method, we determined the beginning balance of the
additional paid-in capital pool ("APIC pool") related to the tax effects of the employee sharebased compensation "as if" we had adopted the recognition provisions of share-based payment
since its effective date of January 1, 1995. We also determined the subsequent impact on the
APIC pool and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of the tax effect of employee share–based
compensation awards that were issued after the adoption of the share-based payment guidance
and outstanding at the adoption date.
Consistent with prior years, we use the "with and without" approach in determining the
order in which our tax attributes in connection with excess stock option tax benefits are utilized.
The "with and without" approach results in the recognition of the windfall stock option tax
benefits only after all other tax attributes, except for pre-acquisition tax attributes of acquired
entities, have been considered in the annual tax accrual computation. Also consistent with prior
years, we consider the indirect effects of the windfall deduction on the computation of other tax
attributes, such as the R&D credit deduction, as an additional component of equity. This
incremental tax benefit is credited to additional paid in capital when realized.

Income Taxes
Income Taxes

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

We make certain estimates and judgments in determining income tax expense for financial
statement purposes. These estimates and judgments occur in the calculation of certain tax assets
and liabilities, which arise from differences in the timing of recognition of revenue and expense
for tax and financial statement purposes.
We assess the likelihood that we will be able to recover our deferred tax assets on a morelikely-than-not basis. We consider all available evidence, both positive and negative, including
historical levels of income, expectations and risks associated with estimates of future taxable
income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the
valuation allowance. If it is not more likely than not that we expect to recover our deferred tax
assets, we will increase our provision for taxes by recording a valuation allowance against the
deferred tax assets that we estimate will not ultimately be recoverable.

Foreign Currencies
Foreign Currencies
Most of our foreign subsidiaries use the local currency of their respective countries as their
functional currency. Assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at
exchange rates as of the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at average
exchange rates for the period. Cumulative translation adjustments are included as a component of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) in Stockholders’ Equity. Foreign currency
exchange gains and losses, derived from monetary assets and liabilities stated in a currency other
than the functional currency, are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Foreign Currency Forward
Contracts

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts
To manage currency exposure related to net assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, we enter into forward contracts. The gains and losses on these derivative instruments
are intended to offset the impact of foreign exchange rate changes on the underlying foreign
currency denominated assets and liabilities subject to remeasurement and transaction exposures,
and therefore, these forward contracts do not subject us to material balance sheet risk. We do not
enter into derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. These derivative instruments
are not designed for hedge accounting and are adjusted to fair value through Other Income
(Expense) under the Consolidated Statements of Operations and recorded as assets or liabilities in
the Consolidated Balances Sheets.

Capitalized Software
Development Costs

Capitalized Software Development Costs
Capitalization of material software development costs begins when a product’s
technological feasibility has been established. We define technological feasibility as the
establishment of a working model, which typically occurs when beta testing commences. To date,
the period between achieving technological feasibility and the general availability of our software
products has been very short. Accordingly, our software development costs have been expensed
as incurred, with the exception of immaterial costs related to hosted services.
Costs related to software acquired, developed or modified solely for internal use, with no
substantive plans to market such software at the time of development, are capitalized. Costs
incurred during the preliminary planning and evaluation stage of the project and during post
implementation operational stage are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred during the application
development stage of the project are capitalized. These costs are included in Property and
Equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are depreciated on a straight line basis over
the useful life of the software.

Advertising Expense
Advertising Expense
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled approximately $3.0 million, $2.4
million and $2.5 million in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Recent Accounting
Pronouncements

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
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In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued an update to
Presentation of Comprehensive Income that requires an entity to present the total of
comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other
comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in
two separate but consecutive statements. The guidance eliminates the option to present the
components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of equity. The guidance is
effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal year 2013. We do not expect the adoption of this
update to have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations and financial condition.
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Business
Business [Abstract]
Business

Business
TIBCO Software Inc. ("TIBCO," the "Company," "we" or "us"), a Delaware corporation, is
a leading independent provider of middleware and infrastructure software. Our standards-based
software platform enables customers to create flexible, event-driven applications from
infrastructure and deliver real-time, actionable insights. Our solutions help customers operate
their business more efficiently, better capitalize on opportunities to increase revenue and market
share and extend the life of past investments made. Using our software, customers have the
ability to capture the right information, at the right time and act on it preemptively for a
competitive advantage—what we call "the two-second advantage™ ".

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (Tables)
Accounting Policies [Abstract]
Summary Of Estimated Useful Lives Of
Property And Equipment

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012
These assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
Buildings
Equipment and software
Furniture and fixtures
Facilities improvements
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25 years
2-5 years
5 years
Shorter of the lease term or the
estimated useful life

Comprehensive Income
(Loss) (Details) (USD $)
Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net of Tax, Attributable to Parent
[Abstract]
Cumulative translation adjustment, net of tax
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss
Cumulative translation adjustment, tax effects

Nov. 30,
2012

Nov. 30,
2011

Nov. 30,
2010

$
$
$
(17,436,000) (21,057,000) (22,066,000)
25,000
25,000
(10,000)
(17,411,000) (21,032,000) (22,076,000)
$ 8,900,000 $ 10,100,000 $ 10,400,000
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Other Balance Sheet
Components (Tables)
Balance Sheet Related Disclosures
[Abstract]
Other Balance Sheet Components

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Certain other balance sheet components are summarized below (in
thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

$ 65,963
25,275
3,196
39,162

$ 76,979
18,503
5,743
27,943

$ 133,596

$ 129,168

$ 25,221
238,255

$

$ 263,476

$ 210,234

Accrued liabilities:
Compensation and benefits
Taxes
Current deferred tax liability
Other
Total accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue:
License
Service and maintenance
Total deferred revenue, current
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6,820
203,414

Business Combinations (Pro
Forma Adjusted Summary)
(Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, except Per
Share data, unless otherwise
specified
Business Combinations [Abstract]
Pro forma adjusted total revenue
Pro forma adjusted net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.
Pro forma adjusted net income per share attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.: Basic
(usd per share)
Pro forma adjusted net income per share attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.: Diluted
(usd per share)
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30,
2012

Nov. 30,
2011

$ 1,037,418 $ 970,467
$ 116,867 $ 103,262
$ 0.73

$ 0.64

$ 0.69

$ 0.60

Convertible Senior Notes
(Details) (USD $)
Share data in Thousands,
except Per Share data, unless
otherwise specified

12 Months Ended

Nov. 30,
2012

Nov. 30,
2011

Nov. 30,
2010

Debt Instrument [Line Items]
Principle amount of senior note

1 Months 12 Months
Ended
Ended
Apr. 30,
Nov. 30,
Nov. 30,
2012
2012
2012
Convertible Convertible
Level 2
Senior
Senior
Notes
Notes
$
600,000,000

Debt instrument, fixed annual
interest rate
Principal amount of note
Convertible senior notes
conversion ratio
Convertible senior notes initial
conversion price
Convertible senior notes minimum
number of days out of thirty that
common stock price exceeded
conversion price
Convertible senior notes number of
consecutive trading days
Convertible senior notes minimum
percentage of conversion price
Consecutive trading day period
5 days
Convertible senior notes maximum
percentage of trading price
Stock observation period
35 days
Payments classification for shares
220,265,000 194,059,000 204,280,000
repurchased
Shares repurchased
Debt effective interest rate
Debt discount, after tax
(50,833,000)
Debt discount, before tax
Convertible senior notes, net
524,466,000 0
Deferred issuance costs
Deferred issuance costs, liability
component
Deferred issuance costs, equity
component
Deferred issuance costs, equity
component net of tax
Interest Expense
23,396,000 4,020,000 4,123,000
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2.25%
1,000
19.7750
$ 50.57

20 days

30 days
130.00%

98.00%

121,000,000
3,600
5.50%
52,600,000
84,600,000 75,500,000
524,500,000
15,600,000
13,400,000
2,200,000
1,400,000
18,800,000

Convertible note contractual
coupon interest
Amortization of debt discount
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Convertible senior notes, fair value
disclosures

8,200,000
9,000,000
1,600,000
$
583,000,000
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $5,606 and $5,868
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Acquired intangible assets, net
Long-term deferred income tax assets
Other assets
Total assets
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued restructuring costs
Deferred revenue
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Accrued restructuring costs, less current portion
Long-term deferred revenue
Long-term deferred income tax liabilities
Long-term income tax liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion
Convertible senior notes, net
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 1,200,000 shares authorized; 163,698 shares and 166,287
shares issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Retained earnings
Total TIBCO Software Inc. stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity
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Nov. 30, Nov. 30,
2012
2011

$ 727,309 $ 308,148
34,411 225
234,100 196,419
61,174 61,864
1,056,994 566,656
98,474 89,871
532,290 451,821
123,261 97,258
64,549 78,656
71,340 48,676
1,946,908 1,332,938
22,809 25,802
133,596 129,168
893
6,792
263,476 210,234
35,711 2,397
456,485 374,393
643
1,050
25,543 14,876
3,208
4,540
26,263 20,772
4,015
2,445
0
65,711
524,466 0
1,040,623 483,787

164

166

873,337 856,190
(17,411) (21,032)
49,084 12,742
905,174 848,066
1,111
1,085
906,285 849,151
$
$
1,946,908 1,332,938

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Income Taxes (Tables)
Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract]
Income Before Provision For Income Taxes

Income before provision for income taxes consisted of the following
(in thousands):
Year Ended November 30,
2012

United States
International

2011

2010

$ 33,056 $ 51,159 $ 84,671
122,258
98,776
26,201
$155,314 $149,935 $110,872

Significant Components Of Provision For
(Benefit From) Income Taxes

Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

2010

Federal:
Current
Deferred

$ 29,554 $ 14,619
(12,231)
2,364

$ 25,140
(1,353)

17,323

16,983

23,787

1,078
(2,345)

1,925
1,341

3,425
(1,155)

(1,267)

3,266

2,270

22,919
(5,775)

19,490
(2,439)

12,314
(5,970)

17,144

17,051

6,344

$ 33,200

$ 37,300

$ 32,401

State:
Current
Deferred
Foreign:
Current
Deferred
Provision for income taxes

Provision For Income Taxes At Rates Other
Than United States Federal Statutory Tax Rate

The provision for income taxes was at rates other than the United
States Federal statutory tax rate for the following reasons:
Year Ended November 30,

U.S. Federal statutory rate
State taxes
Research and development credits
Stock option compensation
Foreign income taxed at different rate
Change in valuation allowance
Domestic manufacturing incentives
Other
Effective tax rate

Components Of Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities)

2012

2011

2010

35.0 %
(2.2)
(1.3)
(2.1)
(7.5)
—
(1.4)
0.9

35.0 %
1.8
(2.7)
1.6
(5.9)
(2.5)
(1.1)
(1.3)

35.0 %
2.1
(0.3)
0.5
(7.9)
—
—
(0.2)

21.4 %

24.9 %

29.2 %

November 30,
2012
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2011

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards
Reserves, accruals and foreign related items
Credit carryforwards
Depreciation and amortization
Unrealized losses on investments
Deferred revenue
Translation gains/losses
Stock compensation expense
Other
Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets
Convertible debt
Unbilled receivable
Other
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance
Valuation allowance
Net deferred tax assets

Reconciliation Of Unrecognized Tax Benefits

$ 62,616
13,204
18,534
10,073
—
8,746
5,673
28,690
94

$ 46,375
19,409
14,930
12,760
5,043
6,231
6,772
19,727
1,374

147,630

132,621

(37,590)
(26,573)
—
(884)

(28,390)
—
(4,407)
(2,453)

(65,047)

(35,250)

82,583
—

97,371
(5,592)

$ 82,583

$ 91,779

A reconciliation of the unrecognized tax benefits for the fiscal years
ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

Gross unrecognized tax benefits balance at
beginning of year
$ 43,619 $ 35,782
Increases for tax positions of current fiscal
year
8,136
8,449
Increases for tax positions of prior fiscal years
4,031
962
Lapse of statutes of limitation
(1,270)
(1,574)
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at end of year
Interest and penalties
Total unrecognized tax benefits balance at end of
year
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54,516
881

43,619
761

$ 55,397

$ 44,380

Selected Quarterly Financial
3 Months Ended
12 Months Ended
Information (Unaudited)
(Details) (USD $)
Nov. Aug. May Feb. Nov. Aug. May Feb.
Nov. Nov.
Nov. 30,
In Thousands, except Per
30,
31,
31,
28,
30,
31,
31,
28,
30,
30,
2012
Share data, unless otherwise 2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011
2011 2010
specified
Quarterly Financial
Information Disclosure
[Abstract]
Total revenue
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
296,527 255,021 247,363 225,702 289,511 228,973 216,421 185,341 1,024,613 920,246 754,007
Gross profit
220,938 182,772 178,476 159,612 220,164 165,619 154,694 132,394 741,798 672,871 556,214
Total operating expenses
147,886 139,620 141,117 135,459 149,919 129,031 125,965 113,529 564,082 518,444 441,059
Income from operations
73,052 43,152 37,359 24,153 70,245 36,588 28,729 18,865 177,716 154,427 115,155
Provision for income taxes
15,300 7,400 7,200 3,300 17,504 11,800 6,000 1,996 33,200 37,300 32,401
Net income attributable to
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$ 122,007
TIBCO Software Inc.
48,788 26,086 26,492 20,641 51,878 23,529 21,046 15,953
112,406 78,088
Basic (usd per share)
$ 0.30 $ 0.16 $ 0.17 $ 0.13 $ 0.32 $ 0.15 $ 0.13 $ 0.10 $ 0.76
$ 0.70 $ 0.49
Diluted (usd per share)
$ 0.29 $ 0.15 $ 0.16 $ 0.12 $ 0.30 $ 0.14 $ 0.12 $ 0.09 $ 0.72
$ 0.65 $ 0.46
Shares used in computing net
income per share attributable
160,115 159,308 160,437 161,460 161,586 161,876 161,911 160,503 160,330 161,469 160,959
to TIBCO Software Inc., Basic
(in sharess)
Shares used in computing net
income per share attributable
169,284 169,165 169,477 170,866 171,978 172,957 174,666 173,486 169,698 173,272 170,953
to TIBCO Software Inc.,
Diluted (in shares)
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Consolidated Statements Of
12 Months Ended
Equity And Comprehensive
Income (Loss)
(Parenthetical) (USD $)
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011 Nov. 30, 2010
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Statement of Stockholders' Equity [Abstract]
Foreign currency translation adjustment, tax
$ (1,270)
$ (217)
$ 2,772
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Segment Information
(Summary Of Percentage Of
License Revenue By Product
Segment) (Details)
Revenue from External Customers by Products and Services [Line
Items]
Total license revenue
SOA and core infrastructure
Revenue from External Customers by Products and Services [Line
Items]
Total license revenue
Business optimization
Revenue from External Customers by Products and Services [Line
Items]
Total license revenue
Process automation and collaboration
Revenue from External Customers by Products and Services [Line
Items]
Total license revenue

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30,
2012

Nov. 30,
2011

Nov. 30,
2010

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

50.00%

56.00%

62.00%

39.00%

33.00%

27.00%

11.00%

11.00%

11.00%
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Fair Value Measurements
12 Months Ended
and Derivative Instruments
(Gain Or (Loss) Recognized
In Income On Derivatives
Not Designated As Hedging
Instruments) (Details) (Not
Nov. 30,
Nov. 30,
Designated as Hedging
2012
2011
Instrument, Foreign
Currency Contracts, Other
Income/(Expense), USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Not Designated as Hedging Instrument | Foreign Currency Contracts | Other Income/
(Expense)
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized In Income on Derivative
$ 2,961
$ 8,426
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Fair Value Measurements
and Derivative Instruments
(Tables)
Fair Value Measurements And Derivative
Instruments [Abstract]
Fair Value Of Cash Equivalents, Marketable
Securities And Foreign Currency Contracts

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Fair value hierarchy of our cash equivalents, short-term investments and
foreign currency contracts at fair value (in thousands):
Fair Value Measurements
at Reporting Date using

Description

Total
Fair Value

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

As of November 30, 2012
Assets:

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts

Money market fund
$376,480 $
376,480 $
—
Corporate bonds and
commercial paper
24,558
—
24,558
U.S. government and agency
debt securities
9,645
—
9,645
Term deposits
595
—
595
Mortgage-backed securities
208
—
208
Foreign currency forward
contracts
101
—
101
Liabilities:
Foreign currency forward
contracts
$
130 $
— $
130
As of November 30, 2011
Assets:
Money market fund
$ 16,664 $
16,664 $
—
Term deposits
560
—
560
Mortgage-backed securities
225
—
225
Foreign currency forward
contracts
142
—
142
Liabilities:
Foreign currency forward
contracts
$
142 $
— $
142
As of November 30, 2012, we had the following forward contracts
outstanding (in thousands):
Notional
Value Local
Currency

Notional
Value USD

Fair Value
Gain (Loss)
USD

Forward contracts sold:
Australian dollar
Brazilian real
British pound
Canadian dollar
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9,000
2,500
2,700
4,980

$ 9,357 $
1,170
4,326
5,004

(1)
56
1
5

Euro
Indian rupee
Japanese yen
Singapore dollar
New Taiwan dollar
Forward contracts bought:
British pound
Canadian dollar
Hong Kong dollar

33,500
64,000
345,000
1,400
31,000

43,560
1,177
4,188
1,147
1,066

5
6
(5)
—
(5)

12,400
480

19,867
483

6,900

890

(118)
4
—
$

Notional
Value Local
Currency

Notional
Value Euro

(52)

Fair Value
Gain (Loss)
USD

Forward contracts sold:
Canadian dollar
Forward contracts bought:
British pound
Swedish krona
United States dollar

1,200

€

928 $

6,000
31,500

7,394
3,636

48,300

37,145

1
5
5
12

$

Foreign Currency Forward Contracts Not
Designated As Hedging Instruments

23

Derivatives not
Designated
as Hedging Instruments
2012

Foreign currency forward contracts, fair value
included in:
Other Current Assets
Accrued Liabilities

Gain Or (Loss) Recognized In Income On
Derivatives Not Designated As Hedging
Instruments

$

101
130

2011

$

142
142

Amount of Gain or
(Loss) Recognized In
Income on Derivative
Year Ended November
30,
Derivatives not Designated as Hedging
Instruments

Foreign Currency Contracts
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Location

2012

2011

Other income/
(expense) $ 2,961 $ 8,426

Goodwill and Other
12 Months Ended
Acquired Intangible Assets
(Changes In Carrying
Amount Of Goodwill)
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
(Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Goodwill [Roll Forward]
Beginning balance
$ 451,821
$ 409,545
Foreign currency translation
5,131
3,213
Ending balance
532,290
451,821
Nimbus Partners Limited
Goodwill [Roll Forward]
Goodwill recorded for the acquisition
27,117
Goodwill adjusted for the acquisition 1,077
Loyalty Lab, Inc.
Goodwill [Roll Forward]
Goodwill recorded for the acquisition
11,966
OpenSpirit Corporation
Goodwill [Roll Forward]
Goodwill adjusted for the acquisition
(689)
Proginet Corporation
Goodwill [Roll Forward]
Goodwill adjusted for the acquisition
205
Kabira Technologies, Inc.
Goodwill [Roll Forward]
Goodwill adjusted for the acquisition
464
LogLogic, Inc.
Goodwill [Roll Forward]
Goodwill recorded for the acquisition 73,460
Other business combinations
Goodwill [Roll Forward]
Goodwill recorded for the acquisition $ 801
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TIBCO Software Inc.
Stockholders' Equity
Stockholders' Equity Note
[Abstract]
TIBCO Software Inc.
Stockholders' Equity

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

TIBCO Software Inc. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock
Our certificate of incorporation, as amended and restated, authorizes us to issue 75.0
million shares of $0.001 par value preferred stock. As of November 30, 2012, no preferred stock
was issued or outstanding.
Common Stock
Our certificate of incorporation, as amended and restated, authorizes us to issue 1.2 billion
shares of $0.001 par value common stock. As of November 30, 2012, approximately 163,698,000
shares of common stock were issued and outstanding. The outstanding shares of common stock
include approximately 3,127,000 shares of restricted stock which remain unvested as of
November 30, 2012. The balance of unvested restricted stock will be forfeited and automatically
transferred back to us at no cost upon the recipient’s discontinuing employment for any reason.
Stockholder Rights Plan
In February 2004, our Board of Directors adopted a stockholder rights plan designed to
guard against partial tender offers and other coercive tactics to gain control of us without offering
a fair and adequate price and terms to all of our stockholders.
In connection with the plan, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of one right (a
"Right") to purchase one one-thousandth share of our Series A Participating Preferred Stock
("Series A Preferred") for each share of our common stock outstanding on March 5, 2004 (the
"Record Date"). Of the 75.0 million shares of preferred stock authorized under our certificate of
incorporation, as amended and restated, 25.0 million have been designated as Series A Preferred.
The Board of Directors further directed the issuance of one such right with respect to each share
of our common stock that is issued after the Record Date, except in certain circumstances. The
rights will expire on March 5, 2014.
The Rights are initially attached to our common stock and will not be traded separately. If a
person or a group (an "Acquiring Person") acquires 15% or more of our common stock, or
announces an intention to make a tender offer for 15% or more of our common stock, the Rights
will be distributed and will thereafter be traded separately from the common stock. Each Right
will be exercisable for 1/1000th of a share of Series A Preferred at an exercise price of $70 (the
"Purchase Price"). The Series A Preferred has been structured so that the value of 1/1000th of a
share of such preferred stock will approximate the value of one share of common stock. Upon a
person becoming an Acquiring Person, holders of the Rights (other than the Acquiring Person)
will have the right to receive, upon exercise, shares of our common stock having a value equal to
two times the Purchase Price.
If a person becomes an Acquiring Person and we are acquired in a merger or other business
combination, or 50% or more of our assets are sold to an Acquiring Person, the holder of Rights
(other than the Acquiring Person) will have the right to receive shares of common stock of the
acquiring corporation having a value equal to two times the Purchase Price. After a person has
become an Acquiring Person, our Board of Directors may, at its option, require the exchange of
outstanding Rights (other than those held by the Acquiring Person) for common stock at an
exchange ratio of one share of our common stock per Right.
The Board may redeem outstanding rights at any time prior to a person becoming an
Acquiring Person at a price of $0.001 per Right. Prior to such time, the terms of the Rights may
be amended by the Board of Directors.
Stock Repurchase Programs
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On March 29, 2012, we announced that our Board of Directors approved a new stock
repurchase program pursuant to which we may repurchase up to $300.0 million of our
outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated
transactions. In connection with the approval of this program, our Board of Directors also
terminated our previous $300.0 million stock repurchase program from December 2010, and the
remaining authorized amount of $38.4 million under the December 2010 stock repurchase
program was canceled. The remaining authorized amount for stock repurchases under the March
2012 stock repurchase program was $147.3 million as of the end of fiscal year 2012.
All repurchased shares of common stock have been retired. The following table summarizes
the activities under the stock repurchase programs for the periods indicated (in thousands, except
per share data):
Year Ended November 30,

Cash used for repurchases

2012

2011

2010

$ 220,265

$ 194,059

$ 204,280

7,606

7,310

15,084

Shares repurchased
Average price per share

$

28.96

$

26.55

$

13.54

Between December 1, 2012 and January 21, 2013, we repurchased 1.0 million shares of our
outstanding common stock at an average price of $21.87 per share pursuant to the March 2012
stock repurchase program.
In connection with the stock repurchase activities during fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010
we classified $85.7 million, $99.7 million and $116.6 million, respectively, of the excess
purchase price over the par value of our common stock to retained earnings.
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Accounts Receivable and
Allowances for Doubtful
Accounts, Returns and
Discounts (Tables)
Accounts Receivable And Allowances For
Doubtful Accounts, Returns And Discounts
[Abstract]
Schedule Of Accounts Receivable

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Accounts receivable, net, by category is as follows (in thousands):
November 30,

Accounts receivable
Unbilled fees for professional services
Less: Allowances for doubtful accounts, returns
and discounts
Net accounts receivable

Summary Of Activities In Allowances For
Doubtful Accounts, Returns And Discounts

2012

2011

$220,286
19,420

$182,788
19,499

239,706

202,287

(5,606)
$234,100

(5,868)
$196,419

The following is a summary of activities in allowances for doubtful
accounts, returns and discounts for the fiscal years indicated (in thousands):

Year Ended
November 30,

2012
2011
2010

Allowances
Beginning
Balance

Charged
Against
Revenue

$

$ 1,343 $
650
200

5,868
5,729
4,224
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Charged
to
Expenses

Write-offs,
Adjustments,
Net of
Recovery

559 $
100
—

Allowances
Ending
Balance

(2,164) $
(611)
1,305

5,606
5,868
5,729

Comprehensive Income
(Loss)
Comprehensive Income
(Loss), Net of Tax,
Attributable to Parent
[Abstract]
Comprehensive Income (Loss) Comprehensive Income (Loss)

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Our comprehensive income (loss) includes net income and other comprehensive income
(loss), which consists of unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities and
cumulative translation adjustments.
Total comprehensive income (loss) in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 are presented in the
Consolidated Statements of Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss). Total Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income (Loss) is displayed as a separate component of Stockholder’s Equity in
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The balances of each component of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of taxes, consist of the following (in
thousands):
November 30,

Cumulative translation adjustment, net of tax

2012

2011

2010

$

(17,436) $
25

(21,057) $
25

(22,066)
(10)

$

(17,411) $

(21,032) $

(22,076)

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss

As of November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, cumulative translation adjustment included total
accumulated tax effects of $8.9 million, $10.1 million and $10.4 million, respectively.
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Goodwill and Other
Acquired Intangible Assets
(Future Amortization Of
Acquired Intangible Assets)
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
(Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Goodwill and Intangible Assets Disclosure [Abstract]
2013
$ 34,942
2014
28,317
2015
23,316
2016
17,660
2017
11,772
Thereafter
7,254
Total intangible assets, net
$ 123,261
$ 97,258
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Consolidated Statements Of
Cash Flows (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30,
2012

Operating activities:
Net income
$ 122,114
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation of property and equipment
14,931
Amortization of acquired intangible assets
35,553
Amortization of debt discount and transaction costs
11,465
Stock-based compensation
61,146
Deferred income tax
(20,351)
Tax benefits related to employee stock option plans
24,561
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
(30,311)
Other non-cash adjustments, net
1,486
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
(37,171)
Prepaid expenses and other assets
(1,880)
Accounts payable
(3,036)
Accrued liabilities and restructuring costs
(1,542)
Deferred revenue
60,395
Net cash provided by operating activities
237,360
Investing activities:
Purchases of short-term investments
(41,409)
Maturities and sales of short-term investments
7,229
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
(132,209)
Purchases of property and equipment
(23,723)
Restricted cash pledged as security
(1,169)
Other investing activities, net
326
Net cash used in investing activities
(190,955)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of convertible debt, net
584,450
Proceeds from revolving credit facility
116,648
Principal payments on debt
(152,397)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
33,417
Repurchases of the Company’s common stock
(220,265)
Withholding taxes related to restricted stock net share settlement
(18,212)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
30,311
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
373,952
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
(1,196)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
419,161
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
308,148
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
727,309
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Nov. 30,
2011

Nov. 30,
2010

$ 112,635

$ 78,471

13,145
34,661
772
48,867
1,266
8,552
(41,950)
476

13,414
32,494
658
32,248
(8,478)
30,626
(21,510)
225

(3,312)
4,859
501
7,015
20,563
208,050

(25,909)
13,860
3,829
(12,553)
11,382
148,757

(76)
1,451
(63,610)
(13,971)
(3,234)
0
(79,440)

(1,313)
183
(78,573)
(6,399)
(5,498)
485
(91,115)

0
30,000
(2,269)
80,610
(194,059)
(17,922)
41,950
(61,690)
(2,761)
64,159
243,989
308,148

0
0
(3,492)
86,940
(204,280)
(6,140)
21,510
(105,462)
(720)
(48,540)
292,529
243,989

Supplemental disclosures:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

10,536
$ 12,967
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2,994
$ 12,883

3,023
$ 22,770

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Parenthetical) (USD $)
In Thousands, except Share
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
data, unless otherwise
specified
Statement of Financial Position [Abstract]
Accounts receivable, allowances
$ 5,606
$ 5,868
Common stock, par value (usd per share)
$ 0.001
$ 0.001
Common stock, shares authorized
1,200,000,000 1,200,000,000
Common stock, shares issued
163,698,000 166,287,000
Common stock, shares outstanding
163,698,000 166,287,000
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Debt and Credit Facilities
Debt And Credit Facilities
[Abstract]
Debt And Credit Facilities

Debt and Credit Facilities
Mortgage Note Payable
In connection with the purchase of our corporate headquarters in June 2003, we recorded a
$54.0 million mortgage note payable to a financial institution collateralized by the commercial
real property acquired. The balance on the mortgage note payable was $35.7 million and $38.1
million as of November 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The mortgage note payable carries a 20-year amortization, and in the second quarter of
fiscal year 2007, we amended the mortgage note payable such that it now carries a fixed annual
interest rate of 5.50%. The $34.4 million principal balance that will be remaining at the end of the
10-year term will be due as a final lump sum payment on July 1, 2013. Under the currently
applicable terms of the mortgage note agreements, we are prohibited from acquiring another
company without prior consent from the lender unless we maintain at least $50.0 million of cash
or cash equivalents and meet other non-financial terms as defined in the agreements. In addition,
we are subject to certain non-financial covenants pursuant to the terms of the mortgage note
agreements. As of November 30, 2012, we were in compliance with all covenants.
Credit Facility
In December 2011, we and one of our subsidiaries entered into an Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement (the "2011 Credit Facility"). In May 2012, we amended certain covenants and
terms of the 2011 Credit Facility. The 2011 Credit Facility matures on December 19, 2016 and
provides for cash borrowings up to $250.0 million, with a sublimit for swing line loans up to
$10.0 million and standby letters of credit in a face amount of up to $50.0 million. We have an
option to request that the lenders increase the available commitments by up to an additional
$100.0 million for total borrowings of up to $350.0 million.
Revolving loans accrue interest at a per annum rate based on, at our option, either (i) the
base rate plus a margin ranging from 0.25% to 1.25%, depending on TIBCO’s consolidated
leverage ratio or (ii) the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") rate plus a margin ranging
from 1.25% to 2.25%, depending on TIBCO’s consolidated leverage ratio, for various interest
periods. The base rate is defined as the highest of (i) the administrative agent’s prime rate, (ii) the
federal funds rate plus a margin equal to 0.50%, and (iii) the LIBOR rate for a one month interest
period plus a margin equal to 1.00%. We are also obligated to pay commitment fees for the
unused amount of the 2011 Credit Facility, letter of credit fees and other customary fees. Loan
origination fees and issuance costs of $3.4 million were incurred since consummation of the 2011
Credit Facility which will be amortized through interest expense over a period of five years.
Under certain circumstances, a default interest rate of 2.00% above the applicable interest rate
will apply on all obligations during the existence of an event of default under the 2011 Credit
Facility.
We must maintain a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio of 3.5:1.0 and a
maximum consolidated leverage ratio of 3.25:1.0 in addition to other customary affirmative and
negative covenants. The maximum consolidated leverage ratio decreases to 3.00:1.00 and then to
2.75:1.00 with respect to the second fiscal quarter of our fiscal years 2013 and 2014, respectively.
As of November 30, 2012, we were in compliance with all covenants under the 2011 Credit
Facility.
As of November 30, 2012, we had no outstanding borrowings under the 2011 Credit
Facility.
Line of Credit
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We have a $20.0 million revolving line of credit that matures in June 2013 (the "Line of
Credit"). The revolving line of credit is available for cash borrowings and for the issuance of
letters of credit up to $20.0 million. The Line of Credit contains financial covenants substantially
identical to those of the 2011 Credit Facility, as well as other customary affirmative and negative
covenants. As of November 30, 2012, we were in compliance with all covenants under the line of
credit.
In connection with the mortgage note, we entered into an irrevocable letter of credit in the
amount of $13.0 million collateralized under the Line of Credit which renews for successive oneyear periods, until the mortgage note payable has been satisfied in full. In addition, as of
November 30, 2012 we had a total of $1.0 million outstanding with respect to letters of credit in
connection with sales and lease transactions.
Guarantee Credit Line and Restricted Cash
We have a revolving guarantee credit line of approximately $13.0 million (the "Guarantee
Credit Line") available for issuance of bank guarantees denominated in foreign currency. Issued
bank guarantees were approximately $12.5 million and $11.4 million in fiscal years 2012 and
2011, respectively, and were collateralized by pledging the equivalent amount under restricted
cash as required under our Guarantee Credit Line. Additionally, other contractual commitments
also require us to pledge cash as security under restricted cash. As of November 30, 2012 and
2011, we had restricted cash of $14.6 million and $13.8 million, respectively, which is included in
Other Assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Segment Information
3 Months Ended
12 Months Ended
(Summary Of Revenue By
Geographic Region) (Details) Nov. Aug. May Feb. Nov. Aug. May Feb.
Nov. Nov.
Nov. 30,
(USD $)
30,
31,
31,
28,
30,
31,
31,
28,
30,
30,
2012
In Thousands, unless
2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011
2011 2010
otherwise specified
Revenue from External
Customer [Line Items]
Total revenues
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
296,527 255,021 247,363 225,702 289,511 228,973 216,421 185,341 1,024,613 920,246 754,007
United States
Revenue from External
Customer [Line Items]
Total revenues
498,059 456,862 368,391
Other Americas
Revenue from External
Customer [Line Items]
Total revenues
52,816 47,870 39,633
Total Americas
Revenue from External
Customer [Line Items]
Total revenues
550,875 504,732 408,024
United Kingdom
Revenue from External
Customer [Line Items]
Total revenues
93,697 80,645 69,935
Other EMEA
Revenue from External
Customer [Line Items]
Total revenues
276,323 245,854 204,613
Total EMEA
Revenue from External
Customer [Line Items]
Total revenues
370,020 326,499 274,548
APJ
Revenue from External
Customer [Line Items]
Total revenues
$
$
$ 103,718
89,015 71,435
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Net Income Per Share
(Computation Of Basic And
Diluted Net Income Per
Share) (Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, except Per
Share data, unless otherwise
specified
Earnings Per Share
[Abstract]
Net income attributable to
TIBCO Software Inc.
Weighted-average shares of
common stock used in
computing basic net income
per share (excluding unvested
restricted stock)
Stock options
Stock awards
ESPP
Weighted-average shares of
common stock used in
computing diluted net income
per share
Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share

3 Months Ended
Nov.
30,
2012

Aug.
31,
2012

May
31,
2012

Feb.
28,
2012

Nov.
30,
2011

12 Months Ended
Aug.
31,
2011

May
31,
2011

Feb.
28,
2011

Nov.
30,
2012

Nov.
30,
2011

Nov.
30,
2010

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
48,788 26,086 26,492 20,641 51,878 23,529 21,046 15,953 122,007 112,406 78,088

160,115 159,308 160,437 161,460 161,586 161,876 161,911 160,503 160,330 161,469 160,959

6,677
2,683
8

9,549
2,245
9

7,949
2,042
3

169,284 169,165 169,477 170,866 171,978 172,957 174,666 173,486 169,698 173,272 170,953
$ 0.30 $ 0.16 $ 0.17 $ 0.13 $ 0.32 $ 0.15 $ 0.13 $ 0.10 $ 0.76 $ 0.70 $ 0.49
$ 0.29 $ 0.15 $ 0.16 $ 0.12 $ 0.30 $ 0.14 $ 0.12 $ 0.09 $ 0.72 $ 0.65 $ 0.46
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Document And Entity
12 Months Ended
Information (USD $)
In Billions, except Share
Nov. 30, 2012
Jan. 21, 2013 May 31, 2012
data, unless otherwise
specified
Document And Entity Information [Abstract]
Document Type
10-K
Amendment Flag
false
Document Period End Date
Nov. 30, 2012
Document Fiscal Year Focus
2012
Document Fiscal Period Focus
FY
Trading Symbol
tibx
Entity Registrant Name
TIBCO SOFTWARE INC
Entity Central Index Key
0001085280
Current Fiscal Year End Date
--11-30
Entity Filer Category
Large Accelerated Filer
Entity Common Stock, Shares Outstanding
162,879,916
Entity Public Float
$ 3.3
Entity Voluntary Filers
No
Entity Well-known Seasoned Issuer
Yes
Entity Current Reporting Status
Yes
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Convertible Senior Notes
Convertible Senior Notes
[Abstract]
Convertible Senior Notes

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Convertible Senior Notes
Description of Convertible Senior Notes
In April 2012, we issued convertible senior notes (the "Notes") in an aggregate principal
amount of $600.0 million due May 1, 2032. The Notes bear interest at a rate of 2.25% per annum.
The Notes do not contain any financial covenants or any restrictions on the payment of dividends,
the incurrence of senior debt or other indebtedness, or the issuance or repurchase of securities by
us. Each $1,000 principal amount of Notes is initially convertible, at the option of the holders, at
a rate of 19.7750 shares of our common stock, representing an initial conversion price of
approximately $50.57 per share, which is subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain
events specified in the indenture. On conversion of a Note, we will deliver cash in an amount
generally equal to the lesser of the conversion value and the principal amount of each Note and,
for any conversion value greater than the principal amount, we will deliver shares of common
stock. Holders may convert Notes prior to February 1, 2032, and other than during the period
from February 1, 2017 to May 5, 2017, under the following circumstances: (1) if the Notes are
called for redemption, at any time prior to the redemption date; (2) during any fiscal quarter
commencing after the fiscal quarter ending on September 2, 2012, if our last reported sale price
of a share of common stock for at least 20 trading days during a period of 30 consecutive trading
days ending on the last trading day of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter is greater than or
equal to 130% of the conversion price on each applicable trading day; (3) during any five
consecutive trading day period when the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of Notes is
less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale price of a share of common stock and the
conversion rate; and (4) upon the occurrence of certain distributions or corporate events as
specified in the indenture governing the Notes. From February 1, 2017 to May 5, 2017, and from
February 1, 2032 until the maturity date, holders may convert Notes at any time, regardless of the
foregoing circumstances.
After May 5, 2017, we may redeem for cash all or part of the Notes. The redemption price
will be equal to the principal amount of the Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid
interest. Holders may require us to repurchase all or a portion of their Notes on May 5,
2017, May 1, 2022 and May 1, 2027 in cash at a price equal to the principal amount, plus accrued
and unpaid interest.
Upon the occurrence of a fundamental change under the indenture for the Notes, such as in
the event of a change in control, the holders may require us to repurchase all or a portion of their
Notes at the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued and unpaid interest. Following certain
corporate transactions that constitute a change of control, the conversion rate may increase for a
holder who elects to convert the Notes. Upon conversion, we will deliver an amount of cash and a
number of shares of common stock, if any, equal to the sum of the daily settlement amounts for
each daily volume weighted average price in the 35 day observation period for such Note as
determined pursuant to the indenture for the Notes.
We used approximately $121.0 million of the net proceeds from the offering to repurchase
3.6 million shares of our common stock concurrently with the offering of the Notes.
Accounting of Convertible Senior Notes
Accounting guidance requires that convertible debt that can be settled for cash, such as the
Notes, be separated into the liability and equity component at issuance and each be assigned a
value. The value assigned to the liability component is the estimated fair value, as of the issuance
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date, of a similar debt without the conversion feature. The difference between the cash proceeds
and estimated fair value of the liability component, representing the value of the conversion
premium assigned to the equity component, is recorded as a debt discount on the issuance
date. This debt discount is amortized to interest expense using the effective interest method over
the period from the issuance date through the first stated repurchase date on May 5, 2017. We
estimated the straight debt borrowing rates at debt origination to be 5.50% for the Notes and
determined the debt discount to be $84.6 million. As a result, a conversion premium after tax of
$52.6 million was recorded in additional paid-in capital.
As of November 30, 2012, the carrying value of the Notes was $524.5 million, which
consisted of $600.0 million outstanding principal amount net of $75.5 million unamortized debt
discount.
In connection with the issuance of the Notes, we incurred $15.6 million of issuance costs,
which primarily consisted of investment banking fees and legal and other professional service
fees. Deferred issuance costs of $13.4 million attributable to the liability component are being
amortized to interest expense through May 5, 2017 and $2.2 million ($1.4 million net of tax) of
transaction costs attributable to the equity component were netted with the equity component in
additional paid-in capital at the issuance date. The deferred debt issuance costs are recorded
within other assets in accordance with short- and long-term classification. If the holders require
conversion of some or all of the Notes when the conversion requirements are met, we would
accelerate amortization of the pro rata share of the unamortized balance of the issuance cost to
additional paid-in capital on such date.
During fiscal year 2012, we recognized interest expense of $18.8 million related to the
Notes, comprised of $8.2 million for the contractual coupon interest, $9.0 million related to the
amortization of debt discount and $1.6 million related to the amortization of deferred debt
issuance costs.
The Notes are carried at face value less any unamortized debt discount and also require
disclosure of an estimate of fair value (Level 2 of the three-tier value hierarchy). The fair value of
the Notes at each balance sheet date is determined based on recent quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for the Notes, if available. Otherwise, the fair value is determined using cash-flow models
of the scheduled payments discounted at market interest rates for comparable debt without the
conversion feature. As of November 30, 2012, the estimated fair value of the Notes approximated
$583.0 million.
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Stock Benefit Plans and
12 Months
Stock-Based Compensation
Ended
(Summary Of Stock Option
Activity) (Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, except Per
Nov. 30, 2012
Share data, unless otherwise
specified
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Options,
Outstanding [Roll Forward]
Number of Shares Underlying Stock Options, Outstanding at November 30, 2011
15,964
Number of Shares Underlying Stock Options, Granted
193
Number of Shares Underlying Stock Options, Exercised
(3,560)
Number of Shares Underlying Stock Options, Forfeited or expired
(398)
Number of Shares Underlying Stock Options, Outstanding at November 30, 2012
12,199
Number of Shares Underlying Stock Options, Vested and expected to vest at November 30, 2012 11,973
Number of Shares Underlying Stock Options, Exercisable at November 30, 2012
10,488
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based Payment Award, Options,
Outstanding, Weighted Average Exercise Price [Roll Forward]
Weighted-Average Exercise Price, Outstanding at November 30, 2011
$ 10.16
Weighted-Average Exercise Price, Granted
$ 24.21
Weighted-Average Exercise Price, Exercised
$ 9.00
Weighted-Average Exercise Price, Forfeited or expired
$ 18.63
Weighted-Average Exercise Price, Outstanding at November 30, 2012
$ 10.45
Weighted-Average Exercise Price, Vested and expected to vest at November 30, 2012
$ 10.48
Weighted-Average Exercise Price, Exercisable at Outstanding, Exercisable at November 30,
$ 7.78
2012
Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term, Outstanding at November 30, 2012
2 years 5
months 35 days
Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term, Vested and expected to vest at November 30, 2 years 5
2012 (in years)
months 15 days
Weighted-Average Remaining Contractual Term, Exercisable at November 30, 2012 (in years) 2 years 0
months 28 days
Aggregate Intrinsic Value, Outstanding at November 30, 2012
$ 180,399
Aggregate Intrinsic Value, Vested and expected to vest at November 30, 2012
179,799
Aggregate Intrinsic Value, Exercisable at November 30, 2012
$ 172,886
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Income Taxes
(Reconciliation Of
Unrecognized Tax Benefits)
(Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Reconciliation of Unrecognized Tax Benefits, Excluding Amounts Pertaining to
Examined Tax Returns [Roll Forward]
Gross unrecognized tax benefits balance at beginning of year
Increases for tax positions of current fiscal year
Increases for tax positions of prior fiscal years
Lapse of statutes of limitation
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at end of year
Interest and penalties
Total unrecognized tax benefits balance at end of year
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, Nov. 30,
2012
2011

$ 43,619
8,136
4,031
(1,270)
54,516
881
$ 55,397

$ 35,782
8,449
962
(1,574)
43,619
761
$ 44,380

Consolidated Statements Of
Operations (USD $)
In Thousands, except Per
Share data, unless otherwise
specified

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30,
2012

Revenue:
License
$ 410,306
Service and maintenance
614,307
Total revenue
1,024,613
Cost of revenue:
License
41,363
Service and maintenance
241,452
Total cost of revenue
282,815
Gross profit
741,798
Operating expenses:
Research and development
154,535
Sales and marketing
317,001
General and administrative
70,868
Amortization of acquired intangible assets
19,654
Acquisition related and other
2,672
Restructuring charges
(648)
Total operating expenses
564,082
Income from operations
177,716
Interest income
1,109
Interest expense
(23,396)
Other income (expense), net
(115)
Income before provision for income taxes
155,314
Provision for income taxes
33,200
Net income
122,114
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest
107
Net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.
$ 122,007
Net income per share attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.:
Basic (usd per share)
$ 0.76
Diluted (usd per share)
$ 0.72
Shares used in computing net income per share attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.:
Shares used in computing net income per share attributable to TIBCO Software
160,330
Inc., Basic (in sharess)
Shares used in computing net income per share attributable to TIBCO Software
169,698
Inc., Diluted (in shares)
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Nov. 30,
2011

Nov. 30,
2010

$ 377,618 $ 301,532
542,628 452,475
920,246 754,007
35,309
212,066
247,375
672,871

35,325
162,468
197,793
556,214

143,173
285,366
59,990
19,149
1,840
8,926
518,444
154,427
1,374
(4,020)
(1,846)
149,935
37,300
112,635
229
$ 112,406

124,654
240,357
49,260
16,414
3,421
6,953
441,059
115,155
1,349
(4,123)
(1,509)
110,872
32,401
78,471
383
$ 78,088

$ 0.70
$ 0.65

$ 0.49
$ 0.46

161,469

160,959

173,272

170,953

12 Months Ended
Fair Value Measurements
and Derivative Instruments
Nov. 30, 2012
Fair Value Measurements
And Derivative Instruments
[Abstract]
Fair Value Measurements and Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments
Derivative Instruments
Fair Value Measurements
FASB guidance for fair value measurements clarifies that fair value is an exit price,
representing the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based
measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use
in pricing an asset or liability. As a basis for considering such assumptions, the guidance
establishes a three-tier value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value
as follows: (Level 1) observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; (Level 2) inputs
other than the quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly; and
(Level 3) unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require us to
develop our own assumptions. This hierarchy requires us to use observable market data, when
available, and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs when determining fair value. On a
recurring basis, we measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, including our
marketable securities and foreign currency contracts.
Our cash equivalents and investment instruments are classified within Level 1 or Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy because they are valued using quoted market prices, broker or dealer
quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. The types
of instruments valued based on quoted market prices in active markets include money market
securities. Such instruments are generally classified within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
The types of instruments valued based on other observable inputs include U.S. government
and agency securities, sovereign government obligations, investment-grade corporate bonds,
mortgage-backed and asset-backed products, term deposits and state, municipal and provincial
obligations. Such instruments are generally classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
We execute our foreign currency contracts primarily in the retail market in an over-thecounter environment with a relatively high level of price transparency. The market participants
usually are large multi-national and regional banks. Our foreign currency contracts valuation
inputs are based on quoted prices and quoted pricing intervals from public data sources and do
not involve management judgment. These contracts are typically classified within Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy. There is no transfer between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 in our fiscal years
2012 and 2011.
Fair value hierarchy of our cash equivalents, short-term investments and foreign currency
contracts at fair value (in thousands):
Fair Value Measurements
at Reporting Date using

Description

As of November 30, 2012
Assets:
Money market fund
Corporate bonds and commercial paper
U.S. government and agency debt securities
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Total
Fair Value

$ 376,480
24,558
9,645

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for
Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
other
Observable
Inputs (Level
2)

$

$

376,480
—
—

—
24,558
9,645

Term deposits
Mortgage-backed securities
Foreign currency forward contracts
Liabilities:
Foreign currency forward contracts
As of November 30, 2011
Assets:
Money market fund
Term deposits
Mortgage-backed securities
Foreign currency forward contracts
Liabilities:
Foreign currency forward contracts

595
208
101

—
—
—

595
208
101

$

130

$

—

$

130

$

16,664
560
225
142

$

16,664
—
—
—

$

—
560
225
142

$

142

$

—

$

142

Derivative Instruments
We conduct business in the Americas; Europe, the Middle East and Africa ("EMEA"); and
Asia Pacific and Japan ("APJ"). As a result, our financial results could be affected by factors such
as changes in foreign currency exchange rates or changes in economic conditions in foreign
markets. The U.S. dollar is our major transaction currency; we also transact business in
approximately 25 foreign currencies worldwide, of which the most significant to our operations
in fiscal years 2012 and 2011 was the Euro. We enter into forward contracts with financial
institutions to manage our currency exposure related to net assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, and these forward contracts are generally settled monthly. Our forward
contracts reduce, but do not eliminate, the impact of currency exchange rate movements. Gains
and losses on forward contracts are included in Other Income (Expense) in our Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
As of November 30, 2012, we had the following forward contracts outstanding (in
thousands):
Notional
Value Local
Currency

Fair Value
Gain (Loss)
USD

Notional
Value USD

Forward contracts sold:
Australian dollar
Brazilian real
British pound
Canadian dollar
Euro
Indian rupee
Japanese yen
Singapore dollar
New Taiwan dollar
Forward contracts bought:
British pound
Canadian dollar
Hong Kong dollar

9,000
2,500
2,700
4,980
33,500
64,000
345,000
1,400
31,000

$

9,357
1,170
4,326
5,004
43,560
1,177
4,188
1,147
1,066

12,400
480

19,867
483

6,900

890

$

(118)
4
—
$
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(1)
56
1
5
5
6
(5)
—
(5)

(52)

Notional
Value Local
Currency

Notional
Value Euro

Fair Value
Gain (Loss)
USD

Forward contracts sold:
Canadian dollar
Forward contracts bought:
British pound
Swedish krona
United States dollar

1,200

€

928

6,000
31,500

7,394
3,636

48,300

37,145

$

1
5
5
12

$

23

Derivatives not Designated
as Hedging Instruments
2012

2011

Foreign currency forward contracts, fair value included in:
Other Current Assets
Accrued Liabilities

$

101
130

$

142
142

Amount of Gain or (Loss)
Recognized In Income on
Derivative Year Ended
November 30,
Derivatives not Designated as Hedging Instruments

Foreign Currency Contracts

Location

Other income/
(expense) $

2012

2,961

2011

$

8,426

Currently, we do not have master netting agreements with our counterparties for our
forward contracts. We mitigate the credit risk of these derivatives by transacting with highly rated
counterparties. As of November 30, 2012, we have evaluated the credit and non-performance
risks associated with our derivative counterparties, and we believe that the impact of the credit
risk associated with our outstanding derivatives was insignificant.
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Investments
Investments [Abstract]
Investments

Investments
Short-term investments, which are classified as available-for-sale, are summarized below as
of November 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):
Purchased/
Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

Aggregate
Fair Value

As of November 30, 2012
Money market funds
Corporate bonds and commercial
paper
U.S Government debt and agency
securities

$ 376,480

Term deposits
Mortgage-backed securities
As of November 30, 2011
Money market funds
Term deposits
Mortgage-backed securities

$

—

$

—

$ 376,480

24,558

9

(9)

24,558

9,646

—

(1)

9,645

595
182

—
78

—
(52)

595
208

$ 411,461

$

87

$

(62) $ 411,486

$

16,664
560
200

$

—
—
51

$

— $
—
(26)

16,664
560
225

$

17,424

$

51

$

(26) $

17,449

Fixed income securities included in short-term investments above are summarized by their
contractual maturities as follows (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

Contractual maturities:
Less than one year
One to three years

$

22,733
11,678

$

—
225

$

34,411

$

225

The maturities of mortgage-backed securities were primarily based upon payment forecasts
utilizing interest rate scenarios and mortgage loan characteristics. Realized and unrealized gains
and losses on our investments were primarily due to changes in interest rates and market and
credit conditions of the underlying securities and were insignificant for any period presented.
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Stock Benefit Plans and
Stock-Based Compensation
Share-based Compensation
[Abstract]
Stock Benefit Plans And
Stock-Based Compensation

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Stock Benefit Plans and Stock-Based Compensation
Stock Benefit Plans
2008 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2008 Plan") and 1996 Stock Option Plan (the "1996
Plan"). On August 1, 2008, the 2008 Plan replaced the 1996 Stock Option Plan. As of
November 30, 2012, there were 5.9 million shares available for grant under the 2008 Plan and 9.7
million shares underlying stock options and awards outstanding under the 2008 Plan and no
shares available for grant and 7.9 million underlying stock options and awards outstanding under
the 1996 Plan.
Stock options granted under the 2008 Plan may be either incentive stock options or
nonqualified stock options. Incentive stock options may be granted only to employees (including
officers and directors who are employees). Nonqualified stock options may be granted to our
employees and consultants. Stock options are generally granted at fair market value on the date of
grant and generally vest over four years. Stock options granted from the 1996 Plan prior to
December 1, 2005 generally have a contractual term of ten years from the date of grant, and stock
options granted from the 1996 Plan on or after December 1, 2005 and stock options granted from
the 2008 Plan, have a contractual term of seven years from the date of grant.
In addition to stock options, we issue restricted stock or restricted stock units to our
employees (including officers and directors who are employees). Shares of restricted stock are
issued at the time of grant, but held in escrow until they are vested. The recipient of restricted
stock becomes the owner of record of the stock immediately upon grant, subject to certain
restrictions. The balance of unvested restricted stock will be forfeited and automatically
transferred back to us at no cost upon the termination of the recipient’s employment. Upon
vesting of restricted stock, the recipient has the option to settle minimum withholding taxes by
electing to have us withhold otherwise deliverable shares having a fair market value equal to the
required tax obligations ("net-settlement"). The net-settlement shares are then immediately
cancelled and retired. As vesting of restricted stock units occur, common stock is issued. The
recipient of restricted stock units does not acquire any rights as a stockholder until the restricted
stock units are settled upon vesting and the recipient actually receives shares of our common
stock.
Since fiscal year 2010, certain of our employees, received performance-based restricted
stock units ("PRSUs"). These PRSUs are subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the
PRSU Agreements and granted under our 2008 Plan as recently amended and restated. As of
November 30, 2012, approximately 4.8 million PRSUs were outstanding.
Under the terms of the PRSUs granted in fiscal year 2010, these PRSUs are eligible to start
vesting as of the end of our fiscal year 2012 because we achieved the performance goal of nonGAAP EPS of $1.00 or greater for our fiscal year 2012 and a cumulative non-GAAP EPS of
$2.40 or greater over the three fiscal years 2010, 2011 and 2012. Half of the PRSUs vested in
December 2012 and the other half will vest in the first quarter of fiscal year 2014, subject to the
award recipient’s continued employment.
In fiscal years 2012 and 2011, we granted 0.7 million and 0.3 million PRSUs, respectively,
which are subject to performance criteria based on non-GAAP EPS goals for fiscal year 2011 and
a three year period ending with fiscal year 2014.
1998 Director Option Plan (the "Director Plan"). In February 1998, we adopted the
Director Plan. On August 1, 2008, the Director Plan was retired and replaced by the 2008 Plan.
As of November 30, 2012, no shares were available for grant and approximately 0.9 million
shares underlying stock options were outstanding under the Director Plan.
Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

2008 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "2008 ESPP"). On August 1, 2008, we adopted
the 2008 ESPP replacing the previous Employee Stock Purchase Program (the "ESPP") pursuant
to the 1996 Plan. As of November 30, 2012, approximately 8.6 million shares were reserved for
future issuance under the 2008 ESPP and we had issued approximately 0.2 million shares under
the 2008 ESPP.
Under the 2008 ESPP, participants are entitled to purchase shares at 85% of the lesser of the
fair market value of our common stock on either the first or last trading day of each six-month
offering period. Participants may contribute a maximum amount of $2,500 per offering period
and no contribution percentage changes are allowed during an offering period.
2009 Deferred Compensation Plan (the "2009 DCP"). On February 20, 2009, we adopted
the 2009 DCP. Pursuant to the 2009 DCP, eligible participants may elect to defer certain cash
compensation into restricted stock units in accordance with the terms of the 2009 DCP. The
restricted stock units will be settled in shares of our common stock at the end of the elected
deferral period except in certain situations as provided in the 2009 DCP. As of November 30,
2012, approximately 981,000 shares of our common stock remained available for issuance under
the 2009 DCP.
Stock Option Activity
The summary of stock option activity in fiscal year 2012 is presented below (in thousands,
except per share data):

Stock Options

Outstanding at November 30, 2011
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited or expired
Outstanding at November 30, 2012
Vested and expected to vest at
November 30, 2012
Exercisable at November 30, 2012

Number of
Shares
Underlying
Options

WeightedAverage
Exercise Price

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Term (year)

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

15,964 $
193
(3,560)
(398)

10.16
24.21
9.00
18.63

12,199

$

10.45

2.51 $ 180,399

11,973

$

10.48

2.46 $ 179,799

10,488

$

7.78

2.08 $ 172,886

The intrinsic value of exercised stock options is calculated based on the difference between
the exercise price and the quoted market price of our common stock as of the close of the exercise
date. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 was
$73.7 million, $136.8 million and $67.3 million, respectively. Upon the exercise of stock options,
we issue common stock from our authorized shares. Total fair value of stock options vested and
expensed in fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $40.7 million, $32.2 million and $21.5 million,
respectively, net of taxes.
The total realized tax benefits attributable to stock options exercised and vesting of stock
awards were $24.6 million, $8.6 million and $30.6 million in fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010
respectively. The gross excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation were $30.3 million,
$42.0 million and $21.5 million in the fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, as reported
on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in financing activities. The excess tax benefits
represent the reduction in income taxes otherwise payable during the period which are
attributable to the actual gross tax benefits in excess of the expected tax benefits for stock options
exercised in current and prior periods.
Stock Awards Activities
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Our nonvested stock awards are comprised of restricted stock, restricted stock units and
PRSUs. A summary of the status for nonvested stock awards as of November 30, 2012, and
activities during fiscal year 2012 is presented as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Nonvested Stock Awards

Restricted
Stock

Restricted
Stock Units

Performancebased
Restricted
Stock Units

Nonvested at November
30, 2011
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

3,443
1,387
(1,431)
(272)

1,423
692
(491)
(101)

4,346
685
(106)
(155)

Nonvested at November
30, 2012

3,127

1,523

4,770

Total Number
of Shares
Underlying
Stock Awards

WeightedAverage
Grant Date
Fair Value

9,212 $
2,764
(2,028)
(528)
9,420

12.71
25.77
13.06
11.81
16.51

We granted nonvested stock awards at no cost to recipients during fiscal years 2012, 2011
and 2010. The total fair value of shares vested pursuant to stock awards during fiscal year 2012,
2011 and 2010 were $24.3 million, $18.9 million and $2.1 million, respectively.
Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-based compensation cost in fiscal year 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $61.1 million, $48.9
million and $32.2 million, respectively. The deferred tax benefit on employee stock-based
compensation expenses in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $20.5 million, $16.5 million and
$10.7 million, respectively. We did not capitalize any stock-based compensation in any of the
fiscal periods reported. As of November 30, 2012, total unamortized stock-based compensation
cost was $105.6 million, with a weighted-average remaining recognition period of 1.90 years.
We recognize the fair value of service-based stock awards and options generally on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period of generally three to four years, net of
estimated forfeitures.
We recognize the stock-based compensation costs for PRSUs when we believe it is
probable that we will achieve the performance criteria as defined in the PRSU agreements. We
then estimate the most probable period in which the performance criteria will be met, if at all, and
the number of awards ultimately expected to vest and recognize the expense using the graded
vesting attribution method over the remaining recognition period. On a quarterly basis we
determine, based on these estimates, the appropriate compensation expense to be recognized over
the requisite service period and adjust compensation cost in that reporting period. Changes in our
estimates could significantly affect the stock-based compensation expense and thus, our earnings,
in that quarterly period.
As of November 30, 2012, the performance goals for the PRSUs granted in fiscal year 2010
were met and we estimated that it is not probable that 20% of the PRSUs will be forfeited prior to
vesting. For the PRSUs granted in fiscal year 2011, the performance criteria for fiscal year 2011
were met and for the PRSUs granted in fiscal year 2012, we estimate that performance criteria
over the three year performance period will be met.
We recognized stock-based compensation cost associated with our employee stock
purchase programs on a straight-line basis over each six-month offering period.
Assumptions for Estimating Fair Value of Stock-Based Awards
We selected the Black-Scholes option pricing model as the most appropriate model for
determining the estimated fair value for stock-based awards including stock options and
employee stock purchase plans. The use of the Black-Scholes model requires the use of extensive
actual employee exercise behavior data and the use of a number of complex assumptions
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including expected volatility, risk-free interest rate and expected dividends. The following table
summarizes the assumptions used to value options granted in the respective periods:
Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

2010

Stock Option grants:
Expected term of stock options (years)
Risk-free interest rate
Volatility
Weighted-average grant-date fair value (per
share)
Employee stock purchase plans:
Expected term of ESPP (years)
Risk-free interest rate
Volatility
Weighted-average grant-date fair value (per
share)

4.8
0.7 - 1.5%
42 – 47%

4.8 – 5.1
0.9 - 2.1%
42 – 47%

4.8 – 5.1
1.3 – 2.4%
42 – 44%

$

$

$

9.91
0.5
0.1%
43 – 52%

$

7.62

10.70
0.5
0.2%
38 – 39%

$

6.56

4.99
0.5
0.2%
35 – 39%

$

2.87

We estimated the volatility of our stock using historical volatility, as well as the implied
volatility in market-traded options on our common stock. We determined that a blend of implied
volatility and historical volatility is more reflective of market conditions and a better indicator of
expected volatility than using purely historical volatility. We will continue to monitor these and
other relevant factors used to measure expected volatility for future stock option grants.
The expected term of employee stock options represents the weighted-average period that
the stock options are expected to remain outstanding. We derived the expected term assumption
based on our historical settlement experience, while giving consideration to stock options that
have life cycles less than the contractual terms and vesting schedules.
The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon observed interest rates appropriate for
the expected term of our employee stock options. The dividend yield assumption is based on our
history and expectation of dividend payouts. We have never declared or paid any cash dividends
on our common stock, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable
future.
As stock-based compensation expense recognized in our Consolidated Statement of
Operations is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, the amount has been reduced for
estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Forfeitures were estimated
based on our historical experience.
The fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock units is the grant date closing price of
our common stock. We expense the cost of the restricted stock and restricted stock units ratably
over the period during which the restrictions lapse, and adjust for estimated forfeitures.
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Other Balance Sheet
Components
Balance Sheet Related Disclosures
[Abstract]
Other Balance Sheet Components

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Other Balance Sheet Components
Certain other balance sheet components are summarized below (in
thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

$ 65,963
25,275
3,196
39,162

$ 76,979
18,503
5,743
27,943

$ 133,596

$ 129,168

$ 25,221
238,255

$

$ 263,476

$ 210,234

Accrued liabilities:
Compensation and benefits
Taxes
Current deferred tax liability
Other
Total accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue:
License
Service and maintenance
Total deferred revenue, current

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

6,820
203,414

Noncontrolling Interest
(Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Total assets
Total revenues
TS Innovations Limited
Total assets
Total revenues
Percentage of ownership
interest owned by the entity
Percentage of equity interest
owned by noncontrolling
shareholders

3 Months Ended
12 Months Ended
Aug. May Feb.
Aug. May Feb.
Nov.
Nov. 30,
Nov. 30,
Nov. 30, Nov. 30,
31,
31,
28,
31,
31,
28,
30,
2012
2011
2012
2011
2012 2012 2012
2011 2011 2011
2010
$
$
$
$
1,946,908
1,332,938
1,946,908 1,332,938
296,527 255,021 247,363 225,702 289,511 228,973 216,421 185,341 1,024,613 920,246 754,007
6,100

5,000

6,100

5,000

$ 10,500 $ 13,100
74.90%

74.90%

25.10%

25.10%
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$
13,200

12 Months Ended
Goodwill and Other
Acquired Intangible Assets
Nov. 30, 2012
Goodwill and Intangible
Assets Disclosure [Abstract]
Goodwill and Other Acquired Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets
Goodwill
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the fiscal years ended November 30,
2012 and 2011 are as follows (in thousands):
Goodwill

Balance as of November 30, 2010

$

409,545
27,117
11,966
(689)
205
464
3,213

$

451,821
73,460
1,077
801
5,131

$

532,290

Goodwill recorded for the Nimbus acquisition
Goodwill recorded for the Loyalty Lab acquisition
Goodwill adjustment for the OpenSpirit acquisition(1)
Goodwill adjustment for the Proginet acquisition(1)
Goodwill adjustment for the Kabira acquisition(1)
Foreign currency translation
Balance as of November 30, 2011
Goodwill recorded for the LogLogic acquisition
Goodwill adjustment for the Nimbus acquisition(1)
Goodwill recorded for other business combination
Foreign currency translation
Balance as of November 30, 2012
(1)

Pursuant to the business combinations accounting guidance, we record goodwill adjustments for the effect on
goodwill changes to net assets acquired during the measurement period (up to one year from the date of an
acquisition). Goodwill adjustments were not significant to our previously reported operating results or financial
position.

Acquired Intangible Assets
Our acquired intangible assets are subject to amortization on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
Estimated
Life

Developed technologies

Weighted Average
Remaining Life

4 to 9 years
4 to 9 years
5 to 7 years
4 to 8 years
4 to 9 years

Customer base
Patents/core technologies
Trademarks
Maintenance agreements

4.3 years
3.5 years
2.9 years
5.1 years
5.0 years

The carrying values of our amortized acquired intangible assets are as follows (in
thousands):
November 30, 2012
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

November 30, 2011
Net
Carrying
Amount
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Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Developed
technologies
Customer base
Patents/core
technologies
Trademarks
Non-compete
agreements
Maintenance
agreements
In-process
research and
development
Total
intangible
assets

$ 182,152
59,525

$ (118,992) $ 63,160
(43,328) $ 16,197

$ 146,289
56,165

$ (102,034) $ 44,255
(37,376)
18,789

28,295
12,777

(24,198) $
(8,251) $

4,097
4,526

27,922
9,771

(21,542)
(7,077)

6,380
2,694

580

(580) $

—

580

(580)

—

(48,481) $ 35,281

61,677

(38,237)

23,440

83,762

—

$ 367,091

—

$

—

1,700

$ (243,830) $ 123,261

$ 304,104

—

$

1,700

$ (206,846) $ 97,258

In fiscal year 2012, in-process research and development was reclassified into developed
technologies as the development of the technology was completed and the related product
released.
The estimated future amortization of acquired intangible assets as of November 30, 2012 is
as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended November 30,

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Thereafter
Total intangible assets, net
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$

34,942
28,317
23,316
17,660
11,772
7,254

$

123,261

Accounts Receivable and
Allowances for Doubtful
Accounts, Returns and
Discounts (Narrative)
(Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Accounts Receivable And Allowances For Doubtful Accounts, Returns And
Discounts [Abstract]
Unbilled fees for professional services
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Nov. 30,
2012

$ 19,420

Nov. 30,
2011

$ 19,499

Accounts Receivable and
Allowances for Doubtful
Accounts, Returns and
Discounts
Accounts Receivable And
Allowances For Doubtful
Accounts, Returns And
Discounts [Abstract]
Accounts Receivable And
Allowances For Doubtful
Accounts, Returns And
Discounts

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Accounts Receivable and Allowances for Doubtful Accounts, Returns and Discounts
Accounts receivable, net, by category is as follows (in thousands):
November 30,

Accounts receivable
Unbilled fees for professional services

2012

2011

$ 220,286
19,420

$ 182,788
19,499

239,706
(5,606)

Less: Allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and discounts
Net accounts receivable

$ 234,100

202,287
(5,868)
$ 196,419

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at invoiced or to be invoiced amounts and do not
bear interest. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers’ financial condition and,
generally, require no collateral from our customers. Allowances for doubtful accounts, returns
and discounts were established based on various factors including credit profiles of our
customers, contractual terms and conditions, historical payments, returns and discounts
experience and current economic trends. We review our allowances monthly by assessing
individual accounts receivable over a specific aging and amount, and all other balances on a
pooled basis based on historical collection experience. Accounts receivable are written off on a
case-by-case basis, net of any amounts that may be collected. On occasion, we enter into
arrangements with customers where payment terms are considered to be extended. In these
instances, we do not consider the fees related to the arrangement to be fixed or determinable until
they become due and payable and are therefore recorded as accounts receivable and deferred
revenue.
Unbilled receivables of $19.4 million and $19.5 million mainly consist of professional
services performed during the last quarter of fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively, for which
billings have not been issued.
The following is a summary of activities in allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and
discounts for the fiscal years indicated (in thousands):

Year Ended November 30,

2012
2011
2010

Allowances
Beginning
Balance

$

5,868
5,729
4,224

Charged
Against
Revenue

$

1,343
650
200
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Charged to
Expenses

$

559
100
—

Write-offs,
Adjustments,
Net of
Recovery

$

Allowances
Ending
Balance

(2,164) $
(611)
1,305

5,606
5,868
5,729

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Property and Equipment
Property, Plant and
Equipment [Abstract]
Property And Equipment

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment by category is as follows (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

Buildings

$

Equipment and software
Furniture and fixtures
Facility improvements

77,938
64,956
8,475
58,118

2011

$

209,487
(111,013)

Less: Accumulated depreciation
$

98,474

77,938
58,021
6,923
51,016
193,898
(104,027)

$

89,871

Building Acquisition
In June 2003, we purchased the four buildings comprising our corporate headquarters in
Palo Alto, California. In connection with the purchase we entered into a 51 year lease of the land
upon which the buildings are located. The lease was paid in advance in the amount of $28.0
million. The total consideration paid for the land lease and the buildings was $108.0 million,
which was comprised of $54.0 million in cash and a $54.0 million mortgage note payable; see
Note 10 and Note 12 for further details.
The net purchase price of the buildings of $77.9 million is stated at cost and is included as a
component of Property and Equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 25 years.
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Accrued Restructuring and
12 Months Ended
Acquisition Integration
Nov. 30, 2012
Costs
Restructuring Costs
[Abstract]
Accrued Restructuring and Acquisition Integration Costs
Accrued Restructuring And
Acquisition Integration Costs Accrued Restructuring Costs
2011 Restructuring Plan. In order to achieve cost efficiencies and realign our resources and operations,
our Board of Directors approved a restructuring plan initiated by management during the fourth quarter of fiscal
year 2011. The restructuring charges were primarily related to excess facilities and other corporate actions aimed
to increase efficiencies and reduce redundancies, including those arising from recent acquisitions. As of
November 30, 2012, the total restructuring costs associated with the 2011 restructuring plan were $8.2 million
and are presented as restructuring charges in our Consolidated Statements of Operations. We recognized $8.8
million of restructuring charges during fiscal year 2011 and released $0.6 million in fiscal year 2012 due to
changes in estimates. Changes in estimates, if any, will be reflected in our future results of operations. We expect
to fulfill our remaining cash obligations associated with this restructuring no later than 2014.
2010 Restructuring Plan. In order to achieve cost efficiencies and realign our resources and operations,
our Board of Directors approved a restructuring plan initiated by management during the second quarter of fiscal
year 2010. The restructuring charges were primarily related to excess facilities and other corporate actions
arising from the recent acquisition of Kabira. As of November 30, 2010, the total estimated restructuring costs
associated with the 2010 restructuring plan were $7.1 million, and consisted of costs associated with employee
terminations and exit of excess facilities. These costs are recognized in accordance with the current guidance on
accounting for exit activities and are presented as restructuring charges in our Consolidated Statements of
Operations. We recognized $0.1 million and $7.0 million of restructuring charges during fiscal years 2011 and
2010, respectively. Changes in estimates, if any, will be reflected in our future results of operations as required
by the current accounting guidance. We expected to fulfill our remaining cash obligations associated with this
restructuring no later than 2013.
The following is a summary of activities in accrued restructuring and integration costs for each of the three
fiscal years ended November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (in thousands):
Accrued Excess Facilities

As of November 30,
2009

Acquisition
Integration

Restructuring

$

$

$

Acquisition
integration
costs
Adjustment
Cash utilized
As of November 30,
2010

5,811

$

400

$ 6,211

$

$

$

720

—

720

Total
$ 6,931

—

—

159

—

159

159

—

1,748

1,498

—

5,455

5,455

6,953

(6,591)

(868)

(3,357)

(4,225)

(10,816)

138

(344)
$

—

56

$ 1,118

—

—

—

2,405

2,405

—

—
(15)

—

$

41

Restructuring
charges

—

(41)

Cash utilized

—

—

—

$

(824)
924

(138)

$

Subtotal

—

Cash utilized

As of November 30,
2012

Restructuring

—

Restructuring
charges

$

—

Subtotal

Acquisition
Integration

(250)
(5,423)

Acquisition
integration
costs

As of November 30,
2011

Accrued Severance and Other

Headquarter
Facilities

—

$

(547)
$

$

2,782

$

$

—

(700)
$ 2,823

11

$

2,098

$ 2,109

(242)

(242)

$ 3,227

(242)

—

6,521

6,521

8,926

(11)

(3,358)

(3,369)

(4,069)

—

$

5,019

$ 5,019

$ 7,842

(312)

(353)

—

(295)

(295)

(648)

(1,139)

(1,139)

—

(4,519)

(4,519)

(5,658)

1,331

$ 1,331

$

—

$

205

$

205

$ 1,536

As of November 30, 2012, $0.6 million of the $1.5 million accrued restructuring were classified as longterm liabilities based on our current expectation that the lease payments will be paid over the remaining term of
the related leases.
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Property and Equipment
(Schedule Of Property And
Equipment) (Details) (USD
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
$)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Property, Plant and Equipment [Abstract]
Buildings
$ 77,938
$ 77,938
Equipment and software
64,956
58,021
Furniture and fixtures
8,475
6,923
Facility improvements
58,118
51,016
Property and equipment, gross
209,487
193,898
Less: Accumulated depreciation
(111,013)
(104,027)
Property and equipment, net
$ 98,474
$ 89,871
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30,
Nov. 30,
Nov. 30,
2012
2011
2010

Income Taxes (Narrative)
(Details) (USD $)
Income Taxes [Line Items]
Undistributed earnings for non-U.S. subsidiaries
Decrease in valuation allowance
Tax benefits from employee stock options plans
Increase in unrecognized tax benefits
Gross unrecognized tax benefits
Amount of unrecognized tax benefits would affect the effective tax rate
upon realization
Federal
Income Taxes [Line Items]
Operating loss carryforwards
Net operating losses attributable to stock deductions reduce taxes payable
Tax credit carryforwards
Tax credit carryforwards attributable to stock option benefits
State
Income Taxes [Line Items]
Operating loss carryforwards
Net operating losses attributable to stock deductions reduce taxes payable
Tax credit carryforwards
Tax credit carryforwards attributable to stock option benefits
Additional Paid-In Capital
Income Taxes [Line Items]
Tax benefits from employee stock options plans

$
256,400,000
5,600,000
24,561,000 8,552,000 30,626,000
10,900,000
55,397,000 44,380,000
37,900,000

332,000,000
152,500,000
82,400,000
77,300,000

168,000,000
124,700,000
38,700,000
25,100,000

$
$
$ 8,552,000
24,561,000
30,626,000
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Goodwill and Other
12 Months Ended
Acquired Intangible Assets
(Schedule Of Acquired
Nov. 30, 2012
Intangible Assets) (Details)
Developed technologies
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Weighted Average Remaining Life
4 years 3 months 12 days
Customer base
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Weighted Average Remaining Life
3 years 5 months 45 days
Patents/core technologies
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Weighted Average Remaining Life
2 years 9 months 55 days
Trademarks
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Weighted Average Remaining Life
5 years 1 month 0 days
Maintenance agreements
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Weighted Average Remaining Life
5 years 0 months 18 days
Minimum | Developed technologies
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Estimated Life
4 years
Minimum | Customer base
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Estimated Life
4 years
Minimum | Patents/core technologies
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Estimated Life
5 years
Minimum | Trademarks
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Estimated Life
4 years
Minimum | Maintenance agreements
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Estimated Life
4 years
Maximum | Developed technologies
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Estimated Life
9 years
Maximum | Customer base
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Estimated Life
9 years
Maximum | Patents/core technologies
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Estimated Life
7 years
Maximum | Trademarks
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Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Estimated Life
8 years
Maximum | Maintenance agreements
Finite-Lived Intangible Assets [Line Items]
Estimated Life
9 years
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Property and Equipment
(Narrative) (Details) (USD $)

1 Months Ended
Jun. 30, 2003
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
building

Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items]
Number of buildings purchased
4
Term of lease period
51 years
Lease paid in advance
$ 28,000,000
Total lease consideration paid
108,000,000
Cash paid for land lease and buildings
54,000,000
Mortgage note payable for lease
54,000,000
Buildings purchase price
Buildings
Property, Plant and Equipment [Line Items]
Estimated useful life
25 years

$ 77,938,000 $ 77,938,000
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Net Income Per Share (AntiDilutive Effect Of Shares Not
Included In Computation Of
Diluted Net Income Per
Share) (Details)
Anti-Dilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per
Share [Line Items]
Antidilutive securities excluded from computation of earnings per share,
amount
Number of underlying stock awards granted
Stock options
Anti-Dilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per
Share [Line Items]
Antidilutive securities excluded from computation of earnings per share,
amount
Stock awards
Anti-Dilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per
Share [Line Items]
Antidilutive securities excluded from computation of earnings per share,
amount
Convertible senior notes
Anti-Dilutive Securities Excluded from Computation of Earnings Per
Share [Line Items]
Antidilutive securities excluded from computation of earnings per share,
amount

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30,
2012

Nov. 30,
2011

Nov. 30,
2010

9,571,000 1,668,000 4,563,000
11,900,000

1,738,000 1,264,000 4,487,000

291,000

404,000

7,542,000 0

76,000

0

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Investments (Tables)

Investments [Abstract]
Summary Of Marketable Securities Classified As
, which are classified as available-for-sale, are summarized below
Available-For-Sale
as of November 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands):

As of November 30,
2012
Money market
funds
Corporate bonds
and commercial
paper
U.S Government
debt and agency
securities
Term deposits
Mortgage-backed
securities
As of November 30,
2011
Money market
funds
Term deposits
Mortgage-backed
securities

Purchased/
Amortized
Cost

Gross
Unrealized
Gains

$ 376,480

$

$

—

Aggregate
Fair Value

$376,480

24,558

9

(9)

24,558

9,646
595

—
—

(1)
—

9,645
595

(52)

208

182

78

$ 411,461

$

87

$

$ 16,664
560

$

—
—

$

200
$ 17,424

Summary Of Contractual Maturities Of Fixed
Income Securities Included In Short-Term
Investments

—

Gross
Unrealized
Losses

51
$

51

(62) $411,486

—
—

$ 16,664
560

(26)
$

225

(26) $ 17,449

Fixed income securities included in short-term investments above
are summarized by their contractual maturities as follows (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

Contractual maturities:
Less than one year
One to three years
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$ 22,733 $
11,678

—
225

$ 34,411 $

225

12 Months Ended
Business Combinations
(Narrative) (Details) (USD $) Nov. 30,
2012

Nov. 30,
2011

Nov. 30,
2010

1 Months
Ended
Aug. 30,
Apr. 30,
Apr. 10,
Nov. 30, Dec. 07,
Aug. 31,
Feb. 28,
Sep. 22,
Aug. 31,
Sep. 15, Feb. 28, 2011 Apr. 20, 2010 Mar. 08,
Nov. 30,
Dec. 31,
2011
2012
2012
2011
2010
2011
2011
2010
2011
2010
Kabira
Kabira
2010
2010
2009
Nimbus
LogLogic, LogLogic,
Loyalty Loyalty OpenSpirit OpenSpirit OpenSpirit Proginet
Proginet Technologies, Technologies, Netrics.Com, Foresight Foresight
Partners
Inc.
Inc.
Lab, Inc. Lab, Inc. Corporation Corporation Corporation Corporation Corporation
Inc.
Inc.
Inc.
Corporation Corporation
Limited

Business Acquisition [Line
Items]
Acquisitions, net of cash
$
$
$
$
acquired
132,209,000 63,610,000 78,573,000 131,600,000
Cash paid to acquire
136,629,000 42,000,000
23,500,000
outstanding shares
Acquisition related expenses
700,000
1,000,000
400,000
Goodwill adjustment related to
(400,000)
(500,000)
acquisition
Goodwill acquired deductible
for income tax purposes

(200,000)
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18,400,000

22,000,000

3,900,000

10,500,000

500,000

600,000

500,000

400,000

200,000

500,000

30,000,000
800,000
(1,100,000)

$ 1,300,000

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Legal Proceedings
Legal Proceedings [Abstract]
Legal Proceedings
Legal Proceedings
JuxtaComm v. TIBCO, et al.

On January 21, 2010, JuxtaComm-Texas Software, LLC ("JuxtaComm") filed a complaint
for patent infringement against us and other defendants in the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of Texas, Case No. 6:10-CV-00011-LED. On April 22, 2010, JuxtaComm filed an
amended complaint in which it alleges that certain TIBCO offerings, including TIBCO
ActiveMatrix Business Works™, TIBCO iProcess™ Suite, TIBCO Business Studio™ and
TIBCO ActiveMatrix® Service Bus infringe U.S. Patent No. 6,195,662 ("'662 patent").
JuxtaComm seeks injunctive relief and unspecified damages. On May 6, 2010, we filed an answer
and counterclaims in which we denied JuxtaComm's claims and asserted counterclaims for
declaratory relief that the asserted patent is invalid and not infringed.
On May 12, 2011, the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office ("PTO") issued a Final Office Action
rejecting all asserted claims of the '662 patent in a separate re-examination proceeding before the
PTO. On September 9, 2011, JuxtaComm filed a Notice of Appeal to the Board of Patent Appeals
and Interferences ("BPAI"), challenging the Final Office Action. JuxtaComm's Appeal before the
BPAI is currently pending.
On May 15, 2012, the Court in the Eastern District of Texas granted the defendants' motion
for summary judgment on invalidity of the asserted claims. On May 16, 2012, the Court issued an
order staying all deadlines and vacating the trial date in light of the Court's grant of summary
judgment of invalidity. On July 5, 2012, the Court issued an order containing its opinion
supporting the Court's grant of summary judgment. On September 19, 2012, the Court issued an
order of final judgment against JuxtaComm and taxed the defendants' costs of court against
JuxtaComm. JuxtaComm filed a notice of appeal on September 28, 2012, and JuxtaComm's
appeal is currently pending with the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit,
JustaComm-Texas Software, LLC v. TIBCO Software Inc., et al., No. 2013-1004, -1025.
We will continue to defend the action vigorously. While we believe that we have valid
defenses to JuxtaComm's claims, and the District Court entered judgment in our favor, litigation
is inherently unpredictable and we cannot make any predictions as to the outcome of this
litigation. It is possible that our business, financial position, or results of operations could be
negatively affected by an unfavorable resolution of this action, however, we are unable to
estimate a range of potential loss at this time.
InvestPic, LLC v. TIBCO, et al.
On November 24, 2010, InvestPic, LLC ("InvestPic") filed a complaint for patent
infringement against us and fourteen other defendants in the United States District Court for the
District of Delaware, Case No. 1:10cv1028-SLR. The complaint alleges that TIBCO Spotfire®
S+® "and other similar products" infringe U.S. Patent No. 6,349,291 (the "’291 patent"). On
March 29, 2011, defendant SAS Institute Inc. ("SAS") filed a motion to dismiss the complaint for
failure to state a claim for relief on the basis that all the asserted claims of the ’291 patent are
invalid as being directed to unpatentable subject matter. On May 13, 2011, TIBCO, along with
other defendants, filed a motion to dismiss the complaint on the same grounds as SAS’ motion.
On September 30, 2011, the Court denied this motion to dismiss. However, the Court declined to
address the merits of defendants’ arguments that the claims of the ’291 patent are directed to
unpatentable subject matter, in the absence of discovery or claim construction. On May 3, 2012,
defendants SAS, Algorithmics (U.S.), Inc. and International Business Machines Corp. filed a
motion to stay the litigation pending the reexamination of the ’291 patent. On July 10, 2012, the
Court entered an order to stay the litigation and administratively close the case during the
pendency of the reexamination of the '291 patent.
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InvestPic seeks injunctive relief and unspecified damages. We intend to defend the
action vigorously. While we believe that we have valid defenses to InvestPic's claims, litigation
is inherently unpredictable and we cannot make any predictions as to the outcome of this
litigation. It is possible that our business, financial position, or results of operations could be
negatively affected by an unfavorable resolution of this action. As InvestPic has made no specific
demand for damages in this matter other than injunctive relief, we cannot currently estimate a
reasonably possible range of loss for this action.
Vasudevan Software, Inc. v. TIBCO, et al.
On December 23, 2011, Vasudevan Software, Inc. ("Vasudevan") filed a complaint for
patent infringement against us and Spotfire Inc. in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of California, Case No. 3:11-cv-06638-RS. The complaint alleges that TIBCO
directly, indirectly, and willfully infringes U.S. Patent No. 7,167,864 B1 based on "Spotfire
Analytics and other products." Vasudevan further alleges in its infringement contentions that the
accused products "include at least the TIBCO Spotfire Platform (e.g., TIBCO Spotfire
Professional, TIBCO Spotfire Server, TIBCO Spotfire Web Player, TIBCO Spotfire Enterprise
Player, TIBCO Spotfire for the Apple iPad, TIBCO Spotfire Application Data Services, TIBCO
Spotfire Developer, TIBCO Spotfire Metrics, TIBCO Spotfire Network Analytics, TIBCO
Spotfire Operations Analytics Bundle, and TIBCO Silver Spotfire) at least versions 4.0 to 2.1, as
well as any TIBCO products and services that utilize the TIBCO Spotfire Platform." Vasudevan
amended its complaint on March 6, 2012, but continues to accuse the same products of
infringement. Vasudevan seeks injunctive relief and unspecified damages. On May 18, 2012, the
Court dismissed Vasudevan's indirect and willful infringement claims.
The Court issued a claim construction order on September 19, 2012. The Court issued a
case management scheduling order on April 27, 2012, including a fact discovery deadline of
February 15, 2013, and an expert discovery deadline of May 3, 2013. The trial date set by the
Court is January 27, 2014. We intend to defend the action vigorously. While we believe that we
have valid defenses to Vasudevan's claims, litigation is inherently unpredictable and we cannot
make any predictions as to the outcome of this litigation. It is possible that our business, financial
position, or results of operations could be negatively affected by an unfavorable resolution of this
action. As Vasudevan has made no specific demand for relief in this matter other than injunctive
relief, we cannot currently estimate a reasonably possible range of loss for this action.
YYZ, LLC v. TIBCO Software Inc.
On February 10, 2012, YYZ, LLC ("YYZ") filed a complaint for patent infringement against
us in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware, Case No.
1:12-cv-00170-SLR. On April 18, 2012, YYZ filed a first amended complaint for patent
infringement. YYZ alleged that certain TIBCO offerings, including at least TIBCO Business
Studio, infringe U.S. Patent No. 8,046,747 (the "'747 patent"). On May 7, 2012, we filed an
answer and counterclaims to YYZ's first amended complaint in which we denied YYZ's claims
and asserted counterclaims for declaratory relief that the '747 patent is invalid and not infringed.
We reached a settlement agreement with YYZ in December 2012. The parties filed a
stipulation of dismissal with prejudice with the Court on December 21, 2012, and the Court
entered its order of dismissal with prejudice on January 2, 2013.
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Income Taxes
Income Tax Disclosure
[Abstract]
Income Taxes

Income Taxes
Income before provision for income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):
Year Ended November 30,
2012

United States

$

International

2011

33,056
122,258

$ 155,314

$

51,159
98,776

$ 149,935

2010

$

84,671
26,201

$ 110,872

Significant components of the provision for (benefit from) income taxes are as follows (in
thousands):
Year Ended November 30,
2012

2011

29,554 $
(12,231)

14,619
2,364

2010

Federal:
Current
Deferred

$

$

25,140
(1,353)

17,323

16,983

23,787

1,078
(2,345)

1,925
1,341

3,425
(1,155)

(1,267)

3,266

2,270

22,919
(5,775)

19,490
(2,439)

12,314
(5,970)

17,144

17,051

6,344

State:
Current
Deferred
Foreign:
Current
Deferred
Provision for income taxes

$

33,200

$

37,300

$

32,401

The provision for income taxes was at rates other than the United States Federal statutory
tax rate for the following reasons:
Year Ended November 30,
2012

U.S. Federal statutory rate
State taxes
Research and development credits
Stock option compensation
Foreign income taxed at different rate
Change in valuation allowance
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35.0 %
(2.2)
(1.3)
(2.1)
(7.5)
—

2011

35.0 %
1.8
(2.7)
1.6
(5.9)
(2.5)

2010

35.0 %
2.1
(0.3)
0.5
(7.9)
—

Domestic manufacturing incentives
Other
Effective tax rate

(1.4)
0.9

(1.1)
(1.3)

—
(0.2)

21.4 %

24.9 %

29.2 %

U.S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes have not been provided for on a
cumulative total of $256.4 million of undistributed earnings for certain non-U.S. subsidiaries.
With the exception of our subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and Japan, net undistributed
earnings of our foreign subsidiaries are generally considered to be indefinitely reinvested, and
accordingly, no provision for U.S. income taxes has been provided thereon. We have sufficient
cash reserves in the U.S. and do not intend to repatriate any of our foreign earnings. We intend to
use the undistributed foreign earnings for acquisitions, local operations expansion and to meet
local working capital needs. Upon distribution of these earnings in the form of dividends or
otherwise, we will be subject to U.S. income taxes net of available foreign tax credits associated
with these earnings. Determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred tax liability related to
these earnings is not practicable at this time.
The components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows (in thousands):
November 30,
2012

2011

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards
Reserves, accruals and foreign related items
Credit carryforwards
Depreciation and amortization
Unrealized losses on investments
Deferred revenue
Translation gains/losses
Stock compensation expense
Other

$

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets
Convertible debt
Unbilled receivable
Other
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance
Valuation allowance
Net deferred tax assets

$

62,616
13,204
18,534
10,073
—
8,746
5,673
28,690
94

$

46,375
19,409
14,930
12,760
5,043
6,231
6,772
19,727
1,374

147,630

132,621

(37,590)
(26,573)
—
(884)

(28,390)
—
(4,407)
(2,453)

(65,047)

(35,250)

82,583
—

97,371
(5,592)

82,583

$

91,779

We assess the likelihood that we will be able to recover our deferred tax assets. We consider
all available evidence, both positive and negative, including historical levels of income,
expectations and risks associated with estimates of future taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance. If it is not
more likely than not that we expect to recover our deferred tax assets, we will increase our
provision for taxes by recording a valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets that we
estimate will not ultimately be recoverable. The available positive evidence at November 30,
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2012 included historical operating profits and a projection of future income. The valuation
allowance decreased by $5.6 million due to the statute of limitations having lapsed with respect to
certain capital loss carryforward deferred tax assets. As of November 30, 2012, it was considered
more likely than not that our deferred tax assets would be realized with their respective
carryforward periods.
As of November 30, 2012, we believed that the amount of the deferred tax assets recorded
on our balance sheet would ultimately be recovered. However, should there be a change in our
ability to recover our deferred tax assets, our tax provision would increase in the period in which
we determine that it is more likely than not that we cannot recover our deferred tax assets.
We have elected to track the portion of our federal and state net operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards attributable to excess stock option benefits in a separate memo account.
Therefore, these amounts are no longer included in our gross or net deferred tax assets. As of
November 30, 2012, our federal and state net operating loss carryforwards for tax return purposes
were $332.0 million and $168.0 million, respectively, which expire through 2032. Of these
federal and state net operating losses, $152.5 million and $124.7 million, respectively, will be
credited directly to additional paid-in capital when our net operating losses attributable to excess
stock option deductions are utilized and reduce taxes payable. As of November 30, 2012, our
federal and state tax credit carryforwards for tax return purposes were $82.4 million and $38.7
million, respectively. The federal tax credit carryforwards expire in 2032 and the state tax credit
can be carried forward indefinitely. Of these federal and state tax credits, $77.3 million and $25.1
million, respectively, will be credited directly to additional paid-in capital when our credits
attributable to excess stock option deductions reduce taxes payable.
Our income taxes payable for federal purposes have been reduced by the tax benefits
associated with the exercise of employee stock options during the fiscal year and utilization of net
operating loss carryover and credits applicable to both stock options and acquired entities. The
benefits applicable to stock options were credited directly to stockholders’ equity when realized
and amounted to $24.6 million and $8.6 million for fiscal years 2012 and 2011, respectively.
In the event of a change in ownership, as defined under federal and state tax laws, our net
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards may be subject to annual limitations. The annual
limitations may result in the expiration of the net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards
before utilization.
A reconciliation of the unrecognized tax benefits for the fiscal years ended November 30,
2012 and 2011 are as follows (in thousands):
November 30,

Gross unrecognized tax benefits balance at beginning of year

$

Increases for tax positions of current fiscal year
Increases for tax positions of prior fiscal years
Lapse of statutes of limitation
Gross unrecognized tax benefits at end of year
Interest and penalties
Total unrecognized tax benefits balance at end of year

$

2012

2011

43,619 $
8,136
4,031
(1,270)

35,782
8,449
962
(1,574)

54,516
881

43,619
761

55,397

$

44,380

We account for uncertain tax issues pursuant to authoritative guidance based on a two-step
approach to recognize and measure uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. The first step is to determine if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more
likely than not that the tax position will be sustained upon audit, whether or not under audit,
including contemplated resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes. If the first step is
met, then the second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than
50% likely to be sustained upon ultimate settlement. We adjust reserves for our uncertain tax
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positions due to changing facts and circumstances, such as the closing of a tax audit, or
refinement of estimates due to new information. To the extent that the final outcome of these
matters is different than the amounts recorded, such differences will impact our tax provision in
our Consolidated Statements of Operations in the period in which such determination is made.
During fiscal year 2012, the amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits increased by
approximately $10.9 million. We have elected to include interest expense and penalties accrued
on unrecognized tax benefits as a component of our income tax expense. The total amount of
gross unrecognized tax benefits was $55.4 million as of November 30, 2012, of which $37.9
million would affect the effective tax rate if realized. We do not expect any significant changes to
the amount of unrecognized tax benefit within the next 12 months.
We are subject to routine corporate income tax audits in the United States and foreign
jurisdictions. The statute of limitations for our fiscal years 1994 through 2012 remains open for
U.S. purposes. Most foreign jurisdictions have statute of limitations that range from three to six
years.
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Segment Information
(Summary Of Property And
Equipment By Major
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
Country) (Details) (USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Segment Reporting Information [Line Items]
Property and equipment, net
$ 98,474
$ 89,871
United States
Segment Reporting Information [Line Items]
Property and equipment, net
83,516
83,500
United Kingdom
Segment Reporting Information [Line Items]
Property and equipment, net
1,191
1,386
Other
Segment Reporting Information [Line Items]
Property and equipment, net
$ 13,767
$ 4,985
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Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies
(Narrative) (Details) (USD $)
Significant Accounting Policies [Line Items]
Customer balance in excess of 10% of total revenues
Customer balance in excess of 10% of net accounts receivable
Depreciation of property and equipment
Impairment of goodwill
Purchase price allocation period, maximum
Number of days after acquisition in which severance related costs are
recorded as acquisition expenses
Gains (Losses) from foreign currency exchange
Advertising costs
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, Nov. 30, Nov. 30,
2012
2011
2010
0
0
0
0
0
$
$
$
14,931,000 13,145,000 13,414,000
0
1 year
90 days
(700,000) (1,900,000) (1,900,000)
$
$
$
3,000,000 2,400,000 2,500,000

Commitments and
Contingencies (Tables)
Commitments and
Contingencies Disclosure
[Abstract]
Summary Of Contractual
Commitments

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

As of November 30, 2012, contractual commitments associated with indebtedness, lease
obligations and restructuring are as follows (in thousands):
Total

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter

Commitments:
Debt
principal
$635,711 $35,711 $
— $
— $
— $600,000 $
—
Debt interest
62,033 14,783 13,500 13,500 13,500
6,750
—
Operating
41,455 11,753
9,598
6,623
5,420
3,746
4,315
leases(1)
Total
commitments $739,199 $62,247 $23,098 $20,123 $18,920 $610,496 $ 4,315
(1)

Operating leases include future minimum rent payments, net of estimated sublease income, for facilities that
we have vacated pursuant to our restructuring activities, as discussed in Note 9.
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Consolidated Statements Of
Equity And Comprehensive
Income (Loss) (USD $)
Total
In Thousands, except Share
data, unless otherwise
specified
Balances at Nov. 30, 2009
$ 797,481
Balances, shares at Nov. 30,
2009
Components of
comprehensive income:
Net income
78,088
Net income
78,471
Foreign currency translation
(5,632)
adjustment, net of tax effects
Unrealized gain (loss) on
17
investments, no tax
Comprehensive income (loss) 72,856
Common stock repurchased
(204,280)
and retired
Common stock repurchased
and retired, shares
Common stock options
83,902
exercised
Common stock options
exercised, shares
Common stock issued for
employee stock purchase
3,038
program
Common stock issued for
employee stock purchase
program, shares
Tax benefits from employee
30,626
stock options plans
Stock-based compensation
32,248
Restricted stock withholding
(6,140)
taxes net-settlement
Restricted stock withholding
taxes net-settlement, shares
Restricted stock awards
Restricted stock awards, shares
Balances at Nov. 30, 2010
809,731
Balances, shares at Nov. 30,
2010
Components of
comprehensive income:
Net income
112,406
Net income
112,635

Total TIBCO
Accumulated
Additional
Software,
NonCommon
Other
Retained
Paid-In
Inc.
controlling
Stock
Comprehensive Earnings
Capital
Stockholders’ Interest
(Loss)
Equity
$ 168

$ 774,474 $ (16,413)

$ 38,520 $ 796,749

$ 732

167,738,000

78,088

78,088
383

(5,680)

(5,680)

17

17
72,425

(15)

(87,657)

48

431

(116,608) (204,280)

(15,084,000)
10

83,892

83,902

3,038

3,038

30,626

30,626

32,248

32,248

(6,140)

(6,140)

9,850,000
0

388,000

(536,000)
2
2,166,000
165

(2)
830,479

(22,076)

0

808,568

1,163

164,522,000
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112,406 112,406
229

Foreign currency translation
702
adjustment, net of tax effects
Unrealized gain (loss) on
35
investments, no tax
Comprehensive income (loss) 113,372
Common stock repurchased
(194,059) (7)
(94,388)
and retired
Common stock repurchased
(7,310,000)
and retired, shares
Common stock options
76,583
8
76,575
exercised
Common stock options
8,018,000
exercised, shares
Common stock issued for
employee stock purchase
4,026
4,026
program
Common stock issued for
employee stock purchase
256,000
program, shares
Tax benefits from employee
8,552
8,552
stock options plans
Stock-based compensation
48,867
48,867
Restricted stock withholding
(17,921)
(1)
(17,920)
taxes net-settlement
Restricted stock withholding
(672,000)
taxes net-settlement, shares
Restricted stock awards
1
(1)
Restricted stock awards, shares
1,473,000
Balances at Nov. 30, 2011
849,151
166
856,190
Balances, shares at Nov. 30,
166,287,000 166,287,000
2011
Components of
comprehensive income:
Net income
122,007
Net income
122,114
Foreign currency translation
3,540
adjustment, net of tax effects
Comprehensive income (loss) 125,654
Convertible bond issuance
50,833
50,833
Common stock repurchased
(220,265) (8)
(134,592)
and retired
Common stock repurchased
(7,606,000)
and retired, shares
Common stock options
28,231
4
28,227
exercised
Common stock options
3,560,000 3,560,000
exercised, shares
Common stock issued for
employee stock purchase
5,186
5,186
program

1,009

1,009

35

35
113,450

(307)

(78)

(99,664) (194,059)

76,583

4,026

8,552
48,867
(17,921)

(21,032)

12,742

848,066

1,085

122,007 122,007
107
3,621
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3,621

(81)

125,628
50,833

26

(85,665) (220,265)

28,231

5,186

Common stock issued for
employee stock purchase
229,000
program, shares
Tax benefits from employee
24,561
24,561
stock options plans
Stock-based compensation
61,146
61,146
Restricted stock withholding
(18,212)
0
(18,212)
taxes net-settlement
Restricted stock withholding
(610,000)
taxes net-settlement, shares
Restricted stock awards
2
(2)
Restricted stock awards, shares
1,838,000
Balances at Nov. 30, 2012
$ 906,285 $ 164
$ 873,337 $ (17,411)
Balances, shares at Nov. 30,
163,698,000 163,698,000
2012
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24,561
61,146
(18,212)

$ 49,084 $ 905,174

$ 1,111

Income Taxes (Provision For
12 Months Ended
Income Taxes At Rates
Other Than United States
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011 Nov. 30, 2010
Federal Statutory Tax Rate)
(Details)
Income Tax Disclosure [Abstract]
U.S. Federal statutory rate
35.00%
35.00%
35.00%
State taxes
(2.20%)
1.80%
2.10%
Research and development credits
(1.30%)
(2.70%)
(0.30%)
Stock option compensation
(2.10%)
1.60%
0.50%
Foreign income taxed at different rate (7.50%)
(5.90%)
(7.90%)
Change in valuation allowance
0.00%
(2.50%)
0.00%
Domestic manufacturing incentives (1.40%)
(1.10%)
0.00%
Other
0.90%
(1.30%)
(0.20%)
Effective tax rate
21.40%
24.90%
29.20%
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Business Combinations
Business Combinations
[Abstract]
Business Combinations

Business Combinations
Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2012
On April 10, 2012, we acquired LogLogic, Inc. ("LogLogic"), a private company based in
San Jose, California and incorporated in Delaware. LogLogic is a provider of scalable log and
security management platforms. We paid $131.6 million, net of cash acquired, to acquire all of
the outstanding shares of capital stock of LogLogic. We have also incurred $0.7 million of
transaction costs associated with the acquisition. As a result of the acquisition, we assumed
facility leases, certain liabilities and commitments of LogLogic. We are currently evaluating the
purchase price allocation for this transaction.
The preliminary allocation of the purchase price for the LogLogic acquisition is as follows
(in thousands):

Cash
Accounts receivable (approximate contractual value)
Other assets
Deferred income tax asset, net
Identifiable intangible assets
Goodwill
Liabilities

$

Deferred revenue
Total preliminary purchase price

$

5,018
5,359
1,524
4,371
61,200
73,460
(7,006)
(7,297)
136,629

Identifiable intangible assets (in thousands, except amortization period):
Gross Amount
at Acquisition
Date

Existing technology

$

Customer base
Maintenance agreements
Trademarks
$

Weighted Average
Amortization
Period

32,800
3,200
22,300
2,900

6.0 years
6.0 years
7.0 years

61,200

6.4 years

7.0 years

Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2011
Nimbus Partners Limited
On August 30, 2011, TIBCO International Holdings B.V., an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of us, acquired Nimbus Partners Limited ("Nimbus"), a private company organized
under the laws of England and Wales and a provider of business process discovery and analysis
applications that help companies drive adoption of business process initiatives. We paid $42.0
million of cash to acquire the outstanding equity of Nimbus. We have also incurred $1.0 million
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of acquisition related and other expenses associated with the acquisition. As a result of the
acquisition, we assumed facility leases, certain liabilities and commitments of Nimbus.
LoyaltyLab, Inc.
On December 7, 2010, we acquired LoyaltyLab, Inc. ("Loyalty Lab"), a private company
incorporated in Delaware. Loyalty Lab is a provider of loyalty management solutions allowing
marketers to manage loyalty programs from their desktop. This acquisition provides us
international presence in the customer loyalty market. We paid $23.5 million in cash to acquire all
of the outstanding shares of capital stock of Loyalty Lab. In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2011,
we recorded a decrease in goodwill of $0.4 million as a result of the adjustment of deferred
income tax assets. We have also incurred $0.4 million of acquisition related and other expenses
associated with the acquisition. As a result of the acquisition, we assumed facility leases and
certain liabilities and commitments of Loyalty Lab.
Acquisitions in Fiscal Year 2010
OpenSpirit Corporation
On September 22, 2010, we acquired OpenSpirit Corporation ("OpenSpirit"), a private
company incorporated in Delaware. OpenSpirit is a provider of data and application integration
solutions for the exploration and production segment of the global oil and gas market.
OpenSpirit’s vendor-neutral approach is designed to enable companies to pursue an architectural
model to both better leverage legacy investments and exploit new technologies which reduce the
time and risk associated with decision making. We paid $18.4 million in cash to acquire all of the
outstanding shares of capital stock of OpenSpirit. In the first quarter of fiscal year 2011, we
recorded a decrease in goodwill of $0.2 million net of tax as a result of the adjustment of certain
accrued liabilities. In the third quarter of fiscal year 2011, we recorded a decrease in goodwill of
$0.5 million as a result of the adjustment of deferred income tax assets. We have also incurred
$0.5 million of acquisition related and other expenses associated with the acquisition.
Proginet Corporation
On September 15, 2010, we acquired Proginet Corporation ("Proginet"), a public company
incorporated in Delaware. Proginet is a provider of managed file transfer solutions. This
acquisition augments our broader software infrastructure offerings and we believe it will help
customers across industries more efficiently manage the information and processes that run their
business. We paid $22.0 million in cash to acquire all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of
Proginet. In the third quarter of fiscal year 2011, we recorded an increase in goodwill of $0.2
million as a result of the adjustment of deferred income tax assets. We have also incurred $0.6
million of acquisition related and other expenses associated with the acquisition.
Kabira Technologies, Inc.
On April 20, 2010, we acquired Kabira Technologies, Inc. ("Kabira"), a private company
incorporated in Delaware and a provider of high performance transaction processing software
solutions for communications service providers globally. Kabira’s products and solutions support
key infrastructure capabilities such as subscriber provisioning, value-based charging, and mobile
payments. Its in-memory approach to supporting transactions complements our abilities in
handling events and adds to our broader suite of in-memory infrastructure software products. We
paid $3.9 million of cash to acquire all of the outstanding equity of Kabira. In the first quarter of
fiscal year 2011, we recorded an increase in goodwill of $0.5 million as a result of the adjustment
of deferred income tax assets. We have also incurred $0.5 million of acquisition related and other
expenses associated with the acquisition.
The excess of the purchase price over the identified tangible and intangible assets, less
liabilities assumed, was recorded as goodwill. We anticipate that $1.3 million of the goodwill
recorded in connection with the Kabira acquisition will be deductible for income tax purposes.
Netrics.com, Inc.
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On March 8, 2010, we acquired Netrics.com, Inc. ("Netrics"), a private company
incorporated in Delaware and a provider of data quality software and services. Netrics’ inmemory-based approach to pattern matching and detection complements our core integration and
business optimization offerings and adds to our broader suite of in-memory infrastructure
software products. We paid $10.5 million of cash to acquire all of the outstanding equity of
Netrics. We have also incurred $0.4 million of acquisition related and other expenses associated
with the acquisition.
Foresight Corporation
On December 31, 2009, we acquired Foresight Corporation ("Foresight"), a private
company incorporated in Delaware and a provider of Electronic Data Interchange ("EDI")
productivity tools and transaction automation solutions. Foresight’s products connect partners and
validate transactions, reducing administrative inefficiencies and addressing mandates. Foresight
also expands our expertise in the healthcare and EDI markets, where its ability to support and
validate transactions across a range of standards complements our core business-to-business
abilities. We paid $30.0 million of cash to acquire all of the outstanding equity of Foresight. In
the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2010, we recorded a decrease in goodwill of $1.1 million net of
tax as a result of the adjustment of certain accrued liabilities. We have also incurred $0.8 million
of acquisition related and other expenses associated with the acquisition.
Pro Forma Adjusted Summary (unaudited)
The results of LogLogic, Nimbus, Loyalty Lab, OpenSpirit, Proginet, Kabira, Netrics and
Foresight’s operations have been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements since their
respective acquisition dates. The following unaudited pro forma adjusted summary reflects
TIBCO’s condensed results of operations for the periods ended November 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. The summary assumes that the businesses had been acquired at the beginning of
fiscal year 2011 and include pro forma adjustments for amortization charges for acquired
intangible assets, stock-based compensation charges, if any, and related tax effects.
The unaudited pro forma financial information for fiscal year 2012 combines the historical
results of TIBCO for the year ended November 30, 2012 and the historical results of LogLogic
for the four months ended April 10, 2012. The unaudited pro forma financial information for
fiscal year 2011 combines the historical results of TIBCO for fiscal year 2011, the twelve months
historical results of LogLogic and the historical results of Nimbus and Loyalty Lab based upon
their respective previous reporting periods and the dates these companies were acquired by us.
The following unaudited pro forma adjusted summary is for informational purposes only
and is not intended to be indicative of future results of operations or whether similar results
would have been achieved if the acquisitions had taken place at the beginning of fiscal year 2011
(in thousands, except per share amounts):
Year Ended
November 30,
2012

2011
(Unaudited)

Pro forma adjusted total revenue

$ 1,037,418

$ 970,467

Pro forma adjusted net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.

$

116,867

$ 103,262

Pro forma adjusted net income per share attributable to TIBCO
Software Inc.:
Basic

$

0.73

$

0.64

$

0.69

$

0.60

Diluted
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Fair Value Measurements
and Derivative Instruments
(Foreign Currency Forward
Contracts Not Designated As
Hedging Instruments)
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011
(Details) (Not Designated as
Hedging Instrument, USD $)
In Thousands, unless
otherwise specified
Other Current Assets
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Foreign currency forward contracts, Assets
$ 101
$ 142
Accrued Liabilities
Fair Value Measurements and Derivative Instruments [Line Items]
Foreign currency forward contracts, Liabilities
$ 130
$ 142
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Stock Benefit Plans and
12 Months Ended
Stock-Based Compensation
(Summary Of Assumptions
For Estimating Fair Value
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011 Nov. 30, 2010
Of Stock-Based Awards)
(Details) (USD $)
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based
Payment Award [Line Items]
Weighted-average grant-date fair value (per share)
$ 25.77
Stock options
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based
Payment Award [Line Items]
Expected term
4 years 9
months 18 days
Risk-free interest rate
0.70%
0.90%
1.30%
Risk-free interest rate
1.50%
2.10%
2.40%
Volatility
42.00%
42.00%
42.00%
Volatility
47.00%
47.00%
44.00%
Weighted-average grant-date fair value (per share)
$ 9.91
$ 10.70
$ 4.99
Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based
Payment Award [Line Items]
Expected term
6 months
6 months
6 months
Risk-free interest rate
0.20%
Risk-free interest rate
0.10%
0.20%
Volatility
43.00%
38.00%
35.00%
Volatility
52.00%
39.00%
39.00%
Weighted-average grant-date fair value (per share)
$ 7.62
$ 6.56
$ 2.87
Minimum | Stock options
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based
Payment Award [Line Items]
Expected term
4 years 9
4 years 9
months 18 days months 18 days
Maximum | Stock options
Share-based Compensation Arrangement by Share-based
Payment Award [Line Items]
Expected term
5 years 1 month 5 years 1 month
6 days
6 days
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Accrued Restructuring and
12 Months Ended
Acquisition Integration
Costs (Narrative) (Details)
Nov. 30, 2012 Nov. 30, 2011 Nov. 30, 2010 Nov. 30, 2009
(USD $)
Restructuring Cost and Reserve [Line Items]
Restructuring charges
$ (648,000) $ 8,926,000 $ 6,953,000
Accrued restructuring cost, long-term liabilities 643,000
1,050,000
Restructuring reserve
1,536,000
7,842,000
3,227,000
6,931,000
Fiscal 2011 Restructuring Plan
Restructuring Cost and Reserve [Line Items]
Estimated restructuring costs
8,200,000
Restructuring charges
(600,000)
8,800,000
Fiscal 2010 Restructuring Plan
Restructuring Cost and Reserve [Line Items]
Estimated restructuring costs
7,100,000
Restructuring charges
$ 100,000
$ 7,000,000
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12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Net Income Per Share
Earnings Per Share
[Abstract]
Net Income Per Share

Net Income Per Share
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing the net income available to common
stockholders for the period by the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period less shares of common stock subject to repurchase and nonvested
stock awards. Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing the net income for the period
by the weighted average number of shares of common stock and potential shares of common
stock outstanding during the period if their effect is dilutive under the treasury stock method.
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share for
the periods indicated (in thousands, except per share data):
Year Ended November 30,

Net income attributable to TIBCO Software Inc.

2012

2011

$ 122,007

$ 112,406

160,330

161,469

160,959

6,677
2,683
8

9,549
2,245
9

7,949
2,042
3

169,698

173,272

170,953

Weighted-average shares of common stock used in
computing basic net income per share (excluding
unvested restricted stock)
Effect of dilutive common stock equivalents:
Stock options
Stock awards
ESPP
Weighted-average shares of common stock used in
computing diluted net income per share
Net Income per share attributable to TIBCO Software
Inc.:
Basic net income per share
Diluted net income per share

2010

$

78,088

$

0.76

$

0.70

$

0.49

$

0.72

$

0.65

$

0.46

The following potential weighted-average common stock equivalents are not included in
the diluted net income per share calculation above, because their effect was anti-dilutive for the
periods indicated (in thousands):
Year Ended November 30,
2012

Stock options
Stock awards
Convertible senior notes
Total anti-dilutive common stock equivalents

2011

2010

1,738
291
7,542

1,264
404
—

4,487
76
—

9,571

1,668

4,563

Anti-dilutive potential common stock equivalents for fiscal year 2012 include the weighted
effect of the 11.9 million shares that could be issued under the Notes if we experience a
substantial increase in our common stock price. Under the treasury stock method, the Notes will
generally have a dilutive impact on net income per share if our average stock price for the period
exceeds the conversion price for the Notes. On conversion of a Note, however, we will deliver
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cash in an amount generally equal to the lesser of the conversion value and the principal amount
of each Note and, only for any conversion value greater than the principal amount, we will
deliver shares of common stock.
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Commitments and
Contingencies (Narrative)
(Details) (USD $)
In Millions, unless otherwise
specified
Commitments And Contingencies [Line Items]
Original land lease expiration date
Lease paid in advance
Prepaid land lease adjustments term
Lease expiration date
Rental expense
Long-term income tax liabilities for uncertainty in
income taxes
Revolving Line Of Credit
Commitments And Contingencies [Line Items]
Revolving credit facility, maximum capacity
Letters Of Credit Two
Commitments And Contingencies [Line Items]
Revolving credit facility amount outstanding
Letters Of Credit One
Commitments And Contingencies [Line Items]
Revolving credit facility amount outstanding

1 Months
Ended
Jun. 30, 2003

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30,
2012

Nov. 30,
2011

Nov. 30,
2010

51 years
$ 28.0
10 years
Sep. 01,
2019
14.7
26.3

20.0

1.0

$ 13.0
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14.2

11.0

Goodwill and Other
Acquired Intangible Assets
(Tables)
Goodwill and Intangible
Assets Disclosure [Abstract]
Changes In Carrying Amount
Of Goodwill

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Goodwill

Balance as of November 30, 2010

$

409,545
27,117
11,966
(689)
205
464
3,213

$

451,821
73,460
1,077
801
5,131

$

532,290

Goodwill recorded for the Nimbus acquisition
Goodwill recorded for the Loyalty Lab acquisition
Goodwill adjustment for the OpenSpirit acquisition(1)
Goodwill adjustment for the Proginet acquisition(1)
Goodwill adjustment for the Kabira acquisition(1)
Foreign currency translation
Balance as of November 30, 2011
Goodwill recorded for the LogLogic acquisition
Goodwill adjustment for the Nimbus acquisition(1)
Goodwill recorded for other business combination
Foreign currency translation
Balance as of November 30, 2012
(1)

Schedule Of Acquired
Intangible Assets

Pursuant to the business combinations accounting guidance, we record goodwill adjustments for the effect on
goodwill changes to net assets acquired during the measurement period (up to one year from the date of an
acquisition). Goodwill adjustments were not significant to our previously reported operating results or financial
position.

Our acquired intangible assets are subject to amortization on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:
Estimated
Life

Weighted Average
Remaining Life

Developed technologies

Schedule Of Carrying Values
Of Amortized Acquired
Intangible Assets

4 to 9 years
Customer base
4 to 9 years
Patents/core technologies
5 to 7 years
Trademarks
4 to 8 years
Maintenance agreements
4 to 9 years
The carrying values of our amortized acquired intangible assets are as follows (in
thousands):
November 30, 2012
Gross
Carrying
Amount

Developed
technologies
Customer base
Patents/core
technologies
Trademarks

$ 182,152
59,525
28,295
12,777

Accumulated
Amortization

November 30, 2011
Net
Carrying
Amount

$ (118,992) $ 63,160
(43,328) $ 16,197
(24,198) $
(8,251) $

4.3 years
3.5 years
2.9 years
5.1 years
5.0 years

4,097
4,526
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Gross
Carrying
Amount

$ 146,289
56,165
27,922
9,771

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

$ (102,034) $ 44,255
(37,376)
18,789
(21,542)
(7,077)

6,380
2,694

Non-compete
agreements
Maintenance
agreements
In-process
research and
development
Total
intangible
assets

Future Amortization Of
Acquired Intangible Assets

580
83,762

—

$ 367,091

(580) $

—

580

(580)

—

(48,481) $ 35,281

61,677

(38,237)

23,440

—

$

—

1,700

$ (243,830) $ 123,261

$ 304,104

—

$

1,700

$ (206,846) $ 97,258

The estimated future amortization of acquired intangible assets as of November 30, 2012 is
as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended November 30,

2013
2014

$

2015
2016
2017
Thereafter
Total intangible assets, net
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34,942
28,317
23,316
17,660
11,772
7,254

$

123,261

12 Months Ended
Nov. 30, 2012

Commitments and
Contingencies
Commitments and
Contingencies Disclosure
[Abstract]
Commitments And
Contingencies

Commitments and Contingencies
Letters of Credit
In connection with the mortgage note payable, we entered into an irrevocable letter of credit
in the amount of $13.0 million. In addition, as of November 30, 2012 we had a total of $1.0
million outstanding with respect to letters of credit in connection with sales and lease
transactions. The letters of credit are collateralized by the $20.0 million revolving line of credit
described above in Note 10. As of November 30, 2012, we were in compliance with all covenants
under the revolving line of credit.
Prepaid Land Lease
In June 2003, we entered into a 51-year lease of the land upon which our corporate
headquarters is located. The lease was paid in advance for a total of $28.0 million, but is subject
to adjustments every ten years based upon changes in market condition. Should it become
necessary, we have the option to prepay any rent increases due as a result of a change in fair
market value. This prepaid land lease is being amortized using the straight-line method over the
life of the lease; the portion to be amortized over the next twelve months is included in Prepaid
Expenses and Other Current Assets, and the remainder is included in Other Assets on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Operating Commitments
At various locations worldwide, we lease office space and equipment under non-cancelable
operating leases with various expiration dates through September 2019. Rental expense was
$14.7 million, $14.2 million and $11.0 million in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
As of November 30, 2012, contractual commitments associated with indebtedness, lease
obligations and restructuring are as follows (in thousands):
Total

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

—
13,500

$600,000
6,750

Thereafter

Commitments:
Debt principal $635,711
Debt interest
62,033
Operating
41,455
leases(1)
Total
commitments $739,199
(1)

$35,711
14,783

$

—
13,500

$

—
13,500

$

$

—
—

11,753

9,598

6,623

5,420

3,746

4,315

$62,247

$23,098

$20,123

$18,920

$610,496

$ 4,315

Operating leases include future minimum rent payments, net of estimated sublease income, for facilities that we
have vacated pursuant to our restructuring activities, as discussed in Note 9.

Future minimum lease payments under restructured non-cancelable operating leases as of
November 30, 2012, are included in Accrued Restructuring Costs on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets; see Note 9 for further details.
The above commitment table does not include $26.3 million of long-term income tax
liabilities recorded in accounting for uncertainty in income taxes due to the fact that we are
unable to reasonably estimate the timing of these potential future payments.
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Indemnifications
Our software license agreements typically provide for indemnification of customers for
intellectual property infringement claims. To date, no such claims have been filed against us. We
also warrant to customers that software products operate substantially in accordance with the
software product’s specifications. Historically, we have incurred minimal costs related to product
warranties, and, as such, no accruals for warranty costs have been made. In addition, we
indemnify our officers and directors under the terms of indemnity agreements entered into with
them, as well as pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and applicable Delaware law.
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